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The Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council convened in the 1 
Ambassador Room of the Ramada Plaza Beach Resort, Fort Walton 2 
Beach, Florida, Wednesday morning, November 16, 2005, and was 3 
called to order at 8:30 o’clock a.m. by Chairman Robin Riechers. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN ROBIN RIECHERS:   My name is Robin Riechers and as 6 

Chairman of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council, I 7 
welcome you all.  This is our 203rd meeting of the council. 8 
 9 
Members of the public will be permitted to present oral 10 
statements in accordance with the schedule published in the 11 
agenda.  Please advise the council staff if you desire to 12 
address the council.  They have sign-up cards and they’ll have 13 
you fill one of those out. 14 
 15 
Please give written statements to the council staff if you want 16 
them passed out to us and included in the record.  1996 17 
amendments to the Fishery Management Act require all oral or 18 
written statements to include a brief description of the 19 
background and interests of the person in the subject of the 20 
statement.  21 
 22 
All written information shall include a statement of the source 23 
and date of such information.  It is unlawful for any person to 24 
knowingly and willfully submit to a council false information 25 
regarding any matter the council is considering in the course of 26 
carrying out the Fisheries Act. 27 
 28 
If you have a cell phone, pager, or a similar device, we ask 29 
that you keep them on silent or vibrating mode during the 30 
council and committee sessions.  A tape recording is used for 31 
the public record.  Therefore, for the purpose of voice 32 
identification, each member is requested to identify themselves, 33 
starting on my left. 34 
 35 
MR. CORKY PERRET:  Corky Perret, Mississippi. 36 

 37 
MR. LARRY SIMPSON:  Larry Simpson, Gulf States Marine Fisheries 38 

Commission. 39 
 40 
MR. PHILIP HORN:  Philip Horn, Mississippi. 41 

 42 
MS. KAY WILLIAMS:  Kay Williams, Mississippi. 43 

 44 
MR. VERNON MINTON:  Vernon Minton, Alabama. 45 

 46 
MS. BOBBI WALKER:  Bobbi Walker, Alabama. 47 

 48 
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DR. ROBERT SHIPP:  Bob Shipp, Alabama. 1 

 2 
DR. ROY CRABTREE:  Roy Crabtree, NOAA Fisheries. 3 

 4 
MS. MONICA SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Monica Smit-Brunello, NOAA General 5 

Counsel. 6 
 7 
MS. VIRGINIA FAY:  Ginny Fay, NOAA Fisheries. 8 

 9 
MR. PHIL STEELE:  Phil Steele, NOAA Fisheries. 10 

 11 
MR. WALTER THOMASSIE:  Walter Thomassie, Louisiana. 12 

 13 
MS. KAREN FOOTE:  Karen Foote, Louisiana. 14 

 15 
MR. MYRON FISCHER:  Myron Fischer, Cutoff. 16 

 17 
MS. KAREN BELL:  Karen Bell, Florida. 18 

 19 
MR. ROY WILLIAMS:  Roy William, Florida Fish and Wildlife 20 

Conservation Commission. 21 
 22 
MS. JULIE MORRIS:  Julie Morris, Florida. 23 

 24 
MR. WILLIAM DAUGHDRILL:  Bill Daughdrill, Florida. 25 

 26 
MR. JOSEPH HENDRIX:  Joe Hendrix, Texas. 27 

 28 
MR. DEGRAAF ADAMS:  Degraaf Adams, Texas. 29 

 30 
MR. COLUMBUS BROWN:  Columbus Brown, U.S. Fish and Wildlife 31 

Service. 32 
 33 
LCDR SCOTT ROGERS:  Scott Rogers, Coast Guard, Miami, Florida. 34 

 35 
LT. CHAD BRICK:  Lieutenant Chad Brick, Coast Guard, Miami, 36 

Florida. 37 
 38 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR WAYNE SWINGLE:  Wayne Swingle, Gulf Council 39 

staff. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Again, thanks, everyone, for being here.  I 42 

do want to take a moment and as many of you know, at the last 43 
meeting we had several of our members absent due to hurricanes 44 
in the Gulf coast region. 45 
 46 
While their lives aren’t back to normal, we are certainly glad 47 
to have them all back around the table and participating in this 48 
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process again kind of in a normal fashion.  It brings a little 1 
normalcy back to our group and so our thoughts and prayers are 2 
with all of you as you still get your families back in order and 3 
your situations all figured out, but we’re certainly glad to 4 
have you back here in this room with us today. 5 
 6 
MR. SIMPSON:  I missed the last meeting, Mr. Chairman, and we 7 

had two members to come on, one old retread and another 8 
reappointment and on behalf of the Commission, I would like to 9 
welcome you back and give you a little hat to wear and if you 10 
fish with it, please make sure you’re legal.  Bob, if you put 11 
lemon juice on this, a secret code comes up for the meeting. 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  With that, we do have a couple other awards 14 

we would like to present this morning.  First, and he’s not here 15 
to accept it, but we will give it to some of his National Marine 16 
Fisheries Service or NOAA Fisheries counterparts, and we do want 17 
to extend our great appreciation to Shepherd Grimes for his 18 
service to the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council. 19 
 20 
Shepherd served us for three years, from 2002 to 2005, and he 21 
has now taken a job out in the Pacific and we wish him well and 22 
we certainly thank him for his extended service with us and his 23 
valuable general counsel input throughout our entire process.  24 
Again, pass our thanks on to Shepherd. 25 
 26 
Next on our list we want to thank our Vice Chairman last year, 27 
Mr. Joe Hendrix.  As I think Julie pointed out the last meeting, 28 
Joe served behind her and helping her behind the scenes and 29 
making sure everything ran smooth and making sure that we stayed 30 
on track and provided leadership and guidance in that capacity 31 
and we certainly want to thank him for his service. 32 
 33 
Next, we would like to also thank Ms. Julie Morris for serving 34 
as Chairman in the 2004-2005 year and I don’t think I can put it 35 
any better than Ms. Walker put it last time.  We want to thank 36 
her for her patience and her leadership. 37 
 38 
In addition to that, Julie has a never-ending desire to tackle 39 
the tough issues and we certainly need that amongst us 40 
sometimes.  She certainly always was looking for ways to make us 41 
more efficient and move through this process in a better way and 42 
always looking for compromises and ways to reach out to the 43 
different groups that we have to deal with so that we get the 44 
best solutions on the table and we want to thank her for that.  45 
With that, we will now proceed to Adoption of the Agenda.  Are 46 
there any changes to the agenda? 47 
 48 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Under Tab K, which is Other 1 

Business, we do have two items for your consideration.  One of 2 
these is the review of the proposed meeting dates for Calendar 3 
Year 2006 and the other is whether or not you want to modify the 4 
SOPPs as to specify a longer number of consecutive terms for the 5 
chair and so those two items are under Other Business, Tab K. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Are there any other additions to Other 8 

Business? 9 
 10 
MR. DAUGHDRILL:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to add an item under 11 

New Business, if that’s appropriate.  I would like to discuss 12 
the possibility of the management of pompano. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think we will put that in under Other 15 

Business on the agenda, but that isn’t probably where the 16 
appropriate place will be.  Are there any other changes?  If 17 
there are no objections then, the agenda is approved.  Next we 18 
have Approval of the Minutes and are there any changes to the 19 
minutes from the last meeting? 20 
 21 
MR. PERRET:  Move adoption. 22 
 23 
MR. HORN:  Second. 24 

 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s been moved and seconded that we adopt 26 
the minutes.  All those in favor of adoption of the minutes say 27 
aye; all those opposed same sign.  There is one opposition in 28 
approval of the minutes. 29 
 30 
MR. MINTON:  Mr. Chairman, I oppose it just because of the short 31 

time we’ve had to review it, that’s all.  Between committee 32 
work, I just feel like we haven’t had enough time. 33 
 34 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  With that then, we will move into our next 35 

agenda item and that will be Approval of Committees and that is 36 
Tab L.  I think you’ve all been provided that tab and all have 37 
it in front of you.   38 
 39 
As you can see by the committee structure that’s laid out before 40 
you, basically we kept many of our committees intact, with some 41 
slight alterations.  Obviously we have some new members that 42 
we’re trying to work into our committee structure and you can 43 
see how that’s been done there and for the most part, like I 44 
said, the committee structure basically is standing as it was 45 
before. 46 
 47 
There have been no additions or deletions of committees or any 48 



  7 

recommendations to do that this year, as compared to last year.  1 
Do I have any questions or comments regarding the committee 2 
structure?  Do I hear a motion to adopt? 3 
 4 
MR. PERRET:  Mr. Chairman, I move to adopt the committee make up 5 
as presented. 6 
 7 
MS. WALKER:  Second. 8 

 9 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It was moved by Mr. Perret and seconded by 10 
Ms. Walker.  All those in favor of the committee structure say 11 
aye; all those opposed same sign.   12 

 13 
MR. SIMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to commend the staff 14 

for putting this committee member listing behind the committee 15 
and council agendas each time.  It’s good to have it and I 16 
appreciate you all doing that on the disk.  It’s always included 17 
behind the committee and council agendas and that’s quite handy 18 
and thank you. 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  For the record, the motion did pass.  Next 21 

we will begin our public testimony portion of our meeting.  22 
We’re going to first do Reef Fish Amendment 26, the Red Snapper 23 
IFQ Program, and then we’re going to move to the Red Grouper 24 
Regulatory Amendment and then any exempted fishing permit 25 
comments as well. 26 
 27 
We will have five minutes for comments or that’s what we’re 28 
going to allow and obviously, if you have questions at the end, 29 
that doesn’t count against your time.  If you have questions 30 
during it, we’ll also try to allow you that time.   31 
 32 
We have a new timer.  There will be a yellow button that flashes 33 
up when you have one minute to go and at that point, we would 34 
hope that you start trying to wrap up your comments so you will 35 
stay within your five minutes.  With that, we will start with 36 
Reef Fish Amendment 26. 37 
 38 
I’ll just go ahead and attempt to make sure we have these 39 
correct, but we have a Maurice Fuller and a Jeremy Thorpe that 40 
both indicated grouper and snapper.  If you all want to clarify 41 
with staff which of these items you want to speak on or if it’s 42 
both, would you all do that at this time, please? 43 
 44 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Mr. Chairman, I don’t have the exact 45 

language in front of me, but we discussed, at least with I 46 
believe it’s Amendment 26, the IFQ amendment, adding in a few 47 
little tweaks to it to help with the processing of the quota 48 
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shares. 1 
 2 
One of those was a 3 percent set aside, so to speak, I believe 3 
out the total quota shares to allow for disputes on appeal and 4 
if the appeals failed and then none of that quota share was 5 
needed for those people who appealed and then that would then be 6 
redistributed. 7 
 8 
The other one was I believe for 2007 to only issue 51 percent of 9 
a five-million-pound TAC in the initial quota allocation.  Any 10 
quota share after that resulting from a larger TAC would be 11 
distributed no later than July 1 I believe of 2007.  I know this 12 
is a little bit last minute to these individuals here, but they 13 
may want to comment on that, because that wasn’t in the actual 14 
document that went out to public hearing. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you for pointing that out so they’re 17 

all aware of that and obviously if you need extra clarification 18 
as you try to make your comments, we’ll be happy to try to 19 
square that away so that you can speak to those points as well.   20 
 21 
With that, let’s begin public testimony and what I’ll do is I’ll 22 
call the first name to come up to the podium and I’ll just say 23 
who is going to be next so that you start getting some awareness 24 
of that as you go.  The first name will be David Walker and on 25 
deck will be Pam Baker. 26 
 27 
MR. DAVID WALKER:  I’m David Walker and I’m a commercial 28 

fisherman from Alabama, the Walker Fishing Fleet.  I have two 29 
Class 1 red snapper endorsements and I support IFQs and I’m 30 
ready to get them implemented. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any questions of Mr. Walker? 33 

 34 
MS. WALKER:  Mr. Walker, do you know the percentage of quota 35 

that you will receive from this IFQ? 36 
 37 
MR. WALKER:  At this time, I do not know.  It’s based on the 38 

years, the first ten years or the last ten years. 39 
 40 
MS. WALKER:  That means then that you bought a permit from 41 

someone else and you’re not aware of what their historical catch 42 
is? 43 
 44 
MR. WALKER:  I have an idea of what their catch is. 45 

 46 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other questions of Mr. Walker? 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  Mr. Walker, thanks for being here.  You’re aware 1 

we talked about some sort of 3 percent set aside for appeals and 2 
I believe yesterday or the day before we also talked about 3 
potentially if the TAC needs to be reduced that we would release 4 
a portion of the TAC initially and then the rest of the TAC when 5 
the rule publishes setting the TAC and are you okay with those 6 
types of things? 7 
 8 
MR. WALKER:  I wasn’t here yesterday or the day before.  You 9 

were setting aside 3 percent? 10 
 11 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, the problem was we go through an appeals 12 

process and if we have to award fish to people on appeals, where 13 
do they come from?  If we’ve already given out all the quota, 14 
there’s no reserve to give out on appeal and so we were going to 15 
hold back 3 percent of the initial quota and then go through the 16 
appeals and award out the appeals and then anything that’s left 17 
over would be given back to everybody or something like that and 18 
does that seem reasonable to you? 19 
 20 
MR. WALKER:  I do not have a problem with that. 21 

 22 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Mr. Walker.  If this council were to 23 

pass ITQs and then come back in another amendment and tell you 24 
how many hooks you can use and what depth of water you can fish 25 
in and where you can fish, would you still support it or what 26 
was your reason for supporting an ITQ? 27 
 28 
MR. WALKER:  My reason for supporting an IFQ is it’s a better 29 

management tool that hasn’t been available and would I support a 30 
reduction in hooks in certain areas?  No, of course not. 31 
 32 
MS. WILLIAMS:  What about where you could fish as far as what 33 

depth of water you could fish in? 34 
 35 
MR. WALKER:  In federal waters, whatever depth federal waters 36 

begins is what I would support for all fishermen. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further questions?  Hearing none, Ms. 39 

Baker, you’re up now and Mr. Bob Taylor will be next. 40 
 41 
MS. PAM BAKER:  Good morning, I’m Pam Baker with Environmental 42 

Defense.  I think all of you know that I support this plan.  I 43 
think it’s a good plan.  I hope that you will approve it and 44 
send it to the final referendum and have the results back in 45 
January, if you can. 46 
 47 
I hope that NMFS will sort out the landings records so that 48 
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fishermen will be able to get a pretty good idea of what they 1 
would get in the initial allocation before they vote.  The IFQ 2 
program is going to help in a lot of ways.  It’s going to help 3 
reduce harvesting costs, which will be of benefit to fishermen, 4 
because it will eliminate trip limits and closed seasons. 5 
 6 
It will help fishermen and dealers get better prices for their 7 
fish by spreading the catch out of the year instead of in gluts.  8 
It will improve safety also by eliminating seasons and as we’ve 9 
recently heard, that’s a very important issue and it will also 10 
be an important step toward reducing fishing mortality from 11 
regulatory discards during the closed season. 12 
 13 
We saw from Clay Porch’s presentation yesterday those out-of-14 
season discards play a big role in the health of the stock and 15 
this program will help reduce that problem. 16 
 17 
The program should also, or at the same time, the minimum size 18 
limit should be reduced or eliminated to cut bycatch even more.  19 
Eliminating this needless waste from the fishery will help you 20 
actually achieve a healthy fishery. 21 
 22 
I hope that you’ll get this in place for the 2006 fishing season 23 
and I know, and I have had people tell me that that’s not 24 
possible, and in part it’s moving too quick.  One thing is I 25 
think it’s just real hard at this point to convince me that this 26 
process has been very quick. 27 
 28 
My big concern, a very big concern, and I hope it is a concern 29 
of others, is that the commercial season has been getting longer 30 
and I think all fishery managers and fishermen know that if you 31 
don’t have any science that effort has been cut and the season 32 
is getting longer, you’ve got some kind of problem there. 33 
 34 
Getting this program in place as fast as possible I think is the 35 
best bet you’ve got right now for getting this stock back on 36 
track.  Thank you. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any questions for Ms. Baker? 39 

 40 
MS. WALKER:  Thank you, Ms. Baker, for being here today.  I 41 

think you were here when we discussed the red snapper TAC and 42 
having to lower it and we may be looking at a commercial TAC of 43 
2.5 million pounds, which is probably half of what they’re 44 
harvesting right now. 45 
 46 
You said you felt like this would reduce regulatory discards and 47 
what is your opinion though if the TAC goes to 2.5 million?  48 
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Won’t they have to target vermilion and other species to make a 1 
living during the year so that they’re still going to be 2 
interacting with red snapper? 3 
 4 
MS. BAKER:  I would think that fishermen would target a mix of 5 

species while they’re out, because they won’t have to harvest 6 
their red snapper during particular seasons, and that will help 7 
reduce that problem. 8 
 9 
At the same time, I recognize that a cut in TAC is difficult, 10 
but with the IFQ, fishermen will be able to cut their harvesting 11 
cost significantly, because they don’t have to take four trips 12 
to harvest 8,000 pounds, for example.  They can take one trip or 13 
whatever their boat allows. 14 
 15 
The reduction in harvesting cost and the estimated increase in 16 
the price of fish by spreading out and having a more even 17 
fishery, those things will help, even though the cut in TAC is 18 
going to be difficult. 19 
 20 
MR. SIMPSON:  Pam, I’m concerned about your last statement when 21 

you said that’s obviously a problem because the season is 22 
extended, commercial, and would you not acknowledge that 23 
management measures, consolidation of the fishery, and improved 24 
stock status might also extend the season? 25 
 26 
MS. BAKER:  No, I think if the stock were getting better, the 27 

season would be cut shorter, because we saw for the first 28 
several years under this program a shrinking season, fewer days 29 
and the fishermen could catch the quota in fewer days and then 30 
management measures tried to slow that down by spreading it out.  31 
Since 2002 or so, the fishermen have been having a harder and 32 
harder time catching their quota. 33 
 34 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further questions of Ms. Baker? 35 

 36 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Pam, I want to make sure that I understood you.  37 

What you’re saying is when the fishermen go out there and while 38 
they may not be fishing just strictly red snapper, because the 39 
TAC has been lowered, which most red snapper fishermen do not 40 
just fish for red snapper, it’s actually a plus because they can 41 
go out there and fish the way that they used do historically for 42 
other things, but because they now have coupons and they don’t 43 
have the closed seasons, they actually have less bycatch of the 44 
red snapper, because they’ll have the coupons to bring them in 45 
and is that correct? 46 
 47 
MS. BAKER:  Yes, I think this will get you on that path, that 48 
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fishermen harvest what they catch with their allocations.  I 1 
hope the council will also keep in mind that moving grouper and 2 
other reef fish to an IFQ will really allow you to get there. 3 
 4 
MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Pam.  I wish I was as optimistic as you 5 

are.  2006 is forty-five days away and in the absence of Dave 6 
McKinney, could you touch on anything that’s not in the document 7 
pertaining to possible enforcement tracking of fish?  8 
 9 
You know that’s always been my issue and making sure that every 10 
snapper caught is sold through the proper dealers and therefore 11 
recorded and where the system may stand today. 12 
 13 
MS. BAKER:  I don’t want to get in trouble by trying to speak 14 

for enforcement.  Dave McKinney sat on our IFQ Advisory Panel 15 
and he prepared two or three sort of white papers addressing 16 
enforcement and the benefits he thought that the IFQ program 17 
could aid in enforcement. 18 
 19 
A couple of things that he always said that relies on -- I guess 20 
there are enforcement people here that could address this better 21 
than me, but having an electronic system and that being very 22 
important that the dealer and the fishermen are tied together in 23 
that system and that VMS is an important part of that.  I don’t 24 
want to get myself in trouble here. 25 
 26 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further questions?  Thank you again, Ms. 27 

Baker.  Mr. Bob Taylor is next and then Mr. John T. Harris will 28 
be after that. 29 
 30 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Robin, we have quite a few red snapper fishermen 31 

here and I wonder if it would be useful if we were to review 32 
what we think the likely schedule is going to be for approval 33 
now, submission of the document to the fishermen, and then re-34 
review by the council, to give them some idea of what the likely 35 
time table on all this is and either staff or NMFS could do 36 
that. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Would someone from National Marine Fisheries 39 

Service -- I think it’s more associated with the referendum and 40 
so forth and so I think they would probably be more appropriate 41 
to at least give an idea and thank you, if you don’t mind your 42 
patience for us, to at least help clarify this. 43 
 44 
DR. CRABTREE:  I can do that.  We will, following this meeting, 45 

go back and make the final modifications to the document, based 46 
on the things like the appeals and a 3 percent set aside and 47 
those types of things, and finish that document and get NOAA 48 
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General Counsel’s clearance on it and send it to the EPA to 1 
publish the draft environmental impact statement and that’s the 2 
first priority. 3 
 4 
We can then go out at that point with the referendum and mail 5 
out essentially the draft environmental impact statement to 6 
fishermen.  If you as a council would like us to, and this is 7 
the sense I’m getting, you would like us to send a letter along 8 
with the document trying to give some idea to the fishermen as 9 
to where they stand in terms of landings and so we’ll have to 10 
put that together when we get back too. 11 
 12 
Then we would send the document out either sometime in mid to 13 
late December or in January for the referendum.  We will publish 14 
a notice in the Federal Register announcing that we’re going to 15 
do this and we’ll try to do that I suppose some time in 16 
December. 17 
 18 
We probably will give the fishermen from fifteen to thirty days 19 
to review the document and mail their vote back to us and we’ll 20 
then weight the votes and determine the results.  If we can 21 
report it back to you in January -- We’ll try to, but I think 22 
that will be very tight and I’m not sure we’ll have the 23 
referendum results by the January meeting. 24 
 25 
We also will still be in the EPA comment period on the DEIS in 26 
January and so I think what we’re looking at is the comment 27 
period on the DEIS closes between the January and March meeting 28 
and we come back in March and we’ll have all the comments from 29 
the DEIS at that time. 30 
 31 
We’ll certainly have the results of the referendum at that time 32 
and the council can then vote on the final amendment to submit 33 
to the Secretary and we initiate secretarial review and that 34 
probably gives us a final rule towards the end of the summer or 35 
early fall and our goal is to implement by January of 2007, 36 
barring some unforeseen problem that comes up. 37 
 38 
The only thing everyone needs to bear in mind is if we go out 39 
with the referendum based on the DEIS and if we then come back 40 
in and decide to make a substantive change to the amendment, it 41 
would put us in a position of having to repeat the referendum, 42 
but I think that is the approximate schedule that we’re looking 43 
at. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  That should help everyone kind of know the 46 

schedule or time frame that we look to be tracking on right now.  47 
With that, I will now ask Mr. Taylor to begin his comments. 48 
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 1 
MR. ROBERT TAYLOR:  Robert Taylor, a local fisherman.  I very 2 

much oppose this rule regulation.  It’s unfair, it’s unjust, and 3 
it’s based on guesses.  It’s based on guesses.  We’ve got 4 
ninety-seven members in our Fort Walton Beach Sailfish Club and 5 
not a one has received a telephone call asking for what they 6 
caught and how they feel about it. 7 
 8 
I don’t know how many other people are the same way, but we 9 
don’t feel that it’s fair.  Number one, how about the quota?  I 10 
thought that the recreational fishermen were supposed to get 49 11 
percent of the total quota. 12 
 13 
MS. MORRIS:  I think Mr. Taylor isn’t speaking to the Red 14 

Snapper IFQ Amendment, but to the grouper amendment. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I believe I’m getting that sense as well.  17 

Mr. Taylor, you had indicated reef fishing -- 18 
 19 
MR. TAYLOR:  I’m referring to red snapper, sir. 20 

 21 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  The IFQ program? 22 

 23 
MR. TAYLOR:  Right. 24 

 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Continue then. 26 

 27 
MR. TAYLOR:  We don’t feel that it’s fair.  It’s just like the 28 

size limit between the commercial fishermen and the recreational 29 
fishermen.  Their size limit is much smaller, by an inch, than 30 
ours.  Plus, they’re allowed 10 percent of their catch to be 31 
small. 32 
 33 
If we’ve got time to measure ours, surely they’ve got time to 34 
measure theirs and there’s plenty of fish out there.  I don’t 35 
know where this data is coming from or maybe it’s somewhere 36 
else, but surely it’s not from here, but I very much oppose it. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Taylor.  Are there any 39 

questions for Mr. Taylor? 40 
 41 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t have a question, Mr. Taylor, but I would 42 

like to make a comment, because I feel like you have some 43 
misinformation.  The reason there’s a difference in the size 44 
limit of the red snapper between the fifteen and sixteen inches 45 
is because the recreational sector asked for that sixteen-inch 46 
size limit so their season would be open longer.  That’s the 47 
only reason there’s a difference in the size limit. 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Taylor.  Next is Mr. Harris 2 

and then Mr. Raffield. 3 
 4 
MR. JOHN HARRIS:  I’m John T. Harris, a Panama City, Florida, 5 

commercial fisherman.  I’m very much in favor of this IFQ.  We 6 
need it real bad.  I’m also in favor of dropping this size 7 
limit.  If these fish are caught, let’s count them and if we’re 8 
going to kill them, let’s count them.  That will help. 9 
 10 
I’m very much against this tracking system though.  That’s not 11 
good.  That’s just another freedom that we lose in this country 12 
and you know if you’re going to put a locator on my boat, 13 
eventually, people, you’re going to end up with a locator in 14 
your car and let’s don’t take this freedom away. 15 
 16 
If you’ve got somebody breaking a law that breaks it a lot, I 17 
can see putting a locator on there, but let’s leave some freedom 18 
in this country and thanks a lot for trying to get this IFQ. 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Harris.  Dr. Crabtree has a 21 

question.  If you would, Mr. Harris, hold on. 22 
 23 
DR. CRABTREE:  Thank you, Mr. Harris.  Would you support 24 

elimination of the size limit in the commercial fishery?  Is 25 
that what you would like to see? 26 
 27 
MR. HARRIS:  Down to thirteen or maybe twelve inches. 28 

 29 
DR. CRABTREE:  If you believe that most of the fish you’re 30 

throwing back are dying anyway, why would you support throwing 31 
any of them back? 32 
 33 
MR. HARRIS:  It’s hard to say, but I do support dropping it and 34 

probably we should just drop it altogether.  If you catch small 35 
fish, you’re not going to get any money for them anyway and 36 
you’ll use your tickets up.  You won’t want to use your tickets 37 
up on something you’re not going to get any money for. 38 
 39 
DR. CRABTREE:  What do you think the smallest fish that would 40 

have market value would be? 41 
 42 
MR. HARRIS:  Probably thirteen inches. 43 

 44 
DR. CRABTREE:  Do you catch very many fish that are smaller than 45 

twelve or thirteen inches? 46 
 47 
MR. HARRIS:  No, usually they’re like about a quarter of an inch 48 



  16 

and we measure them fifteen and a quarter inches, because they 1 
shrink that quarter, and a lot of that quarter won’t measure my 2 
board and he’s fifteen inches when I catch him, but when I get 3 
back, he’s shrunk and so I can’t even keep him.  Let’s don’t 4 
just waste these fish.  It will help the fishery. 5 
 6 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a couple of questions.  You don’t have any 7 

problem with the recreational size limit being the same as the 8 
commercial size limit, do you? 9 
 10 
MR. HARRIS:  It don’t bother me a bit.  Let’s don’t waste them. 11 

 12 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Then the next question is if they were to do away 13 

with the size limit, you would not want a condition of that 14 
being telling you where you could fish as far as the fathoms. 15 
 16 
MR. HARRIS:  No, don’t do that.  Snapper stay around in shallow 17 

water and there’s a lot of snapper in shallow water and the 18 
deepwater won’t have enough to make a living on and let’s don’t 19 
take that away too.  That’s just another freedom.  Let’s 20 
regulate it and do a good job of it, but let’s use some common 21 
sense. 22 
 23 
MS. WALKER:  Thank you for being here.  I heard you state that 24 

the smaller fish, below thirteen or twelve inches, really had no 25 
value and you wouldn’t want to use your coupons and so am I to 26 
assume from that that you would be discarding those smaller 27 
fish, under twelve inches in length? 28 
 29 
MR. HARRIS:  No, ma’am.  If I catch it and kill it, we’re going 30 

to count it.  It breaks my heart to throw those fish away.  We 31 
would like to keep this fishery healthy and not waste it and so 32 
I would definitely count them.  Yes, ma’am, I would count them. 33 
 34 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Harris.  Next we have Mr. 35 

Raffield and then we have Mr. Jim Roberson.  We’ll come back to 36 
Mr. Raffield and we have Mr. Jim Roberson and Mr. Whitfield will 37 
be next. 38 
 39 
MR. JIM ROBERSON:  My computer crashed last night and so I’m 40 

working from notes that didn’t quite make it together, but 41 
anyway, my name is Jim Roberson.  I serve on the IGFA 42 
International Committee and I’m Past President of the Emerald 43 
Coast Chapter of the CCA, Past President of the Fort Walton 44 
Beach Sailfish Club. 45 
 46 
I’m a retired oil field deep sea diver and have over a hundred 47 
days of saturation and numerous mixed-gas dives over 300 feet in 48 
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the Gulf of Mexico.  I’m one of the few people who have seen the 1 
benthic communities of the Gulf of Mexico from Brownsville, 2 
Texas, to Key West up close and personal. 3 
 4 
My son, Jacob Roberson, is also a current IGFA junior world 5 
record holder of red grouper and my father fished commercial 6 
vertical lines locally here until he had to give it up for 7 
health reasons. 8 
 9 
The IGFA supports the IFQ for red snapper because it’s going to 10 
eliminate derby fishing and it will make it safer for the 11 
commercial fishermen and it’s really going to be better for the 12 
fishery overall and it’s going to help the recreational fishery 13 
in the long run. 14 
 15 
I would urge the council to look at some of the bycatch issues 16 
with the shrimp industry that haven’t been addressed that may 17 
come into play in this, and I know this isn’t the right time, 18 
but I would also urge the council not to restrict the 19 
recreational fishing effort by any depth or bathymetry choice 20 
that you may arbitrarily choose, because I really don’t think 21 
it’s just at this time, but we do support the IFQ.  Thank you 22 
very much. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any comments or questions of Mr. Roberson?  25 

Thank you.  Mr. Whitfield and Mr. Krebs will be on deck. 26 
 27 
MR. MIKE WHITFIELD:  My name is Mike Whitfield and I own and 28 

operate a commercial fishing boat for over thirty-something 29 
years.  I’m a member of a couple of the panels as far as red 30 
snapper and all.  I am for the IFQ process.  I think it’s going 31 
to do a lot of good and do away with a lot of waste we have now. 32 
 33 
With fuel prices like they are and things like that, we’re 34 
burning double the fuel for what we do, but the main thing is I 35 
believe it will help our fishery and for the amendment itself, 36 
the only thing I have any problem with is the use-it-or-lose-it 37 
clause. 38 
 39 
I believe if somebody doesn’t fish their quota for the year, so 40 
be it.  That fish is left out there for the next spawn or 41 
whatever the coming year and so I don’t believe we need a use-42 
it-or-lose-it clause, period. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Whitfield.  Are there any 45 

questions of Mr. Whitfield?  I have a clarification for Mr. 46 
Whitfield.  I believe our preferred alternative now is the 47 
option where if you do not catch fish, there is no penalty for 48 



  18 

that and you don’t lose your permit. 1 
 2 
DR. CRABTREE:  Thank you for being here this morning, Mr. 3 

Whitfield.  Would it create a concern or a problem for you if 4 
when we do the second referendum if we mailed you that document 5 
in the middle of December and -- I don’t know, but you all may 6 
be fishing until the end of December and then, of course, we 7 
have the holidays and things and is that a problem for you? 8 
 9 
MR. WHITFIELD:  I have no problem with it, because if I know 10 

about it a few days ahead of time when I come in, my wife can 11 
either send it to me or whatever.  At this point, I can get it 12 
in. 13 
 14 
DR. CRABTREE:  The sooner the better as far as you’re concerned? 15 

 16 
MR. WHITFIELD:  I’m the sooner the better for the whole thing. 17 

 18 
MR. HENDRIX:  Thank you for being here, Mr. Whitfield.  What are 19 

your ideas on this minimum size limit for the fish? 20 
 21 
MR. WHITFIELD:  I think we shouldn’t catch anything smaller -- 22 

Which you don’t catch many less than thirteen inches because the 23 
reason I say that is because most of these guys that fish now, 24 
we’ve been fishing for years and we predominantly fish for a 25 
bigger fish, say a fourteen or a fifteen-inch size fish. 26 
 27 
I used to sell my own fish, the marketable fish.  I used to ship 28 
my own fish in the early to mid-1980s and most of the dealers 29 
that I dealt with liked a pound to a pound-and-a-half fish.  You 30 
like your charcoal broilers that way.  When you go below a 31 
thirteen-inch size fish, you don’t have the pound or a pound-32 
and-a-half fish that’s a good healthy fish for a charcoal 33 
broiler. 34 
 35 
Like I said, I used to sell a lot of fish of my own, but it just 36 
go to be so much headaches of running the boat and keeping up 37 
with the crew and then shipping your own fish and all, but I 38 
think a thirteen-inch size is plenty big enough. 39 
 40 
You’re not going to waste a whole lot of fish, because people 41 
are just not going to sit there and burn their coupons up for 42 
something they’re not going to get a good return for. 43 
 44 
MR. HENDRIX:  You feel like most experienced red snapper 45 

fishermen can modify their techniques to catch fish larger than 46 
thirteen inches and minimize the number of undersized fish they 47 
catch then, if that were the new size limit? 48 
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 1 
MR. WHITFIELD:  You don’t have to modify much of anything, 2 

because the twelve-inch size fish, the size hooks we use now are 3 
not going to get on that real bad, to start with. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I have Mr. Horn next, but if our council 6 

members would remember and help the audience or the people 7 
giving testimony, let’s try and focus on the IFQ document.  The 8 
other document, we’re having some discussion about the document 9 
that is to come and we certainly need that input, but we do have 10 
a lot of people signed up today and for purposes of making sure 11 
that everyone has a good opportunity, let’s try to keep our 12 
comments and questions mostly to the IFQ document, please. 13 
 14 
MR. HORN:  Do you actually see very many fish under the 15 

thirteen-inch size limit where you all are fishing, for the most 16 
part, you or anyone else you know about? 17 
 18 
MR. WHITFIELD:  The last two openings that we’ve had, I’ve seen 19 

more in the last opening than I’ve seen in a long time, strictly 20 
because I fished more oil rigs than I normally fish and that’s 21 
the only reason I would say for me, because I fish a lot of 22 
pipeline bottom and stuff that you don’t catch a whole lot of 23 
small fish on. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Whitfield.  We appreciate 26 

your comments.  Next is Mr. David Krebs and Mr. Donald Waters 27 
will be after that. 28 
 29 
MR. DAVID KREBS:  Good morning.  I’m David Krebs with Ariel 30 

Seafood and also a Class 1 license holder.  I’m speaking in 31 
support of the IFQ and speaking against size limits.  The market 32 
will dictate that.  I’m a very big proponent of making every 33 
fish count. 34 
 35 
There’s no reason to have a quota and a size limit where you 36 
don’t really know how many fish you’re catching.  When you have 37 
throwbacks, regulatory discards, that’s why we’re where we’re at 38 
right now today, is because we’ve been killing fish on both ends 39 
of the spectrum. 40 
 41 
If you’re going to have this IFQ, which is going to be a 42 
wonderful tool for the industry, it’s going to take some getting 43 
used to and it’s going to solve a lot of the conflicts between 44 
commercial and recreational and charter and I like to 45 
distinguish between the two, because I find right now that 46 
recreational and charter, there’s another battle there in 47 
itself. 48 
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 1 
I think if the council will give this IFQ program a chance to 2 
work, you’ll see that all of your concerns about red snapper 3 
boats fishing in the fishing areas that your recreational and 4 
charter boat fleet work in will change.  It’s going to change 5 
because one of reasons for the IFQ is to have a multispecies 6 
trip. 7 
 8 
You won’t have boats just specifically targeting red snapper and 9 
you won’t be in a race against time to go to the shortest, 10 
closest place to catch your fish and to race back in with the 11 
fish. 12 
 13 
I think it’s important, from some of the discussion that I’ve 14 
heard over the last two days, and I haven’t been at the 15 
meetings, but through fishermen that have been here, that all of 16 
a sudden we’re piling all these concerns about we’ve got to move 17 
this fleet out of this area and this area and let this IFQ come 18 
and watch this fishery come back and we’re talking two or three 19 
years down the road, but you’ll get your commercial fleet.  20 
We’ll be out there fishing and in areas that are not populated 21 
by recreational or charter fishermen. 22 
 23 
They don’t want to to begin with.  Nobody wants to be out there 24 
showing somebody else where they’re fishing and where they’re 25 
catching fish.  Everybody is going to be back to a point of 26 
being able to do their own thing. 27 
 28 
The other thing that I would like to say real quick is I think 29 
it’s very important that we plug in all the species that are 30 
important, whether it’s groupers or vermilions, into an IFQ 31 
program as soon as possible, immediately after snapper. 32 
 33 
I would urge the council to use the same control dates that 34 
we’re using for snapper.  It’s a very simple process.  We’ve 35 
identified that we have logbook data that makes the red snapper 36 
information good to distribute and why worry about all these 37 
buyout programs? 38 
 39 
If the longliner has got all these grouper landings, give him 40 
the IFQs over that ten-year period and the industry will sort 41 
this all out by itself.  If the industry, everybody has a quota 42 
share, the industry itself will buy itself up and regulate 43 
itself and I think that that will make it easier on everybody 44 
and it’s going to keep everybody from having concerns about you 45 
got your red snapper during these ten years, but I noticed at 46 
the end that you started catching more of this because you were 47 
trying to get a share of that and use the same time frames for 48 
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everything. 1 
 2 
We’ll plug it right in and we’ll have a viable commercial 3 
fishery again that we as a market can count on, the people that 4 
sell the fish.  The consumer can count on it being on the market 5 
and life should get better for everybody.   6 
 7 
It was a tough decision to come to support an IFQ, because it is 8 
going to affect a lot of people, but in this environment with 9 
the growing amount of people that want to use the resource, if 10 
you don’t manage it and manage it effectively, there won’t be a 11 
resource left and that goes from recreational to commercial. 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Cribs.  No questions?  Thank 14 

you very much for your comments.  Next we have Mr. Donald Waters 15 
and then we have Mr. Niquet up next. 16 
 17 
MR. DONALD WATERS:  Good morning.  My name is Donald Waters.  18 

I’m a commercial fisherman out of Pensacola, Florida, a Class 1 19 
license holder.  This is a day that I’ve been looking forward to 20 
for the last six years I’ve been working on this plan.  There’s 21 
been a lot of ups and a lot of downs.  There’s things in this 22 
document that I don’t like. 23 
 24 
In fact, I don’t think there’s a person in this room that 25 
doesn’t have something in this document they don’t like.  When I 26 
sit back and think about it, I think maybe it makes that fair 27 
for everybody.  Everybody is a little bit disappointed, but 28 
everybody is ready to move forward. 29 
 30 
This is the only way.  In countless days and countless nights of 31 
thinking about this, this is the only way and our only out, the 32 
only way to save our fishery.  I’m throwing away as many 33 
snappers dead as I’m bringing to the dock to sell, whether it’s 34 
during the closed season while I’m trying to catch vermilions or 35 
whether it’s during the open season because they’re a quarter 36 
inch too short. 37 
 38 
This is going to help everyone, commercial and recreational 39 
alike.  I know before this derby I fished off of Alabama and I 40 
figured out the time schedule of the charterboats.  They showed 41 
up at eight o’clock in the morning and they headed in about 42 
three.  I would slip offshore and go to sleep about eight 43 
o’clock in the morning and wake up and come back to work about 44 
three o’clock. 45 
 46 
Out of sight, out of mind, no problems.  Some of this 47 
segregation, it’s just a bad taste and I think it’s a bad move.  48 
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Just like Mr. Krebs says, and Mr. Krebs really gave a fine 1 
presentation here this morning, let it work out.   2 
 3 
We don’t want to be up there in amongst the charterboats and the 4 
charterboats don’t want to be amongst us and we don’t want to be 5 
in there with the little go-fast monkey boats.  They’re running 6 
over us like dog flies in the wintertime, biting us. 7 
 8 
I went and built my spots and I don’t want to give my spots up.  9 
I want to protect the resource that I’ve got just as much as the 10 
charterboats and the valuable spots that they’ve built.  We’ll 11 
have time to respect each other and this ten-day season has been 12 
nothing but a headache for the last ten years for both of these 13 
fisheries. 14 
 15 
Give us our lives back and let us make some calm decisions and 16 
don’t force us to do it in a nine-day season.  Everybody says 17 
ten, but it’s nine.  This is the only thing that I see that will 18 
give us our life back and give us some marketability for our 19 
fish and it’s going to help both sectors tremendously.  Thank 20 
you. 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Donnie.  Are there any questions 23 

for Donnie?   24 
 25 
MR. MINTON:  Donnie, if this amendment passes, can we be assured 26 

that you’ll continue to come to this council and testify for us, 27 
because you have really provided some good insight over the 28 
years and I personally appreciate what you’ve done and your 29 
humor, but your candidness about this and thank you very much. 30 
 31 
MS. WALKER:  Donnie, I heard you say that there are parts of 32 

this plan that you don’t support and can you share with us what 33 
those are? 34 
 35 
MR. WATERS:  I would like for this to be based on 2003 when I 36 

caught 150,000 pounds of fish and just use the one year.  That’s 37 
one and I would like to see a use-it-or-lose-it.  I know that 38 
there’s people against it and this document is probably going to 39 
go forward without it, but it’s not going to stop me from 40 
supporting it. 41 
 42 
It’s minor stuff and it’s nothing there that’s going to keep me 43 
from voting for it.  Like I said, probably the qualifying years 44 
and that was the biggest battle for everybody and I heard Wayne 45 
make a comment that there was thirteen people that came to the 46 
table and on the initial allocation we had thirteen motions and 47 
thirteen different ideas. 48 
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 1 
There was a lot of bloodletting in that.  We really beat our 2 
heads together to come out with a plan.  I still support either 3 
the first ten or the last ten and this council has got different 4 
ideas and this council had things and I’ll agree they need to 5 
use some of the later data after 2004. 6 
 7 
We stayed with our 2002 stuff because we made a statement and we 8 
wanted to be clear on our statement and we just wanted to stay 9 
with what we had said and that was the consensus of the panel 10 
that I sit on. 11 
 12 
Like I said, I agree with moving it up to 2004, because 13 
Magnuson-Stevens did say use the earlier data and the later data 14 
and I think it would be much easier for it to go through the 15 
Secretary of Commerce with the 2004 data. 16 
 17 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Donnie, the ITQ is basically going to let you go 18 

back and fish the way that you used to fish for what you want to 19 
fish when you want to fish and without the waste of the 20 
resource, is that right? 21 
 22 
MR. WATERS:  Yes, ma’am.  It’s hard to go fishing the first ten 23 

days of the month.  It looked like today was the 1st to me.  When 24 
this cold front came through, I was shocked that it was only the 25 
16th.  Usually you can tell when it gets close to the 1st, because 26 
the wind is blowing. 27 
 28 
Safety-wise, it’s just hard and there’s sickness in the family.  29 
I rushed home on the 10th because my father wasn’t doing well and 30 
he needed to go to the hospital and I’ve watched people agonize 31 
between going and being with their family at times when they 32 
really needed to be with their family and just like this year, 33 
now we’ve got a choice between Christmas and fishing red 34 
snapper.  That’s a hard choice.  Shut this fishery down the 20th 35 
of December and let us go have Christmas and be with our family. 36 
 37 
MR. PERRET:  Donnie, and I quote, you said this plan will help 38 

everyone and what you didn’t say, and I assume you feel that 39 
way, but will it also help the resource? 40 
 41 
MR. WATERS:  Very much so.  I really feel like it will help the 42 

resource and that was what I meant when I said it will help 43 
everyone.  It will bring fish back for the recreational, it will 44 
save these discards, the fishery will come back, and it will 45 
make more fish for the recreational fishery and I believe the 46 
quota will grow and I believe we’ll have a viable fishery, well 47 
managed.  The economics will be there and I just think it will 48 
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be a better fishery for everybody. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Waters, for your comments.  3 

Next is Mr. Niquet and then on deck is Mr. James Bruce.  Buster, 4 
we had two cards filled out for you and I just want to make sure 5 
-- Were they both for this issue or was one of them supposed to 6 
be for another issue? 7 
 8 
MR. BART NIQUET:  I can cover most of them in just this one 9 

presentation here.  My name is Buster Niquet or Bart Niquet.  10 
I’ve been fishing since before most of you were born.  I’m in 11 
complete agreement with Donnie and Mr. Cribs. 12 
 13 
The only problem I have is after missing all these discussions 14 
yesterday, I’m worried about the management of this fishery.  15 
We’re being asked to go to a weighted vote, which I comply with, 16 
but we’re not sure or we’re not able to find out how many votes 17 
we have. 18 
 19 
In addition, all correspondence from NMFS goes not to the fellow 20 
that owns the permit, but it goes to the boat the permit is 21 
placed on and so the only time I find out if there’s something 22 
wrong is when I get a fine and why the correspondence doesn’t 23 
come to the permit owner, I don’t understand and I never have. 24 
 25 
The only way I know something hasn’t been complied with, like I 26 
say, is when I’m fined.  This standard practice, I would have to 27 
say that maybe with a weighted vote it should just stay with the 28 
first referendum and not have any more additional problems with 29 
it. 30 
 31 
Every meeting I’ve attended in the past twenty years, the 32 
sentiment and the consensus was that the catch history stayed 33 
with the permit.  The only exception was having an agreement 34 
from the seller to the buyer that the seller held the history.  35 
All these management programs you’re coming up with are based on 36 
past catch history to determine how many fish you get. 37 
 38 
We can’t do that if we’re not able to find out how many fish 39 
we’ve caught or have been credited to the program.  They say 40 
it’s confidential information, but who is it confidential for, 41 
the fellow that owns the permit, the fellow that caught the 42 
fish, or NMFS itself? 43 
 44 
In the first referendum, I received an exact number of votes on 45 
the two permits I hold.  My son holds two permits and he only 46 
got one, because the other one is historical catch captain.  47 
Since there’s only eight historical captain permits out 48 
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altogether, and five of them I think are represented in this 1 
room, most of those permits have already been transferred at 2 
least once and why can’t we get the catch history? 3 
 4 
Maybe there’s some reason why we’re not able to find out what it 5 
was, but I would sure like to know why.  Maybe the council 6 
should consider getting these affected fishermen these catch 7 
histories and maybe go a seven-year period and give them the 8 
best five out of the seven if they’re going to give the other 9 
ones twelve years and just pick ten out of the twelve and we 10 
would be happy with that. 11 
 12 
In the National Geographic several years ago, Jacques Cousteau 13 
said that the fishery stocks of the world are so vital as a food 14 
source that he didn’t think any of the fish should be killed for 15 
sport and I agree with him wholeheartedly.  Any questions? 16 
 17 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any questions of Mr. Niquet?  No questions.  18 

Thank you, Mr. Niquet.  We appreciate it.  Mr. Bruce is next and 19 
Mr. Russell Underwood will be after Mr. Bruce. 20 
 21 
MR. JAMES BRUCE:  My name is James Bruce.  I’m a commercial 22 

fisherman from Louisiana.  I own two Class 1 snapper permits and 23 
one is a historical permit.  I’ve been sitting here for the last 24 
two years and you all never came across with a way of how to 25 
divide that.  You came across with a way to divide the regular 26 
Class 2, the regular Class 1, but never mentioned nothing about 27 
historical permits and there are eight of them and I would like 28 
to know how you all are going to divide them. 29 
 30 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Does that conclude your remarks?  Okay.  Are 31 

there any questions? 32 
 33 
MS. WALKER:  You’re telling us that you have a historical 34 

license, but you have no idea if you’re going to get any quota 35 
or what percentage of quota, is that what you’re saying? 36 
 37 
MR. BRUCE:  That’s right, because I sat here for two days and 38 

you all never mentioned nothing about it, nothing at all, and 39 
they both look the same and we leave the dock and we go catch 40 
200 pounds like the other guy and they’ve only been issued seven 41 
years.  You can’t take ten and divide it into seven. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We’ll try to let Dr. Crabtree address your 44 

issues here, I think, and we’re sorry you didn’t hear some of 45 
that discussion the other day. 46 
 47 
DR. CRABTREE:  I think your historical license is basically, 48 
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under this IFQ, a Class 1 license and so you will get your share 1 
of the landings based on whatever consecutive ten-year period 2 
gives you the most share. 3 
 4 
MR. BRUCE:  How can you take ten years if they’ve only been 5 

issued since 1998? 6 
 7 
DR. CRABTREE:  You will pick a ten-year period that will have a 8 

gap of some zeros in it and as this council discussed yesterday, 9 
those zeros will be figured into your average catch. 10 
 11 
MR. BRUCE:  Why should I take a zero when you all didn’t issue 12 

the permits until four years later? 13 
 14 
DR. CRABTREE:  That’s something the council would have to take 15 

up, but right now the way the -- 16 
 17 
MR. BRUCE:  I paid good money for those permits.  I paid just 18 

like the other permit. 19 
 20 
DR. CRABTREE:  I understand, sir, but I’m just telling you what 21 

the document, as it’s set up now, does and that’s the way it is 22 
set up now.  You would get a ten-year period and if you had some 23 
zeros in it, then they would be averaged into it.  If the 24 
council wants to do something different, they’ll have to take 25 
that up in the discussion following this hearing. 26 
 27 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other questions of Mr. Bruce? 28 

 29 
MS. MORRIS:  Mr. Bruce, what would you recommend we do about 30 

your situation? 31 
 32 
MR. BRUCE:  Being that the regular Class 2 get twelve years to 33 

pick ten, being that they was issued seven, let us pick five of 34 
the best, the first five or the last five. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other questions? 37 

 38 
MR. FISCHER:  James, if I understand right, the Class 2s are 39 

based on five years and the Class 1s are based on ten and the 40 
Class 2s can choose their best five years and they’ll have to be 41 
consecutive and you think for those eight historical that that 42 
would be a solution, to let you choose your five or seven or 43 
just use all seven years, that that would be a viable solution? 44 
 45 
MR. BRUCE:  I say pick five out of the seven, being that the 46 

regular Class 1s get ten out of the twelve and if you’ve got 47 
seven years, you could take your two worst years off. 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other questions of Mr. Bruce?  Thank you 2 

for your comments, Mr. Bruce.  We have Mr. Russell Underwood 3 
next and then Mr. Wayne Werner. 4 
 5 
MR. RUSSELL UNDERWOOD:  I’m Russell Underwood from Panama City, 6 

Florida.  I fish off of Louisiana.  I own six permits.  I’ve 7 
been commercial fishing for the last twenty-five or thirty years 8 
and I’m here today to say that I’m ready for IFQs.   9 
 10 
I sit on the IFQ committee and I’ve worked real hard for that 11 
committee and we’ve done a lot of hard work and I think a lot of 12 
fairness was put in this plan and I support IFQs.  I would like 13 
to have my life back.  I used to have a life.  14 
 15 
I used to come home and rest up for a few days, seven or eight 16 
days, and go back fishing.  The last fifteen years, I’ve been in 17 
the boat race and if everybody hasn’t heard, I about lost my 18 
boat in the month of October. 19 
 20 
The first trip I made, I got to the dock and unloaded my fish at 21 
Fourchon in Louisiana.  The fish house dealer said, Russell, 22 
what’s wrong with your bow and I said what do you mean what’s 23 
wrong.  I was missing fourteen feet of rub rail, which is not 24 
very serious, but it’s three or four hours putting it back 25 
together and it didn’t stop me from going back fishing, even 26 
though it was blowing real hard and it was real rough. 27 
 28 
The second trip I made, I went offshore and it was rough and I 29 
caught a hundred pounds that day and decided to go west that 30 
night and the next day I had a pretty good day.  The next 31 
morning I woke up and I had an engine room full of water.  I had 32 
mechanical problems and the high-water alarm didn’t go off. 33 
 34 
I maydayed about seven o’clock in the morning and here I sit for 35 
about three-and-a-half hours, waiting for the Coast Guard to 36 
show up.  An oil boat saved me.  They loaned me a pump and 37 
pumped my boat out for me, but I just had a small problem.  I’ve 38 
got one of the biggest, finest boats in the Gulf and everybody 39 
knows how hard I work on my boats and I probably have gone some 40 
of the finest fleet in the Gulf, I’ve got six boats. 41 
 42 
I work hard and I take a lot of pride, but the bottom line is 43 
this boat race needs to end.  We need to start thinking about 44 
the fishermen.  We’ve lost quite a few boats.  We probably lost 45 
a dozen the last ten years and some of them we lost their lives. 46 
 47 
The other day I wasn’t worried about losing my life, I was just 48 
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worried about losing my boat and worried about my crew and 1 
everything is very good there and I praise the Lord for that, 2 
but the bottom line is we need to save the fish. 3 
 4 
This regulatory discard and the days that the snapper season is 5 
closed and we fish for b-liners and amberjack and other things, 6 
we’re throwing the fish back and watching them float off.  I 7 
support a thirteen-inch size limit on IFQs. 8 
 9 
We need to go to that and you all need to seriously consider -- 10 
Russell is going to do his part.  I’m going to stay away from 11 
the small fish.  The fish I catch I’m going to sell and provide 12 
top quality fish for the consumer, but the recreational needs to 13 
go back to a smaller size limit too and I support that. 14 
 15 
This waste of the resource has been embarrassing for me, because 16 
I’ve heard charterboats and recreational and commercial boats 17 
testify in front of these committees that I sit on about the 18 
regulatory discards. 19 
 20 
We’re wasting the resource and let’s stop wasting it.  As 21 
council members and people that have been appointed, you all 22 
have a duty to stop this waste and you’ll see some fish come 23 
back in the commercial sector and the recreational sector.  It 24 
will come back tenfold. 25 
 26 
Years ago I did a study, about twenty years ago, and I presented 27 
it to the council and Mr. Nelson years ago used to sit on the 28 
council here and I presented it to him.  50 percent of all the 29 
fish caught by the commercial twenty years ago was mostly one to 30 
two-pound fish. 31 
 32 
Over the years, there has been an increase in larger fish.  33 
Basically, the last fifteen years we’ve been throwing away about 34 
half of what we normally used to catch and that’s a waste of the 35 
resource.  Let’s stop that and I support IFQ and I support a 36 
lower size limit to bring these fisheries back.  Thank you. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Underwood. 39 

 40 
MS. WALKER:  Russell, thank you for coming here.  I personally 41 

respect your opinion a great deal.  I support IFQs, but let me 42 
tell you what my problem is right now.  My problem is we’ve got 43 
so many people out there that don’t know what they’re going to 44 
get percentage-wise and I think it’s fundamentally wrong for us 45 
to ask them to vote on something -- 46 
 47 
I’m sure you know what you’re going to get, because you’ve had 48 
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permits since day one, but do you have any advice for us and is 1 
it something that bothers you that people are going to be forced 2 
to vote in a referendum and have absolutely no idea what their 3 
quota share is going to be? 4 
 5 
MR. UNDERWOOD:  In the audience a while ago, I was talking to a 6 

fellow fisherman and I said the same thing and I’m a straight-up 7 
person and why should you ask me to vote for something that I 8 
really don’t know exactly what I’m getting.  I do not know. 9 
 10 
I have a rough idea from the first few numbers years ago they 11 
offered to us or they showed us, but basically I do not know 12 
what my percentage of the fish is going to be and so I think 13 
NMFS needs to come straight and do their job and let’s get to 14 
work and get four or five fellas on these computers and get up 15 
and let’s show these people -- Show the fella from Louisiana 16 
what he is going to get and then he’ll have the opportunity to 17 
vote yes or no. 18 
 19 
I’m the same way and I need to plan my future.  I don’t want to 20 
get out of the fishing business.  I love this fishing business 21 
and I’ve worked hard and I just want my life back.  I want the 22 
boat race to stop and basically, I need to know what I’m going 23 
to have before I vote on something.  Thank you. 24 
 25 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Russell.  Are you also aware though 26 

that a change in the TAC, even if they gave you a number today, 27 
may be a different number if the TAC is lowered and you’re 28 
willing to go with that? 29 
 30 
MR. UNDERWOOD:  Yes, Kay, I do realize that and I think the 31 

council should stress to the public to be aware of that, that we 32 
might be going to a six or seven-million-pound TAC.  I think 33 
personally that we shouldn’t drop the TAC that drastic. 34 
 35 
I’m seeing lots of signs and we heard yesterday that there’s a 36 
great recovery of juvenile fish.  I see a lot of juvenile fish 37 
and there is a good sign of fish coming back, the smaller fish, 38 
and by smaller fish, I’m talking thirteen or fourteen-inch fish, 39 
almost fifteen inches. 40 
 41 
MR. THOMASSIE:  Thank you, Mr. Russell.  I heard a couple of 42 

comments on the use-it-or-lose-it.  What’s your position on it 43 
and could you give me a little background as to your rationale? 44 
 45 
MR. UNDERWOOD:  I really just believe that nobody should hold a 46 

bunch of fish back and not let the consumer have the fish.  The 47 
commercial fishing sector is -- We’re out there for the consumer 48 
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and the public, they have a right to be able to consume these 1 
fish and I don’t think it’s any one person’s privilege just to 2 
hold back a bunch of fish and not put it on the market for the 3 
public and so I would maybe support a use-it-or-lose-it. 4 
 5 
MR. FISCHER:  Russell, thank you for coming, because I think I 6 

respect you probably as one of the highest fishermen on the 7 
coast.  I think you may not know the exact poundage you’re going 8 
to receive, but we all know you’re somewhere pretty high up the 9 
food chain on ITQs. 10 
 11 
I don’t know what type of permits you have, all six of them, but 12 
you can maybe give us some advice from a fisherman’s viewpoint, 13 
from someone in your stature, where you are on these eight 14 
historical permits and maybe what we should do to give them a 15 
fair share, being some of them have only been in existence for 16 
seven years and it’s hard to take a ten year average, just how 17 
you would feel about it. 18 
 19 
MR. UNDERWOOD:  I believe we should be fair to everybody that is 20 

participating in this fishery and I think on the panel we 21 
discussed that and I think at one time it was seven percent, but 22 
maybe it was 3 percent that we allowed for people like 23 
themselves to have some fish if there was problems with 24 
disagreements and stuff like that.  I think the historical 25 
people, and there’s only seven or eight of them, should be able 26 
to have their share of the catch. 27 
 28 
MR. PERRET:  Any other questions?  Thank you very much, Mr. 29 

Underwood.  Next we have Wayne Werner followed by Bob Zales. 30 
 31 
MR. WAYNE WERNER:  My name is Wayne Werner and I’m the owner and 32 

operator of the Fishing Vessel Sea Quest.  I sit on many 33 
advisory panels and on your stock assessment panels for these 34 
fish also.  The first thing I would like to say is the 2,000-35 
pound trip limit today has become a really bad thing. 36 
 37 
We have increasing fuel prices, which increases bait prices, 38 
which increases fuel prices, but the price of fish hasn’t gone 39 
up to match it.  There’s economic reasons to go with this and 40 
yesterday I think I heard Mr. Horn say that closed season 41 
discards and this wouldn’t address them. 42 
 43 
I hate to tell you this, but it’s going to address them.  About 44 
50 percent of my quota shares that I would receive will be used 45 
just to address that issue when I’m on b-liner trips and stuff.  46 
As far as what goes on with the 3 percent set aside that Mr. 47 
Crabtree wants to do, that’s fine with me and giving out the 48 
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partial TAC and having it come back later, that’s all fine and 1 
good with me.  2 
 3 
Now I want to address something that was brought up earlier of 4 
size limits.  Everybody seems to be concerned that we’re going 5 
to have a differential size limit or something like this.  6 
Everybody seems to forget very quickly that we have differential 7 
size limits in the grouper fishery, amberjacks. 8 
 9 
These are differential size limits against the recreational 10 
sector and the difference between a thirty-two-inch amberjack 11 
and a thirty-six-inch amberjack is twice the weight, twice the 12 
size.  I think people need to look at that. 13 
 14 
Whenever we come, everybody has been talking about this 15 
thirteen, twelve, ten, eleven-inch size limit and I’m going to 16 
use your numbers, Mr. Crabtree, right here, right now.  50 17 
percent of the historical catch of red snappers for the history 18 
of this fishery have been one to two-pound fish, basically a 19 
thirteen-inch fish.  When these laws went into effect to go to a 20 
fourteen and fifteen-inch size limit, nobody told the fish. 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Werner, could we address the IFQ 23 

amendment, please?  Everyone has brought it up and I’ve asked we 24 
try to tie it into the IFQ amendment if you would, please. 25 
 26 
MR. WERNER:  We’ll go to the next subject.  The captain permits, 27 

the eight of them, I think National Marine Fisheries Service 28 
needs to address them, but whenever you start addressing this, I 29 
want you to remember something.  30 
 31 
If you all happen to have this document, which you all do, on 32 
page 191 there’s thirty people that got zeros and there’s a lot 33 
of zeros in there, a lot of zeros.  A lot of people are going to 34 
have zeros because they were sitting idle and stuff like that, 35 
but the difference between those zeros and the other zeros is 36 
the government withheld those zeros, is the way I feel about it. 37 
 38 
I do feel it needs to be addressed by National Marine Fisheries 39 
Service by overage in the logbook reporting, the difference 40 
between logbook reporting and the actual TAC, in some way, 41 
shape, or form like that. 42 
 43 
Basically, there’s one other thing and it’s really not 44 
pertinent, but this fishery needs to start opening January 1st 45 
and I didn’t see it in the IFQ plan and if we could open January 46 
1st of this year I would like to see it, but it needs to be part 47 
of this plan and written into this plan and that’s just about 48 
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all I have to say. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Werner. 3 

 4 
DR. SHIPP:  Wayne, if my memory is correct, I think about ten 5 

years ago when this issue first came up that you and Donnie and 6 
a number of others were opposed to IFQs and over this last 7 
decade, what has happened to change your mind? 8 
 9 
MR. WERNER:  I guess you could call it a little bit of 10 

experience, a little bit of age, a little bit of calming down, 11 
and it was a very controversial thing and something that we 12 
really didn’t understand, Bob.   13 
 14 
You throw something at someone that they really don’t understand 15 
and they haven’t really had a chance to research and I think 16 
there’s been a lot of research done by a lot of people looking 17 
at other fisheries like halibut and fisheries in New Zealand and 18 
fisheries around the world to see how well they have worked and 19 
I think that’s probably a lot to do with it.  Also, we were just 20 
basically afraid. 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you for your comments, Mr. Werner and, 23 

Mr. Raffield, if you’re in the room, we missed earlier and we’ll 24 
have you up next. 25 
 26 
MR. BOB ZALES, II:  Bob Zales, II, President of the Panama City 27 

Boatmen Association.  We’re not opposed to IFQs.  As a matter of 28 
a fact, we suggested a little over a year ago that if you’re 29 
going to go down this IFQ trail that you need to develop a 30 
generic IFQ plan to take care of every commercial fishery so 31 
that each one would kind of fall in line one behind the other so 32 
you wouldn’t have long periods of lag time. 33 
 34 
Part of the reason for that was because currently under the 35 
mackerel commercial plan, the reef fish commercial plan, the 36 
various ones that are out there, even though the fishery part of 37 
it and the way they’re prosecuted is very similar, there are 38 
significant differences in the two plans. 39 
 40 
As an example, in reef fish you can’t sell recreationally-caught 41 
fish and in mackerel you can.  Things like this that will 42 
probably happen, from the past history of this council and the 43 
Fisheries Service and the way that they deal with fishery 44 
management plans, we don’t want to see that and we think that 45 
you should learn from past experience. 46 
 47 
We have concerns in this plan about the cost of recovery for 48 
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administration and enforcement and currently this plan limits 1 
this to 3 percent.  We don’t have a problem with this fishery 2 
being privatized and given over to a select group of people, but 3 
if we do, we feel that they should pay for the cost of 4 
administration and enforcement and not the general public. 5 
 6 
The TAC in this plan, as was mentioned, Dr. Crabtree has 7 
proposed starting off in 2007 with a little over two-and-a-half 8 
million pound share for this fishery. 9 
 10 
Clearly in information that was laid out yesterday, this fishery 11 
and in being looked at another five-year plan, it appears to be 12 
that we could by between now and 2012 with a five to seven 13 
million pound TAC and after that, if we get lucky and we get 14 
recruitment that comes from wherever, we might stay at that and 15 
it might get better. 16 
 17 
In all likelihood, that TAC could go down in 2012.  We just had 18 
a five-year plan and was told something similar five years ago.  19 
If we do this for five years, hopefully in 2004 we’re going to 20 
see an increase in TAC and it didn’t happen.  We’re going 21 
backwards. 22 
 23 
In 2012, I’m concerned that Dr. Crabtree will not be here and 24 
any of his staff, a lot of you all will not be here and we’re 25 
going to be looking at in 2012 another reduction of TAC.  If 26 
you’re going to continue down this road, you need to be upfront 27 
with the public and the fishermen and let them know where this 28 
fishery is. 29 
 30 
All the information that I’ve seen of the panels that I’ve 31 
served on with SEDAR indicates that red snapper, in order to 32 
meet the recovery goals currently laid out in plan amendments by 33 
the year 2032, this fishery can’t sustain more than a two or 34 
three million pound TAC and you need to be honest with people. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Bob, could you tie this into the discussion 37 

about IFQs, please? 38 
 39 
MR. ZALES:  I thought I had with the discussion about the two-40 

and-a-half million pounds in 2007.  We are concerned about 41 
localized depletion of the resource and we’re also concerned 42 
about the impact that this is going to have on other commercial 43 
fisheries, such as grouper. 44 
 45 
IFQs, when they’re given to these 131 people, they’ll be able to 46 
fish the grouper fishery, the mackerel fishery, while they’re 47 
wide open and mackerel is scheduled to close tomorrow I believe 48 
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and grouper closed a month or so ago. 1 
 2 
These people can fish right along with Willie Ward and Bob 3 
Spaeth and the rest of these people while their fishery is open 4 
and when that fishery shuts down, they go catch their snapper.  5 
This, to us, is a problem and that’s the reason why we suggested 6 
if you’re going to do an IFQ, do it across the board. 7 
 8 
That way everybody is playing on the same level and they all 9 
have equal opportunities and if they want to trade shares, 10 
that’s up to them.  Basically, I guess that is pretty much about 11 
it and if you’ve got any questions, I’ll be glad to try and 12 
answer them for you. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Are there any questions of Mr. Zales? 15 

 16 
MR. ADAMS:  Just as a clarification for myself, Roy, isn’t the 3 17 

percent cost recovery a limitation in the Magnuson Act and not 18 
this specific document?  There’s nothing we can do about that, 19 
is that right? 20 
 21 
DR. CRABTREE:  That’s correct. 22 

 23 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other questions of Mr. Zales?  Thank 24 

you, Mr. Zales.  Next is Mr. Raffield.   25 
 26 
MR. MARK RAFFIELD:  I’m Mark Raffield and I’m from Panama City, 27 

Florida.  I hold a Class 1 snapper permit.  I support the IFQs 28 
and a lot of the stuff has been covered by the other guys.  I’m 29 
in support of that, but I would like to know, like Captain 30 
Russell and some of the other captains, what I’m going to get 31 
before I vote on it. 32 
 33 
I’m also for the size limit coming down.  I’ve watched these 34 
fish float off for years and I’ve watched sharks and dolphins 35 
and everything else eat them and I’m all for conservation, but I 36 
hate to see dead fish floating off and that’s all I’ve got to 37 
say. 38 
 39 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you very much.  Are there any 40 

questions? 41 
 42 
MR. THOMASSIE:  I just wanted to ask the same question I asked 43 

earlier and how did you feel about the use-it-or-lose-it clause? 44 
 45 
MR. RAFFIELD:  I’ve kind of got mixed feelings on that, because 46 

if you have a year if you have something happen to your boat and 47 
you stay tied up three or four months out of the year and then 48 
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you lose what quota you get and I would like to have it 1 
explained a little bit better to me on how they’re going to do 2 
that. 3 
 4 
MR. THOMASSIE:  Currently there is none, but I know there had 5 

been some concerns and I was just curious as to -- 6 
 7 
MR. RAFFIELD:  I’m for it, but I would like to see some kind of 8 

clause in there where if something happens, say healthwise or 9 
something major happened to your boat where you could have a 10 
chance to maybe gain those shares back later or just give them 11 
to somebody else and let somebody else use them. 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other questions of Mr. Raffield?  Thank 14 

you, Mr. Raffield.  We had Mr. Fuller and Mr. Thorpe signed up 15 
and you indicated you didn’t want to speak and I want to make 16 
sure that’s still correct.  Okay. 17 
 18 
With that, that concludes our public testimony regarding Reef 19 
Fish Amendment 26, Red Snapper IFQ.  We will move right into the 20 
public testimony regarding the Red Grouper Regulatory Amendment.  21 
With that, first up will be Mr. Scott Robson and on deck will be 22 
Mr. James Jones, III.  Is Mr. Robson in the room?   23 
 24 
MR. SCOTT ROBSON:  Good morning, council members and chair 25 

members and staff and thank you for the opportunity to address 26 
you today.  My name is Scott Robson and I’m President of the 27 
Destin Charterboat Association and I’ve been before you before 28 
on this grouper issue here. 29 
 30 
I’m here to address the recreational grouper closure.  It’s my 31 
understanding that the council wants to move forward in its 32 
decision making on the recreational grouper closure and we would 33 
like the council to wait on their decision making until all the 34 
recreational grouper assessments and wave studies have come in.  35 
After all, these studies and wave studies are all done to help 36 
the council make a more informed decision. 37 
 38 
Two, we support Alternative 1, status quo, red grouper bag limit 39 
remaining at two red groupers.  Alternative 3.2.3, Alternative 40 
1, status quo, the aggregate grouper bag limit is five per 41 
person and we would also like to see the allocation of red 42 
groupers be fixed.   43 
 44 
It’s my understanding that it should have been set more at 25 45 
percent for recreational and 75 percent for commercial and now 46 
we’re trying to do it on 19 percent and I think if it was more 47 
fixed that we wouldn’t even be having this discussion today and 48 
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this problem with recreational grouper and that’s it.  Thank 1 
you. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Are there any questions to Mr. Robson? 4 

 5 
MR. WILLIAMS:  No questions, Scott, but I just wanted to thank 6 

you for the hospitality that the Destin Charterboat Association 7 
showed to us the other night.  Thank you very much. 8 
 9 
MR. ROBSON:  You’re welcome. 10 

 11 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Williams.  I was going to do 12 

that as well.  Thank you all and certainly thanks go out to the 13 
Destin Charterboat Association, like Mr. Williams said, on 14 
behalf of the council.  Next we have Mr. James Jones and Mr. Jay 15 
McCallie on deck. 16 
 17 
MR. JAMES JONES:  Good morning.  My name is Jimmy Jones and I’ve 18 

been fishing in these waters for over fifty years now, ever 19 
since my dad drug me down from Alabama in the back of a station 20 
wagon to come down here and fish off a headboat and I’ve been 21 
coming back every year and I finally moved here and now I’m 22 
still fishing these same waters and it’s been great fun. 23 
 24 
This reduction of the grouper and a closed season of the grouper 25 
is going to significantly impact commercial people, the charter 26 
guys, the guys that make a living.  It’s going to significantly 27 
impact guys like me who fish for fun.  We don’t get a whole lot 28 
of great days in February and March to go fishing, but those 29 
good days that we do get, I like to be able to go fish. 30 
 31 
As far as the shortage of red grouper, like I said, I’ve been 32 
fishing here for over fifty years and I can remember going out 33 
on a headboat over fifty years ago and we wouldn’t catch maybe a 34 
half-a-dozen grouper, of which none would be red grouper.   35 
 36 
Today, you can go fishing and if you fish on a reef, you can 37 
catch all the red grouper you want to catch.  I personally have 38 
no problem with limiting the amount of fish you catch, but I do 39 
have a problem with size limits, because throwbacks always wind 40 
up dying and I really oppose and think the council should 41 
reconsider the fact that if you shut down recreational the month 42 
of February, that you’re going to gain a lot of fish and limit 43 
them down to one fish.  That’s all my comments. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Jones. 46 

 47 
MS. MORRIS:  Thank you, Mr. Jones.  The committee recommendation 48 
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to the council is to close only red grouper during February 15th 1 
through March 15th, but are you catching red grouper here 2 
recreationally at that time of year? 3 
 4 
MR. JONES:  I thought it was Preferred Number 5, which was 5 

closing the season for all fish during February 15th through 6 
March 15th. 7 
 8 
MS. MORRIS:  Right.  The committee recommendation is different 9 

from that and could you answer my question about whether you 10 
catch red grouper here during that time period? 11 
 12 
MR. JONES:  Yes, ma’am, we do. 13 

 14 
MS. WALKER:  Thank you for being with us today.  I want to ask 15 

you one question.  Are you taking less recreational trips with 16 
the higher fuel costs and the more restrictive bag limits now 17 
than you were say two years ago? 18 
 19 
MR. JONES:  Absolutely.  I’m certainly not a wealthy person and 20 

it costs a lot of money to go out there and fish and you can 21 
catch -- We’re already limited to so many different types of 22 
fish that we can catch and to come home with a mess of fish has 23 
gotten to be pretty difficult with just the limits and one 24 
amberjack, it’s pretty tough. 25 
 26 
It’s kind of like saying if you’re a golfer and if you lose your 27 
golf ball, that’s it, buddy, you don’t get to finish the round 28 
and so we’re down to practically -- It’s hard enough being able 29 
to fish and people like me, if I fish year-round and I go maybe 30 
once or twice a month -- I used to go more often, but the price 31 
of fuel certainly affects that. 32 
 33 
You’ve got to make sure you plan a trip and you’ve got to try to 34 
make sure you can figure out how to catch a complete bag limit 35 
of several different species of fish to be able to go out and 36 
catch the fish to have some fresh fish at home. 37 
 38 
DR. CRABTREE:  I appreciate your comments.  You commented on 39 

size limits and apparently you feel like most of throwbacks are 40 
going to just die? 41 
 42 
MR. JONES:  I do. 43 

 44 
DR. CRABTREE:  If we went forward with a closed season that we 45 

just closed red grouper and people were still out there fishing 46 
for gag and things, are we just going to push people into a 47 
situation where they’re throwing dead red grouper back over the 48 
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side and we’re just not going to accomplish anything, in your 1 
opinion? 2 
 3 
MR. JONES:  I think so. 4 

 5 
MS. WILLIAMS:  On these two trips a month that you take all year 6 

long -- I actually have two questions.  Do you normally catch 7 
your bag limit? 8 
 9 
MR. JONES:  No, ma’am, I don’t. 10 

 11 
MS. WILLIAMS:  The second question is how many discards do you 12 

have that you’re throwing back that die? 13 
 14 
MR. JONES:  I don’t know all that die, because if you go through 15 

the procedure and puncture the fish so that they’re swollen up 16 
and once he swims off, I don’t know whether he’s dead or not, 17 
whether he’s going to survive or not, but I do know that there’s 18 
an awful lot of other fish waiting out there to eat these fish 19 
if you toss them back over the side and oftentimes they just 20 
turn belly up anyway, even after you puncture them and for them 21 
to survive the trip up and try to make it back down. 22 
 23 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Jones, for your comments.  We 24 

had Mr. McCallie next and Mr. Jim McDowell on deck.  Is Mr. 25 
McCallie in the room?  We will come back to him if we have an 26 
opportunity.  Mr. McDowell, you’re next. 27 
 28 
MR. JIM MCDOWELL:  I’m Jim McDowell and I currently live in 29 

Destin.  I just moved here from Louisiana and I lived in Baton 30 
Rouge for thirty years and I’ve fished these Gulf waters for 31 
thirty-five or forty years and I’m a big believer in there’s no 32 
better fishing anywhere in the world in this part of the 33 
country. 34 
 35 
One of the things that I have a hard time understanding is where 36 
the numbers come from for the recreational fishermen.  Where do 37 
your landings numbers come from?  In thirty-five years of 38 
fishing this, never once have I been asked or have I submitted 39 
any kind of data that says how many fish I’ve caught and how 40 
many did I land and how many did I throw back. 41 
 42 
I think the biggest thing that’s going to limit the amount of 43 
fish caught and also increase the population of fish is the fuel 44 
cost right now.  I have a pretty big boat and for me to take a 45 
boat out and go to the banks, go to the southwest banks to fish, 46 
is going to cost me between $500 and $600 in fuel and ice to go 47 
out there. 48 



  39 

 1 
To go out there and just catch a few fish on the price of fuel 2 
has really limited the number of fishing trips I’ve made.  I’ve 3 
probably fished less this year with the price of fuel than I’ve 4 
ever fished in my life. 5 
 6 
I’m also a big believer in that size limits are not a good 7 
thing.  I’m a big believer that the size you’re going to put on 8 
your table for the recreational fishermen and the size you’re 9 
going to eat is a better limit.  The idea that the bycatch -- 10 
When Jimmy talks about the number of fish that you let go, both 11 
in grouper and snapper, in my estimation it’s over half the fish 12 
that you catch you throw back, if not more than that, that you 13 
see just float off and get eaten by porpoise or sharks. 14 
 15 
I’ve been a big believer all my life that rod and reel fishermen 16 
have never really affected the population of fish.  I’m a big 17 
believer that says the first five fish that you catch should be 18 
your limit and not necessarily that they’re twelve-inch fish or 19 
twenty-inch fish, but I believe that the first five you catch 20 
should be your limit and then you can pull up and go home. 21 
 22 
What we generally do is when we catch our limit, if we do ever 23 
catch our limit of fish, with the recreational fishermen we can 24 
start then looking for a place to go trolling and try to catch 25 
some wahoo or dolphin or some other fish besides the reef fish.  26 
That’s our option as a recreational fisherman, is that we can go 27 
off and start fishing somewhere else once we catch our limit. 28 
 29 
I’m a big believer that all the things that we do today to 30 
regulate fish, both the grouper fishing and the red snapper 31 
fishing, is just a drop in the bucket compared to the shrimpers 32 
bycatch.  I know that doesn’t have a lot to do with this 33 
meeting, but the bycatch to me really is a lot more important 34 
issue for increasing the population than any of the things that 35 
we’re talking about today and that’s all I’ve got to say. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. McDowell.  Are there any 38 

questions of Mr. McDowell? 39 
 40 
MR. SIMPSON:  Mr. McDowell, a couple of questions and I would 41 

appreciate your comments.  Do you have a home telephone number? 42 
 43 
MR. MCDOWELL:  Yes, it’s on my card there. 44 

 45 
MR. SIMPSON:  Do you have a recreational fishing license? 46 

 47 
MR. MCDOWELL:  Yes, I do. 48 
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 1 
DR. CRABTREE:  I’m just curious about how often do you limit 2 

out, everyone in your party limit out on grouper? 3 
 4 
MR. MCDOWELL:  Very, very seldom. 5 

 6 
MR. SIMPSON:  One follow-up.  Do you trailer your boat or is it 7 

parked in a private slip? 8 
 9 
MR. MCDOWELL:  It’s a fifty-five footer and it’s parked in a 10 

marina. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you for your comments, Mr. McDowell.  13 

There are no other questions, I don’t believe.  Mr. Brian Lowman 14 
is next and Mr. Don Brown would be on deck. 15 
 16 
MR. BRIAN LOWMAN:  Good morning.  My name is Brian Lowman and 17 

first I want to compliment you, by the way, for including 18 
fishermen in your studies, because frequently governmental 19 
bodies forget about the people that actually do the work and 20 
that’s something that is kind of rare. 21 
 22 
My name is Brian Lowman, as I said.  I’ve lived in Florida all 23 
my life and I’ve fished since I was four years and I honestly 24 
remember the first fish I ever caught.  It was a southern 25 
puffer, I believe.  We called them blow fish back then. 26 
 27 
I’ve lived in this area approximately six years.  I worked at 28 
the Navara Beach State Park for a while.  They have a fishing 29 
pier there that before the storms came it was unbelievable the 30 
fish we caught there.  I was a park ranger there. 31 
 32 
I currently am the fishing and recreational columnist for the 33 
Navara Press, which is a weekly newspaper in Navara, and some of 34 
the charterboat fishermen might recognize me too.  I work for 35 
the Fish and Wildlife doing MRFSS surveys. 36 
 37 
In your questionnaire, you asked who am I representing and 38 
actually I’m not representing any of those.  I’m hopefully going 39 
to give you my objective opinion.  Grouper fishing, red grouper, 40 
like I say, I live in Navara.  If you live in Navara, you’ve 41 
been through Ivan, Arlene, Cindy, Dennis, and part of Katrina. 42 
 43 
That affects the fishing.  You may not think that fish in deep 44 
water are affected by weather, but I’ll tell you what amazes me 45 
even more, fish in deep water are affected by the full moon.  46 
Fish are affected by a lot of things and our fishing trends 47 
change up here. 48 
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 1 
I interface with a lot of fishermen.  I am a fisherman and I 2 
fish as much as I can.  I interface with recreational fishermen 3 
that are out there with hook and line onshore and in boats.  I 4 
interface with recreational charterboats and headboats.  5 
Unfortunately, I don’t interface too much with the commercial 6 
fishermen, because I’m not out there on the water as much as 7 
they are, but their viewpoints are important, because they’re 8 
the ones that are out there and they’re the ones that have been 9 
fishing for years and years. 10 
 11 
As far as red grouper, talk to red grouper and if you want to 12 
see history of red grouper fishing in this area, go to the 13 
Destin Fishing Rodeo, which just closed, and look at the red 14 
grouper they caught this year versus the past years. 15 
 16 
Yes, we’ve had changes in the red grouper fishing and yes, it 17 
needs to be looked at, but a closed season, that, to me, is 18 
somewhat questionable. 19 
 20 
I also wanted to address, and I know it’s a little late, but the 21 
IFQs and I think IFQs are an excellent concept for controlling a 22 
fishery.  I do have one concern about IFQs and that is the 23 
marketability.  If you can sell an IFQ to someone else, I’m 24 
afraid we would have people that would hold on to their IFQs as 25 
an investment and not actually fish them. 26 
 27 
I think if you have an IFQ -- With exceptions, like you say, if 28 
your boat is down or you’re sick, maybe for one year, you hang 29 
on to your quota, but I don’t want to see people holding on to 30 
IFQs and selling them year to year and not fishing them, because 31 
the government should not be giving someone a guaranteed income.  32 
That’s not the purpose of an IFQ.  An IFQ is to help us preserve 33 
the fish. 34 
 35 
The other concern was size limits.  Like I say, I sometimes hate 36 
size limits, although I don’t usually keep small fish, but when 37 
you release smaller fish, a lot of them do get eaten.  A lot of 38 
them don’t make it back down to the bottom. 39 
 40 
Some of the factors in releasing fish is water depth.  I was 41 
surprised and I looked myself fishing and things and a hundred 42 
feet seems to be a magic number for releasing certain fish.  43 
Some of them, over a hundred feet they don’t go back down and 44 
under a hundred feet they do. 45 
 46 
What do you do about a bottom end limit?  How many people red 47 
snapper fishing catch three and four-inch red snapper?  You 48 
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don’t.  You almost have like a self-generating bottom end size 1 
on a lot of these reef fish and so maybe we need to look at the 2 
bottom end size, because, there again, if we’re releasing fish, 3 
they’re not making it back down and dolphin are eating them or 4 
shark are eating them or they’re just plain laying on the 5 
surface.  Maybe we need to examine bottom end limits again.  I 6 
guess that’s basically what I wanted to say. 7 
 8 
I do appreciate conservation.  I lived through the decimation of 9 
the king mackerel and the redfish in the Gulf of Mexico and I’m 10 
very glad to see we’re catching them again.  Limits and 11 
controlling fishermen do work in the State of Florida and in the 12 
Gulf of Mexico.  Thank you very much. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Lowman.  Are there any 15 

questions of Mr. Lowman?  We do appreciate your compliment about 16 
us including fishermen as well and thank you.  Mr. Brown is next 17 
and Mr. Chris Dorsett is on deck. 18 
 19 
MR. DON BROWN:  Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.  I’m a 20 

little bit new to this, but I have a couple of questions after 21 
looking over this voluminous document that I received just this 22 
morning. 23 
 24 
As I understand it, the preferred alternative on the red grouper 25 
situation is a recreational bag limit within the aggregate 26 
grouper bag reduced to one per person per day and a closed 27 
season for red, gag, and black grouper of February 15th through 28 
March 15th. 29 
 30 
It’s my understanding, and I have a copy of the judicial 31 
judgment that just came out that said that there is no 32 
justification for closing other than red grouper to accomplish 33 
what you’re trying to do and I guess my question is aren’t we in 34 
contempt here? 35 
 36 
Secondly, your report here, if I may read it, says: Public 37 
testimony from recreational fishermen and Alabama state 38 
representatives during several council meetings in late 2004 39 
indicated that red grouper were more plentiful in the Florida 40 
Panhandle and Alabama in 2004.  I would like to hear comments on 41 
that, please. 42 
 43 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  As to what the judge said, he ruled on 44 

something called an interim rule that is only in place for 180 45 
days and that expires on January 23rd of 2006.  What the council 46 
is looking at doing, the document that you’re looking at, is 47 
putting in a more permanent fix that doesn’t have an expiration 48 
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time on it.  My legal advice is that no, we’re not in contempt.  1 
We’re doing it by a different kind of rule making. 2 
 3 
MR. BROWN:  I understand and I read some of the analysis that 4 

went into that and it sounds to me like just trying to get 5 
around what the judge has told us to do. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  That’s not up for debate here today.  What I 8 

do want to help clarify though for you, Mr. Brown, is that the 9 
committee preferred alternative has changed the preferred 10 
alternative in the original document and it now only includes 11 
red grouper in the closure.  That hasn’t been voted on by the 12 
full council yet, but that is what came out of committee. 13 
 14 
MR. BROWN:  I appreciate that and I thank you for listening to 15 

my comment and I hope that is considered when you do make your 16 
vote.  Thank you. 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Next is Mr. Dorsett and on deck will be Mr. 19 

Bob Taylor. 20 
 21 
MR. CHRIS DORSETT:  Mr. Chairman and council members, my name is 22 

Chris Dorsett with the Ocean Conservancy’s Gulf of Mexico office 23 
in Austin, Texas.  I presented testimony in August and in 24 
September noting legal obligations to end overfishing, achieve 25 
optimum yield, reduce bycatch, et cetera at that time. 26 
 27 
I won’t go over those again and I also touched on our 28 
organization’s interest in ending overfishing.  I again have the 29 
same request as the last go around, that the council adopt 30 
management measures that keep mortality within allowable limits 31 
to allow this fishery to rebuild and I again stress that if we 32 
can do that, we will realize increased fish for everyone in 33 
years to come. 34 
 35 
Next year, we were supposed to have an increase in the TAC, but 36 
we couldn’t because of overages in red grouper mortality.  37 
Continued overfishing of red grouper is a problem.  Allowable 38 
mortality levels were higher and total mortality was higher than 39 
allowable levels in 2003 and 2004. 40 
 41 
Red grouper has been listed in the reports to Congress since 42 
2000 as overfishing occurring, despite the legal obligations to 43 
end that overfishing, and gag grouper landings have been 44 
significantly higher than allowable levels since 2001, which is 45 
definitely a problem. 46 
 47 
A review of the time series in the amendment shows that landings 48 
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must be reduced within the range of 34.5 percent to 44.9 1 
percent, with the longest time series showing a needed reduction 2 
of 36.4 percent. 3 
 4 
We’re asking the council at a minimum to adopt catch 5 
restrictions that will meet this 36.4 percent and also asking 6 
that the council look at midyear checkpoints and things like 7 
that to make sure that we are on track with mortality. 8 
 9 
From the discussion in the Reef Fish Committee, it appears that 10 
the Reef Fish Committee would like to change the February to 11 
March closure to just include red grouper and Elizabeth 12 
Featherstone with Ocean Conservancy put together this chart for 13 
you guys, a PowerPoint, that shows based on information we’ve 14 
collected through a consultant looking at past catches and total 15 
mortality when you include bycatch mortality of gag over the 16 
past -- This is 2000 to 2004. 17 
 18 
The ABC that the reef fish stock assessment panel recommended 19 
was five million pounds.  In 2002, and you can see that we’re 20 
over and it’s pretty significant in 2002 and in 2004. 21 
 22 
Therefore, we’re asking that this closure -- That the preferred 23 
alternative, the closure, be for all species listed in the 24 
amendment currently and gag is one reason.  The second reason is 25 
this change to the document also changes what that reduction in 26 
red grouper mortality would be and I haven’t heard an answer of 27 
how it would change it. 28 
 29 
If we’re trying to get to a mid-30 percent reduction in 30 
mortality, we don’t know what that change would be.  Again, this 31 
is part of the problem with a last-minute adjustment to a 32 
document, we don’t have the analysis. 33 
 34 
The bottom line is I would like to see the reductions equal this 35 
36.4 percent.  Gag is a problem.  I think that the council needs 36 
to take the steps to keep gag catches within allowable limits 37 
and, unfortunately, that has not happened in the past three 38 
years.  When you’re thinking about measures for next year, also 39 
think about gag.  Thank you. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I have a couple of questions for Mr. 42 

Dorsett. 43 
 44 
MR. MINTON:  Chris, it’s good to see you again here.  You want a 45 

reduction of 36.4 percent and what if we could only make 36.3?  46 
My point is that we need to get big numbers in these things and 47 
we need to look at the difference between 30 and 40 and 20 and 48 
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30 and don’t you agree the standard errors around these things 1 
are so huge that when you say 36.4, you’re talking about an 2 
unrealistic kind of draw down on a number, aren’t you? 3 
 4 
MR. DORSETT:  I’m not the one who put the 0.4 on the end of 5 

that.  It was your staff, based on the analysis, that put the 6 
0.4. 7 
 8 
MR. MINTON:  I don’t pay them, but it’s something I’ve been on 9 

for a long time and we really need to think in terms, and I 10 
would like for your group to help us there, to look at some of 11 
these errors that are associated with the data and try to come 12 
to some relative realism regarding what we’re trying to do here.  13 
We do need to reduce catch, yes, but when we get into those 14 
decimal points, I think we’re kidding ourselves. 15 
 16 
MR. DORSETT:  I understand the uncertainty and I would just note 17 

that we’ve got to shoot for something and that was the number 18 
that was put in there.  Again, I didn’t do the 0.4, but if I’m 19 
looking at the reduction, that’s the one I’ve got to quote. 20 
 21 
MR. ADAMS:  Your PowerPoint graph that we’re looking at up here 22 

had been put together by a contractor for your group and this 23 
addresses the recreational catch of gag, is that correct? 24 
 25 
MR. DORSETT:  It’s total catch for commercial and recreational. 26 

 27 
MR. ADAMS:  I think the amendment we’re talking about is 28 

addressing recreational catch. 29 
 30 
MR. DORSETT:  It is, but I think it illustrates the problem.  If 31 

you want me to dive into the data, I would be glad to do that 32 
after the public comment and look at recreational versus 33 
commercial landings, but I decided for this presentation I would 34 
just put total landings for the entire fleet. 35 
 36 
MR. ADAMS:  If we’re trying to determine what measures to take 37 

to reduce recreational catch on grouper, I just don’t think this 38 
chart helps us. 39 
 40 
MR. DORSETT:  Don’t quote me on this, but I think if you start 41 

digging into the recreational side, you’re going to see a 42 
significant problem there and I would be glad to talk to you 43 
about it. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Chris, if you can maybe provide that, that 46 

would be excellent for later in the meeting.  Degraaf, thank you 47 
for clarifying what is on the board. 48 
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 1 
MS. MORRIS:  My question is also about the graph.  How did you 2 

calculate the total mortality as different from the landings and 3 
if you aren’t prepared to answer that now, I can talk to you 4 
after? 5 
 6 
MR. DORSETT:  I can give you the methodology produced by the 7 

consultant.  Generally speaking, it’s a combination of logbook 8 
data and MRFSS and whatever other surveys exist in the Gulf of 9 
Mexico to get bycatch mortality.  We looked at all available 10 
data sources. 11 
 12 
MS. WALKER:  I have two questions.  When you say MRFSS and 13 

you’re talking about total mortality, do you know if they 14 
included A fish, B1, and B2? 15 
 16 
MR. DORSETT:  They included all of them and, as you know, MRFSS 17 

reports a number of fish and so they had to come up with a model 18 
to determine how you would get the fish and turn number of fish 19 
into a poundage, because one would assume that you’re throwing 20 
back fish that are smaller than the size limit and so they’re 21 
not going to equal the average landed catch.  I can again show 22 
you the methodology that they used for that. 23 
 24 
MS. WALKER:  Chris, we really need to see that, because one of 25 

those classes of fish that I just told you -- I think it’s B2, 26 
Larry, they’re thrown back and they’re alive and so we might 27 
have counted them in the mortality and here’s my second 28 
question. 29 
 30 
I know from history that it takes time before the public, the 31 
recreational fishermen, get on board with new regulations and it 32 
takes time to get the regulations out there and let the tourists 33 
know what the bag limits are and size limits and those things 34 
and I know that we have been accused of not allowing regulations 35 
to stay in place long enough to produce results. 36 
 37 
Of course, we’ve just put in a regulation on grouper before and 38 
can you help me with what you think your group feels is a 39 
realistic time period to leave a regulation in force to measure 40 
the results? 41 
 42 
MR. DORSETT:  I think that will depend.  I can’t remember the 43 

last time red grouper measures were put into place, but the 44 
analysis showed that in 2003 and 2004 the catches were over that 45 
amount and so if those were put in 2002, we know that there’s 46 
something wrong in terms of how they’re working and so it’s 47 
going to depend. 48 
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 1 
MS. WALKER:  My best recollection is it was 2003 or 2004 in July 2 

that it went into effect, the two fish bag limit in state waters 3 
of Florida, and so it’s really been just a little over a year. 4 
 5 
MR. DORSETT:  I certainly am supportive of seeing if regulations 6 

work.  For whatever reason, they haven’t worked with red 7 
grouper.  With gag, let me also make a point that this should be 8 
nothing new.  There shouldn’t be anything surprising that comes 9 
out of that chart. 10 
 11 
Dr. Crabtree has warned you that gag catches have been about 20 12 
percent over the ABC level and so I’ll be glad to show you 13 
methodology and all that good stuff, but this is nothing you 14 
haven’t heard before. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Chris, it would be useful if you would 17 

provide it in writing so that all the council members can get 18 
it. 19 
 20 
DR. CRABTREE:  Just a couple of points.  One, the B1 fish are 21 

not just released.  They’re the unseen fish and they could have 22 
been filleted, they could have been eaten, they could have been 23 
given away, and it’s a very small proportion of the catch. 24 
 25 
Chris’s numbers, the ABC from the stock assessment panel is an 26 
ABC to be harvested and not discards.  Chris’s landings 27 
estimates in the figures are actually low, because I don’t 28 
believe you incorporated headboat landings, which have been 29 
around 100,000 pounds. 30 
 31 
I have the gag landings for that same time period and they’re 32 
actually higher than what Chris is showing there, by from 70,000 33 
to 100,000 pounds, and so I suspect that they did not pull in 34 
headboat landings, but I don’t know for sure. 35 
 36 
MR. DORSETT:  I know they did have problems with the headboat 37 

landings. 38 
 39 
DR. CRABTREE:  The data is very clear that we have been over the 40 

SAP recommendation in every year. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think that’s for further discussion in the 43 

Reef Fish Committee.  Are there any more questions to Chris 44 
about his testimony?  No more questions?  Thank you, Chris.  Mr. 45 
Taylor and Mr. Dennis O’Hern will be on deck.  Mr. Bob Taylor, 46 
is he in the room?  We’ll come back to Mr. Taylor if he has 47 
stepped out.  Next is Mr. O’Hern and Mr. Jason De La Cruz will 48 
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be next. 1 
 2 
MR. DENNIS O’HERN:  Good morning, council chair and council 3 

members and staff and others.  Thank you all for the opportunity 4 
to address you.  I’m Dennis O’Hern and I’m the Executive 5 
Director of the Fishing Rights Alliance or as you all know it, 6 
the FRA. 7 
 8 
FRA members are stewards of the fishery and we act as such, 9 
promoting management towards healthy fisheries with sustainable 10 
harvest.  I personally fished saltwater in Florida for forty 11 
years and I’m recreational fisherman. 12 
 13 
We’re here today to give you input on the current proposed 14 
grouper regulations.  For the record, we support 3.1.1, 15 
Alternative 1, status quo, and that’s two red grouper bag limit.  16 
On 3.2.2, we support Alternative 1, status quo, that’s captain 17 
and crew may retain their bag limits. 18 
 19 
On 3.2.3, we support Alternative 1, status quo, the aggregate 20 
grouper bag limit remains at five per person per day.  It’s come 21 
to our attention and we’ve kind of realized that Secretarial 22 
Amendment 1 has kind of created this whole issue just by the 23 
mistake they made on the allocation of the red grouper fishery 24 
and even using its own historical non-economic value method, 25 
they came up with a number that obviously was a little skewed 26 
and even it’s been discussed and admitted as such. 27 
 28 
Correcting that mistake would eliminate all concerns for the 29 
recreational sector’s take of the red grouper.  Dr. Crabtree 30 
stated yesterday that it was not the intent of Secretarial 31 
Amendment 1 to set an allocation, yet it did just that and so 32 
here we are splitting hairs and looking for a small percentage 33 
of 19 percent, 19 percent of a fishery that, by the way, 34 
generates about 90 percent of the economic activity on that 35 
fishery. 36 
 37 
Any actions that you’re considering taking at all on the 38 
recreational fishery would have an insignificant benefit 39 
compared to removing longline gear from the reef fish fishery. 40 
 41 
For example, a 3 percent reduction in recreational catch would 42 
be equivalent to about one 10,000-pound longline trip.  Your own 43 
Reef Fish Advisory Panel, which I’m a member, voted to recommend 44 
that you remove longline gear from the allowable gear list for 45 
the reef fish fishery at their last meeting and so you all have 46 
that option before you.  We urge you to exercise that option. 47 
 48 



  49 

A 9 percent reduction in recreational red grouper landings has 1 
already been put in place with the two red grouper bag limit.  2 
I’ll remind you all that that just went into effect in July of 3 
last summer, just over a year in federal waters and it has not 4 
even been in effect for a full year in state waters. 5 
 6 
Red tide, fuel prices, hurricanes, and bad weather in general 7 
have caused a serious reduction in grouper fishing by the 8 
recreational sector, surely at least three longline boat trips 9 
worth. 10 
 11 
Now in our recent joint court victory, the judge ruled that 12 
National Marine Fisheries Service acted in an arbitrary and 13 
capricious manner when reducing the aggregate bag limit, as 14 
there is no declaration of overfishing or overfished on any of 15 
the aggregate species in question. 16 
 17 
From what I’m hearing, National Marine Fisheries Service has 18 
little regard for the court’s ruling, but again, from my 19 
standpoint, why should they?  From our perspective, the FRA 20 
members’ perspective, National Marine Fisheries Service has 21 
disregarded the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission’s 22 
recommendations, two senators, nine congressmen, the Fishing 23 
Rights Alliance, the Coastal Conservation Association, the 24 
Florida Guides Association, the Gulf Fishermen’s Association, 25 
thousands of people who took their time and their opportunity 26 
costs and they gave up their income to give input. 27 
 28 
Even NMFS’s Phil Steele was quoted in March of this year as 29 
saying that gags are not a concern and that was just March and I 30 
see I’m running out of time here and I’ll get right down to it. 31 
 32 
The FRA asks what is the motivation here and why was an 33 
appointment for the Deputy Director for the Department of 34 
Commerce held up until the emergency closure was put in place?  35 
It seems to be about something more than the health of the 36 
fishery. 37 
 38 
Having a reduction based solely on numbers that are, to quote a 39 
MRFSS official from the administrative record in the recent 40 
court action, and excuse my foul language here, but it’s a 41 
quote: “A wild-assed guess at best.”  That’s a NMFS official 42 
from D.C. 43 
 44 
Should we be taking any action at all on a wild guess?  The FRA 45 
thinks not and we urge you to vote five aggregate, two of which 46 
may be red, until the stock assessment, which the FRA took the 47 
action to get moved up for red grouper, is complete and that’s 48 
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just one year.  Thank you. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. O’Hern.  Are there any 3 

questions for Mr. O’Hern?  No questions.  Next is Mr. De La 4 
Cruz.  Mr. De La Cruz, you’ll be followed by Mr. Veach.  Mr. 5 
Veach, if you could be ready please. 6 
 7 
MR. JASON DE LA CRUZ:  I just want to say I support everything -8 

- I’m the Vice President of the FRA and I support everything 9 
Dennis just said.  Thank you. 10 
 11 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Next is Mr. Kenneth Veach.  If you’re in the 12 

room and just don’t want to speak, all you have to do is just 13 
let us know that and we will mark you as do not want to speak.  14 
Next is Mr. Joe Bagwell and next will be Ms. Marianne Cufone. 15 
 16 
MR. JOE BAGWELL:  Good morning.  I’m the guy no one in this room 17 

has to worry about.  I’ve been here three years and the 18 
commercial guys, I’m not going to take their fish away.  The 19 
charterboat guys, I’m not taking their fish away.  I’m here to 20 
go out and have a little bit of fun on my own. 21 
 22 
I’m the guy the fuel dock people love to see pull up and fill up 23 
his boat and go out and have a little fun and spend some of my 24 
hard-earned money.  I’m in support of the previous speaker’s 25 
comments from the FRA.  I like to go out, whether it’s January 26 
or February or July, and take my friends and family and just go 27 
spend a little time on the water. 28 
 29 
I may catch two fish or I may catch twenty, depending on the 30 
species, but I’m not an animal behaviorist and I’m not a 31 
fisheries biologist or a marine biologist, but I do observe 32 
activity of animals in the water.  I understand we’re not 33 
supposed to feed the mammals. 34 
 35 
In the three years I’ve been here, I’m wondering why all the 36 
dolphins follow my boat, but I don’t like killing fish and I 37 
think if we can do something about us having the ability to keep 38 
the fish we catch and not have to throw back too many undersized 39 
fish to feed these mammals, I would be a lot happier as the 40 
epitome of a recreational fisherman. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Bagwell. 43 

 44 
MR. THOMASSIE:  In your estimation, do you know roughly how many 45 

fish are being wasted when you throw them back instead of 46 
getting eaten, what percentage? 47 
 48 
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MR. BAGWELL:  Of the ones I throw back, I don’t know the answer 1 

to that, but I would estimate 50 percent of the ones I throw 2 
back when there are dolphin around, you can see them go after 3 
them and I don’t see them actually get them, they’re typically 4 
below the water clarity level. 5 
 6 
DR. CRABTREE:  How often does everyone in your party limit out 7 

on grouper? 8 
 9 
MR. BAGWELL:  That’s why I said no one has to worry about my 10 

boat. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Bagwell, for your comments.  13 

Any further questions? 14 
 15 
MS. MORRIS:  If you target reef fish, what months of the year 16 

are you catching red grouper up here? 17 
 18 
MR. BAGWELL:  I’ve only been here, as I said, for three years 19 

and I came down specifically so I could fish as often and as 20 
frequently as possible and I haven’t kept records of what fish I 21 
catch when.  I’ve been on charterboats and I’ve just recently 22 
purchased my own. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Bagwell.  I’ve been asked 25 

that we take a short recess and we will convene back in about 26 
ten minutes and then we’ll start with Marianne and then Mr. 27 
William Ward will be after Marianne. 28 
 29 
(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 30 
 31 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  If we could, would everyone take their seats 32 

again, please.  We have had a couple of people who had signed up 33 
on their card apparently for both items and didn’t get in both 34 
piles somehow.  We certainly will reiterate to everyone to fill 35 
out a card for each item if you can and we won’t have that 36 
confusion in the future. 37 
 38 
Those people will try to go ahead and make their remarks within 39 
their time frame here and certainly we may ask a question of 40 
them regarding either one of those if that occurs and also, if 41 
your comments have been echoed by people in front of you, you 42 
can certainly feed off of that and say that you agree with 43 
something that someone has said and we might all make this a 44 
little more timely, but we certainly want everyone to have their 45 
opportunity for input and so we will try to move along here.   46 
 47 
We do have several cards remaining and I’m not certain whether 48 
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they will all speak, but we certainly have quite a few signed up 1 
at this point.  With that, we will start again and we had Ms. 2 
Marianne Cufone and then Mr. Will Ward will be next. 3 
 4 
MS. MARIANNE CUFONE:  Good morning, everybody.  For the record, 5 

my name is Marianne Cufone and I’m here on behalf of the Gulf 6 
Restoration Network.  GRN is a coalition of over fifty groups 7 
and individuals dedicated to restoring valuable resources of the 8 
Gulf of Mexico and has members in all five Gulf states. 9 
 10 
I’ve been here with you for quite a while now and during that 11 
time, we’ve talked about red grouper for quite a while and I 12 
would ask the council to use this opportunity to get things back 13 
on track.  We have a long-term plan in place, Secretarial 14 
Amendment 1, and this is an opportunity to make sure that we are 15 
following that plan. 16 
 17 
GRN recognizes that the decisions the council makes are very 18 
difficult and have real impacts on individuals and communities 19 
and these things need to be considered and there’s no doubt 20 
about that, but the council and NMFS also have a responsibility 21 
to conserve and manage fish, to stop overfishing, rebuild 22 
overfished populations, and reduce bycatch. 23 
 24 
Yesterday we reviewed comments by the public on ecosystem-based 25 
management.  This has been a buzz word with NMFS and here at 26 
meetings for a number of years and we took an important first 27 
step in implementing ecosystem-based management through 28 
Secretarial Amendment 1 and this should continue and today is an 29 
opportunity to make that continue. 30 
 31 
We’re all aware that decisions and regulations for one species 32 
often affect others and today, the relationship of importance to 33 
consider is between red and other groupers and in particular, 34 
gag grouper.   35 
 36 
Actions today are aimed at helping red grouper, but they should 37 
also be focused on not harming other grouper, especially gag.  38 
When we looked at Madison-Swanson and Steamboat Lumps, we 39 
considered other grouper in that issue too, because we’ve been 40 
addressing grouper as an aggregate and as a complex. 41 
 42 
GRN understands that there are concerns about waiting for the 43 
completion of future stock assessments and getting good 44 
information, but this is always the case.  We’re faced with this 45 
dilemma on a regular basis and we’re stuck in an unending loop 46 
where new regulations are needed, yet better information on 47 
which to base them will follow at some point in the future. 48 
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 1 
We can’t continue to stall necessary actions to the future all 2 
allow fish populations to suffer in the present.  Doing so is 3 
contrary to the purpose of the precautionary approach that we do 4 
follow and more proactive management based on good current 5 
science is important and will help alleviate the need to 6 
readdress issues time and again and allow the council and NMFS 7 
to focus on other important matters. 8 
 9 
Under the document that we have before us today, it’s actually 10 
estimated that a 35 to 45 percent reduction in red grouper 11 
mortality is necessary to keep red grouper on track for its 12 
long-term rebuilding and there are a number of means to achieve 13 
this in this document. 14 
 15 
In this past, GRN has supported a one fish red grouper bag limit 16 
out of a three fish aggregate to also consider gag grouper and 17 
we’ve also supported consistent recreational and commercial 18 
seasons.  19 
 20 
The thing with the closed seasons is that they’re questionable, 21 
I think, at best, especially with a one-month closed season.  In 22 
the past, we’ve seen that they can be fished around and so I 23 
would encourage the council to look at the whole suite of 24 
options and take into consideration that some may look good on 25 
paper, for example, an increase in size limit, but in actuality 26 
it might not provide as much benefit as indicated. 27 
 28 
In fact, the document in front of you on pages 11 and 12 does 29 
discuss that size limits might increase bycatch mortality more 30 
than being beneficial and so I would encourage you not to just 31 
use on-paper management measures, but actually consider true 32 
reality of what the effect is. 33 
 34 
In essence, GRN is asking that you consider Alternative 2 under 35 
Action 1 as well as the preferred and also approve the Preferred 36 
Alternative 3 under Action 3.  Thank you. 37 
 38 
MR. ADAMS:  You said that closed seasons can be fished around 39 

and what do you mean by that? 40 
 41 
MS. CUFONE:  A one-month closed season is really what I’m 42 

talking about and it’s frequent that when people are aware that 43 
a closed season might be ensuing, especially just for a few 44 
weeks, you would turn up effort before and afterwards to 45 
compensate for that closed time and in effect not get any 46 
reduction at all. 47 
 48 
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MR. MINTON:  Marianne, I know that works in the commercial 1 

sector and we’ve seen it, but in the recreational sector with a 2 
bag limit, how would that work?  I don’t see that. 3 
 4 
MS. CUFONE:  You could easily do more trips.  I live in Florida 5 

and we have quite a bit of what I would call professional 6 
recreational fishing and I have quite a few friends that are 7 
captains and they do half-day and quarter-day trips on a regular 8 
basis and so it wouldn’t be hard, instead of doing one full-day 9 
trip, to do four quarter-day trips. 10 
 11 
MS. WALKER:  Marianne, I thought the private recreational caught 12 

more of the grouper than the charter fishery and I know private 13 
recreational people generally have jobs Monday through Friday 14 
and they’re only going to be fishing on the weekend and so I 15 
don’t think that the one month closure, that that argument 16 
really -- 17 
 18 
MS. CUFONE:  I appreciate that and I understand that’s not 19 

always the case and in Florida, you have to understand, there’s 20 
quite a few retired folks as well and so you do need to take 21 
that into consideration.  Like I said, I’m just offering it up 22 
for consideration to the council and GRN is not a huge fan of 23 
one month closed seasons and so I just needed to mention that. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other questions?  Thank you, Ms. Cufone.  26 

Mr. Will Ward and then next Mr. Jim Roberson will be after Mr. 27 
Ward. 28 
 29 
MR. WILLIAM WARD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  My name is William 30 

Ward and I’m here representing the Gulf Fishermen’s Association 31 
in error.  I did not turn in a card for the Red Snapper IFQ and 32 
so I would like to make a brief comment from an eastern Gulf 33 
perspective on the red snapper IFQ first and then I’ll finish 34 
with my comments on gag and the shallow water grouper and red 35 
grouper, et cetera. 36 
 37 
There are over 700 boats in the eastern Gulf that primarily fish 38 
for grouper, and yet they don’t have the ability and haven’t had 39 
the ability to have a record established on the red snapper 40 
fishery, but there’s an awful lot of interaction of those fish 41 
with them in their daily activities as grouper vessels, both 42 
longline and hook and line vessels. 43 
 44 
We are concerned about the fact that if the TAC is reduced that 45 
there will not be an ample supply of the free flow 46 
marketability, if you will, transferability, as we’re trying to 47 
do with IFQs, for those vessels to have access to those fish so 48 



  55 

that they will not be unnecessarily killing those fish and 1 
returning them back in their grouper operations. 2 
 3 
Before I leave here today, I hope -- I didn’t see it in the 4 
document and I mentioned it to Dr. Crabtree on the break, but I 5 
would like us to see maybe the address of a bycatch quota 6 
allocation of some sort, because of the fact that over 700 boats 7 
will be doing what they’re supposed to be doing, trying to catch 8 
groupers. 9 
 10 
In their daily activities, they run across a lot of red snappers 11 
and as we all know, the historic range of the red snapper was 12 
back down into the eastern Gulf, for years and years, from Key 13 
West all the way up to Cape San Blas, and so keep that in mind 14 
and I would like to bring back to our association, if I could, 15 
some solutions for that and maybe not a total solution package 16 
today, but some solutions and that’s the first bit of business. 17 
 18 
Secondly, I would like to again commend you on your 6,000-pound 19 
trip limit.  We thought it was a good idea and it was a 20 
compromise between some of the larger vessels and the smaller 21 
vessels.  We’re trying to get this fishery to make sure that we 22 
can work within the carrying capacity of the stock and work 23 
through it in the matter of a twelve-month calendar year. 24 
 25 
Marianne’s comments about the one-month closure did hold true in 26 
the commercial grouper fishery.  We saw a ramp up of effort 27 
prior to the closure and on the back side of it.  I’m not here 28 
to address the recreational perspective of that, but surely in 29 
the commercial issue I would hope that we would, number one, 30 
pursue the 6,000-pound trip limit, please, Dr. Crabtree, by 31 
January 1. 32 
 33 
We would hope we can do that and if we can do that, it would 34 
probably help us and all of our fishermen quite a bit and I’ll 35 
be glad to take any questions.  Thank you. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any questions?  Just for clarification, for 38 

those who don’t know, the other side of this document left the 39 
council last time to be submitted to National Marine Fisheries 40 
Service, which did include the trip limit.  Any questions of Mr. 41 
Ward? 42 
 43 
MS. WALKER:  Willie, you requested a bycatch of red snapper 44 

quota for the grouper fishermen off the coast of Florida and I 45 
do know that you are interacting with more and more red snapper 46 
as the stock is recovering. 47 
 48 
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My question to you is as we work through a grouper IFQ, would 1 
you also be willing to give up a percentage of it as bycatch 2 
quota for the western Gulf with the red snapper fishermen? 3 
 4 
MR. WARD:  I think what’s good for the goose is good for the 5 

gander basically, Bobbi.  I think a number of our boats have an 6 
interaction with the red snapper and there’s quite a bit of bad 7 
-- I shouldn’t say bad blood, but maybe it is in some cases. 8 
 9 
A lot of guys felt like they’re given ten days to go out and 10 
grouper fish and get their red snapper catch back to the dock 11 
and they were never given the ability to establish the catch 12 
history, first of all. 13 
 14 
Secondly, those interactions with those fish, those fish could 15 
be brought back to our dock and I don’t think that we have any 16 
problem in general, and I would like to talk to our membership 17 
and bring it back and have them decide and discuss it at length, 18 
but it would be hypocritical of me to say that we wouldn’t want 19 
to say that we’re minimizing the bycatch in the western Gulf of 20 
let’s say scamp or gag or red grouper or those things if we’re 21 
going to also be fair with us on the red snapper side and that’s 22 
all. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further questions for Mr. Ward?  Thank 25 

you, Mr. Ward, and we do apologize that we did not get you into 26 
both piles.  Mr. Roberson and Mr. Zales will be next. 27 
 28 
MR. ROBERSON:  For the record, my name is Jim Roberson.  I serve 29 

on the IGFA International Committee and I’m also Past President 30 
of the Emerald Coast Chapter of the CCA and Past President of 31 
the Fort Walton Beach Sailfish Club.   32 
 33 
I’m a retired oil field deep-sea diver with over a hundred days 34 
of saturation and numerous mixed gas dives over 300 feet in the 35 
Gulf of Mexico.  I’m one of the few people who have seen the 36 
benthic communities of the Gulf of Mexico from Brownsville, 37 
Texas, to Key West up close and personal. 38 
 39 
My son Jacob is current holder of the IGFA junior world record 40 
for red grouper and my father fished in the commercial vertical 41 
longline fishery before giving it up for health reasons.  The 42 
IGFA’s position is simple.  We would like to go with the five 43 
grouper aggregate with one red grouper and no recreational 44 
closure and I’ll discuss that here in a minute. 45 
 46 
The IGFA also wants no further resource allocation taken away 47 
from the recreational fishery.  I would just like to go over a 48 
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couple of items that I kind of threw in here at the last minute.  1 
Fuel costs, when I built my boat in 1995, diesel fuel was sixty-2 
five cents a gallon and today, it was over three-dollars-and-3 
something a gallon. 4 
 5 
I used to fish three days a week recreationally, three to four 6 
days a week, and I’m down to like two and three trips a month 7 
now.  It has had a significant impact on the amount of time we 8 
spend on the water, because it’s just a financial reality. 9 
 10 
The weather, the hurricanes, my house was destroyed in Ivan and 11 
we’ve had like multiple problems and we just haven’t had the 12 
time to fish, because we’ve been trying to put our lives back 13 
together on the Gulf coast, the entire Gulf coast.  It has had a 14 
huge effect on the effort throughout all the fisheries. 15 
 16 
I just wanted to bring that to light, that when you start 17 
looking at reducing effort in the recreational fishery, it’s 18 
going to be in both fisheries across the board that you’re going 19 
to see some increases in the stock because nobody has been able 20 
to get out to go fishing. 21 
 22 
I would like to briefly address post-release mortality.  Post-23 
release mortality in the northern Gulf of Mexico here, we’ll go 24 
out and go grouper fishing and you start releasing several 25 
groupers and you can vent them and they’ll go down.  Lots of the 26 
snappers don’t make it down because of the dolphins. 27 
 28 
You can release the sharks.  We’ve had just really, really bad 29 
luck with post-release with some of the snapper species, but 30 
some of the red groupers we’ve been able to release and gotten 31 
back down, some of the gag groupers, but the amberjacks, 32 
releasing a twenty-eight-inch or a twenty-seven-inch fish and 33 
watching barracudas just decimate the fish right before your 34 
eyes and just watching it evaporate and get chewed up.  It’s 35 
been a real problem with this release fishery and I’m glad to 36 
see the council addressing it. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Roberson, your time is up.  Could you 39 

wrap it up, please?  We don’t defer time, Mr. Roberson.  We kind 40 
of indicated how we were going to handle it and if you can, just 41 
conclude with your concluding remarks, if you will, please. 42 
 43 
MR. ROBERSON:  To summarize, on the resource allocation I would 44 

really like to see the council change the methodology.  There 45 
are some advance technologies that have come available that the 46 
council needs to look at, specifically three-dimensional sonar 47 
that could get real time data that could actually take a 48 
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snapshot of what the fishery really looks like. 1 
 2 
It’s a new technology and it’s thinking outside the box and I 3 
think the council needs to look at these technologies.  They 4 
need to ground base some of the MRFSS data that’s not really 5 
based in reality and we need to get a real recreational count on 6 
who is catching these fish. 7 
 8 
We need accurate data from the fishermen on effort and then you 9 
need to ground base that by actually measuring the biomass and 10 
I’ll just cut it short and can I make written comments to this 11 
thing? 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Certainly we accept written comments and if 14 

you would, you can hand those in.  Are there any comments or 15 
questions of Mr. Roberson? 16 
 17 
MR. THOMASSIE:  I was just wondering if you had any 18 

recommendations specifically on how to improve the MRFSS system 19 
or reporting from the recreational sector. 20 
 21 
MR. ROBERSON:  I would like to see the MRFSS system go away.  I 22 

sat in on the MRFSS workshop and after sitting there and 23 
listening to how the data was collected, it was clear to me that 24 
the system was not designed for short-term fisheries management. 25 
 26 
The system was designed for capturing long-term trends.  You 27 
need to capture the data in an accurate, timely fashion.  You 28 
need to go not calling up random numbers in the phone book, but 29 
you need to call the people who are actually fishing. 30 
 31 
I’ve been in this fishery over forty years and nobody has ever 32 
called me and talked to me about what I’m catching.  It is 33 
absolutely essential that when you capture that data, with 34 
whatever system that the council comes up with or that NMFS 35 
comes up with, that you have a way of ground basing that by 36 
actually measuring the biomass, whether it be with divers -- I 37 
think technology is really the answer to the question. 38 
 39 
There are just incredible sonar technologies that have just come 40 
available and some of it is still in black world, but you can 41 
actually get ways to measure biomass and if you can go in and 42 
identify and have a team of fisheries biologists look at that 43 
data, a snapshot of a good section of reef fish -- We know where 44 
everybody is fishing. 45 
 46 
Even before VMS, everybody knows where the fish are and where 47 
everybody is fishing for these fish and you need to go in and 48 
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look at that biomass and study that biomass and then find out 1 
how much effort is actually being put there and I think that 2 
that’s the answer to the question, before you go into resource 3 
allocation and further stratify the fishery between the 4 
recreational and the commercial sector where they’re just 5 
banging heads against one another. 6 
 7 
It doesn’t make any sense for you to take away the recreational 8 
man’s right to fish or the commercial man’s right to fish 9 
without sound scientific data and you need to base it on the -- 10 
 11 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Roberson.  Next we will have 12 

Mr. Bob Zales and Mr. Brad Gable will be on deck. 13 
 14 
MR. ZALES:  Bob Zales, II, President of the Panama City 15 

Boatmen’s Association and also Chairman of the Reef Fish 16 
Advisory Panel, as of today.  You all pretty well know where we 17 
stand on this.  You don’t have to take action at this meeting on 18 
this recreational grouper thing.  You have time to wait. 19 
 20 
These decisions you all make are supposed to be made on the best 21 
available science and we would argue that it needs to be on the 22 
best available information.  If you take action in January, 23 
final action in January, that will give you the benefit of 24 
having the Wave 5 data in front of you to base your decision on 25 
so that you can see a pretty complete picture of what has 26 
happened in 2005 in the red grouper fishery. 27 
 28 
The impacts of the storms, the impacts of red tide, the impacts 29 
of the economy, everything that’s there and currently the 30 
information you have through Wave 4 indicates that projections 31 
for 2005 might be that red grouper -- We might harvest somewhere 32 
in the neighborhood of one-and-a-half million pounds and that’s 33 
only 250,000 pounds over the million-and-a-quarter that’s 34 
allocated to the recreational fishery. 35 
 36 
With the range of error in the MRFSS system, that’s not too far 37 
off.  By waiting until you get Wave 5 data, which is going to be 38 
September and October, which I would argue that it’s probably 39 
going to be significantly lower than it was in 2004, for a 40 
variety of reasons, this would give you the benefit to see where 41 
you are. 42 
 43 
Currently, the five aggregate two red grouper that basically has 44 
only been in effect since January, because that’s when the State 45 
of Florida initiated it, seems to be working.  Someone mentioned 46 
earlier that you don’t give regulations time to work and 47 
obviously you’ve given -- We’re in November and it’s ten-and-a-48 
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half months of time for that to work and you don’t know if it 1 
works or not and now you’re going to change it and put it into 2 
something else. 3 
 4 
That, in our mind, is wrong.  You’ve got two assessments coming 5 
up next year and you’re probably going to make a change again.  6 
You’re going to be doing this year after year after year. 7 
 8 
You got into a situation with the red grouper and the longline 9 
fishery back in 2002 where you made a decision and a few months 10 
later you had a new assessment come out and you changed it.  The 11 
perception of this system by the public is that it doesn’t work 12 
and that you try to move too quick. 13 
 14 
You’re talking about five-year plans on red snapper and what is 15 
wrong with five-year plans in red grouper or gag grouper?  You 16 
need to give these things time to work.  If you insist on making 17 
a decision, we would argue that you stick with five and one. 18 
 19 
You need to be mindful of what the State of Florida does.  The 20 
State of Florida is going to drive the grouper fishery, because 21 
that’s where the grouper fishery exists, is off the west coast 22 
of the State of Florida. 23 
 24 
If what you do is not compatible with the State of Florida, 25 
you’ve got an unenforceable regulation that works good on paper, 26 
but in the real world it ain’t going to work. 27 
 28 
The only other comment that I’ve got is with captain and crew.  29 
In this document, I’ve got several pages marked where they talk 30 
about Alternative 2 of captain and crew to get rid of it and 31 
you’re going to get rid of it, but in my mind and in our 32 
association’s mind, it doesn’t make reasonable sense to make a 33 
regulation just to make one because it feels good. 34 
 35 
There is nothing in this document here that documents anything 36 
about what the impact will be.  At the last meeting, I asked for 37 
some information to be presented and I’ve heard, in around the 38 
table discussion, you’re looking at less than 1 percent of an 39 
impact.  Like I said before, range of error with MRFSS is pretty 40 
high.  Less than 1 percent, in my mind, is a negligible impact. 41 
 42 
If you’re going to take it away just to take it away, tell the 43 
public we’re going to take it away.  We’re not going to tell you 44 
want impact it’s going to have, but we’re going to take it away 45 
from you and when you do this, you need to be mindful of the 46 
enforcement problems that you’re going to create with the other 47 
fisheries, because if you eliminate captain and crew on red 48 
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grouper, you leave it with gags and you leave it with snapper 1 
and you leave it with mackerel, if you get an enforcement agent 2 
on a boat and he’s sitting there and well, do they have captain 3 
and crew on this one and do they have it on that one and it’s 4 
going to be a total nightmare.  Either do it all or do none, but 5 
stick with what you’ve got to do.  Any questions? 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Zales.  Are there any 8 

questions for Mr. Zales?  Thank you for your comments, Mr. 9 
Zales.  Mr. Gable and then Mr. Frank Kawl will be next. 10 
 11 
MR. BRAD GABLE:  I’m Brad Gable from Shalimar, Florida.  I have 12 

to say I support the comments of Jim Roberson and some of the 13 
other folks that spoke before.  One of the things that I don’t 14 
support though is the closure of the red grouper in the 15 
February/March time frame. 16 
 17 
It’s been proven that they do not aggregate together at that 18 
time period and so they’re so spread out that a closure at that 19 
time period is going to be negligible to change the numbers 20 
there. 21 
 22 
The other thing that I’m curious about is why we want to try and 23 
enforce or change the regulations for 19 percent of the problem, 24 
if everybody believes that there is a problem and says 25 
recreational fishermen take 19 percent of the catch and then, 26 
again, the impact of closing it and changing the bag limits is 27 
going to be negligible.   28 
 29 
Address it from the commercial side if we want to to make some 30 
impact to some significant numbers and the other thing I would 31 
question is the chart that was up there earlier before that 32 
somebody put up showed that every year for the last five years 33 
that the numbers of the catch for grouper in total has 34 
increased.  If the numbers are declining, then why is the catch 35 
increasing every year as opposed to declining there? 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I’ll let you get with Mr. Dorsett, who had 38 

provided that chart, and he’s in the back there and he’ll be 39 
happy to try to talk to you about that. 40 
 41 
MR. GABLE:  I’ll address that, but I would ask you to question 42 

that same data as well.  That’s all I have at this point. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Are there any questions of Mr. Gable?  Thank 45 

you, Mr. Gable.  Next is Mr. Kawl.  You support their position?  46 
Okay.  Next we have Mr. Charlie Saleeby and Mr. Bob Taylor will 47 
be after Mr. Saleeby. 48 
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 1 
MR. CHARLIE SALEEBY:  I’m a scuba diver.  I haven’t heard 2 

anybody talk about scuba diving here.  I’ve been seriously scuba 3 
diving in Destin and I moved here six years ago and I’ve been 4 
diving since 1998.  I lived in Atlanta and occasionally came 5 
here, but I moved here six years ago. 6 
 7 
I average forty dives a year and this year I’ve done fifty-nine 8 
dives.  They’re typically seventy to eighty feet and 9 
occasionally 110 feet and seldom do we go to 130 feet and that’s 10 
the recreational limit for sport divers.  I’ve done maybe three 11 
of those this year. 12 
 13 
We’re basically spear fishermen, meat fishermen.  We dive to 14 
catch fish to eat and I seldom fish anymore.  Our dives, we do 15 
natural reefs, inshore wrecks, and that’s primarily it.  We 16 
don’t dive any of the culverts or anything like that.  We’ll do 17 
stuff like the bridge rubble. 18 
 19 
Target species are grouper, red snapper, flounder, triggerfish, 20 
and amberjacks and I’ll say to you this.  A grouper to a spear 21 
fisherman is like a marlin or a yellowfin tuna to a sport 22 
fisherman.  It’s a real prize to us. 23 
 24 
I keep a detailed fish log and I write down everything I do.  I 25 
have logs for every year I’ve been diving and every dive for 26 
every year.  I’ve done fifty-nine dives this year and I’ve 27 
speared nine red grouper and two gag grouper. 28 
 29 
The biggest red was twenty-four inches and the largest gag was 30 
twenty-eight inches.  The first three years I dove here, 31 
starting in 1999 until 2002, I did not spear a single red 32 
grouper. 33 
 34 
Now small grouper on the natural reefs are thick and I’m just 35 
telling you what I see.  They’re thick on the natural reefs, but 36 
for some strange reason, we never see a red grouper on a wreck.  37 
They’re all on the natural reefs and why, I don’t know. 38 
 39 
Most of our grouper that we get are in the cold water months of 40 
February, March, April, May, and June.  We don’t get grouper in 41 
the warm months and they go out, I guess, to deeper water and I 42 
guess fishing pressure probably reduces the number of grouper 43 
that we get that we happen to spear. 44 
 45 
Regulations have really impacted what we can take.  Red snapper, 46 
for the first ten days of the month, you can forget them 47 
anytime, because I guess the commercial fishermen get them and 48 



  63 

all we see are the ones that are too small.  We rarely see, on 1 
places that we can dive, and understand we’re trying to dive 2 
under a hundred feet most of the time, and we don’t see 3 
amberjacks big enough that we can take. 4 
 5 
We see a lot of small amberjacks, but we just don’t see any big 6 
amberjacks.  I haven’t gotten a single amberjack this year and 7 
last year I got two.  This year, goliath grouper and every 8 
inshore wreck here pretty much has goliath grouper right now.  9 
They didn’t have earlier in the year, there were two or three, 10 
but every wreck we see a goliath grouper on, there are no 11 
grouper. 12 
 13 
I’ve firmly come to believe that the goliath groupers suck them 14 
up.  We see red snapper, but absolutely no grouper and I’m 15 
giving you some of my observations. 16 
 17 
Basically, we’re limited -- If you close grouper, we’re limited 18 
to triggerfish and flounder.  Flounder are gone by the end of 19 
November and don’t come back until June and so that leaves -- If 20 
you close red grouper or grouper in the spring of the year, that 21 
leaves us with triggerfish. 22 
 23 
Again, I see a lot of red grouper on the inshore reefs and I 24 
believe, like other people have said, if you close it you’re 25 
being premature.  Give what you’ve done time.  The last three 26 
years after you closed the longline fishing to the inshore 27 
waters, I believe the red grouper are making a strong comeback 28 
and that’s all. 29 
 30 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We’ve got a couple of questions. 31 

 32 
MR. PERRET:  Thank you, Charlie.  I appreciate your comments and 33 

especially in light of you’re one of the few people I’ve heard 34 
from in some time that has actually increased your fishing 35 
opportunities.  You average forty trips a year and you said this 36 
year you’ve already made fifty-nine dives. 37 
 38 
MR. SALEEBY:  That fifty-nine is in the average. 39 

 40 
MR. PERRET:  With hurricanes and fuel costs and everything going 41 

up, people are not, unfortunately, making as many trips.  Your 42 
detailed log -- My question was going to be about goliath 43 
grouper, but obviously you’ve answered that, but let me just ask 44 
you in this fashion -- You’ve been diving for a number of years 45 
and you’re seeing more and more goliath grouper today? 46 
 47 
MR. SALEEBY:  Yes, four years ago I think we saw one and that 48 
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was the Hopper Barge some people call it or the Frangista Barge.  1 
Last year maybe we saw the Frangista and I believe the Phoenix 2 
Barge and two times I saw one on the Barrel Barge. 3 
 4 
This year right now, and we dove two weeks ago, five days in one 5 
week, the Frangista Barge has one, the Janet Tug has one, the 6 
Miss Louise has one, the Barrel Barge has one, the Fort Walton 7 
Barge has one.  There are five inshore wrecks right now that 8 
have two-hundred-plus-pound goliath grouper. 9 
 10 
It’s amazing, and we just started talking about it, that I dove 11 
last week on the Barrel Barge and the Butler Barge and saw zero 12 
grouper.  There were some decent red snapper, but no grouper, 13 
and I’ve just got to believe that they really eat them up. 14 
 15 
MS. WALKER:  Thank you for being with us.  Apparently you are an 16 

experienced recreational fisherman with the ability to make 17 
numerous trips and I wanted to clarify one thing that I thought 18 
I heard.  You’ve gone on fifty-nine trips this year -- 19 
 20 
MR. SALEEBY:  No, fifty-nine dives and we do two to three dives 21 

per trip. 22 
 23 
MS. WALKER:  You’ve got nine gag and one red grouper? 24 

 25 
MR. SALEEBY:  No, nine red grouper and two gag grouper, but we 26 

see many red grouper on the natural reefs that are too small and 27 
they seem to be thick at this time. 28 
 29 
DR. SHIPP:  Thank you for coming.  I’m particularly interested 30 

in your observations on goliath grouper.  Off of Alabama this 31 
year for the first time, we’ve seen goliath and I think you said 32 
that all of them were in excess of 200 pounds.  Is that correct 33 
or is that an estimate that you think is correct? 34 
 35 
MR. SALEEBY:  I saw one -- I’m just giving you the wrecks that 36 

they’re on right now, but yes, I would say 200-plus.  We saw one 37 
last week on the Fort Walton Barge that was probably bigger than 38 
300 pounds.  I haven’t seen any small ones. 39 
 40 
MR. SIMPSON:  Thank you, Mr. Saleeby.  It was interesting and I 41 

appreciate your input.  We don’t get a lot of input from divers.  42 
My question is tapping that knowledge and experience and do you 43 
have a club and if you don’t, I would encourage you to get to 44 
one and the main question is there some kind of conduit, some 45 
kinds of means of communication, either to state agency or 46 
National Marine Fisheries Service or anyone about some of these 47 
observations that your group might have?   48 
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 1 
I think they’re quite important and I don’t know where you’re 2 
particularly located, but there are some labs in this particular 3 
area, both National Marine Fisheries Service and state labs, and 4 
I would encourage you to continue to make that efforts to get 5 
that information to them. 6 
 7 
MR. SALEEBY:  I don’t belong to any diving clubs.  There are 8 

some local groups around.  Eglin has a dive club and Hurlbert, 9 
which you have to be military, basically, for those.  Really, 10 
there are no other dive clubs around here.  No, I don’t pass 11 
this information on.  I really don’t have a conduit for that.  I 12 
probably should, but -- 13 
 14 
MR. SIMPSON:  I would encourage you to do that. 15 

 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Saleeby, for your comments.  17 

Mr. Taylor and then Mr. Maccini is next.  Bob Taylor was called 18 
away and is he planning to return?  Okay, thank you.  Mr. 19 
Maccini will be next and then Mr. Ted Forsgren. 20 
 21 
MR. ED MACCINI:  My name is Ed Maccini.  I’m a commercial 22 

longliner and I belong to both GFA and SOFA.  Concerning the 23 
trip limits, I spoke at an earlier meeting and personally, I’m 24 
against trip limits, but we’re in a situation now where our 25 
season has gone from twelve months to eleven months to nine-and-26 
a-half months to eight months and we need something to be put in 27 
place. 28 
 29 
SOFA has got a little different number and GFA wants the 6,000 30 
and I’m for the 6,000.  I think maybe we can -- I don’t see any 31 
more than an extra month fishing, but one month is better than 32 
no months and I noticed that you already approved that and so I 33 
won’t beat a dead horse. 34 
 35 
The other thing, and you discussed it yesterday, was the amount 36 
of gag grouper that was left on the table.  Last year we had 37 
600,000 pounds and this year we’ve got about a million pounds 38 
and one of the ideas was maybe allow us to go out and vertically 39 
line fish that when we reach our red grouper next year, which we 40 
will, I guarantee it. 41 
 42 
If we can get an extra month, like I said, with the limit, that 43 
would be great.  The other thing was, and this was also 44 
mentioned, that maybe when we reached a certain percentage of 45 
the red grouper then the red grouper would shut off longlining 46 
and leave say 5 percent, which would allow us to go out and 47 
vertically line the reds and the blacks. 48 
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 1 
Another thing is it’s really frustrating watching the 2 
recreational guys being allowed to go out -- I can understand 3 
where they were coming from.  They still had blacks to catch and 4 
they’re out there fishing and we sit at the dock and watch them 5 
go out and see our one million pounds that are sitting out there 6 
and 600,000 from last year and we’re not allowed to pursue that. 7 
 8 
The other thing is I was under the understanding that next year 9 
we were going to get back 500,000 pounds of fish, but 10 
apparently, because another user group went over their quota by 11 
so much -- 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Maccini, and I don’t mean to interrupt 14 

you, but if you could make this germane to the recreational 15 
regulatory amendment as much as you can, so that you tie those 16 
comments in. 17 
 18 
MR. MACCINI:  What I’m saying is the recreational group had gone 19 

over so much and yet they were still allowed to fish all year 20 
and finish off the whole year and I thought we were going to be 21 
getting fish back and now we’re not getting fish back, because 22 
of the other user group that exceeded theirs. 23 
 24 
It seems like we’re being penalized for their overfishing and I 25 
don’t really understand the rationale.  I guess it’s just a hard 26 
TAC, but apparently maybe we should just go -- We can’t go over 27 
our quota, because we’re monitored so closely. 28 
 29 
The other thing is, and I agree with the recreational group that 30 
the science that’s being used is really not the best science, 31 
but it is the best available science, and I’m afraid that when 32 
we do come up with better science that the recreational group is 33 
going to see that they catch a lot more than what the numbers 34 
are right now. 35 
 36 
I’ll just end it by saying Oscar Wilde had a quote, and I’m 37 
directing this to the recreational fishermen, that there are two 38 
great tragedies in life and one is not getting what you want and 39 
one is getting what you want and I’ll end it with that and if 40 
there’s any questions. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Maccini.  Are there any 43 

questions for Mr. Maccini?  I appreciate your comments.  Mr. 44 
Forsgren and then on deck will be Mr. George Eller. 45 
 46 
MR. TED FORSGREN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and commissioners.  47 

My name is Ted Forsgren, representing CCA of Florida and our 48 
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10,000 plus members in Florida.  We support the recommendations 1 
made by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission, the five fish 2 
aggregate limit, only one red grouper, and no closed seasons. 3 
 4 
I want to point out that more than 95 percent of all the red and 5 
gag grouper caught in the Gulf of Mexico are caught off of 6 
Florida and landed in Florida and so we would hope that you 7 
would give great weight to the Florida recommendations. 8 
 9 
We’re on this issue with red grouper because of the goofy number 10 
last year.  I told you what we thought about a 130 percent 11 
increase and it just didn’t happen, but the MRFSS numbers are 12 
what the MRFSS numbers are and when you compare this year, the 13 
first six months, versus last year, you already see a 42 percent 14 
reduction in the harvest of red grouper. 15 
 16 
You’ve already got a reduction almost before bag limits went 17 
into place.  We originally recommended increasing the minimum 18 
size to twenty-two inches as a way to resolve this.  That’s been 19 
very strongly objected to by the National Marine Fisheries 20 
Service and that’s not the way you went. 21 
 22 
We believe that if you establish a resource goal and you say how 23 
many fish you’re going to allow to be killed, it doesn’t really 24 
matter how you kill them.  You may end up landing less fish, but 25 
when you start closing months, you have a big problem. 26 
 27 
Also, I’ll point out that in your current document on page 50, 28 
it says, and I quote: “Extrapolating from 1993 stock assessment 29 
yield per recruit models, yield per recruit is likely maximized 30 
between twenty and twenty-two inches.” 31 
 32 
You’re not at the point of maximizing the yield with the size 33 
limit right now and the other thing I want to point out is 34 
everybody is talking about we don’t want to throw these fish 35 
away because they’re going to die and fish have been dying and 36 
they’re going to die if you’re going to release any of them. 37 
 38 
Remember, you’re down to a one fish bag limit.  The next thing 39 
you can do, if you’re not dealing with size limits, is closed 40 
seasons and closed seasons have a hell of an adverse impact on 41 
the recreational fishery. 42 
 43 
Under the plan that you’ve got here, closing the month of 44 
February, February 15th to March 15th, all grouper, could cost $40 45 
million, $40 million in lost expenses.  The total value, the 46 
total dockside value, of the entire commercial fishery is $28 47 
million. 48 
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 1 
The allocation issue is going to have to be addressed in the 2 
future and the other thing I’ll point out is if you closed 3 
August, you would have $191 million worth of impact and so these 4 
closed seasons -- When you do bag limit reductions, that’s one 5 
thing, but when you close seasons, you have one hell of an 6 
adverse impact on the fishery. 7 
 8 
The other thing I want to point out is there’s no reason to drag 9 
gag grouper into this issue.  You made an adjustment just two 10 
years ago to go five and two.  At that time, there wasn’t any 11 
discussion about how going from five to two was going to cause 12 
red grouper fishermen to catch more gag grouper. 13 
 14 
I don’t think that’s going to happen when you go from two to 15 
one.  Plus, we produced some information, and I gave it to Roy 16 
Williams from Florida, when you compare the wave data from last 17 
year to this year, where you did have a reduction from five to 18 
two, the amount of gag grouper caught went down.  It went down 19 
in the comparable period when you went from a five fish 20 
aggregate to a five fish/two fish. 21 
 22 
There’s no wholesale switching of effort and so you can go with 23 
the Florida recommendation of five and one with no closed 24 
seasons.  Next year you’ve got two assessments coming up and 25 
you’re going to talk about allocation, which we believe 26 
desperately needs to be done. 27 
 28 
By having a state regulation and a federal regulation that are 29 
the same, fishermen are going to understand what it is.  I 30 
guarantee you that you can talk to a hundred grouper fishermen 31 
in Florida and they won’t know what’s going on.  I’ve had many a 32 
call on what is it and there’s so much confusion out there right 33 
now. 34 
 35 
If you do the state and the federal zone together, you’re going 36 
to get a greater positive impact on the resource, greater 37 
understanding, uniform enforcement, and everything else and 38 
that’s what we would urge you to do and then next year when 39 
you’re looking at the data that comes in, take a serious and 40 
comprehensive look at red and gag grouper, commercial and 41 
recreational, and do what you need to do to protect the 42 
resource, but come up with something that’s consistent and then 43 
leave it in place for a while.  Thank you. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Forsgren.  Any questions? 46 

 47 
MR. MINTON:  Ted, it’s good to see you again.  What is CCA’s 48 
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position in Florida on what the allocation should be or what do 1 
you feel like it’s based on, in your review of the data? 2 
 3 
MR. FORSGREN:  I don’t have a number right off the top of our 4 

head.  The historical data is one thing, but we don’t believe 5 
that historical data from twenty years ago, because what has 6 
happened is this fishery has been regulated on historical catch. 7 
 8 
There’s a whole lot more recreational fishermen in the State of 9 
Florida now than there were twenty years ago.  You have to look 10 
at and come up with criteria as to how are you going to do that 11 
and economic value is one of the issues and how do you 12 
distribute this public resource among the maximum number of 13 
people and so I think you’ve got to come up with some criteria. 14 
 15 
I will say one thing though, it is more than it is now.  When 16 
you’re only giving 1.25 million pounds of red grouper to the 17 
entire recreational fishery in the Gulf of Mexico and last year 18 
twenty-five longline boats alone caught 1.3 million, that makes 19 
no sense at all. 20 
 21 
How can you legitimately give twenty-five longline boats more 22 
red grouper than every recreational fisherman in the Gulf of 23 
Mexico?  It makes no sense and so it needs to be addressed. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other questions for Mr. Forsgren? 26 

 27 
MR. HORN:  Mr. Forsgren, what do you think happened to those 28 

fish that those twenty-five longliners caught?  They went to the 29 
public and those folks have a right to that product also.  The 30 
non-fishing community has the same right that a recreational 31 
fisherman has to utilize that resource and his avenue is through 32 
a commercial fisherman. 33 
 34 
That guy doesn’t take that 1.25 million home and put them in his 35 
freezer.  Those fish are sold and utilized through restaurants 36 
and individuals who have the right, just like a recreational 37 
fisherman, to utilize that resource and do you not agree with 38 
that? 39 
 40 
MR. FORSGREN:  The fish that are taken home by the commercial 41 

fishermen and the fish that are taken home by the recreational 42 
fishermen are all eaten by people and that’s why they bring them 43 
home.  The question is who gets how much and when you look at 44 
the allocation of public resources over time -- At one time, 45 
there used to be commercial harvest of deer and ducks and 46 
everything else. 47 
 48 
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When you get to a point when there’s so much demand on a 1 
fishery, you’ve got to come up with some criteria as to how you 2 
allocate.  I’m not suggesting you should eliminate the 3 
commercial grouper fishery.   4 
 5 
What I’m saying is there’s something very wrong about how the 6 
allocation is now, because when you’re looking at that being 7 
taken, yes, they’re taking that fish back and they’re selling it 8 
and it’s being resold and it’s being used in restaurants and 9 
that has a total value, but so does the recreational fishery in 10 
terms of the total value and you need to look at what that total 11 
value is so that you’re not inflicting greater damage on one 12 
side than you are on the other.  If you moved a half-a-million 13 
pounds of red grouper from the commercial allocation and let’s 14 
just say you -- 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Forsgren, I think you’ve really 17 

responded to Mr. Horn already.  I appreciate your response 18 
though.  You could go on, I know, but I think you have 19 
responded.  With that, we will have Captain George Eller next 20 
and then Mr. Twinam. 21 
 22 
MR. GEORGE ELLER:  Good morning.  I’m George Eller of Destin, 23 

Florida.  I have a charterboat operation of twenty-five years of 24 
more.  I’m Treasurer of the Destin Charterboat Association and 25 
President of the Destin Fishermen’s Cooperative. 26 
 27 
Red groupers, if there is a shortage of red groupers, it’s not 28 
around here.  In the past two years, I think I’ve seen more red 29 
groupers than ever.  It never ceases to amaze me the people who 30 
advocate a drastic closure or a drastic draconian measure to the 31 
fishery. 32 
 33 
You can pretty much bet those people don’t fish for a living.  A 34 
lot of people don’t take into consideration the economic impact 35 
that closures and bag reductions do to those of us that fish for 36 
a living.   37 
 38 
As far as the red grouper situation is concerned, I would hope 39 
that the council will wait.  It’s not something you have to do 40 
today.  I’m convinced that the council always tries to use the 41 
best information available to them on making any decisions and 42 
if you wait until Wave 5 is in, I think obviously you’ll have 43 
more information at your disposal to make an informed judgment. 44 
 45 
I have to say that I like the status quo as it is now.  If you 46 
had to make a red grouper closure, probably the February 15th to 47 
March 15th red grouper only closure would be the least harmful in 48 
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my industry.  Please wait and make an informed decision. 1 
 2 
Also, on my card, I was talking to one of the gentlemen there, 3 
and I had a notation there about the IFQ and just let me briefly 4 
state something on that.  I have mixed emotions about it.  Going 5 
to sea is inherently dangerous and I think derby fishing just 6 
increases the danger. 7 
 8 
I do have mixed emotions about it, because I don’t relish seeing 9 
the commercial fleet fishing in the same waters that I do.  10 
We’ve heard a lot of fuss and feathers here this morning about 11 
that’s not going to happen and if that’s the case and it’s not 12 
going to happen, then probably the IFQ is probably the better 13 
solution. I implore the council to wait and get the best 14 
information available.  Any questions? 15 
 16 
MS. MORRIS:  Mr. Eller, I was talking with you a bit during 17 

break about the idea of a vessel limit as an alternative to a 18 
closed season and so let me ask you about that.  In our 19 
document, we have an alternative which would have a vessel limit 20 
of three or four fish per vessel, with an accommodation for 21 
headboats, and could you compare that with the closed season in 22 
terms of its impact on your business? 23 
 24 
MR. ELLER:  I have to say that for my own industry, for my own 25 

personal business, I would rather see the one month closure of 26 
red groupers only and then a one fish per person limit for the 27 
rest of the year.  I think that would be the least harmful and 28 
it would be the least complicated than trying to decide who gets 29 
the four fish and especially if you have what we call groupings. 30 
 31 
When you have a family and there’s seven or eight or ten people 32 
in a family, the four fish per boat per trip, that’s not that 33 
big of a deal, but nowadays, with the price of fishing going up 34 
and this and that and the other, we see a lot of groupings, two 35 
people from here, three people from there, four people from over 36 
there. 37 
 38 
I can see some conflict there and I would rather see the one 39 
month red grouper only closure and then the one fish per person 40 
for the rest of the year. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other questions of Mr. Eller?  Thank 43 

you.  We have Mr. Twinam up next and Mr. David Krebs will be 44 
next. 45 
 46 
MR. MARK TWINAM:  My name is Mark Twinam and I’m a thirty-year 47 

commercial fisherman and a twenty-five-year longliner, based on 48 
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the west coast of Florida.  I’ve fished from ports from Mexico 1 
to Massachusetts and I would like to thank the Gulf Council and 2 
National Marine Fisheries for the work you do. 3 
 4 
As a young man and fisherman, I’ve had great animosity towards 5 
the council and the National Marine Fisheries Service, because 6 
with a $3,000 a month boat payment, I always felt threatened by 7 
your actions. 8 
 9 
Now, I have a great respect for the difficult job you do and the 10 
decisions you have to make.  One gentleman up here said that he 11 
didn’t think that rod and reels would do much damage to the 12 
fishery.  Since it’s become a battle between the recreational 13 
and the commercial or the longliners, I disagree with that just 14 
by the sheer number of recreational fishermen. 15 
 16 
In Florida, there’s a million saltwater fishing licenses sold 17 
each year of various types.  700,000 of them are year-round and 18 
300,000 of them are a three to seven-day variety.  If you called 19 
a million and took 10 percent of those people and if they caught 20 
two grouper all year long, the recreational quota is filled. 21 
 22 
That’s less than 1 percent of the population of Florida catching 23 
two fish and they get 20 percent of the resource and it’s filled 24 
with two fish and so I think the rod and reel fishery, the 25 
recreational fishermen, have a tremendous impact on it and I 26 
think we need a much better system of trying to find out how 27 
many of them there is and how many fish they’re catching. 28 
 29 
What’s going to happen when they do really find out is the 30 
recreational fishing is going to have closed seasons and there’s 31 
just no way around it.  There’s too many of them.  The problem 32 
with trying to get a closed season right now is because the 33 
charter fishermen are included with the recreational fishermen. 34 
 35 
Charter fishermen fish for money.  They fish every day and the 36 
recreational fishermen that are on the boat only fish one to two 37 
days a year with them, maybe, but charter fishermen are in it 38 
for money.  I’ve talked to a couple of here today, or in the 39 
past several days, charter fishermen, and they don’t want to 40 
hear about being taking out of the recreational fishery. 41 
 42 
I don’t know that they’re scared of.  Longliners, we’ve been 43 
under the spotlight for fifteen years and everybody knows every 44 
turn we take and every fish we bring in. 45 
 46 
I think charter fishing is one of the highest and best uses of 47 
the resource, but we need to know every fish they catch and they 48 
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need to come out into the light and let’s see what they’re 1 
doing.  They need to be separated from the recreational. 2 
 3 
If you try and close the recreational fishery, every time you do 4 
you’re going to have the charter fishermen jumping up and down 5 
because they can’t afford a closure because they’re closed today 6 
because of the weather and they’re closed tomorrow because 7 
there’s no customers and they’re closed off and on throughout 8 
the year. 9 
 10 
Charter fishermen can’t afford a closure and so whenever you try 11 
and close the recreational, they’re going to be screaming bloody 12 
murder.  They need a separate quota.  I don’t know if they feel 13 
it’s a safety in numbers because they have a million anglers 14 
behind them that you can’t touch them, but I don’t think that 15 
anybody is going to trample over the top of the charter 16 
fishermen if they’re out there with their own quota.  That’s all 17 
I have to say. 18 
 19 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Twinam.  Are there any 20 

questions?  Thank you for your comments.  Mr. Krebs, you’re up 21 
next and Mr. Robert Turpin will be after that. 22 
 23 
MR. KREBS:  David Krebs with Ariel Seafood.  Just a few comments 24 

about red grouper and my concerns of the council making any 25 
knee-jerk reactions to a stock that looks like it’s coming back, 26 
because all of a sudden we have fish off of Alabama. 27 
 28 
All of these fish have tails and they move from place to place.  29 
We’ve had unprecedented storms over the last five to six years 30 
that especially the Madison-Swanson it moves fish into the 31 
northern Gulf from down there. 32 
 33 
I would like the council to keep in mind as they hear pressure 34 
from different groups to ease off some of the plans that they’re 35 
on that might save some of these stocks to take into 36 
consideration not just the numbers, because we really don’t know 37 
how much effort is out there. 38 
 39 
Different people fish in different ways, but also to look at the 40 
average size of these fish as you’re going about your stock 41 
assessments and get a genuine idea of what’s really going on, 42 
because it’s very simple.  In every fishery we have, the biggest 43 
fish die first and as you get to smaller fish, you know you’ve 44 
got a problem. 45 
 46 
I just wanted to reiterate to the council that I think that 47 
they’ve got some good plans, but I see an awful lot of pressure 48 
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from people saying everything is great and hunky dory, but yet 1 
just like the cod fishery in the northeast when Canada built 2 
their fleet in the 1980s because the cod fishery was in such 3 
good shape and then within five years it was bankrupt because 4 
they had overfished it and they jumped the gun on it and that’s 5 
all I have. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Krebs.  Are there any 8 

questions of Mr. Krebs?  Thank you for your comments.  Next is 9 
Mr. Turpin and Mr. James Bayles will be up next. 10 
 11 
MR. ROBERT TURPIN:  Thank you for this opportunity to speak.  My 12 

name is Robert Turpin and I’m Chief of the Marine Resources 13 
Division for Escambia County, Florida.  I’m not speaking in that 14 
capacity, but I do want to give you some background on myself. 15 
 16 
I am a lifelong Panhandle Florida resident.  I’ve been fishing 17 
in the local waters for about forty years.  I just celebrated my 18 
thirtieth anniversary of diving and I want to particularly talk 19 
about my experience and the data that’s available to the council 20 
on fish counts on Panhandle Florida reefs between Pensacola and 21 
Panama City. 22 
 23 
From 1989 to 1995, there were several hundred of these samples.  24 
I participated and these were quantitative five-minute point 25 
counts at approximately eighty artificial reefs.  You could 26 
easily go back to these same reefs over a regional area, the 27 
northeastern Gulf of Mexico, do a similar study, and determine 28 
what are the fish populations and not just what are people 29 
catching, but what are the fish in the water. 30 
 31 
The previous data has all been peer reviewed and been published 32 
in the scientific literature and it would be very easy to go 33 
back and get some real data and not just catch per unit, but 34 
what fish are in the water. 35 
 36 
There’s a lot of frustration in the room and there’s a lot of 37 
frustration between the commercial and recreational sectors 38 
about allocation and I guess my frustration is that it seems to 39 
be a lot of energy and effort that seems to be focused on an us-40 
versus-them approach and very little have I heard today about 41 
the ability of the Gulf of Mexico to produce sustainable 42 
populations of finfish and other resources. 43 
 44 
As we focus on the allocation issues, I would like for us also 45 
to focus on the ability of the resource to be sustainable.  46 
There’s also been talk about the hurricanes and after the 47 
hurricanes, a lot of red grouper were pushed into the Gulf of 48 
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Mexico off the Panhandle Florida coast that were not there prior 1 
to those hurricanes. 2 
 3 
I would caution the approach taken that because we see a lot of 4 
these fish there locally that there’s been an expansion in that 5 
population.  Merely a shift of those fishes into an area where 6 
they previously did not exist in great numbers is probably a 7 
more plausible conclusion there. 8 
 9 
Finally, I just would like for us to maybe take a look at a 10 
paradigm shift in how we manage our fishery.  It’s a tragedy, I 11 
think, to manage the fishermen in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico 12 
the same way we manage fishermen in our lakes and rivers and 13 
bays. 14 
 15 
The expansion injuries of these fishes due to being brought up 16 
from a hundred or more feet and the mortality of throwbacks and 17 
a lot of marine mammals are taking the discards and they’re not 18 
making it back into the populations and there’s just some 19 
problems there that I would like for us to maybe work towards a 20 
shift in the way that we manage the fishermen. 21 
 22 
We’re not managing the fisheries, but we’re managing the 23 
fishermen and for us to be able to take a limited number of the 24 
first fish that we catch home so that we can feed our families, 25 
but not cause detriment to the -- 26 
 27 
MR. PERRET:  Robert, I don’t know if you were in here when the 28 

previous diver spoke, Charlie Saleeby, but his experience was he 29 
had been diving for a number of years and he’s seeing red 30 
grouper on structures and reefs and when the goliath grouper 31 
show, they tend to not be as many red grouper. 32 
 33 
I’m just wondering if in your diving experiences, have you seen 34 
similar things happening and particularly, what’s your 35 
experience relative to the goliath grouper? 36 
 37 
MR. TURPIN:  My first goliath grouper that I saw in the water 38 

was in about 1976 and it was at one of the public artificial 39 
reefs off Pensacola called the Three Barges in fifty feet of 40 
water and there were a number of fish around that day. 41 
 42 
I don’t think that, based on the evolutionary history of the 43 
fishes in the Gulf of Mexico, that if goliath grouper were 44 
sucking down all the red and gag grouper that we would see a 45 
huge population of goliath and there wouldn’t be any ability of 46 
other grouper to exist in the reef and so I don’t subscribe to 47 
that theory or hypothesis that goliath grouper are eating -- 48 
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 1 
In fact, if you look at the gut content analysis from the 2 
scientific literature, they eat other types of organisms, 3 
benthic invertebrates and other invertebrates.  I do see them 4 
occasionally and I’ve seen probably three or four and in the 5 
last few years in my efforts as the Marine Resources Division 6 
Chief, I build artificial reefs, but I also monitor those 7 
artificial reefs. 8 
 9 
I am continuing to do those fish counts and not in that 10 
quantitative manner of the five-minute point count that we did 11 
from 1989 to 1995, but we have the ability to do that if there 12 
were a direction from the council maybe towards some funding 13 
from NOAA that would allow for that study to be replicated and 14 
that would give you a very good ten-year window between those 15 
two sampling periods to look at what has happened with these 16 
fishes. 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Turpin.  Are there any other 19 

questions of Mr. Turpin?  Thank you.  Next is Mr. McCallie and 20 
then Mr. Russell Nelson.  Is Mr. McCallie in the room?  Mr. 21 
Nelson and then next is Mr. Veach. 22 
 23 
DR. NELSON:  My name is Russell Nelson and I’m a fishery 24 

scientist here representing CCA America and our 70,000-some 25 
members in the Gulf of Mexico states.  I’m not going to take up 26 
much of your time.  You’ve heard Ted Forsgren state our 27 
position. 28 
 29 
I do want to thank this council.  At the beginning part of this 30 
year, we were concerned that this decision would be made without 31 
any public hearings in the State of Florida and I do appreciate 32 
the fact that now you’ve not only held a round of public 33 
hearings, but three full hearings before the council. 34 
 35 
I would like to put this decision in a little bit of context.  36 
There seems to be a great feeling of urgency on the part of some 37 
people here and let’s just look at really what we’re dealing 38 
with.  39 
 40 
We have set a TAC of 6.86 million pounds for three years, the 41 
first three years of recovery, which comes up to a little less 42 
than twenty million pounds.  In 2003 and 2004, the total TAC was 43 
exceeded by a little over one-and-a-half million pounds, about 8 44 
percent.  It looks like in this year, the third year of that 45 
three-year cycle, the TAC will be exceeded by another maybe 46 
quarter of a million pounds. 47 
 48 
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For the three-year cycle, TAC will be exceeded by 9 percent.  1 
That’s unfortunate, but I don’t think it’s frightening.  It’s 2 
about a 3 percent annual overage.  Yet, this has precipitated a 3 
great deal of action that has taken up a lot of the council’s 4 
time and has not necessarily benefited the fish. 5 
 6 
In contrast, I might say that this council over a decade ago set 7 
a bycatch reduction goal for an extremely overfished red snapper 8 
fishery, a bycatch reduction goal of 44 percent a year.  That 9 
goal was in place for a decade. 10 
 11 
In 2003, NMFS reported to the council that reduction was only 12 
going at about a 12 percent a year pace.  In other words, for a 13 
decade, the reduction in fishing mortality associated with 14 
shrimp trawl bycatch on red snapper was 73 percent under the 15 
goal for a decade.  Every year was 73 percent. 16 
 17 
We, in 2003 and 2004, repeatedly asked this council to take some 18 
action on that problem and no such action was taken.  I think 19 
that in looking at some of the issues that you face, it might be 20 
wise to do a little plain old-fashioned triage. 21 
 22 
If you’re in an emergency situation in a hospital, one doesn’t 23 
waste valuable medical personnel time fixing bruises and small 24 
cuts when there are people lying around hemorrhaging and are 25 
mortally wounded.  A one fish bag limit, as suggested by the 26 
Fish and Wildlife Commission in Florida, in fact could have been 27 
put in place last July. 28 
 29 
It would have been simple and it could have been done by July 30 
and it has not been put in place yet.  It will achieve 30 of the 31 
34 percent reduction that staff has indicated needs to be done 32 
to try and constrain the recreational fishery and whether or not 33 
these overages are real and whether or not this is really 34 
necessary, that’s 30 of the 34 percent you get. 35 
 36 
I think that if any action is necessary, that is sufficient and 37 
for this council to waste a great deal of time arguing about 38 
another 3 or 4 percent is really not that constructive and I 39 
thank you for your time.  40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Dr. Nelson.  Are there any 42 

questions? 43 
 44 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Dr. Nelson.  When you were figuring 45 

the overages, was the 600,000 pounds or the one million pounds 46 
that the commercial sector wasn’t allowed to harvest last year 47 
or this year, was that included in that figure when you were 48 
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stating the overages? 1 
 2 
DR. NELSON:  Kay, I took the figures right out of the book and 3 

it was only looking at red grouper and not the shallow-water 4 
aggregate quota, but for red grouper it said for 2003 and 2004 5 
the TAC was exceeded by 1.59 million pounds and the estimates 6 
appear to be somewhere around a quarter of a million pounds for 7 
this year and so it comes out to about 10 percent of the three-8 
year TAC. 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Are there any other questions of Dr. Nelson?  11 

Thank you for your comments.  Next is Kenneth Veach.  He left.  12 
We have Mr. Captain James Green that doesn’t want to speak, but 13 
he supported the IGFA position and we had Mr. Steve Laushine who 14 
didn’t want to speak, but supported IGFA and FWB Sailfish Club 15 
and lastly, I guess Mr. Charles Preston, who did not want to 16 
speak, but supported the FWB Sailfish Club position. 17 
 18 
With that, I believe that closes the public testimony regarding 19 
the Red Grouper Regulatory Amendment.  There are no comments 20 
regarding exempted fishing permits.  In just a few moments, we 21 
will break for lunch, but before we do that, we did miss one 22 
item this morning. 23 
 24 
We do need to swear in our newest member, Mr. Bob Shipp, who 25 
comes back to us as a member, actually, and Dr. Crabtree is 26 
going to do that at this time. 27 
 28 
MR. JIM BAYLES:  We have one more person to speak.  You called 29 

me one time and then skipped over me. 30 
 31 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Bayles, did we skip over you?  I 32 

apologize, but we must have gotten your card pushed into the 33 
stack at that point and I certainly apologize.  We didn’t mean 34 
to miss you.  It wasn’t intentional, I promise. 35 
 36 
MR. BAYLES:  Good morning, I’m Jim Bayles.  I’ve been in Destin 37 

area for about seven years and I would like to help reinforce 38 
some of the things that Mr. Saleeby told you this morning.  39 
Diving, you get a completely different perspective of what is 40 
under water, all the fish, the reefs, et cetera, than you do 41 
from any other viewpoint. 42 
 43 
The natural reefs hold a lot of red grouper and only the natural 44 
reefs.  I’ve seen very, very few red grouper on artificial 45 
reefs.  It doesn’t take much of an artificial reef to hold a red 46 
grouper.  It just takes a couple of rocks down there and you’ve 47 
got a red grouper on it. 48 
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 1 
When I first got here about seven years ago, I didn’t see any 2 
red grouper out in the Gulf and now they are quite plentiful out 3 
there.  The gag groupers are on both artificial reefs and the 4 
natural reefs. 5 
 6 
The gag grouper are moved in by hurricanes.  I haven’t noticed 7 
that with the red grouper.  We were talking about goliath 8 
grouper.  Again, it’s my opinion that if you are on an 9 
artificial reef, which is where most of the gag groupers are, 10 
virtually all of the gag groupers, that they have virtually no 11 
gag groupers on them. 12 
 13 
I don’t know if they’re being eaten, yet we heard reports of six 14 
or seven gags getting eaten by a single goliath grouper during a 15 
single dive witnessed, or if they’re just being scared off.  Are 16 
there any questions? 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Bayles, and again I 19 

apologize.  Are there any questions of Mr. Bayles?  Thank you 20 
for your comments.  Now we will proceed with the swearing in 21 
ceremony. 22 
 23 
(Whereupon, Dr. Shipp is administered the oath of office by 24 
Regional Administrator Roy Crabtree.) 25 
 26 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Congratulations, Dr. Shipp, and obviously we 27 

welcome you back.  With that, we will recess and we will 28 
reconvene -- It says we’re going to start at 1:00 and since we 29 
are a little over at this point, we will start at 1:15. 30 
 31 
(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 12:00 o’clock p.m., November 32 
16, 2005.) 33 

- - - 34 
 35 

November 16, 2005 36 
 37 

WEDNESDAY AFTERNOON SESSION 38 
 39 

- - - 40 
 41 
The Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council reconvened in the 42 
Ambassador Room of the Ramada Plaza Beach Resort, Fort Walton 43 
Beach, Florida, Wednesday afternoon, November 16, 2005, and was 44 
called to order at 1:15 o’clock p.m. by Chairman Robin Riechers. 45 
 46 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  If we could, could we please come to order?  47 

We are going to be starting with the Reef Fish Management 48 
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Committee and the comments for the committee are in Tab B.  1 
Everyone should have a summary of the committee meeting in front 2 
of them.  Mr. Minton, would you like to begin your report of the 3 
Reef Fish Management Committee? 4 
 5 
MR. MINTON:  We will begin, Mr. Chairman.  This is a summary of 6 

the Reef Fish Management Committee meeting.  Under the Reef Fish 7 
Amendment 26, we heard summaries on the public hearings, letters 8 
received, a summary of the Ad Hoc Red Snapper AP meeting and a 9 
summary of the SSC. 10 
 11 
It was noted during these discussions that there was a problem 12 
with some of the confidentiality of landings data.  It was noted 13 
when fishermen have attempted to get the landings data of a 14 
transferred license that NMFS was unable to give them the 15 
information on the landings before they owned the license, due 16 
to confidentiality rules. 17 
 18 
Under Section 4.1, Action 1: IFQ Programs, we had a discussion 19 
and members felt that it was inappropriate to refer to 20 
individual quotas as transferable, because transferability 21 
alternatives do not occur until later in the document.   22 
 23 
By a vote of five to two, the committee recommends, and I so 24 
move, that for Section 4.1, IFQ Program, to modify the Preferred 25 
Alternative 2 to read: Implement an individual fishing quota IFQ 26 
program in the Gulf of Mexico red snapper fishery. 27 
 28 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s a committee motion.  Do we have any 29 
discussion?  Hearing no discussion, all those in favor of the 30 
committee motion say aye; all those opposed same sign.  The 31 
motion passes. 32 
 33 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 4.2, Action 2: IFQ Program Duration, 34 

there were no changes to the preferred alternative, which I’ll 35 
read, which is do not limit the duration of the IFQ program; 36 
however, require a program evaluation every five years. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion again or it’s not 39 

really a committee motion.  We just maintain the preferred. 40 
 41 
MR. MINTON:  The council has been through that already, I guess. 42 

 43 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  The council has been through that and we 44 

shouldn’t have to do that again.  If there’s anyone who wants to 45 
change any of those preferreds, then we will just have them 46 
speak and if not, we will just move on. 47 
 48 



  81 

MR. MINTON:  I was reading those just to refresh everyone’s 1 

memory, if that’s all right. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think it is, again, as Dr. Crabtree 4 

pointed out earlier today, that obviously our intent is to send 5 
this out for referendum and so what we would like to do is this 6 
is not final action by the council, but we certainly want to 7 
signal what our intent is so that the people are voting on 8 
what’s going to look very similar to what they see later on. 9 
 10 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 4.3, Action 3: Ownership Caps and 11 

Restrictions on IFQ Share Certificates and Allocation, the 12 
committee members felt that Alternative 2 and Preferred 13 
Alternative 3 should be worded to state that “no person shall 14 
own IFQ shares” rather than “possess IFQ shares.”  This would 15 
make the alternatives consistent with the title of the section. 16 
 17 
By a vote of seven to zero, the committee recommends, and I so 18 
move, that for Section 4.3, Action 3: Ownership Caps and 19 
Restrictions on IFQ Share Certificates, in Alternatives 2 and 3 20 
change “shall possess” to “shall own.” 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 23 
discussion of the committee motion?  Hearing no discussion, all 24 
those in favor of the committee motion say aye; all those 25 
opposed same sign.  The motion passes. 26 
 27 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 4.4, Action 4: Eligibility for 28 

Initial IFQ Program, there were no changes to the preferred 29 
alternative, which currently is Alternative 3, to restrict the 30 
initial eligibility to persons who own a Class 1 or Class 2 31 
license.  Permanent resident aliens who own a Class 1 or Class 2 32 
license will be included in the initial allocation, subject to 33 
any other qualifications included in the IFQ program. 34 
 35 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s the same preferred motion as before.  36 

Is that correct, Mr. Chairman? 37 
 38 
MR. MINTON:  Yes. 39 

 40 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Are there any changes to that preferred 41 

alternative?  Hearing none, Mr. Chairman. 42 
 43 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 4.5, Action 5: Initial Apportionment 44 

of IFQ Shares, the committee discussed the suboptions for time 45 
period for Class 1 license holders to select their ten years of 46 
qualifying catch from.   47 
 48 



  82 

There were no changes in that action, which is the Preferred 1 
Alternative 2: Allocate initial IFQ shares proportionally among 2 
eligible participants based on the average annual landings 3 
associated with their current licenses.  These data are 4 
available for the years 1990 through 2004 for Class 1 license 5 
holders and for the years 1998 through 2004 for Class 2 license 6 
holders. 7 
 8 
A Suboption A allows Class 1 license holders, if eligible, to 9 
select ten years of consecutive data during the time period 1990 10 
to 2004.  It was noted that we have incomplete data for 1990 to 11 
1992. 12 
 13 
Under Section B, Class 2 license holders select five years of 14 
data during the time period of 1998 through 2004.  The 15 
difference between those is that the Class 1, Mr. Chairman, are 16 
consecutive years and Class 2 can select five from those. 17 
 18 
DR. CRABTREE:  I think we ought to discuss one of the issues 19 

that came up in testimony and that had to do with the gentleman 20 
who owns a license that was originally a historical captains 21 
license and those licenses didn’t exist prior to 1998 and 22 
there’s no red snapper endorsement really associated with it 23 
before it and so his concern was that he only had seven years of 24 
landings and he’ll get zeros in those initial three years. 25 
 26 
I think we ought to have some discussion about this issue, 27 
because I don’t recall it coming up before and just to be sure 28 
of how we want to handle that. 29 
 30 
MR. FISCHER:  That’s the same comments I wanted to make and I 31 

think we had -- Out of the eight permits, we had four or five of 32 
them in the audience today and I managed to speak with a handful 33 
of them and whether they knew or didn’t know that they would be 34 
having zeros averaged in isn’t the point. 35 
 36 
It’s if you miss a year or miss a period of time because your 37 
boat is in repair and you just have various problems and you’re 38 
getting zero catch is one thing, but to acquire a permit in 1998 39 
and be told that your average is going to go back three years 40 
before the permit even existed I don’t think is fair. 41 
 42 
Fairness is one of the things that I wanted to make sure all 43 
participants, whether it’s 134 or whatever the actual number is, 44 
that it’s fair to all of them and nobody gets lost in the cracks 45 
and whoever the original owners of these permits may have been, 46 
I’m sure it’s changed hands many times over and that’s what I 47 
wanted to do, is just open discussion.  I have some ideas, but 48 
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I’ll let other people give forth their ideas and see what we 1 
come up with. 2 
 3 
MR. HORN:  Fairness is in the eyes of the beholder.  There are 4 

those historical captain permits that are out there, but there 5 
are also -- When those things were created, the original owner 6 
of that vessel also had a permit and there are vessels that 7 
those permits have not changed. 8 
 9 
There are historical captain permits that have been sold, 10 
perhaps more times than one, I don’t know, and there may be some 11 
left where a historical captain got his permit and is still 12 
fishing, I don’t know, but I’m curious to know how NMFS is going 13 
to handle -- 14 
 15 
Are you going to allow, however you do it, a historical captain 16 
to have landings of his own and then are you going to allow that 17 
original vessel that -- He chose not to have the responsibility 18 
and the liability of owning a vessel and that’s why he was a 19 
captain to start with and not an owner and are you going to 20 
allow that vessel to have all of their landings and exactly how 21 
are you going to handle that? 22 
 23 
There’s still, in that ten-year window of opportunity, and let’s 24 
just pull a number out of a hat and let’s just take the first 25 
ten years and if a historical captain had a permit for seven of 26 
those years, there’s a vessel that had landings for the entire 27 
ten years and so how are you going to handle that and how are 28 
you going to break it down? 29 
 30 
DR. CRABTREE:  I’m going to handle it the way the plan says 31 

we’re going to handle it and that’s what we’re here to decide 32 
right now.  I have called my office and we do have files with 33 
regard to the old historical captains there. 34 
 35 
The problem is like Phil said and if you say we’ll give him his 36 
seven years on the license and we’ll also use the three years 37 
before that on the vessel he worked on, well now you’re counting 38 
the landings from that vessel twice, because somebody else is 39 
already getting shares on it.  I don’t know how we’re going to 40 
handle it and we’ve got to decide that I think now. 41 
 42 
MR. DAUGHDRILL:  Can you define for us what is a historical 43 

captain? 44 
 45 
MR. HORN:  I’ll be happy to and Kay can also do it.  Kay’s 46 

husband was a historical captain on my vessel, my family’s 47 
vessel.  A fishing vessel that was owned by a corporation that 48 
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hired boat captains -- We hired our captains and they operated 1 
our boats. 2 
 3 
The captains chose not to own a vessel, for whatever reason, and 4 
that’s not either here or there and he may have fished on that 5 
vessel and in fact, did fish on these vessels for many years and 6 
spent their whole life on a boat and so those men, there were I 7 
think seven or eight of them that were incorporated into the 8 
original license limitation plan as a historical captain, 9 
because they in fact fished for a lot of years on a boat. 10 
 11 
They were awarded at that time a license as well as a license on 12 
the vessel, because you had to have a vessel with landings in 13 
order to get a license.  Those historical captains were also 14 
given one and some of those historical captain licenses which 15 
have been sold, which creates some form of difficulty. 16 
 17 
MR. SIMPSON:  Let’s go back.  I was one of the ones that said 18 

let’s quit fooling around and we jerked Kay around before she 19 
was on this council for years and everybody kept saying we don’t 20 
know how many it’s going to be and it ended up being seven or 21 
eight. 22 
 23 
You’ve got seven or eight individuals that this is going to 24 
apply to and why can’t you just average seven years for those 25 
guys and not require them to average ten and let’s move on.  26 
We’re talking seven or eight licenses out of all this whole 27 
world of stuff and that’s somewhat fair. 28 
 29 
It wouldn’t be fair to go back and take all of the history of 30 
the boat, as Philip said.  It could possibly be somewhat fair to 31 
take part of those landings, because the expertise of the 32 
captain contributed to that, but that becomes gummy. 33 
 34 
If it’s more than seven or eight of these things, I would say do 35 
it a different way, but why can’t you just average seven years 36 
for those people and say that’s going to be your highest level?  37 
If they’ve got five, then five.  If they’ve got eight or nine -- 38 
They can’t have more than seven, can they? 39 
 40 
MR. ADAMS:  Myron started off saying that whether or not the 41 

people may have bought these permits did or didn’t know that 42 
they had zeros in the IFQ before a seven-year period is 43 
irrelevant and I don’t know how that is irrelevant.  They should 44 
have known that and second of all, there’s a lot of other people 45 
that have bought permits and have zeros on their permits. 46 
 47 
I agree with Philip and I think you can work it out and I agree 48 
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with Larry.  We’re talking seven or eight people and so however 1 
we decide to handle it, it is really not that significant. 2 
 3 
MR. MINTON:  I have heard and I don’t have any evidence to prove 4 

this, but that people did go and buy these permits with their 5 
eyes open and they knew that they were going to have zeros and 6 
subsequently, those permits sold for a lesser price than say a 7 
permit with a ten-year record.  We’ve got to be cautious in that 8 
we don’t reward people for that, if in fact that were the case, 9 
but I don’t know that, but people have talked to me about it. 10 
 11 
MS. MORRIS:  Someone who gave public testimony this morning 12 

reminded us to look at the table on page 191 of our document and 13 
this table shows the 136 Class 1 permit participants in the red 14 
snapper fishery and the numbers of years they’ve fished and how 15 
many of those years that they had zero catches. 16 
 17 
From the pattern on this table that extends over two pages, it 18 
seems like many of the Class 1 permit holders are going to have 19 
zeros in their ten-year consecutive period and it doesn’t seem 20 
that unfair for these seven or eight historical captain permit 21 
holders to also have some zeros in order to compose a ten-year 22 
record of landings. 23 
 24 
I’m comfortable with the way the document is currently 25 
structured in terms of how historical captains are treated and 26 
it doesn’t seem that much unfair when you look at the pattern of 27 
all of the permit holders in that table. 28 
 29 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m not going to rehash all of this and Philip 30 

and I disagreed through the whole discussion on this.  It’s my 31 
recollection and if you go back to the full Amendment 15 and 32 
some of the Federal Registers you can look and see what that 33 
qualification was. 34 
 35 
He gave you his opinion and so I’m going to give you my opinion, 36 
the best that I can remember and I still have the documents.  I 37 
would have to go back and pull them up and I’m sure Wayne has 38 
got them in the office somewhere in a file. 39 
 40 
It seemed like there was a control date in November of 1989.  41 
These historical captains were treated different from everybody 42 
that had an endorsement.  They were labeled historical captains 43 
because they were historically dependent on the fishery and they 44 
had been since forever and I even brought some fishing equipment 45 
and actually demonstrated them to the committee actually as to 46 
how long some of these histories went back. 47 
 48 



  86 

Anyway, these guys, what they had to do in order to qualify for 1 
this license, they had to prove that they were in the fishery 2 
prior to I think it was November something of 1989 and that they 3 
had red snapper landings prior to that and could show a landing 4 
trip ticket.  They did that. 5 
 6 
They had to prove, just like everyone else, that they had 5,000 7 
pounds in two of the last three years, whatever the 8 
qualification was back during the endorsement system.  They had 9 
to submit a letter that said that they was in charge of the boat 10 
totally, hiring and firing the crew, shares, they paid X 11 
percentage of the total that come off the top for using the 12 
boat, for the fish.  They had to go back and get the logbooks 13 
and see if their names was on the logbooks as being I guess the 14 
captain over the boat and supposedly in control of the fish. 15 
 16 
They got paid from the fish.  The crew was paid from the fish 17 
and all the expenses come off the top from the fish and so to 18 
say that there were no landings and there was nothing associated 19 
with these guys, that’s not true. 20 
 21 
Now, what they did do is they went back, NMFS, and they sent in 22 
their income tax records and they sent in all this information 23 
and NMFS looked at them and decided whether or not they 24 
qualified.  There were a lot of people turned down, but there 25 
were seven or eight that met all the criteria that the council 26 
had set up for them at the time. 27 
 28 
What NMFS then did is they looked at all the proof that was 29 
submitted with their application of what in their mind the 30 
agreement was between the owner and the captain on the spitting 31 
of the share of fish. 32 
 33 
Then they went in and they divided those fish up and they sent 34 
both the owner and the captain how much fish they would have 35 
qualified, but here’s where it starts to get sticky.  The ITQ 36 
was then stopped.  They were issued the license if they 37 
qualified for the license.  Both the owner and the captain got 38 
the license. 39 
 40 
They could both sell those licenses.  The captain could use his 41 
license, but he had to be on board in order to use his license, 42 
which meant the owner could then lease out his license or 43 
whatever he wanted to do with it or the captain could use his 44 
license, but he couldn’t lease it out, because as long as he was 45 
using it, he had to be on board. 46 
 47 
What he could do was he could sell it if he was getting out of 48 
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the fishery.  One gentleman actually got to where he wasn’t able 1 
to work and he’s the first one that I do know that his license 2 
was sold and they didn’t pay less for these licenses.  I think 3 
that the people that bought them probably thought that there was 4 
some landings associated with it, as much as anybody could be 5 
certain at the time, because, like I said, the program was 6 
stopped and people filed appeals and the appeals were never 7 
heard. 8 
 9 
It’s whatever NMFS decided at the time is what you were left 10 
with.  To me, yes, some people is going to get some zeros and do 11 
we need to let them pick certain years?  I don’t know what’s the 12 
best way to do it. 13 
 14 
I’m like Julie and I looked at the landings and there’s a lot of 15 
people that are going to end up with zeros and it depends on the 16 
years that they pick, but it is going to be a difficult 17 
situation with these seven and I just hate to see us stop this 18 
thing because of seven individuals.  It’s not going to amount to 19 
that much, but there were landings associated with it, in both 20 
of their minds. 21 
 22 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I see it a little differently than Julie.  I’ve 23 

looked at the table that she has referred us to on page 191 and 24 
192 and when you look at that first set there, the first five 25 
rows actually compose seven people, all whose license began in 26 
1998 and that was the first year and so I presume those are our 27 
historical captains. 28 
 29 
There are seven of those and I’m not sure how many others there 30 
are, but I think there’s about eighteen people in there, 31 
eighteen other, out of the total 136, if that what it comes to, 32 
that their ten consecutive years will have at least one year and 33 
sometimes two and even rarely three years that are open in 34 
there. 35 
 36 
These historical captains -- Somebody told me that they didn’t 37 
pay as much for -- I don’t know if that’s true or that’s not 38 
true.  I’m a little uncomfortable with making them subject to a 39 
standard that they couldn’t possibly have qualified for, for 40 
making them qualify for -- There’s no way they can have ten 41 
years of data. 42 
 43 
I would be comfortable with requiring them to qualify for seven 44 
out of seven, because the very first one, which is what Larry 45 
suggested, the first one would have two years that he would have 46 
zeros and the next one would have one year that he would have a 47 
zero and the next one would have one year, the next one would 48 
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have one year, and you have three that have landings in seven 1 
out of seven years. 2 
 3 
That would seem to me to be a little bit fairer and I don’t know 4 
if we’re at the point we need a motion or not or if you want to 5 
allow conversation to continue on this. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have considerable discussion to kind of 8 

flesh out the issues here and we do have some preferred 9 
alternatives in this section and I don’t know whether you’re 10 
entertaining a motion to entertain those.  I would say it’s an 11 
appropriate time, if you want to do that, so we can have some 12 
more discussion regarding a motion. 13 
 14 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I would offer a motion that under Action 5 that 15 
the motion would be to allow the Class 1 license holders who 16 
qualified as historical captains to select seven of seven years 17 
or seven consecutive years. 18 
 19 
MR. THOMASSIE:  Second. 20 

 21 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a motion on the board.  It’s been 22 

moved by Mr. Williams and seconded by Mr. Thomassie.  Is there 23 
any discussion regarding the motion?   24 
 25 
MR. HORN:  Just for information purposes, Roy, you all mentioned 26 

that you thought these licenses were sold for less and that’s 27 
not necessarily true.  I know of one in particular that brought 28 
a premium price and they were just as valuable and it’s just as 29 
good as how good a negotiator you were and that’s really what it 30 
was.  They were just as important as the others when they were 31 
sold. 32 
 33 
MR. FISCHER:  Also what I would like to remind the council is 34 

that some may have been sold for ITQ purposes, but when these 35 
were created and for the first few years after, this council was 36 
forbidden to even use the phrase “ITQ.” 37 
 38 
Congress forbid us to discuss it until I believe it was October 39 
of 2000 and I might have the date incorrect and so at the early 40 
stages, ITQs weren’t even in the planning stage and so to say 41 
you bought a permit knowing what your ITQ -- No one knew we 42 
would be selecting ten out of ten or ten out of twelve years at 43 
that time. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  If we make a change like this, could I get 46 

some opinion from either legal staff or Dr. Crabtree on whether 47 
this would be considered a substantive kind of change at this 48 
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point or how would we handle this? 1 
 2 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  My initial thought is to make it another 3 

suboption under your Preferred Alternative 2.  It’s just another 4 
one that you have selected and so you will have the preferred 5 
alternative and then you will have selected two suboptions.  We 6 
can work on it though and if we come up with something else, 7 
we’ll let you know. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other comments? 10 

 11 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Why couldn’t it be -- What we’ve got here is 12 

Suboption A, which is to allow Class 1 license holders, if 13 
eligible, to select five years, ten consecutive years, or all 14 
years.  Can it simply be then and IV to select seven consecutive 15 
years of data if they were historical captains? 16 
 17 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Roy, that’s what I was thinking.  I think 18 

you could put it there. 19 
 20 
MR. WILLIAMS:  The time period is going to be different though.  21 

We do have a different time period suboption too. 22 
 23 
MR. PERRET:  We’ve had a lot of people work on this and we’ve 24 

got members of our ad hoc group and perhaps it would be 25 
interesting to see if they want to comment on this proposed 26 
motion. 27 
 28 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Would the council entertain members of the 29 

ad hoc group, Mr. Waters or Ms. Baker or Mr. Werner?  There are 30 
others as well, but those are the ones -- Ms. Baker gave us the 31 
report from the ad hoc group and it might be good if she would 32 
come up first and give us a moment of her time of what she 33 
thinks about this as a suboption. 34 
 35 
MS. BAKER:  This kind of developed just today or over the past 36 

couple of days, but the group that we’ve been talking just 37 
informally back here with the Class 1 license holders that the 38 
alternative of using seven out of seven for that select group is 39 
probably okay. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any questions of Ms. Baker then?  Thank you, 42 

Ms. Baker.  I appreciate you clarifying what the thoughts of 43 
several of the people in the room are. 44 
 45 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I too think this would work, because if all the 46 

licenses have been sold by this time period and if they start in 47 
1999 through 2004, that’s going to capture pretty much when -- 48 
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The person that bought the license was probably actually 1 
involved and was using that license and so I think this is a 2 
very good compromise. 3 
 4 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I know the public speaker this morning suggested 5 

five out of seven, but if you go to five out of seven, then in 6 
fact all seven of these historical captains would be able to -- 7 
They would have no holes in their data.  There wouldn’t be any 8 
and that would make them even in a better position, I think, 9 
then the ones that have been in since day one and so I think 10 
seven out of seven is fair. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It sounds like everyone has had an 13 

opportunity to see the motion and make their comments regarding 14 
the motion. 15 
 16 
MR. HORN:  I assume this refers to whoever owns this particular 17 

historical license today, because obviously some of them we know 18 
have been sold and perhaps more than once and so are you going 19 
to allow -- Let’s say I bought a license last year that was a 20 
historical captain’s license and I’ve only fished it one year 21 
and am I going to be allowed seven years of landings following 22 
that license back in time?  I don’t know if this would cover 23 
that, but that’s the question I would have. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Williams, would you try to respond? 26 

 27 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Your question was if you bought it last year 28 

would you be given the full total of seven years and that would 29 
certainly be my intention.  As I look at it up there, I wonder 30 
if I couldn’t have worded it better by saying to allow licenses 31 
that were originally qualified as historical captains -- If 32 
anybody has any -- 33 
 34 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Dr. Crabtree has a suggestion, I believe. 35 

 36 
DR. CRABTREE:  The problem I see with it is that these aren’t 37 

going to be people who qualified as historical captains.  These 38 
are people who own licenses that were derived under the 39 
historical captain provisions back then. 40 
 41 
MR. WILLIAMS:  How about to allow licenses which were originally 42 

qualified as historical captains?  Does that work? 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Ms. Walker may have a suggestion to help. 45 

 46 
MS. WALKER:  Roy, what is we said to allow Class 1 historical 47 

captain license holders to be permitted to select seven 48 
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consecutive years and that would include the person that 1 
originally had it on down and that’s the license for the whole 2 
seven years of it. 3 
 4 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think Mr. Perret has -- I think you’re 5 

trying to alter the intent of the original motion, Bobbi, maybe 6 
intentionally or maybe not intentionally, but I think Mr. Perret 7 
is on Mr. Williams’s track here. 8 
 9 
MR. PERRET:  Let me see if I’ve got it.  To allow current Class 10 

1 license holders that were originally qualified by being 11 
historical captains be permitted for seven consecutive -- That’s 12 
not exactly right, but I think that’s where we’re trying to go. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Let me ask General Counsel whether she 15 

thinks at least through the discussion we’ve indicated what our 16 
meaning is enough that if the wording on this isn’t exact that 17 
we can clean it up after the fact. 18 
 19 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Yes, I do. 20 

 21 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  That is going to be added as a second 22 

preferred suboption under Preferred Alternative 2A, is that 23 
correct, if it is selected? 24 
 25 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Would you ask me that question again? 26 

 27 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s going to be a Suboption Number 4 under 28 

Preferred Alternative 2A, just for everybody’s clarification? 29 
 30 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Right and we’re going to have to tweak the 31 

language a little bit in the preferred alternative, something 32 
like on the second sentence: These data are available for the 33 
years 1990 through 2004 for Class 1 license holders and 1998 34 
through 2004 for Class 1 license holders that were originally 35 
derived based on the historical captain status or something like 36 
that and then a comma and for the years 1998 through 2004 for 37 
Class 2 license holders.  Then we can put a suboption and I 38 
think we can work it out, unless you all want to get the exact 39 
wording right now. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I would prefer we not edit by committee if 42 

we can here. 43 
 44 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Looking at the language there, if we added under 45 

A, which says allow Class 1 license holders to select and then 46 
you had an IV, you could say seven consecutive years if 47 
originally qualified, if license was originally qualified, as 48 
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historical captains license. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  That’s very close to what we have on the 3 

board, I believe, Roy.  With that, I’m going to go back to you, 4 
Ms. Walker, and I think you may actually have some discussion 5 
regarding the -- No?  Okay.  Does everyone have the intent of 6 
the motion?  Does anyone want further clarification?  If not, 7 
let’s vote on the motion. 8 
 9 
It says add another suboption under 2A to allow the current 10 
holder of a Class 1 historical captain license to select seven 11 
consecutive years.  It’s Roman numeral V.  All those in favor of 12 
the motion say aye; all those opposed same sign.  The motion 13 
passes with one in opposition and one abstention. 14 
 15 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I just want to make sure that I have the 16 

dates correct and I know they came into existence when the Class 17 
1 and Class 2s were done, which I think was 1998, and so you’re 18 
thinking seven consecutive years from 1998 through 2004 then, 19 
correct?  I see everyone nodding. 20 
 21 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  That is correct, yes.   22 

 23 
MR. MINTON:  You know there’s usually a good chance a motion 24 

will pass if everybody gets a chance to make it, yes. 25 
 26 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I just had a conversation with Philip and I would 27 

also like to abstain from that motion. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  There are now two abstentions to the motion, 30 

but the motion did pass. 31 
 32 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Just to make sure there is no conflict of 33 

interest. 34 
 35 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 4.6, Action 6: Establishment and 36 

Structure of an Appeals Process, Dr. Crabtree asked for a 37 
clarification on what would be eligible to be considered in an 38 
appeal. 39 
 40 
By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 41 
move, that in Section 4.6 to add at the end of Preferred 42 
Alternative 2: Landings from the 1990 through 1992 period are 43 
not subject to appeal.  Landings records appeals for 1993 to 44 
2004 will be based on NMFS logbooks. 45 
 46 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion and do we have 47 

any discussion? 48 
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 1 
MR. PERRET:  I have a question.  Vernon, what does the last 2 

sentence mean, based on NMFS logbooks?  That’s the only source 3 
of appeal data? 4 
 5 
MR. MINTON:  That was what was brought forth by Dr. Crabtree. 6 

 7 
MR. PERRET:  We’ve been hearing all about trip tickets and how 8 

good the data is and why would we want to leave data sources out 9 
that may be better information I guess is my question. 10 
 11 
DR. CRABTREE:  Because from day one in this program we made the 12 

decision we were going to base things on the logbooks and so if 13 
we start letting people come in and challenge the logbooks, 14 
we’re going to open Pandora’s Box. 15 
 16 
If somebody didn’t report accurately in their logbooks, they now 17 
will bear responsibility for that, I think.  I just think that’s 18 
what we decided early on and it would be hard to deviate from 19 
that now. 20 
 21 
MR. HORN:  Roy, just for a point of information, in order to 22 

have a federal permit renewed, all this goes through the logbook 23 
and they check and see if you submitted logbooks.  I don’t think 24 
in the last five years that I’ve ever had a permit renewed that 25 
I did not have to go back into my files, prior to the Hurricane 26 
Katrina, and get copies of the logbooks that I had filled out 27 
and send a copy where the folks in Miami that do this had either 28 
misplaced it, lost it, or just did not get it. 29 
 30 
If you go strictly by NMFS logbooks, is it going to be your word 31 
against theirs if John Doe says I submitted five logbooks during 32 
a particular month, but you’re only giving me credit for the 33 
first two and what about the other three I submitted and you say 34 
we don’t have them and he said he had them and Katrina got them 35 
and what are you going to do? 36 
 37 
I’m just saying if there is another validating process, I would 38 
think you would want to use them and at the risk of being 39 
critical of those folks in Miami, they do a poor job on a good 40 
day, because honestly, every renewal I’ve had to submit in five 41 
years I’ve had to go back and recopy my logbooks and make a copy 42 
out of the logbook. 43 
 44 
It’s not a problem doing it, but it’s just the fact that they 45 
don’t always have all the information.  If it’s a no fishing 46 
month, it’s no big deal, but if you submit one logbook in a 47 
month, you’ve covered for your permit, but you may have five 48 
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other submissions that they may or may not have. 1 
 2 
DR. CRABTREE:  As it’s set up now, they would have to come in 3 

and provide a copy of the logbook and if they provide us with a 4 
copy of a logbook and we don’t have it and it seems valid and 5 
all, I guess we would do that. 6 
 7 
Katrina and loss of -- That’s getting into hardship things, 8 
which the council at this point has said no hardships and so 9 
that’s kind of how it’s set up now.  If you want to open the 10 
door to trip tickets and all sorts of other records, then you’ve 11 
got to understand we’re probably looking at a long, drawn out 12 
appeals process. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I might just remind everyone that we did 15 

just vote and it’s basically through 2004 and so the records 16 
would have had some period of time after this to get straight 17 
with those offices. 18 
 19 
MR. HORN:  You don’t know that they do not have your logbook 20 

sheet that was submitted if you have submitted and if they got 21 
one of them for a particular month.  You’re required to send in 22 
a log sheet for every trip you take under the red snapper and 23 
you’re on a ten-day period or a nine-day period and you submit a 24 
logbook sheet for every trip and as long as you just get one of 25 
them in in a particular month, in terms of a permit renewal, 26 
they will pick up he submitted a logbook. 27 
 28 
You may have had three or four other submissions that they did 29 
not get or did not receive or whatever, but you have or as I did 30 
-- I had all my logbooks and unfortunately, I don’t have them 31 
anymore.  I would say here’s my logbooks and there’s the carbon 32 
copy where I sent it to you. 33 
 34 
If we’re not going to allow hardships, I’ve lost all my records 35 
and I can tell you that I would venture to say that the majority 36 
of the Class 1 red snapper fishermen lived in the Katrina/Rita 37 
area and possibly -- I don’t say anybody did, but I know I did, 38 
lost all the information that they had. 39 
 40 
Now, if they were in Louisiana or Florida or even some of the 41 
Mississippi places, the state may have a record of those 42 
landings.  If you’re not going to take my word for it, then I 43 
would love to have the opportunity to have -- It may have been 44 
my best month and to utilize my state agency that has a record 45 
of it and to utilize that information. 46 
 47 
I don’t think it would be that complicated and that long and 48 
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drawn out to do that, but I think you should allow individuals 1 
to have the opportunity to do that and I don’t consider that a 2 
hardship.  I consider that a fault of NMFS in Miami. 3 
 4 
MR. PERRET:  I was just going to say Mr. Horn brings up a point 5 

that he would hope that he could go to his state agency and I 6 
can tell you one state that lost everything and so while we have 7 
backup of some records, we’ve got records we’ll never be able to 8 
retrieve. 9 
 10 
Mr. Horn is calling this not a hardship and I guess I’ll call it 11 
not a hardship too, but I think in a situation like this, 12 
hopefully there won’t be many of them and this definitely there 13 
should be some consideration given if indeed those kind of 14 
records have been lost due to storms, because it has happened 15 
and it has happened to us as a state agency. 16 
 17 
MS. MORRIS:  Dr. Crabtree, when the committee talked about this, 18 

what I remember was that there was some point in the history of 19 
this where everybody got sort of certified and all the former 20 
disputes based on trip tickets were resolved. 21 
 22 
After having that discussion, we came to this language about it 23 
being based on logbooks, because all of the appeals had already 24 
been dealt with for the time before logbooks and so is this 25 
really -- I thought when we talked about it in committee, this 26 
was all settled and could you remind us of that discussion? 27 
 28 
DR. CRABTREE:  We talked about the 1990 through 1992 landings, 29 

which is on the period of time when logbooks were required only 30 
on 20 percent of the vessels, and those landings had been used 31 
to determine who qualified for the red snapper endorsements and 32 
presumably those appeals were done and resolved. 33 
 34 
We decided whatever landings are in the NMFS database from those 35 
years, that’s what they’re going to be and they’re not subject 36 
to appeal.  Now the discussions about the 1993 to 2004 period of 37 
time, which we said would be based on logbooks, and the only 38 
thing you could do would be bring in copies of logbooks. 39 
 40 
Now we’ve gotten into the hurricane issue and I’m honestly not 41 
sure how to deal with that one.  If someone has lost all his 42 
copies of his logbooks, I don’t know how we’re supposed to 43 
ferret that out.   44 
 45 
If you want to allow them to come in and submit trip tickets and 46 
all those kinds of things, then my fear is that a lot of people 47 
are going to go back and compare their logbooks to their trip 48 
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tickets and figure out which is the most and then come in with 1 
the high ones to try and move their landings up and I don’t know 2 
how we’ll be able to sort through all of that stuff. 3 
 4 
If you say take into account that they were hit by a hurricane, 5 
that is a hardship sort of thing and so if you want to allow 6 
hardships, that’s one thing, but so far the council’s view has 7 
been not to allow hardships.  That’s where it sits right now and 8 
I don’t have easy answers to that. 9 
 10 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I have just one quick question because a 11 

fisherman had a question.  When you tally all of this up and if 12 
the quota doesn’t come out to what the logbook says and let’s 13 
say it’s less from the logbooks, what are you going to do with 14 
the rest of those fish?  Are you going to divide them up equally 15 
amongst the participants, Roy? 16 
 17 
DR. CRABTREE:  I’m not sure I understand.  There will be a total 18 

pool of landings based upon everybody involved and the total 19 
logbook landings and all the individuals will get a percentage 20 
of that pool and so there can’t be any fish left over, I don’t 21 
think. 22 
 23 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you for putting that on the record. 24 

 25 
MS. FOOTE:  I have a question.  Mr. Horn indicated he has 26 

concerns with the NMFS database in Miami and my concern would be 27 
the ultimate disaster, if the NMFS logbooks were destroyed in 28 
Miami and Philip’s records are gone, then what do we do?  This 29 
doesn’t allow us any options. 30 
 31 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a motion on the board and that’s the 32 

committee motion.  Does anyone have a suggestion of an amendment 33 
to the committee motion? 34 
 35 
MS. FOOTE:  Is there a backup to the NMFS logbooks in Miami? 36 

 37 
DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t know.  We can call, but the logbooks have 38 

been entered into the computers and so all that data is entered 39 
and, Phil, do we know if they have the copies of all the paper 40 
logbooks? 41 
 42 
MR. STEELE:  I don’t know, but I can find out. 43 

 44 
DR. CRABTREE:  Phil can go call right now and check on that. 45 

 46 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think that’s more of a backup data issue 47 

and that’s not really -- It can be relevant to the motion on the 48 
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board, but at this point they haven’t been destroyed and so 1 
we’re kind of worrying about the worst case scenario that hasn’t 2 
happened. 3 
 4 
I think we need to determine what we want to allow and get that 5 
into the motion and if this is what we want to allow, then if we 6 
don’t have any other alternatives or suggestions, then I think 7 
we probably should vote this motion up or down. 8 
 9 
MR. WILLIAMS:  The only thing that comes to mind to me would be 10 

that at the end of that second sentence you put a provided 11 
however.  This isn’t a motion.  The landings records appeals for 12 
1993 to 2004 will be based on NMFS logbooks, provided however 13 
that records lost in the 2003/2004 hurricanes -- If that 14 
happened, you could rely on state trip ticket records and that 15 
still wouldn’t solve Phil’s problem, because Corky doesn’t have 16 
any. 17 
 18 
We would have them if somebody were affected by Ivan last year 19 
and we can generate those.  I don’t know if Robin can generate 20 
them in Texas or not, but we can come up with them.  If you 21 
allowed an appeal to the state trip ticket records, we’ve got 22 
those and we could give them, but only if they were sold in 23 
Florida. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Just to answer for Texas, we don’t have a 26 

trip ticket system in place.  It’s just beginning at the moment 27 
and so we would not have those records. 28 
 29 
DR. CRABTREE:  Bear in mind I’ll have no way of knowing whether 30 

somebody’s logbooks were really destroyed in the hurricane or 31 
not.  They’ll come in and say they were and okay and so how do I 32 
distinguish somebody who just doesn’t want to use his logbooks 33 
because he didn’t bother to fill them out right and he thinks 34 
he’ll get more out of the trip tickets?  I don’t know how I can 35 
verify that kind of thing. 36 
 37 
MR. SIMPSON:  I don’t know if this is a help or not, but 38 

Congress used it and why don’t we say to the extent practicable, 39 
based on NMFS logbooks to the extent practicable?  There could 40 
be some circumstances and that would allow some wiggle room and 41 
the word is “based” and not solely, but based.   42 
 43 
Maybe if you lean on that word “based” then you’ve got some 44 
discretion, but Karen’s scenario is more of a concern to me than 45 
Roy’s concern of I get more out of it this way than the other.  46 
There are some distinct possibilities that something like that 47 
might happen.  Philip’s situation could possibly have happened 48 
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years ago to someone and not in the last two years, Roy, and he 1 
didn’t know. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion and we’ve had 4 

considerable discussion. 5 
 6 
MR. MINTON:  I would like to ask Dr. Crabtree and I think Larry 7 

may have a good suggestion here.  This is putting you in a very 8 
tight box, in a sense, and also leaving you and the council and 9 
everybody else open to an awful lot of legitimate litigation 10 
because we didn’t consider that. 11 
 12 
I would offer what Larry has brought up, to add on as an 13 
amendment to the motion at the end past logbooks “to the extent 14 
practicable.” 15 
 16 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I hate that.  I hate it, because to the 17 

extent practicable is kind of in the eye of the beholder, to 18 
quote Phil a little bit earlier.  It’s really kind of getting 19 
into hardship and it’s really hard to say this is okay for this 20 
case and it’s not okay for this case when people come in with 21 
different scenarios that could be practicable to them and so 22 
that’s just real difficult to deal with. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you for the comment and it was my 25 

thought that we didn’t get a second. 26 
 27 
MR. HORN:  I’ll second it. 28 

 29 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Horn has seconded it. 30 

 31 
MR. HORN:  What comes to my mind is if an individual has worked 32 

all his life and in fact is caught up in something like this and 33 
I don’t know if it will affect me or not, I really don’t.  At 34 
this point in time, I really don’t care, but if an individual 35 
fisherman has done everything right, for the most part, and 36 
worked all his life and lost his records and then gets shafted 37 
on a substantial amount of fish and we say tough because we said 38 
we’re not going to do it for hardship cases and we’re sorry. 39 
 40 
Then we turn around and we sit here at this council and just 41 
like what happened with the recreational fishery on the red 42 
grouper and we’ve got folks at this table that said oh, my gosh, 43 
we can’t let those folks not have those fish and it doesn’t seem 44 
right to me. 45 
 46 
There’s no fairness in what goes on here so many times and in 47 
this case here, I don’t know and there may not be any.  I would 48 
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hope there weren’t, but if there are -- If it was a guy that 1 
just went out there and started last week, who cares, but if 2 
it’s somebody that spent their life doing it, then I’m going to 3 
tell you that it’s very, very important to that individual. 4 
 5 
We need to kind of -- If this helps one person that’s done all 6 
the things right and worked hard and tried to abide by all of 7 
these foolish laws that we’ve created, we ought to give them at 8 
least the opportunity to have what is his and so that’s all I 9 
have to say. 10 
 11 
MR. MINTON:  Mr. Chairman, could we ask Pam Baker to come back 12 

and see how the ad hoc feels about this, please?  They’re the 13 
ones that are going to suffer the consequences, or a lot of them 14 
anyway. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Ms. Baker, could you come back and speak for 17 

the group or someone from the group?  I will remind everyone in 18 
committee that this was discussed, but the issue came down to 19 
trying to verify logbooks that might have been underreported for 20 
some reason and people then coming in with records, either 21 
state-certified records, trip ticket type of records, or other 22 
records that would have higher poundage totals than those 23 
logbooks, which, like I said, may have been underreported for 24 
some reason. 25 
 26 
The reason we went to the motion was that those would have been 27 
dealing with inaccuracies in the actual accounting of those 28 
records and that’s what we were trying to leave that process 29 
open for.  It looks like Ms. Baker is still trying to confer to 30 
see if there’s any -- 31 
 32 
MS. WALKER:  Let me ask Monica a question, because I agree with 33 

Philip that if it’s one person that you help, it’s worth it.  If 34 
to the extent practicable is not appropriate, what would be, 35 
Monica? 36 
 37 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  If this is what the council decides, then 38 

I’m going to try to ask you a bunch of questions as to what you 39 
think is practicable and we’ll try to nail that down as best we 40 
can, because I think you really have to give -- I would feel 41 
better giving people some notice as to what might be practicable 42 
that you all think would work, because I’m not -- I would like 43 
to take the legal bright line and say don’t put that in there.  44 
However, we’ll see what the discussion leads to. 45 
 46 
MS. WALKER:  Let me just ask her one more question and what if 47 

we didn’t say to the extent practicable and we defined the 48 
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records that could be used and under what circumstances? 1 
 2 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  That’s where I would be going if you all 3 

left that in there or didn’t leave it in there, but you wanted 4 
other records besides NMFS logbooks and I would try to get you 5 
to decide what exactly it is that you would consider or for the 6 
appeals process. 7 
 8 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I’ve got a couple of people on the list, but 9 

I think Donnie is ready to speak on behalf of the ad hoc 10 
committee at this point, if he may. 11 
 12 
MR. WATERS:  I’m not going to put the symbol of the ad hoc 13 

committee on it, but I’m going to come up and give you my 14 
opinion.  I’ve had notices from the logbook people in Miami that 15 
I did not do logbooks or they did not receive my logbooks and I 16 
had to do logbooks to receive my permit the next year and I go 17 
back into my logbooks and find where I did do my logbook and did 18 
mail my logbook to them. 19 
 20 
I mailed my logbooks in and yes, I think it should be based on 21 
logbooks, but I sure would like to be able to take these state 22 
records or other records that I have to prove that I did send my 23 
logbooks in, because I agree with what Philip said.  I don’t 24 
think they’re perfect at the logbook place in Miami and so we’ve 25 
got to allow some way to prove it, because I know their records 26 
aren’t perfect. 27 
 28 
MR. WILLIAMS:  It occurs to me that if a person is going to 29 

dispute a thousands pounds of landings in a year or something, 30 
that’s probably not worth it, because over a ten-year time 31 
period that’s not such a big deal. 32 
 33 
However, where there are years where there are no logbook 34 
records, if indeed they loose an entire year’s logbook records, 35 
I would certainly be concerned about that and so I’m wondering 36 
about language such as it might say where no logbook records 37 
exist for a single year, the Regional Administrator is 38 
authorized to accept other records, such as state trip ticket 39 
records, signed income tax records, et cetera. 40 
 41 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Roy, if it didn’t exist for a year, that 42 

person would not be able to renew their permit, at least under 43 
the year period of time that the permit is valid and that’s 44 
usually issued on someone’s date of birth or the start of a 45 
corporation date or something like that. 46 
 47 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Maybe they lost them after they issued the 48 
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permit.  Donnie had to fill his out and so he got his permit and 1 
maybe they lost them again.  I don’t know, Monica.  I’m trying 2 
to help and trying to bring this to an end. 3 
 4 
MR. PERRET:  I apologize for bringing the issue up, but now I’ve 5 

got a little more concern and obviously there’s no one from the 6 
Center here currently.  Philip stated every time he sends in his 7 
application for his permit that he has had to duplicate records. 8 
 9 
Donnie has said the same thing and Wayne was shaking his head 10 
yes.  This should not be a problem if it’s the records through 11 
2004.  Certainly the Center should have 1993 through 2004 in 12 
their record base, but obviously we’ve got three people that 13 
have had problems with logbooks through the Center. 14 
 15 
We may have a bigger problem because of what is being handled 16 
there and the records should already be in.  My concern is, 17 
based on what I’ve heard from three individuals that have 18 
dealings with these people at the Center, that records are being 19 
lost. 20 
 21 
Now if it’s the Center that can’t find or has lost the records, 22 
one or more individual who has religiously done what they’re 23 
supposed to do and turned these records in should not be 24 
penalized and there should be some other source of information 25 
to be used and that was my point from the start. 26 
 27 
DR. CRABTREE:  Then you need to be specific that they can submit 28 

trip tickets, for example.  Income tax records, Roy, don’t have 29 
anything about landings on them and so I don’t know what other 30 
source of information, unless you want to allow people to bring 31 
in receipts, but you are creating a much more -- You’re opening 32 
a much broader range of appeals there. 33 
 34 
I would ask you not to just put to the extent practicable.  If 35 
you want us to consider other sources of information, then I 36 
think you need to be specific about what those are and then you 37 
also need to be prepared for me to make a substitute motion that 38 
asks for the special board of state directors to assist in 39 
appeals as well. 40 
 41 
MR. PERRET:  My point, Roy, is that if we’ve got a system in 42 

Miami that’s as bad as I’ve heard, we need to fix it.  We 43 
definitely need to get it fixed. 44 
 45 
MR. MINTON:  The problem I see, Roy, with just allowing the trip 46 

tickets is we only have one state in the Gulf which would have a 47 
complete history during this time period with trip tickets.  I 48 
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know Alabama came on line in 2001 or 2002 and Louisiana came on 1 
line about the same time.  It was 1998.  You’re still not going 2 
to be able to address a lot of the problems throughout the 3 
history of this 1993 to 2004 with just trip tickets. 4 
 5 
MR. HORN:  I think the statement of to the extent practicable 6 

allows the regional office to determine if -- Again, if I went 7 
in there and said hey, look, I should have had another 10,000 8 
pounds of fish on my record and I’ve lost everything I’ve got, 9 
you could document that I lost everything. 10 
 11 
If somebody from Venice, Empire, Buras, says they lost 12 
everything, it wouldn’t be hard to determine that they lost 13 
everything.  If they can produce something that’s legitimate, 14 
then use it.  If they can’t, then I guess there’s a point in 15 
time you have to say enough is enough. 16 
 17 
Again, if there’s somebody out there that’s legitimate, they 18 
need to have the opportunity.  Again, I’m not trying to bog down 19 
the system.  I just think that if we go through these motions 20 
and we do all these things -- I know it wasn’t all discussed at 21 
the committee meeting and I’m not on the Reef Fish Committee and 22 
I try not to get too involved in some of it because of the time 23 
frame. 24 
 25 
We’ve got committees that can’t get stuff done and if everybody 26 
sat there through them -- We don’t need committees and just let 27 
everybody go and do it that way, but this is a serious issue, 28 
because there are problems with getting information into the 29 
Miami office down there and I don’t know whose fault it is.  It 30 
might be the U.S. mail service, I don’t know. 31 
 32 
At least give these people an opportunity to the extent 33 
practicable and if I came through and said look, I should have 34 
had 25,000 more pounds and you say prove it and what are you 35 
going to use and if I call Mr. Perret over here and he says our 36 
stuff is gone and mine is gone and his is gone, then I exercised 37 
all my options and they’re gone and I just lose it, but I at 38 
least give the person an opportunity and that’s all I’m asking 39 
for.  With that, I would like to call the question. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I already had Monica on the list and so I’m 42 

going to accept hers and then we will vote the amendment up or 43 
down. 44 
 45 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Maybe this is more appropriate for after you 46 

vote, but, Mr. Horn, would you then say that receipts from the 47 
sale of fish could be used if the individual went to Mr. Perret 48 
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and there were no records there either? 1 
 2 
MR. HORN:  If I were to have sales receipts, I would have 3 

logbooks. 4 
 5 
DR. CRABTREE:  That’s what I’m getting at though.  Then you need 6 

to say sales receipts will not be considered because somebody is 7 
going to come in with sales receipts and they’re going to be 8 
sales receipts from 1994 or something and I’m not going to have 9 
any way of verifying that those sales actually ever took place. 10 
 11 
I don’t have staff to go run and track all that down and that’s 12 
why I’m telling you that if you want to do this, then specify 13 
that they can bring in trip tickets or something like that, but 14 
if you leave it this open ended, then you’re going to have a 15 
long, ongoing appeals process that’s going to be subject to all 16 
kinds of potential litigation and you may find that the 3 17 
percent set aside you did is not enough. 18 
 19 
We need to frame this in.  I understand the problem that we have 20 
and if we want to allow state trip tickets to be considered, 21 
okay, but we need to put some kind of bounds on what can be 22 
looked at and that’s really what I’m asking for here. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Then let me ask for a point of 25 

clarification.  Within the body of the discussion of rationale, 26 
it basically says the RA can resolve disputes involving the 27 
criteria for acceptance of eligibility and landings data. 28 
 29 
If we at some point after this point go in and create an appeals 30 
process that specifies specifically what things would be 31 
accepted -- Unfortunately, it’s going to be this lengthy debate 32 
again, I’m afraid, but would that help solve this issue, Monica? 33 
 34 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Yes, it would. 35 

 36 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  With that, do we have any more discussion?  37 

Actually, we had a call for the question.  Does anyone object to 38 
calling the question at this point?  Mr. Williams objects to 39 
calling the question and Ms. Walker objects to calling the 40 
question.  That then indicates we should vote on the calling of 41 
the question.  All those in favor of calling the question raise 42 
your hand; all those opposed.  The motion to call the question 43 
fails. 44 
 45 
MR. PERRET:  Let me try with a substitute amendment.  Landing 46 
record appeals for 1993 through 2004 will be based on NMFS 47 
logbooks or appropriate state landings data if NMFS logbooks are 48 
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unavailable. 1 
 2 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Second. 3 

 4 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Perret made an amendment to the motion 5 

and Mr. Williams seconded it. 6 
 7 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Corky, would you be okay with changing 1993 to 8 

1990, which is our preferred, because there were some people who 9 
was under the logbook system.  Yes, there was some. 10 
 11 
MR. PERRET:  The dates I went with is what was in the original 12 

motion.  If you’re more comfortable with that and the group 13 
feels that way, I certainly have no problem with changing the 14 
dates. 15 
 16 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Those were the dates, if I may, Mr. Chairman, 17 

that we just approved.  It says they could pick ten consecutive 18 
years from 1990 through 2004 and we were told that there were 19 
several individuals that were under the logbook system during 20 
those first three years. 21 
 22 
MR. FISCHER:  This is in opposition, because we decided that the 23 

first few years only 20 percent of the people were required to 24 
use logbooks and the other 80 percent weren’t required and 25 
that’s why we weren’t using logbooks to dispute these appeals in 26 
the first few years. 27 
 28 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Was I the seconder of that motion? 29 

 30 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, you were the seconder and I was going 31 

to ask you -- 32 
 33 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I don’t accept that change.  1993 is what Corky 34 

read and what I seconded and I stay with that. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  That leaves us back to the motion with 1993 37 

on it and that’s the second amendment on the board.  I think 38 
we’ve had a lot of discussion about this.   39 
 40 
MS. FOOTE:  Just so that the State of Louisiana doesn’t get 41 

submerged with late submissions of trip tickets, I would like to 42 
point out that this should be trip tickets that were submitted 43 
on time.  It happens.  Timely submitted state landings data or 44 
something like that and Roy might have something better. 45 
 46 
MR. PERRET:  Again, the dates are through 2004 and all of that 47 

data should have been submitted.  The logbooks should be into 48 
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Miami and this is just a backup if indeed something has been 1 
lost and the trip tickets or whatever appropriate state landing 2 
data through 2004 certainly should have already been submitted. 3 
 4 
I’m not giving any grace period of time and Karen has got a good 5 
point and we may start receiving all sorts of landings data 6 
information and no.  The data should already be into the state 7 
agencies as well as the Center. 8 
 9 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Ms. Foote brings up a good point, because 10 

they ran into this a little bit with the rock shrimp limited 11 
access system on the South Atlantic and what they did was try a 12 
-- I’ll read you what they had and then I think we can get 13 
something narrower from this. 14 
 15 
Landings of rock shrimp from the South Atlantic EEZ during the 16 
qualifying period are verified from landings data that were 17 
submitted on or before January 31, 2001, and are in state or 18 
federal database systems.  No additional landings data will be 19 
accepted. 20 
 21 
That’s the rule and the regulation and it doesn’t have to be 22 
specific like that, but my question is perhaps you want to put a 23 
date certain on when the 2004 data was taken and I will say that 24 
I learned from the State of Florida, and I’m sure this is 25 
through other state systems as well, that data is subject to 26 
being re-verified and sometimes people thought that the dealer 27 
or whomever was supposed to hand in the trip ticket, and I guess 28 
it’s the dealer, submitted that information and it turned out 29 
they didn’t submit that information. 30 
 31 
We get into a little bit of a can of worms here and so if you 32 
want to put a date ending on when the data for at least 2004, 33 
because that would be your last date, should have been in.  You 34 
would want a date certain for all the landings data you’re going 35 
to use from the states. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I believe Mr. Williams has a recommendation. 38 

 39 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I was just going to say that this is a problem 40 

that happened both in our spiny lobster trap certification 41 
program and stone crab.  People, when they see the dates, they 42 
start submitting records that they should have submitted and 43 
they might even have been legitimate, but they just didn’t 44 
bother to submit them. 45 
 46 
Karen is right.  We need a cutoff date and I would suggest 47 
yesterday, November 15th.  They have to have been received by 48 
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yesterday, November 15th. 1 
 2 
MR. PERRET:  I was going to go June 30th. 3 

 4 
MR. WILLIAMS:  That’s all right, too.  Would you prefer June 5 

30th?  All right.  Submitted on or before June 30th. 6 
 7 
MR. PERRET:  On or before June 30th, 2005.   8 

 9 
DR. CRABTREE:  What this says too is if we have logbooks and 10 

they come up for trip tickets for that same period of time, we 11 
don’t use those trip tickets.  We use the logbooks and it’s only 12 
if there’s a gap or a whole in the logbook that they can fill it 13 
in?  All right. 14 
 15 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Everybody is under that understanding, 16 

correct? 17 
 18 
MR. PERRET:  That is my understanding, but I’m still not certain 19 

if there’s a gap for someone from Mississippi and we’re not able 20 
to produce state records, then I don’t know what we do. 21 
 22 
MR. MINTON:  If there is that gap, Corky, caused by Hurricane 23 

Katrina, it was pointed out that a person can verify something 24 
and why not let them use the average of the previous nine years 25 
or something like that and would that, if it was pointed out 26 
from Katrina or Rita or Dennis or Ivan. 27 
 28 
DR. CRABTREE:  I am told that Phil called the Science Center and 29 

they do have the paper logbooks and all of them are stored 30 
offsite and they have them on microfiche, you said, Phil, or 31 
scanned? 32 
 33 
MR. STEELE:  For the past three years, they’ve taken digital 34 

images of these logbooks, but prior to that, all the earlier 35 
logbooks are stored offsite in a hurricane-proof building. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We’ve had plenty of discussion about both 38 

the motion and the amendment and let’s vote on the amendment.  39 
The motion is the landings records appeals for 1993 to 2004 will 40 
be based on NMFS logbooks.  If NMFS logbooks are not available, 41 
state landings that were submitted on or before June 30, 2005 42 
can be used. 43 
 44 
MR. FISCHER:  This is a substitute amendment, am I correct?  45 

 46 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  You’re correct.  It’s no longer an amendment 47 

and it’s just a substitute motion, yes. 48 
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 1 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Where do we stand then -- If this is a 2 

substitute, does it substitute for the committee motion, which 3 
included the words “landings from the 1990 through 1992 period 4 
are no subject to appeal?” 5 
 6 
MR. FISCHER:  I asked if it was a substitute amendment.  The 7 

chair said motion, but I was asking if it was a substitute 8 
amendment. 9 
 10 
MR. WILLIAMS:  We’ll eventually work our way back to that 1990 11 

through 1992 are not subject to appeal? 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, you are correct, Mr. Fischer.  Give me 14 
a little break here, okay guys.  All those in favor of the 15 
substitute amendment signify by saying aye; all those opposed 16 
same sign.  The substitute amendment passes. 17 
 18 

That should take us back to the amended motion.  Again, we’ve 19 
had plenty of discussion about this.  It’s Section 4.6 and it’s 20 
Preferred Alternative 2, the amended alternative.  Everybody has 21 
had a chance to read it. 22 
 23 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  This is a little bit different subject, but 24 

remember the other day we talked about having a 3 percent set 25 
aside for the appeals and there was discussion about whether 26 
that should be part of the alternatives or in the body of the 27 
document. 28 
 29 
When I discussed this with Mike McLemore at my office and told 30 
him that there was considered but rejected alternatives on set 31 
aside provisions for appeals, we felt that the 3 percent ought 32 
to be added to this alternative. 33 
 34 
I would ask some latitude from you all if we go back and have 35 
another robust discussion in our office about that and decide 36 
that it can be put in the body of the document instead of added 37 
to this, that you would allow that. 38 
 39 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think you are correct.  In the committee, 40 

we basically added it to the discussion and rationale.  It’s 41 
true that we haven’t approved to add that to the item yet and 42 
that will come up next and I think if we accept it, we will 43 
accept however you all choose to do that. 44 
 45 
If we can, let’s vote on Preferred Alternative 2 as it has been 46 
amended.  All those in favor say aye; all those opposed same 47 
sign.  The motion carries. 48 
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 1 
MR. MINTON:  Dr. Crabtree noted there was no provision to 2 

account for where additional IFQ shares for appeal awards would 3 
come from and he suggested a quota set aside.  By a unanimous 4 
voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so move, that in 5 
Section 4.6 the following administrative function be included 6 
within the discussion and rationale: A total of 3 percent of the 7 
current commercial quota will be initially set aside to be used 8 
to resolve disputes regarding eligibility until the appeals 9 
process is finalized.  Any amount remaining in the set aside 10 
after the appeals process has been terminated will be 11 
proportionately distributed back to the initial recipients as 12 
soon as possible that year. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s a committee motion.  Monica, I have a 15 

question.  Would it be your suggestion to go ahead and have that 16 
also as a preferred item and option under this section at this 17 
point? 18 
 19 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  At this point yes, but I would add it to 20 

your preferred alternative, if possible, to work it in, but I 21 
would hope that you would allow latitude that if it turns out 22 
that we decide in our office that it could be in the discussion 23 
and rationale that it could be moved in there and that decision 24 
will be made within the next couple of weeks.  Otherwise, leave 25 
it in the wording of the alternative. 26 
 27 
As I mentioned before, I didn’t realize until I went back 28 
through this, but you all discussed a set aside and decided 29 
against having it and so it seems that it should, I think, go 30 
back into the alternatives itself. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  The reason I ask is we could certainly amend 33 

the committee motion right now and make it a preferred 34 
alternative and have a second preferred alternative in this 35 
section. 36 
 37 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  That would be fine too. 38 

 39 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I would recommend we do that then, just go ahead 40 
and make that a Preferred Alternative 5 and do it that way.  41 

That would also allow us to get that silly semicolon out from 42 
behind eligibility and make the sentence read correctly. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Can we get a second to Mr. Williams’s 45 

motion? 46 
 47 
MS. MORRIS:  Second. 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Ms. Morris seconded the motion to make that 2 

a preferred alternative in Section 4.6.  It’s a second preferred 3 
alternative. 4 
 5 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Could we just make it Preferred Alternative 5 and 6 

then we would have Preferred Alternative 2 and Preferred 7 
Alternative 5? 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, I said a second preferred and it wasn’t 10 

Number 2, but yes.  The committee motion is on the board and is 11 
there any more discussion about the motion?  All those in favor 12 
of the motion say aye; all those opposed same sign.  The motion 13 
passes. 14 
 15 
MR. MINTON:  Under 4.7, Action 7: Transfer Eligibility 16 

Requirements, there were no changes to this section.  As it 17 
stands, the preferred alternative is Alternative 6: IFQ 18 
shares/allocations can be transferred only to 19 
individuals/vessels with a valid commercial reef fish permit 20 
during the first five years of the IFQ program and U.S. citizens 21 
and permanent resident aliens thereafter.  Eligible individuals 22 
must be persons who are U.S. citizens or permanent resident 23 
aliens. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  The preferred alternative stands as in the 26 

previous document and is there any discussion?  Hearing none, 27 
Mr. Minton. 28 
 29 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 4.8: Use-it-or-Lose-it-Provision, 30 

there were no changes to this section, which the current 31 
preferred alternative is Alternative 1: No Action, do not 32 
specify minimum landing requirement, use-it-or-lose-it 33 
provision, for retaining IFQ shares. 34 
 35 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Again, the preferred alternative stands as 36 

in the document and is there any discussion or any questions?   37 
 38 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 4.9, Action 9, there was a concern 39 

expressed that if the 2007 red snapper TAC could not be 40 
implemented by January 1, 2007, there may have to be an in-41 
season adjustment of TAC and resulting IFQ shares and this would 42 
result in having to take back shares, which could be a problem 43 
if a fisherman has already fished his quota. 44 
 45 
By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 46 
move, that for 2007, NMFS will issue 51 percent of 5 million 47 
pounds, which is 2.55 million pounds, of the initial quota.  Any 48 
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quota share balance resulting from a decision to specify a 1 
larger TAC would be distributed after the date that the new TAC 2 
becomes effective (i.e., thirty days after the final rule is 3 
published) but no later than July 1. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 6 

discussion? 7 
 8 
MR. ADAMS:  Just like the last one that we inserted, this would 9 
be 4.9, Action 9, a second Preferred Alternative 5? 10 

 11 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Are you moving to make that so, Mr. Adams?  12 

Do I hear a second to make that a second preferred alternative 13 
in that section? 14 
 15 
MS. MORRIS:  Second. 16 

 17 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Ms. Morris seconds.  Is there any other 18 

discussion about the substitute motion?  Again, just for 19 
clarification, this was the additional wording regarding this 20 
and we’re just moving it into an alternative status and making 21 
it a second preferred in the section. 22 
 23 
MS. MORRIS:  We’re going to scoping meetings to discuss a TAC 24 

for red snapper for next year and the range of the TAC that we 25 
will vote on later is from two to seven million pounds.  I guess 26 
I would suggest deleting from this motion “of 5 million pounds, 27 
which is 2.55 million pounds” so it just reads “51 percent of 28 
the initial quota.” 29 
 30 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Is the maker of the motion -- It’s a 31 

substitute motion at this point by Degraaf. 32 
 33 
MR. ADAMS:  The initial allocation would be on nine million 34 

pounds if we don’t change the TAC and so that would mean that 35 
the initial IFQ shares we would be issuing 51 percent of nine 36 
million and we’re trying to cut that down to five, I believe. 37 
 38 
What you’re saying is you don’t want to initially issue more 39 
than two million shares, if that’s the minimum, but that’s sort 40 
of what we’re trying to do also. 41 
 42 
MS. MORRIS:  What I’m saying is that this will have the same 43 

effect if we just say 51 percent and don’t specify the million 44 
pounds, which gives us the flexibility to figure out what we 45 
think TAC should be in the scoping and amendment that we’re 46 
developing in the coming year. 47 
 48 
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CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I see it the same way as Ms. Morris.  All 1 

this is doing is 51 percent just -- Then it’s irregardless of 2 
the size of the TAC. 3 
 4 
DR. CRABTREE:  Is the thought then when we take final action in 5 

March to submit to the Secretary we will then put a number in 6 
there? 7 
 8 
MS. MORRIS:  When are we going to know what our TAC for next 9 

year is? 10 
 11 
DR. CRABTREE:  Not until the final rule publishes in the Federal 12 

Register, at which time for TAC it would be effective.  If the 13 
council -- I don’t know how to get around that. 14 
 15 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Why can’t we just list 51 percent of what 16 

the TAC is at the time when we go to issuance?  Why couldn’t we 17 
do it that way, Roy? 18 
 19 
DR. CRABTREE:  Because we’re doing this based on the fact that 20 

when we issue the initial shares the TAC may not have been 21 
changed yet and so it would be 9.12 million pounds and if it’s 22 
already been changed, then this isn’t even an issue, because the 23 
new TAC is effective and we would issue all that they are due to 24 
get on the new TAC. 25 
 26 
Even if you’ve already made your -- Monica, could they put in -- 27 
See, I don’t think you’ll have even made your final decision on 28 
TAC by the time you submit it to the Secretary, but by the time 29 
this is implemented, the council may have already selected their 30 
preferred alternative and submitted it to the Secretary and 31 
could the TAC in here be based on what the council has 32 
recommended to the Secretary at that time? 33 
 34 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Probably, because right now what we have is 35 

51 percent of five million pounds, which is -- Your point the 36 
other day was your best guess perhaps and that’s not -- I 37 
shouldn’t use guess and I’m sorry, but that was your figure that 38 
you put in there. 39 
 40 
DR. CRABTREE:  Let me suggest this then.  Let’s say 51 percent 41 

of five million pounds or whatever TAC has been selected as the 42 
preferred alternative by the council and submitted to the 43 
Secretary.  Does that work?  That way if the council hasn’t done 44 
anything, five million pounds is a guess and we go that way. 45 
 46 
If you have selected one and submitted it, then we would take 47 
the 51 percent of that and work off of that when the rule goes 48 
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out. 1 
 2 
DR. SHIPP:  I’m confused then, because I thought the reason for 3 

doing this was that we anticipated a lower TAC, but if we have a 4 
lower TAC in place, why hold anything back?  Once we know what 5 
the TAC is, there’s no point in issuing 50 percent. 6 
 7 
DR. CRABTREE:  We won’t know what the TAC is until it’s approved 8 

by the Secretary and published and if it comes out that the TAC 9 
is four million pounds or three million pounds and we went with 10 
five, then we’ve issued too much and we would have to take some 11 
back, which we’re trying to avoid. 12 
 13 
Can I make one other comment?  I would recommend too we take the 14 
phrase of “i.e., thirty days after the final rule is published” 15 
and just say the date of publication of the final rule and 16 
eliminate the thirty days of cooling off and that gives us 17 
thirty more days to work on this. 18 
 19 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Would the maker of the motion and the 20 

seconder accept those as friendly amendments to the motion at 21 
this point?   22 
 23 
MR. ADAMS:  Yes. 24 

 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s the same thing as before, because it 26 

was just in discussion of rationale from the motion, I believe. 27 
 28 
DR. CRABTREE:  I have a little more doctoring here.  You took 29 

out the July 1 date, which wasn’t intended.  That belongs in 30 
there and then instead of saying after the date the new TAC 31 
becomes effective, say the date of publication of a final rule 32 
setting the new TAC and no later than July 1.  Wasn’t that what 33 
was in there? 34 
 35 
Let me suggest why don’t we take a five-minute quick break and 36 
let Monica look at this and let’s make sure we don’t mess this 37 
up, because if we mess something up here and go out to the 38 
referendum, there will be consequences.  Let’s make sure this is 39 
okay. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  That’s an excellent suggestion.  Let’s do 42 

that.  Let’s take a five-minute break and let’s get the wording 43 
right and then we’ll come back. 44 
 45 
(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 46 
 47 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  If we can, we’ll come back to order.  I 48 
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think we’ve got a reworded motion on the board.  It’s a 1 
substitute motion that Mr. Adams and Ms. Morris made and 2 
seconded.  3 
 4 
I’ll read it for clarification and for the record.  For Section 5 
4.9, add a Preferred Alternative 5, which reads: For 2007, issue 6 
51 percent of 5 million pounds, which is 2.55 million pounds, of 7 
the initial quota or 51 percent of whatever TAC has been 8 
selected as the preferred alternative by the council and 9 
submitted to the Secretary of Commerce.  Any quota share balance 10 
resulting from a decision to specify a larger TAC would be 11 
distributed after the date of publication of the final rule 12 
setting a new TAC, but no later than July 1, 2007. 13 
 14 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Is it understood, because there’s some concern by 15 

some of the fishermen, that a larger TAC would be distributed to 16 
the IFQ holder after the date of publication?  That is 17 
understood without that specifically saying that, is that 18 
correct? 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Without the document passing and being 21 

signed, there wouldn’t be an IFQ shareholder and so I think 22 
that’s consistent with the rest of the document and, Dr. 23 
Crabtree, would you like to respond? 24 
 25 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, that’s the intent.  If a larger TAC is set, 26 

then the additional poundage will be distributed.  If the rule 27 
setting TAC is published before we issue the shares, then we’ll 28 
issue all the TAC right then and there and so that’s the best 29 
thing here.  Let’s get this TAC stuff done as quickly as we can 30 
and have it resolved before we even get to this. 31 
 32 
MR. PERRET:  I should know the answer, but I don’t.  Roy, 33 

submitted to the Secretary, does the Secretary have to approve 34 
what we submit? 35 
 36 
DR. CRABTREE:  No, we will go with it based on just what you’ve 37 

submitted.  Then if the Secretary disapproves the TAC that 38 
you’ve submitted, I guess it would remain at 9.12 million pounds 39 
and we would release all the rest of that at that time. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other discussion regarding the motion on 42 
the board?  All those in favor of the motion say aye; all those 43 
opposed same sign.  The motion passes. 44 
 45 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 4.10, Action 10: Vessel Monitoring 46 

Systems, the committee members questioned whether the section 47 
was needed since there are VMS requirements in the recently 48 
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submitted 18A.  However, 18A has not been approved and committee 1 
members felt that this section was needed in case there were 2 
problems with approval of Amendment 18A provisions.  3 
 4 
By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 5 
move, that in Section 4.10 the preferred alternative be 2A: 6 
Require all fishing vessels engaged in harvesting red snapper in 7 
the IFQ program be equipped with VMS.  The purchase, 8 
installation, and maintenance of the VMS equipment must conform 9 
to the protocol established by the National Marine Fisheries 10 
Service in the Federal Register.  A)The purchase, installation, 11 
and maintenance of the VMS equipment and communication costs 12 
will be paid for or arranged by the owner of the IFQ shares. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 15 

discussion? 16 
 17 
MR. HORN:  Of course, I’m not a big fan of VMS anyway. It’s a 18 

whole lot like Big Brother watching you and communism and all 19 
those other things that goes against our freedoms and I think 20 
one of the individuals that spoke this morning made that 21 
comment, that if VMS should be required I feel like -- Of 22 
course, I think I’m just barking up an empty tree by myself. 23 
 24 
For somebody that’s a violator or a habitual violator or a 25 
serious violator, that’s one thing.  I think perhaps they’ve 26 
done that already, but to require it for everybody, to me, 27 
again, this fishery is changing and it’s changed a lot, the type 28 
of vessels being used and I’ve made that argument before and I 29 
won’t go through all that again. 30 
 31 
Again, I’m opposed to VMS and I know we’ve got it in another 32 
document.  As far as the cost and everything, if the government 33 
wants the fishermen to have them, they ought to be required to 34 
pay for it, the maintenance and the cost of the equipment and so 35 
I speak against this motion. 36 
 37 
MR. PERRET:  I don’t like to give any agency of government carte 38 

blanche on costs or type of equipment.  I’m sure there are VMS 39 
that range from A to Z and we’re going to require NMFS to 40 
establish a protocol and if there’s a VMS system that costs X 41 
number of dollars that may be satisfactory -- I just don’t want 42 
to see the Cadillac when a Volkswagen may get by. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further discussion?  45 

 46 
MR. DAUGHDRILL:  Phil, I would like to ask you a question.  When 47 

I was in Washington, D.C. a couple of weeks ago, I asked some of 48 
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the same questions, because I’m not really for this thing, but I 1 
tried to get answers on where it would help you or the fishermen 2 
and can you give me some -- It’s bound to help you some, to 3 
locate or keep up with your fleet or that type of thing. 4 
 5 
MR. HORN:  I don’t hunt my fishermen.  Some folks may.  I know 6 

where they are.  It goes along with what’s been going on lately.  7 
Just on top of everything else, I’ve got, right off the top of 8 
my head, I have four fishermen that lost everything they had, 9 
home included. 10 
 11 
They’ve got to tear their homes down and one of them may have 12 
been in a flood zone and three of them were not and have no 13 
flood insurance whatsoever.  In order to build their homes back, 14 
they’re going to have to get some kind of financing and they 15 
can’t afford that now and it’s just more and more things. 16 
 17 
These are small vessel types and one of them, I don’t know where 18 
they’ll put one on there.  It’s a skiff, for the most part.  19 
This fishery has changed a lot and to require them to do this is 20 
just beyond me, but I’ve lost boats before and so I’m used to 21 
it. 22 
 23 
DR. CRABTREE:  I just wanted to -- In response to Bill’s 24 

question, I have talked to several vessel owners who do have VMS 25 
on their vessels so that they can in fact track where they are 26 
and so there are some and I have talked to some others who have 27 
put them on and think they’re great things.  I guess it’s a 28 
mixed bag, depending on who you talk to in the industry. 29 
 30 
MS. BELL:  I was going to speak to Bill’s question.  We have two 31 

or three on our boats and it’s mainly because there are a few 32 
captains that we like to keep our eyes on and so I think the 33 
advantage isn’t really to the fishermen as much as it is to a 34 
fleet operator. 35 
 36 
I kind of have reservations about just putting it on everybody, 37 
because I think it does invade your privacy.  I like the idea of 38 
putting it on people who have a history of violations and things 39 
like that.  I think primarily it’s going to be a good tool for 40 
enforcement and it’s going to make their job a lot easier and so 41 
that’s the big advantage and not so much to the fishermen would 42 
be my answer. 43 
 44 
MR. MINTON:  Since we first started this years ago in the first 45 

round of the IFQs, one of the big concerns has always been 46 
making sure that we had control and reporting with it.  47 
Otherwise, we end up with kind of a bottomless barrel and I 48 
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think VMS has come to the floor to help us control that where we 1 
know where they’re at and it is an enforcement tool and I just 2 
frankly think we have to have it.  When we’re without it, I’m 3 
afraid we would end up with the fishery going down the tubes 4 
worse than it is now. 5 
 6 
MR. PERRET:  Wayne, the response letter this council sent to the 7 

two senators that requested priority items, I guess it was, for 8 
funding, I think we had VMS in that letter, but didn’t we also 9 
have that the VMS would be paid for by the government? 10 
 11 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Yes, we asked them to purchase 12 

enough VMS systems to cover the entire reef fish fishery and the 13 
entire shrimp fishery and by them having paid for the VMS 14 
systems that we will probably will impose on that and that would 15 
provide basically some cash to the people that are being 16 
affected by not having to incur that cost. 17 
 18 
MR. PERRET:  Mr. Minton, did your committee discuss that at all, 19 

that we had asked Congress for funding for required VMS in the 20 
reef fish fishery and if so -- Well, did you all discuss that at 21 
all? 22 
 23 
MR. MINTON:  It was discussed at some point, but I don’t think 24 

it was -- The problem we came down to is we didn’t want to leave 25 
it as an either or, a deal breaker. 26 
 27 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I’ve got Mr. Simpson next, but let’s all 28 

remember too that we have already submitted 18A and it’s passed 29 
out of the council.  We’ve had these discussions before and this 30 
is kind of a redundant discussion to those and I will obviously 31 
entertain it for some length of time, but like I said, we 32 
already have an amendment submitted that says we’re going to 33 
require VMS and this is just an in case it doesn’t go through. 34 
 35 
MR. SIMPSON:  In this particular case, while I’m sensitive to 36 

cost and who pays, practicality, et cetera, this is an IFQ and 37 
it is entirely appropriate, I think, that we have VMS on an IFQ-38 
type program. 39 
 40 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Chairman, what does that last sentence do, 41 

the one beginning with a)?  Isn’t that somehow different and 42 
shouldn’t that come out of there? 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s basically stating that Preferred 45 

Alternative 2 is the option and then that is the Suboption A 46 
that we’re choosing.  47 
 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  This may not mean anything, but in the note it 1 

says this action may be unnecessary if VMS requirements are 2 
adopted 18A.  The council has approved Amendment 18A to require 3 
VMS for all commercial reef fish vessels and it wasn’t just 4 
commercial reef fish vessels, but it was also for-hire vessels 5 
too and so I don’t know if we need to add that to this document 6 
or not. 7 
 8 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  I think, Ms. Williams, it was only 9 

for charter vessels that had a commercial vessel permit, not all 10 
the charter. 11 
 12 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Should that be in there or not, because of the 13 

200 pound thing?  They’re still commercial and that’s okay.  14 
Never mind, let it go. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  18A will be the document that’s looked at to 17 

determine who has them at that point.  We have a committee 18 
motion. 19 
 20 
MR. HORN:  I would like to make a substitute motion that we 21 
adopt under the Preferred Alternative 2 Item B on page 80 of the 22 
document.  The purchase, installation, and maintenance of VMS 23 
equipment and communication costs will be paid for by National 24 
Marine Fisheries Service. 25 

 26 
MR. PERRET:  I second that. 27 

 28 
MR. ADAMS:  Would that be a conflict between 18A provisions and 29 

-- Then you have two reef fish amendments with conflicting 30 
requirements. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, Mr. Adams, it would and that was 33 

discussed in the committee meeting and that’s why 2A was chosen. 34 
 35 
MR. HORN:  What if in our request to Congress they decided that 36 

they would do that for this fishery?  If that were to come 37 
about, then certainly I don’t think that anybody would oppose 38 
that. 39 
 40 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Dr. Crabtree responded to that in committee 41 

and we’ll let him try to do that again as well. 42 
 43 
DR. CRABTREE:  I would think if Congress appropriates money for 44 

this that we’ll reimburse anybody who has expended any money for 45 
it and do it. 46 
 47 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think we all know how we’re going to vote 48 
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on the substitute motion and the previous motion and so we will 1 
go ahead and vote on the substitute motion at this point.  All 2 
those people in favor of the substitute motion say aye; all 3 
those opposed same sign.  Let’s do a show of hands.  All those 4 
in favor of the substitute motion raise your hand; all those 5 
opposed to the substitute motion raise your hand.  The 6 
substitute motion fails. 7 
 8 
We’re back to the original committee motion.  All those in favor 9 
of the original committee motion raise your hand; all those 10 
opposed same sign.  The committee motion passes. 11 
 12 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 4.11, Action 11, there were no 13 

changes to 4.11 and this is kind of lengthy and do you want me 14 
to read it all?  No?  Okay.  Thank you. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  The preferred alternatives stand under the 17 

Cost Recovery Plan, Section 4.11, as in the previous document 18 
and is there any discussion regarding that? 19 
 20 
MS. WALKER:  Mr. Chairman, I’m not sure how to handle it, but 21 

apparently we have no cost analysis whatsoever in the document 22 
on what it’s -- We don’t even have any idea what it’s going to 23 
cost to implement or administer this program.  Before we get the 24 
final document, can we have some of that analysis added before 25 
we vote on it in final action in March? 26 
 27 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I’ll let Dr. Crabtree respond to that.  I 28 

think he can handle that and tell us what that time schedule is 29 
to have that. 30 
 31 
DR. CRABTREE:  We can do the best we can to come up with some 32 

sort of estimate, I guess. 33 
 34 
MS. WILLIAMS:  This is the cost recovery plan, right?  We’re 35 

making the dealer/processor responsible for collecting the money 36 
and not the individual fisherman taking care of it and I just 37 
want to make sure that every one at the table is aware of that. 38 
 39 
MR. WILLIAMS:  That’s a good point and would it be simpler to 40 

have -- I don’t know if NMFS has an opinion on this or not, but 41 
would it be simpler to just have the fishermen pay for it 42 
directly as opposed to having the wholesale dealer -- There will 43 
be certainly more wholesale dealers than there are Class 1 44 
endorsement holders, but I don’t know that there will be more -- 45 
You deny that, Phil, you don’t think so? 46 
 47 
MR. HORN:  You think there’s more dealers that’s going to buy 48 
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snapper than there are fishermen? 1 
 2 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I just think there’s more dealers in general, 3 

yes.  Florida’s wholesale dealer list is four-hundred-and-some 4 
people long.  We’ve got a lot of them. 5 
 6 
MR. HORN:  Are they all buying red snapper? 7 

 8 
MR. WILLIAMS:  No, of course not. 9 

 10 
MR. HORN:  I would venture to say it would be a very small 11 

percentage compared to the number of fishermen than it’s going 12 
to be. 13 
 14 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Then it would probably be simpler to have the 15 

dealers do it then, I think.  16 
 17 
MR. HORN:  I would certainly support having the fishermen do it, 18 

because I resent having to do their work for them.  This is 19 
their plan and there’s nothing about dealers in this plan.  It’s 20 
all for fishermen and you want to include the dealers because 21 
it’s convenient and the fact that you think they’re easier to 22 
find.  We simplify everything, but I resent having to do 23 
somebody else’s work for them.  I’ve got plenty of my own to do 24 
 25 
MR. MINTON:  Roy, I think that narrows it down when you go to 26 

the first point of sale.  I think that’s where you get your 27 
numbers down. 28 
 29 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to say I think it should be the 30 

fishermen and the reason why is -- I’m not an IRS person or 31 
anything, but I would think, one, you could put your monies, if 32 
you’re going to pay it in quarterly, you might get a little bit 33 
of interest off the money and two, it would help you keep better 34 
records of what you could take off as a business expense. 35 
 36 
It just seems like you’re bringing the dealer into your 37 
business, but maybe that’s necessary and that was just a thought 38 
that I had. 39 
 40 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion still. 41 

 42 
MR. HORN:  Just for the fun of it, I’ll make a substitute motion 43 
that we require all the fees to be collected and submitted in 44 
the same fashion as listed, but by the IFQ fisherman and not the 45 
dealer/processor. 46 
 47 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I’m trying to find -- That alternative is 48 
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there, but we just have to -- 1 
 2 
MR. HORN:  On page 84 we have our preferred alternative and just 3 

instead of the fees collected by a dealer/processor, it would be 4 
by an IFQ fisherman. 5 
 6 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s Alternative 2A is what you’re 7 

suggesting.   8 
 9 
MR. HORN:  It would be the same as the preferred alternative, 10 

but just delete “dealer/processor” and put “fisherman” in that 11 
particular spot.  I didn’t read all of Alternative 2, but I was 12 
just reading 3, if they’re the same, but at first point of sale. 13 
 14 
MR. MINTON:  There was a second wasn’t there, Mr. Chair? 15 

 16 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ll second. 17 

 18 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Horn moved and Ms. Williams seconded. 19 

 20 
MR. MINTON:  This would work, I think, if you also included that 21 

payment of these fees would be a condition of permit renewal.  22 
If they don’t get their shares, they don’t have a permit, I 23 
guess.  Roy, right now if we had this go into place and our 24 
fishermen did not pay that fee, what recourse would National 25 
Marine Fisheries Service have?  If you can do it 26 
administratively, I don’t want to do it here. 27 
 28 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I’m not familiar with IFQ programs in other 29 

areas and so I’m not quite sure.  I know right now if someone, 30 
for example, sends in a check that is no good for their fishery 31 
permit, they go in and revoke the permit unless they make good 32 
on the money.  I’ll have to look at that, Vernon, and see 33 
whether the same thing would hold true here or whether we would 34 
have to build it into the document in the discussion or 35 
something like that.  Let me take a look at it. 36 
 37 
MR. MINTON:  It would be simpler for me just to amend it right 38 

now and make it clearer.  I would like to amend the motion that 39 
after “fees” “payment of these fees shall be required prior to 40 
issuance of a new permit or prior to permit renewal.” 41 
 42 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Do you mean permit renewal or next year’s 43 

quota shares or -- 44 
 45 
DR. CRABTREE:  There really is no IFQ permit. 46 

 47 
MR. MINTON:  Issuance of quota shares is what I --  48 
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 1 
MR. ADAMS:  I’m just curious and I’m trying to work out the 2 

transfer of information.  Besides the collection of the fees, 3 
we’re also concerned about how many shares or pounds these 4 
shareholders are using and once they have reached their 5 
allocation, are the dealers responsible for collecting that data 6 
and sending it to NMFS? 7 
 8 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think we’re going to have to ask Dr. 9 

Crabtree or Mr. Steele on that.  I think they were having a 10 
different discussion and they may not have heard your question.  11 
Would you repeat it and Wayne then has something to add. 12 
 13 
MR. ADAMS:  Are we relying on the dealer/processor to report the 14 

pounds landed and how much they have left on their allocation or 15 
how many shares they have left?  Is that where that information 16 
comes from? 17 
 18 
MR. STEELE:  The way we envision this is that there will be a 19 

two-step process.  The fisherman will come to the fish house 20 
with his fish and sell the fish to the dealer.  This will all be 21 
done and reported electronically back to NOAA and back to law 22 
enforcement. 23 
 24 
At that time, there will also be a provision in the monitoring 25 
system we have that will calculate the amount of money owed 26 
based on that 3 percent of shares we’re going to get and this 27 
will all go into like a debit/credit.  It always been, as we’ve 28 
kept up through this whole system with dealer reporting and who 29 
is going to pay the cost of this and I think the council has 30 
always been under the idea that the fisherman is going to pay 31 
and the dealer is going to report and submit the 3 percent 32 
payment to the limited access funds in Washington and that’s how 33 
we’ll do it. 34 
 35 
MR. ADAMS:  It doesn’t matter to me who pays those fees, whether 36 

it’s the fishermen or the dealer, and I can understand Phil’s 37 
point that that’s not his job and it’s not his business and as a 38 
dealer, it’s not his IFQ program.  I would think though that 39 
there’s more of a financial risk that we may not collect these 40 
fees from a greater number of a fishermen than a more 41 
financially stable dealer. 42 
 43 
DR. CRABTREE:  I tend to agree with Mr. Adams.  I think the 44 

dealers are used to reporting and they’re set up to do this and 45 
they’re in fixed locations and my personal feeling is it will 46 
run smoother with fewer problems if the dealer pays the fee.  47 
From my perspective, I would rather stay with the current 48 
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preferred alternative than change it. 1 
 2 
MS. MORRIS:  I oppose this motion and think we should go with 3 

the preferred alternative that’s in the document and I just want 4 
to remind the council that the Ad Hoc Red Snapper Advisory Panel 5 
also supports the preferred alternative that’s in the document. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Is there any further discussion?  We’ve 8 

already had a lot of discussion on this through several 9 
meetings. 10 
 11 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I have just one quick question.  If we went with 12 

that and for some reason a dealer did not submit those fees, 13 
then that person is not going to have his shares or coupons or 14 
anything withheld from him just because maybe perhaps something 15 
happened with the dealer that he’s already paid the money to and 16 
I just hope that’s well understood. 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I’m not certain I understood your statement 19 

and by the look of Dr. Crabtree, I don’t know if he understood 20 
exactly what you were trying to say and would you try to repeat 21 
it, please? 22 
 23 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m a dealer and I collect the money that I’m 24 

supposed to send in quarterly to you and I don’t know if I’m a 25 
corporation or if I die or what’s going to happen, but those 26 
monies that I’ve collected from that person if for some reason 27 
doesn’t make it to you, the person who has already paid it to 28 
that dealer is not going to have any of his shares withheld 29 
because that dealer didn’t pay you quarterly, because he’s not 30 
going to know what that dealer did. 31 
 32 
DR. CRABTREE:  Remember that the dealer is going to have to have 33 

an IFQ dealers permit and that’s going to be subject to 34 
revocation or loss if he doesn’t pay the fees.  Everyone 35 
participating in this has responsibilities and permits and 36 
they’re going to have to fulfill their responsibilities to keep 37 
their permits. 38 
 39 
MR. HORN:  You can revoke the fisherman’s IFQs if he doesn’t pay 40 

it and so that’s just whose ox is being gored and I call the 41 
question. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think Donnie wanted to say something and 44 

please make it quick, Donnie. 45 
 46 
MR. WATERS:  I would like to pay all the money before I even get 47 

my ITQs and let the government do away with a whole bunch of 48 
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paperwork and just let me pay for it upon the issuance of the 1 
IFQs, one flat fee and mail you a check today and get it over 2 
with and done and put it underneath the table, if that was 3 
possible. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Unfortunately, that’s not any of the options 6 

available, other than the payment really is the substitute 7 
motion on the board and then that would be up to Mr. Waters and 8 
National Marine Fisheries Service as to how they chose to 9 
collect those monies that were prepaid and that’s what that 10 
would be, is a prepayment of your quota share payment.  With 11 
that, let’s go ahead and vote on the substitute motion.   12 
 13 
MR. MINTON:  I would like to withdraw that. 14 

 15 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Minton has withdrawn the amendment.  The 16 

substitute motion is to make the preferred motion Alternative 2 17 
with all the other suboptions that were previously included in 18 
Alternative 3.  Is that correct, Mr. Horn?  All those in favor 19 
signify by raising your hand; all those opposed same sign.  The 20 
substitute motion fails. 21 
 22 

We’re back to the original committee motion or it was not a 23 
committee motion, but it was previously in the document as the 24 
preferred alternative and so that will remain as the preferred 25 
alternative. 26 
 27 
MR. MINTON:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes our committee 28 

discussion on Amendment 26.  I asked Wayne if we need a council 29 
motion to send this to NMFS or send it somewhere or what do we 30 
do now? 31 
 32 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  I think we would have, other than 33 

we’ve been told that we can’t take final action on this until 34 
after the referendum and so I think the committee and council 35 
has done their duty as far as drafting this thing for the 36 
referendum, but that means at either our January or March 37 
meeting you’ll have to approve it. 38 
 39 
MS. WALKER:  Mr. Chairman, I’m still concerned about these 40 

fishermen who have no idea what their quota is going to be and 41 
we’re asking them to vote yes or no on a referendum when they 42 
have no idea -- One of them, we discussed it at a break and he 43 
said it’s like selling your house, but you don’t know what 44 
you’re going to get for it until it’s over with. 45 
 46 
I just feel like there is some way that these people can be told 47 
or given a range or something so that they will have some idea 48 
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what they’re going to get out of this IFQ system and I don’t 1 
care if it’s in a range, but if a license has been sold two or 2 
three times, I don’t see how that would be confidential. 3 
 4 
If they can just give them the percentage and they’re not giving 5 
away the poundage, would that be -- I just don’t think that 6 
everything has been exhausted in being able to tell them and I 7 
don’t know if I should make a motion for us to request that NMFS 8 
do that prior to the vote.  I really don’t know what to do about 9 
it, but I’m still very concerned about it. 10 
 11 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think Dr. Crabtree had asked for some 12 

guidance and I think he did indicate he could possibly send a 13 
range. 14 
 15 
DR. CRABTREE:  I’m going to send them as much information as I 16 

can get the Office of General Counsel to tell me I can send 17 
them.  If it’s a range, then we’ll give them a range.  If three 18 
people have owned the permit and I can aggregate those three 19 
people’s landings, then we’ll do that. 20 
 21 
I’m going to have to just get back and figure it out.  We’re 22 
also going to have to get back and pull the dataset together and 23 
we probably have weeks worth of work just to get all this 24 
together so that we have it, but my hope is we can get this 25 
thing out of the office, realistically in early January and get 26 
the referendum done. 27 
 28 
I’m going to give them as much information and I agree with you 29 
folks.  I wish I could give them all the landings, but my hands 30 
are tied on that and so I’m going to give them as much 31 
information as the lawyers will let me give them. 32 
 33 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I want to talk on something different, because I 34 

want to make a motion that we send this to the Regional 35 
Administrator.  This is a historic occasion and I would like to 36 
formalize it a little bit, when the time is right. 37 
 38 
MS. WILLIAMS:  That was my comment and I was going to ask Roy 39 

Crabtree and I don’t know why we couldn’t go ahead and vote on 40 
it and send it and they can hold it until after the referendum 41 
and that way they’re ready to go with it and then we’re not 42 
delaying until January or March. 43 
 44 
I know you’ve still got to go back and build your system and 45 
your program and how you’re going to do all this and that way 46 
you know that one of us isn’t going to come back and change our 47 
minds at the next meeting and change something in here.  That 48 
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could happen.  We’ve done it before and so I would like to go 1 
ahead and vote on it and send it up and let him hold it.  Things 2 
have been held up at the council office before after we voted on 3 
it. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I share your concerns about changing, Ms. 6 

Williams.  I think Monica is going to give us some advice here.  7 
I think we do kind of owe, as it goes out to referendum, the 8 
idea that we’re really not going to look to be making changes if 9 
it comes back to us approved, unless they were very minor in 10 
nature. 11 
 12 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  You can’t vote to submit it to the 13 

Secretary, because the DEIS has not gone out and you don’t have 14 
those comments back, but what you could do is vote to submit it 15 
to the Fisheries Service for the second referendum vote and so 16 
that would be my advice. 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  With that, I will recognize Mr. Williams. 19 

 20 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I would like to offer a motion to submit Reef 21 
Fish Amendment 26 to the Regional Administrator to in turn 22 
submit it to the Class 1 endorsement holders for their approval 23 
as specified in the Magnuson-Stevens Act. 24 
 25 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Dr. Shipp seconds the motion.  The motion is 26 
to submit Reef Fish Amendment 26 to the Regional Administrator 27 
to in turn submit it to the Class 1 license holders for approval 28 
as specified in the Magnuson-Stevens Fisheries Management Act. 29 
 30 
MR. HORN:  I would request a roll call vote, please. 31 

 32 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Horn has requested a roll call vote.  I 33 

don’t think we really need any discussion on this.  We’ve been 34 
discussing it all day.  Go ahead, Mr. Swingle. 35 
 36 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Fischer. 37 

 38 
MR. FISCHER:  Yes, I vote in order to submit this. 39 
 40 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Dr. Shipp. 41 

 42 
DR. SHIPP:  Yes. 43 
 44 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Foote. 45 

 46 
MS. FOOTE:  Yes. 47 
 48 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Daughdrill. 1 

 2 
MR. DAUGHDRILL:  Yes. 3 
 4 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Bell. 5 

 6 
MS. BELL:  Yes. 7 

 8 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Adams. 9 

 10 
MR. ADAMS:  Yes. 11 

 12 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Hendrix. 13 

 14 
MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 15 

 16 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Morris. 17 

 18 
MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 19 

 20 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Williams. 21 

 22 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 23 

 24 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Dr. Crabtree. 25 

 26 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 27 
 28 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Walker. 29 

 30 
MS. WALKER:  Yes. 31 

 32 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Horn. 33 

 34 
MR. HORN:  No. 35 

 36 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Thomassie. 37 

 38 
MR. THOMASSIE:  Yes. 39 

 40 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Perret. 41 

 42 
MR. PERRET:  Yes. 43 
 44 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Minton. 45 

 46 
MR. MINTON:  Yes. 47 

 48 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Williams. 1 

 2 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 3 

 4 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Riechers. 5 

 6 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes. 7 

 8 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  There was one in opposition and the 9 

rest were affirmative. 10 
 11 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Minton, I think we can continue with the 12 

committee report. 13 
 14 
MR. MINTON:  This will take us into the Recreational Grouper 15 

Regulatory Amendment.  Mr. Kennedy summarized the regulatory 16 
amendment and he noted the changes included an updated history 17 
of management, including spear fishing as a recreational allowed 18 
gear and the MRFSS data updates. 19 
 20 
Under Section 3.1, Action 1: Red Grouper Landings Limits, and 21 
this on page 14 of the document, by a vote of four to three, the 22 
committee recommends, and I so move, that Section 3.1 modify 23 
Preferred Alternative 5 as follows: The red grouper recreational 24 
bag limit within the aggregate grouper bag limit is reduced to 25 
one per person per day.  A closed season for red grouper only is 26 
established during February 15th through March 15th and this 27 
reduces the red grouper landings by 33 percent. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 30 

discussion? 31 
 32 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I would like to offer a substitute motion that is 33 
identical to the committee motion with the exception that the 34 
sentence about the closed season for red grouper only is 35 
established during February 15th to March 15th and the sentence 36 
that follows too about what percent it reduces it.  Not to split 37 
it, to take it out. 38 
 39 
My substitute motion is that the red grouper recreational bag 40 
limit within the aggregate grouper bag limit is reduced to one 41 
per person per day, period. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It was moved by Mr. Williams and seconded by 44 

Dr. Shipp.  Is there any discussion regarding the substitute 45 
motion? 46 
 47 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I thought Roy said also to put the percentage 48 
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reduction that is up there -- You said take it out?  That 1 
percentage reduction was what 30 percent?  It was 30 if we did 2 
that, I thought. 3 
 4 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Is there any discussion regarding the 5 

substitute motion? 6 
 7 
MS. MORRIS:  I speak in opposition to the substitute motion.  It 8 

falls at least five or six percentage points below the target 9 
that the document says we’re aiming for in terms of reducing the 10 
four-year average of recreational catch to stay within the 11 
bounds of the rebuilding plan. 12 
 13 
As we said earlier, if we continue to harvest beyond the TAC 14 
established in the rebuilding plan, we run the risk of 15 
undermining the success of the rebuilding plan and failing to 16 
meet our rebuilding goals within the time projected and we are 17 
already facing the consequences of that in not being able to 18 
increase our TAC as we had anticipated at this point in the 19 
rebuilding plan because of the over harvest of the allocation in 20 
previous years. 21 
 22 
We need to take an additional, in my opinion, 6 percent of the 23 
recreational harvest and we need to restrict the harvest by at 24 
least the 34.5 percent, which is the lowest of our range 25 
specified in the document, and this falls short and I speak in 26 
opposition to it. 27 
 28 
DR. CRABTREE:  I have some reservations about it, but personally 29 

I feel like to go forward with a one-month closure of only red 30 
grouper is not going to get us much of anything.  I think we 31 
would have better served to go forward with the one-month 32 
closure of the three species consistent with the commercial 33 
closure. 34 
 35 
We heard I don’t know how much testimony today that a 36 
substantial proportion of these fish that are released are dying 37 
and we’ve heard that consistently and so my fear is that if we 38 
just close red grouper for one month that we’re just going to 39 
have people out there throwing red grouper over the side and a 40 
great deal of them are going to die and we’re not going to get 41 
much benefit out of it. 42 
 43 
I guess from my perspective, if you were as a council not 44 
willing to go forward with the one-month closure of all three 45 
species, my preference would be then just don’t do a closure, 46 
because I think you’re walking away from a multispecies approach 47 
to this fishery, which I think is critical to the proper 48 
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management of it. 1 
 2 
I don’t know that I’m going to support this, but I think you are 3 
better off to just not have the one-month closure than to have 4 
it just apply to red grouper, because I just don’t think it’s 5 
going to accomplish very much at all and I don’t really think 6 
it’s worth all the issues that we’ve had. 7 
 8 
MR. HORN:  We just had a discussion about how important it was 9 

to know exactly how many fish are harvested by the commercial 10 
red snapper fishery under an IFQ to make it work and not only do 11 
we want to know how many fish they’re catching, but we want to 12 
know who is buying them, where they’re catching them, where 13 
they’re going, where they’re staying, where they’re tying up, 14 
where they’re fishing for the benefit of the snapper fishery, 15 
for conservation. 16 
 17 
Where is all this conservation down in Florida where we talk 18 
about we’re not going to do what the federal government says or 19 
what the information says and we don’t believe this and we’ve 20 
heard people from the audience tell us all day long that I don’t 21 
believe the information and so it sounds to me like we’re doing 22 
one thing for one group and another thing for another and I 23 
speak strongly in opposition. 24 
 25 
MR. MINTON:  I’m going to speak in favor of the motion.  26 

Remember the information that we’re using off of this is from 27 
the Marine Recreational Survey and that survey generates an 28 
estimate. 29 
 30 
The standard errors around those estimates is quite large at 31 
times and I don’t believe -- I know you cannot measure 32 
statistically the difference between 20 and 40 percent and let 33 
alone the difference between 30 and 33 percent. 34 
 35 
I’ll tell you something we can measure and that will be the 36 
economic impact that will occur from this closure.  We’ve heard  37 
testimony about that and what it’s going to do to the different 38 
areas and the charter people that supplies the recreational 39 
fishermen and the people that come down to benefit from these 40 
fisheries. 41 
 42 
We do have two new stock assessments coming up in the next year 43 
and we’ve implemented a reduction in this less than a year ago 44 
and give it time to take effect and I think we’re taking 45 
measures now to try to address some of these, but I really don’t 46 
believe we have to go this far at this time to try to assess 47 
this when, again, back to what I said originally, is that I 48 



  130 

don’t believe that any statistician or any person that 1 
understands that survey will tell you they can tell the 2 
difference between 30 and 33 percent anyway. 3 
 4 
DR. CRABTREE:  I’ll offer up a substitute motion, that the 5 
preferred alternative be the original Preferred Alternative 5, 6 
which sets the red grouper recreational bag limit within the 7 
aggregate as one per person and a closed season for red, gag, 8 
and black grouper during February 15th through March 15th. 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Do we have a second for Dr. Crabtree’s 11 

motion? 12 
 13 
MR. HENDRIX:  I’ll second it. 14 

 15 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Hendrix seconded the substitute motion. 16 

 17 
MR. ADAMS:  I’ll just point out, as NMFS counsel told us 18 

yesterday, gag and black grouper are not overfished and 19 
implementing this to avoid bycatch is an action that is not only 20 
not needed, but is not an action that we’ve taken in other 21 
species that are overfished but are subject to bycatch 22 
mortality, like red snapper. 23 
 24 
DR. CRABTREE:  To the contrary, it’s exactly what we’ve done in 25 

grouper management.  When the red grouper quota is caught in the 26 
commercial fishery, we close down the entire shallow-water 27 
grouper complex.   28 
 29 
We have taken a multispecies approach in this fishery and we 30 
have discussed on the record many times that we are exceeding 31 
the gag ABC and there are legitimate concerns about bycatch and 32 
effort shifting, which we as a council have a responsibility to 33 
address. 34 
 35 
MR. ADAMS:  I would like to remind you of that argument when we 36 

get to snapper bycatch mortality. 37 
 38 
MS. MORRIS:  I would like -- I need some process advice.  I 39 

would like to make a substitute motion for Alternative 7, but I 40 
don’t know whether we already have too many motions stacked up 41 
to do that at this time. 42 
 43 
It seems like we have three different options we’re trying to 44 
talk about at the same time here and I don’t know what the chair 45 
would advise in terms of the sequence of this. 46 
 47 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Basically you can have one main 48 
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motion and two subsidiary motions and the two substitute motions 1 
would have to be ahead of the main motion.  I view the main 2 
motion as the motion in this document here and if that’s the 3 
case, then you would have room for another substitute motion. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have two substitutes on the board now, as 6 

I understand it, Wayne.  We had Mr. Williams’s and now Dr. 7 
Crabtree’s and so we now have three.  We have a motion and two 8 
substitute motions.  There’s no room for it. 9 
 10 
MS. MORRIS:  Isn’t Dr. Crabtree’s motion the same as the 11 

preferred alternative in the document? 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s not the same as the motion that came to 14 

us out of committee, which was the first motion on the board. 15 
 16 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I speak against the substitute motion.  These 17 

closures are abhorrent for recreational fisheries and for a 18 
bunch of reasons and I’m more concerned, honestly, with the 19 
charter boats than the private boats, but the private boats 20 
don’t like them either. 21 
 22 
I’m willing to support closed seasons when they’re absolutely 23 
necessary, but we’ve got to work our way through other 24 
alternatives first.  This, we don’t have an assessment on gag 25 
grouper or black grouper and we don’t have good information to 26 
justify taking what is an action that’s going to have very 27 
severe economic impacts on the fisheries in Florida. 28 
 29 
Once we have assessments if that’s the only alternative we’ve 30 
got is closed seasons, we’ll do it.  We use them all the time in 31 
our state for other species, but we don’t use them as the first 32 
line of defense.  It’s much later in the process and so I speak 33 
against this motion. 34 
 35 
MR. PERRET:  Nobody likes closed seasons of any type.  Dr. 36 

Crabtree, I’ve supported this motion in the past.  However, at 37 
the last council meeting, we heard quite a bit of testimony 38 
about closing it to grouper and yet there are other types of 39 
fishing going on and I think grunts and some other things were 40 
mentioned. 41 
 42 
If people are going to continue to recreationally fish for other 43 
species during this closure and do we have any guesstimate of 44 
what the mortality would be on these species of grouper? 45 
 46 
DR. CRABTREE:  Specifically to your question, no, I don’t think 47 

we have any actual estimates of how much bycatch there would be 48 
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if we put this closure in place.  I think all you can reasonably 1 
say is there will be less bycatch if you close these three than 2 
if you close red alone, but there will be some bycatch under any 3 
scenario, because there will be people who will fish and will 4 
catch a grouper and have to release it. 5 
 6 
MS. WALKER:  I speak in opposition to the substitute motion for 7 

three reasons.  A significant percentage of the grouper fishery 8 
is prosecuted in the State of Florida and I feel like state 9 
waters and federal waters, if we have equivalent regulations, it 10 
will be of greater benefit to the resource, uniform enforcement, 11 
and better understanding of the regulations by the public. 12 
 13 
We get accused all the time of not giving regulations an 14 
opportunity to develop results before we change the rules.  15 
We’ve had a two-fish bag limit on red grouper in effect for 16 
about a year-and-a-half now.  That’s not long enough for it to 17 
get out in the public and I feel like dropping it to one red 18 
grouper -- We’re still going to be a couple of years probably 19 
before it catches up. 20 
 21 
I feel like we’re going to get more reduction off the captain 22 
and crew bag limit than the National Marine Fisheries Service is 23 
estimating right now. 24 
 25 
The reason I say that is I went through the minutes of our last 26 
meeting and there was a Captain Maxie Foster that testified 27 
before us and he told us that 100 percent of the time he caught 28 
captain and crew bag limits from June through August.  There was 29 
someone there from FGA, Captain Sapp, that spoke on behalf of 30 
their captains and he said he was also aware that they caught 31 
captain and crew bag limits.  I think the reduction from captain 32 
and crew is going to be more significant than what we’ve 33 
estimated. 34 
 35 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m going to support the substitute motion.  I’m 36 

thinking of the weather February 15th through March 15th and the 37 
other closures that we’ve had for the commercial industry and 38 
because of that and also I’m thinking back to other discussion. 39 
 40 
There are other things, if weather permits, that they can go out 41 
there and fish for.  I think the sustainability of the fishery 42 
is important and I understand people do not like closed seasons 43 
and I understand the economics. 44 
 45 
I’m sure there’s many commercial fishermen that are probably not 46 
going to have Thanksgiving or Christmas because we shut them 47 
down a million pounds short.  I think we have to do something.  48 
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We don’t like doing it and we’re using a different kind of 1 
rulemaking and so this is different from what we did before 2 
under the interim rule and so I’m going to support Dr. Crabtree 3 
in his trying to restore the resource. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further discussion?  I think we have 6 

talked about this for three meetings at least now.  With that, 7 
let me read the motion.  It’s going back to the original 8 
preferred alternative in the document at this time, Preferred 9 
Alternative 5.  Within the aggregate grouper bag limit, it’s 10 
reduced to one per person per day and the closed season for red, 11 
gag, and black grouper is established during February 15th 12 
through March 15th and it reduces red grouper landings by 33 13 
percent.  It’s been asked that we have a roll call vote. 14 
 15 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Dr. Shipp. 16 

 17 
DR. SHIPP:  No. 18 

 19 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Dr. Crabtree. 20 

 21 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 22 

 23 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Williams. 24 

 25 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 26 

 27 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Bell. 28 

 29 
MS. BELL:  Yes. 30 

 31 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Adams. 32 

 33 
MR. ADAMS:  No. 34 
 35 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Minton. 36 

 37 
MR. MINTON:  No. 38 

 39 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Horn. 40 

 41 
MR. HORN:  Yes. 42 

 43 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Fischer. 44 

 45 
MR. FISCHER:  No. 46 

 47 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Walker. 48 
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 1 
MS. WALKER:  No. 2 

 3 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Morris. 4 

 5 
MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 6 

 7 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Williams. 8 

 9 
MR. WILLIAMS:  No. 10 

 11 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Foote. 12 

 13 
MS. FOOTE:  Yes. 14 

 15 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Hendrix. 16 

 17 
MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 18 

 19 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Thomassie. 20 

 21 
MR. THOMASSIE:  Yes. 22 

 23 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Daughdrill. 24 

 25 
MR. DAUGHDRILL:  No. 26 

 27 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Perret. 28 

 29 
MR. PERRET:  Yes. 30 

 31 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Riechers. 32 

 33 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  The motion carries nine to seven.  That 34 

replaces the other motions on the board and it’s now back to Mr. 35 
Minton. 36 
 37 
MR. MINTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Section 3.2, Action 2: 38 

For Hire Captain and Crew Daily Bag Limit, on page 19, there was 39 
no change to the preferred alternative.   40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  No change to the preferred alternative and 42 

do I have any discussion or any changes?  With that, the 43 
preferred alternative will remain as it was in the previous 44 
document. 45 
 46 
MR. MINTON:  Under Section 3.3, Action 3: Aggregate Grouper 47 

Daily Bag Limit, there was no change to the preferred 48 
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alternative on page 20.   1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Again, the aggregate grouper bag limit there 3 

is Preferred Alternative 3, as in the previous document.  There 4 
was no change out of committee. 5 
 6 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I offer a substitute motion for Alternative 1, 7 
status quo, the grouper aggregate daily bag limit will be five 8 
fish. 9 

 10 
MR. MINTON:  Second. 11 

 12 
MR. WILLIAMS:  If I may, Mr. Chairman, having just approved that 13 

last motion, there’s even less reason to do this motion.  We’ve 14 
prohibited fishing for gag and black grouper for a full month 15 
now during the prime part of their fishing year and there is 16 
absolutely no reason for this motion now, for the original 17 
motion. 18 
 19 
MS. WALKER:  I wanted to ask Dr. Crabtree a question.  Willie 20 

had brought up something yesterday when we were talking about 21 
the commercial quota not being reached and I think there was 22 
like 1.5 million pounds of the gag and black that weren’t 23 
harvested this year and approximately 600,000 last year and 24 
400,000 pounds the year before and so we’re looking at two-and-25 
a-half million pounds, give or take some, that weren’t harvested 26 
by the commercial sector. 27 
 28 
Now if you take that into consideration, how far are we off or 29 
are we off of the rebuilding program for gag grouper to warrant 30 
a reduction? 31 
 32 
DR. CRABTREE:  First off, there is no rebuilding program for gag 33 

grouper, because they haven’t been determined to be overfished.  34 
What there is is a recommended catch level from the stock 35 
assessment panel that catches not exceed that.  We don’t have 36 
landings for 2005 yet, obviously, because the year is not over, 37 
but in 2004 the total gag landings were 6.8 million pounds.  38 
That’s partly because the recreational gag landings were up.   39 
 40 
The recreational gag landings, according to MRFSS, from 2003 41 
were around 2.8 million pounds and went up to 4 in 2004 and the 42 
headboat landings were right at 100,000 pounds in 2003 and went 43 
up to 165,000 in 2004. 44 
 45 
I have looked at the recreational MRFSS landings for the first 46 
three waves in 2005 and, as is the case with red grouper, they 47 
are down some from 2004, but they’re higher than they were in 48 
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2003. 1 
 2 
MR. ADAMS:  I support this motion to stay on the same bag limits 3 

as the State of Florida for enforceability.  I don’t think you 4 
can enforce a three aggregate with people coming into the docks 5 
in Florida if the state is a five-fish aggregate. 6 
 7 
Second of all, we’ve been told we’ll have the Wave 5 information 8 
in January and we will also have the stock status forthcoming 9 
shortly and so I don’t think there’s a need to move from five to 10 
three now until we see what that data tells us. 11 
 12 
MS. MORRIS:  I’m trying to follow up on Mr. Williams’s comment 13 

and it looks like the discussion on page 16 predicts that the 14 
one-month closure for all grouper species will reduce gag 15 
recreational landings by 8 percent and this reduction in bag 16 
limit is saying that it would reduce other grouper landings by 7 17 
percent and, Stu, do we know how much gag percent the aggregate 18 
drop to three will accomplish? 19 
 20 
MR. STU KENNEDY:  You’re asking of that 7 percent?  By far most 21 

of it.  It’s over six-point something percent, but I don’t have 22 
it on the top of my head. 23 
 24 
MS. MORRIS:  I guess I agree with Mr. Williams’s contention that 25 

the action we just took to close all shallow-water grouper 26 
recreational harvest in mid-February to mid-March accomplishes 27 
the same thing that this aggregate reduction would accomplish. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other discussion?  If not, we’ll vote on 30 
the substitute motion.  The substitute motion reverts back to 31 
Alternative 1, the status quo, making it the preferred 32 
alternative.  The grouper aggregate daily bag limit will be five 33 
fish.  All those in favor of the motion say aye; all those 34 
opposed same sign.  The motion carries. 35 
 36 
MR. MINTON:  That concludes the committee work on that and what 37 

do we do with this now?  We need to send it forward, Wayne, I 38 
guess. 39 
 40 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  My understanding was this one 41 

should be sent forward to the Secretary and that would take a 42 
roll call vote.  Are you ready? 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, Mr. Swingle.  This will be a roll call 45 

vote. 46 
 47 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  This is a roll call vote on 48 
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submitting this regulatory -- 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Do we need a motion? 3 

 4 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Yes, we need a motion. 5 

 6 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Vernon, would you make a motion please to 7 

that effect? 8 
 9 
MR. MINTON:  I’ll move that this be forwarded to the Secretary 10 
for implementation. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Do I have a second? 13 

 14 
MR. HENDRIX:  Second. 15 

 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Minton made the motion and Mr. Hendrix 17 

seconded the motion.  Go ahead, Mr. Swingle. 18 
 19 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Dr. Crabtree. 20 

 21 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 22 

 23 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Bell. 24 

 25 
MS. BELL:  Yes. 26 

 27 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Dr. Shipp. 28 

 29 
DR. SHIPP:  No. 30 

 31 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Morris. 32 

 33 
MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 34 

 35 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Horn. 36 

 37 
MR. HORN:  Yes. 38 

 39 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Adams. 40 

 41 
MR. ADAMS:  Yes. 42 

 43 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Williams. 44 

 45 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 46 

 47 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Fischer.  48 



  138 

 1 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  He’s out. 2 

 3 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Okay.  Mr. Thomassie. 4 

 5 
MR. THOMASSIE:  Yes. 6 

 7 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Hendrix. 8 

 9 
MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 10 

 11 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Williams. 12 

 13 
MR. WILLIAMS:  No. 14 
 15 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Perret. 16 

 17 
MR. PERRET:  Yes. 18 

 19 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Daughdrill. 20 

 21 
MR. DAUGHDRILL:  Yes. 22 

 23 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Foote. 24 

 25 
MS. FOOTE:  Yes. 26 

 27 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Minton. 28 

 29 
MR. MINTON:  No. 30 

 31 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Ms. Walker. 32 

 33 
MS. WALKER:  No. 34 

 35 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Mr. Riechers. 36 

 37 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  The motion passes eleven to four with one 38 
absence.   39 

 40 
MR. MINTON:  The committee also received a report and update on 41 

the longline buyout program.  Mr. Rick Marks, the advisor for 42 
SOFA, gave us that report.  Under Allocation of Grouper TACs, we 43 
actually responded to a request from the Florida Fish and 44 
Wildlife Commission about looking at the different allocation 45 
scenarios. 46 
 47 
By a vote of seven to zero, the committee recommends, and I so 48 
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move, that a new amendment be started to consider the allocation 1 
of grouper and to expedite that amendment. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion on the board.  Is 4 

there any discussion about the committee motion?  We will vote 5 
on the committee motion.  Everyone discussed it yesterday 6 
enough.  With that, all those in favor of the committee motion 7 
signify by saying aye; all those opposed same sign.  The 8 
committee motion passes. 9 
 10 
MR. MINTON:  Finally, Mr. Chairman, we had some testimony from 11 

fishermen concerning that the quota for the shallow-water 12 
groupers was not being caught up and we discussed that with Dr. 13 
Crabtree and we are going to try to have staff research whether 14 
or not we could possibly have some type of triggering mechanism 15 
to shut down the fishery when 80 or 90 or whatever percent comes 16 
forward.  There were no action items under that particular 17 
agenda item.  That concludes Reef Fish, Mr. Chairman. 18 
 19 
DR. CRABTREE:  One final issue.  Since we have voted in this 20 

regulatory amendment to continue the one fish bag limit on red 21 
grouper, I assume that the council is in concurrence with 22 
extending the one-fish bag limit provision and in the interim 23 
rule so that it remains in effect until the new regulations go 24 
into place. 25 
 26 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Is there any discussion regarding that?  It 27 

seems to make sense that we do that, based on the emergency rule 28 
and now the amendment we just sent forward.  Is that good enough 29 
for understanding, Dr. Crabtree?  Everyone is nodding their head 30 
yes. 31 
 32 
MR. WILLIAMS:  Under the Other Business and the reopening of the 33 

commercial gag fishery, if we wanted to help these guys next 34 
year -- I talked with Dr. Crabtree after the meeting closed the 35 
other day and he thought an action like this might simply be a 36 
regulatory amendment and that we wouldn’t have to do an EIS on 37 
it, because there is no environmental consequences of it.  38 
 39 
We’re not increasing harvest and so on and I don’t want to 40 
necessarily make a motion, but I would like staff to inquire of 41 
Steve Turner’s shop now as to I guess get a data request to look 42 
at the distribution of grouper species, catches, by longline 43 
versus hook and line and see if we can’t work our way quickly 44 
toward -- I suggested shutting down the longline fishery at 80 45 
percent and I’ve heard fishermen out here talking 5, 10, and 15. 46 
 47 
I don’t know what the right percent is, but if this is something 48 
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we could do via a regulatory amendment and help them by next 1 
year, I would like to do that. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think Mr. Minton, as chair of the Reef 4 

Fish Committee, basically concurs that they’re going to check in 5 
to see what our options are available to do that and would also 6 
get the appropriate data and staff would help get the 7 
appropriate data to look at that in a linear fashion through the 8 
years so that we know what those percentages might need to be. 9 
 10 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Dr. Crabtree, also in response to your remarks, 11 

the alternative that we just passed with the February 15th to 12 
March 15th closure, actually by the time you get this done, there 13 
will not be a February 15th to March 15th closure for next year, 14 
will there, because you won’t have time to implement it and is 15 
that right? 16 
 17 
DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t see any way we could do a proposed and 18 

final rule at this stage and have it in place by February 15th 19 
with the thirty-day waiver and so I think that it is very 20 
unlikely that it could happen next year. 21 
 22 
MS. WILLIAMS:  A follow-up question is will it happen the next 23 

year or will we still be waiting on the assessment?  I guess I’m 24 
trying to figure out that really this isn’t going to happen, is 25 
it? 26 
 27 
DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, it will be in the regulations and it will 28 

happen the following year.  Now if we get the gag assessment and 29 
we get the red grouper assessments and it indicates that we 30 
ought to change it, we would have to come in through a 31 
regulatory amendment and take it off the books, but unless the 32 
council takes it off the books, it will happen the following 33 
year, assuming it’s approved by the Secretary. 34 
 35 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  I just wanted to make sure that the 36 

industry does understand that even though we voted on it, 37 
they’re not faced with that this coming year, because it’s not 38 
going to happen. 39 
 40 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further comments?  Let’s take a ten-41 

minute break and we need to do a little agenda management here 42 
and we’ll take a ten-minute recess and then regroup. 43 
 44 
(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 45 
 46 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Could we come to order again, please?  Given 47 

the time of day and that we have closed sessions starting at 48 
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five o’clock, I think what we’re going to try to do is defer 1 
Joint Reef Fish and Shrimp Management until tomorrow and we will 2 
take up the committee reports starting on the back page, or 3 
under VI, starting with actually F first and we’ll run through 4 
those. 5 
 6 
There’s four of them and then we will take up the agenda 7 
starting with Reef Fish and Shrimp in the morning, because that 8 
one is going to take us a little bit longer, I believe.  The 9 
next committee report then -- Everyone has not been copied the 10 
Budget and Personnel Report yet and so we will defer that until 11 
tomorrow and the next committee report will be Sustainable 12 
Fisheries and Ecosystem and I will be reading the report. 13 
 14 
For the Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee, the agenda 15 
was adopted and a notation that Mike Jepson could not attend the 16 
meeting to give his ecosystem workshop presentation and the 17 
presentation was given by Steven Atran. 18 
 19 
The minutes of the August 9th and 10th, 2005, meeting were 20 
approved as written.  Steven Atran presented a PowerPoint 21 
provided by Mike Jepson on the results of the series of the 22 
facilitated ecosystem workshops that were held in July and 23 
August. 24 
 25 
Steven Atran summarized the October 27, 2005, Ecosystem SSC 26 
meeting.  He informed the committee that the SSC is creating a 27 
position statement in response to Hurricanes Katrina and Rita 28 
and that it is still being drafted. 29 
 30 
That statement basically is in response to a letter that the 31 
council has sent to Senator Cochrane and Senator Lott.  He noted 32 
that the SSC made the following recommendation to the council: 33 
The Ecosystem SSC recommends that it develop a set of questions 34 
that could be answered through an ecosystem modeling approach 35 
and that a scientific workshop be convened to examine existing 36 
models and select appropriate models for use in fishery 37 
ecosystem applications. 38 
 39 
There was a discussion about the best approach to take regarding 40 
this group and the collection of this information.  Columbus 41 
Brown felt that there were many organizations in the Gulf of 42 
Mexico that were addressing ecosystem issues, such as the Gulf 43 
of Mexico Program and the Gulf of Mexico Alliance, and that it 44 
would be useful to synthesize the information available from 45 
these organizations. 46 
 47 
He also felt that the recommendations for an ecosystem modeling 48 



  142 

workshop should be more specific about its purpose before 1 
engaging modelers.  Julie Morris felt that developing a fishery 2 
ecosystem plan is not part of the council’s statement of work 3 
and that there was plenty of work for the SSC to do in 4 
assembling available information and models and she felt that it 5 
was the council’s role to develop an FEP, not the SSC. 6 
 7 
I agreed that it was the committee’s sentiment that the SSC 8 
should slow down and concentrate on synthesizing available 9 
information and Mr. Adams also felt that the SSC should complete 10 
a list and databank of known information on the Gulf of Mexico 11 
and that concludes my report for the Sustainable 12 
Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee. 13 
 14 
MR. PERRET:  Just out of curiosity, I guess that was the first 15 

meeting of our Ecosystem SSC and did we have a good attendance?  16 
Were most members there? 17 
 18 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I’ll have to let Steve answer that, because 19 

I was with you in Washington, but that was actually the third 20 
meeting, just for clarification purposes. 21 
 22 
MR. PERRET:  What kind of attendance have we been getting of 23 

that committee? 24 
 25 
MR. ATRAN:  We’ve been going around and making sure that we 26 

schedule attendance when the majority of the committee members 27 
are available and so we’ve been getting good attendance at all 28 
three meetings.  This latest one, Carl Walters was unable to 29 
make it because of a prior commitment and Joe Powers and another 30 
person who had been invited to give a PowerPoint presentation 31 
were both unable to make it because the meeting occurred just 32 
days after Hurricane Wilma and they’re both based in Miami and 33 
had some problems getting out of there. 34 
 35 
One other committee member cancelled out at the last minute 36 
because of illness, but other than that we had a very good 37 
attendance, I would say 70 to 80 percent attendance.   38 
 39 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further discussion?  With that, we’ll 40 

move on to the next committee report, Law Enforcement. 41 
 42 
MS. WALKER:  The operations plan for 2006 was not ready and it 43 

will be presented to the council at our January meeting.  Dr. 44 
Leard reviewed some of the recommendations of the LEAP’s October 45 
2005 meeting and he noted that they wanted to have additional 46 
dialogue with the council outside of the normal LEAP meetings. 47 
 48 
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Following the discussion, the committee recommends, and I so 1 
move, to invite a member of the LEAP to attend the council 2 
meetings with the council paying the expense of that person.  If 3 

I might add a little discussion, the person from LEAP that will 4 
be attending the council meetings will be the representative 5 
from that state so that expenses -- We won’t be flying just one 6 
person all over the place. 7 
 8 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion. 9 

 10 
MR. MINTON:  Should we clarify -- What if the person from that 11 

state where the council meeting is being held can’t attend and 12 
are we then going to ask the next person in line from another 13 
state or -- I voted for this because I felt like it was going to 14 
be inexpensive, but I don’t really know that we have the 15 
additional funds to be bringing in people from all around. 16 
 17 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  I would say that on the Law 18 

Enforcement Advisory Panel they can have a designee at that 19 
meeting if they chose to and it would be more appropriate, say 20 
if Buckson couldn’t come in Florida, that he send his designee 21 
to the council or do you think it should roll over to another 22 
state? 23 
 24 
MR. MINTON:  I thought the reasoning for this was to get more 25 

interaction from the LEAP and the council and so if we’re 26 
designating someone, are they going to be able to report back to 27 
the LEAP?  That kind of makes it a little bit difficult. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Rick, can you help shed a little light here? 30 

 31 
DR. RICK LEARD:  I think our intention was to try to get the 32 

person from the state where the council is meeting.  I guess if 33 
it’s wasn’t too far apart, for instance if we were meeting in 34 
Alabama and the Alabama member couldn’t attend, we would 35 
probably try to get somebody from Mississippi so it would be a 36 
short drive to attend.  I would say maybe something like an 37 
adjacent state if the state member could not attend might be a 38 
compromise or just if they couldn’t attend for that meeting and 39 
we couldn’t get somebody from an adjacent state then we just 40 
wouldn’t fund travel for a person. 41 
 42 
MS. WALKER:  Rick, I wanted to ask you a question.  Is it just 43 

the state people that are wanting to participate?  I think Dave 44 
McKinney is on LEAP and he’s generally at all of our council 45 
meetings as a representative from them and is it just the states 46 
that now want to participate? 47 
 48 
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DR. LEARD:  Yes, I brought that up to them before, that 1 

typically we have the Coast Guard represented here, which are 2 
also on the LEAP, as well as Dave McKinney is almost always at 3 
the meetings, but they wanted to get kind of the state people 4 
into some sort of rotation so that they kind of have a 5 
familiarity with the council and what they’re doing. 6 
 7 
MS. FOOTE:  Didn’t we have a similar request from the SSC, that 8 

we fund one of their members to come to each meeting? 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have had that request in the past from 11 

the SSC and certainly something similar to that, yes.  Actually, 12 
I think Vernon mentioned the SEP may have also asked for that or 13 
may have been the group that asked. 14 
 15 
MR. HORN:  I think we need to be careful.  We’ve got a lot of 16 

groups that may want to ask for the same thing and we may be 17 
forced to pick and choose.  Like I say, we do have usually at 18 
least two participants and that is NMFS Enforcement and whether 19 
it’s Dave McKinney or someone else and the Coast Guard and so I 20 
don’t know what it is they want to do. 21 
 22 
Like you say, the SSC or the SEP, whoever it was, and maybe the 23 
advisory panels might want to have somebody here to have better 24 
interaction with the council and so I think we need to be 25 
careful of this. 26 
 27 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other discussion of the committee 28 

motion? 29 
 30 
MR. ADAMS:  Bobbi, on the motion, would it be helpful to say 31 

invite a member of the LEAP to attend council when items on the 32 
council’s agenda would benefit from LEAP’s input at the meeting?  33 
That way it’s not just an invitation where we’re paying for them 34 
to come to every meeting when we don’t even have something on 35 
the agenda that involves them. 36 
 37 
MS. WALKER:  At the meeting, I made note that the law 38 

enforcement committee doesn’t meet that often of the council, 39 
but they still indicated that they had an interest in wanting to 40 
come and see the process and, Vernon, do you have anything to 41 
add? 42 
 43 
MR. MINTON:  They have two meetings a year and typically in 44 

conjunction with the Gulf States Marine Fisheries Commission and 45 
they have a half-day with the Commission’s Enforcement Committee 46 
and half-day with LEAP and then they have two meetings outside 47 
of that, just themselves. 48 
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 1 
I think part of their problem is they get information overload 2 
and they may have one-half day and we ask them to comment on 3 
everything the council has done for the last six months and that 4 
can be very difficult. 5 
 6 
I think it would be beneficial there and we can get some cross 7 
fertilization by having it.  The second thing is even though we 8 
have Coast Guard and the National Marine Fisheries Service here, 9 
I think we could benefit from state enforcement personnel being 10 
here and I think they’ll help us with comments on impact within 11 
their particular realm on some of these measures. 12 
 13 
If you think about it, every meeting we have where we’re working 14 
on some amendment is going to have some enforcement issues 15 
associated with it. 16 
 17 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other comments?  Let’s vote on the 18 
committee motion.  All those in favor of the committee motion 19 
say aye; all those opposed same sign.  The committee motion 20 
failed. 21 
 22 
MS. WALKER:  Additionally, Dr. Leard explained that there were 23 

time constraints on the LEAP in trying to conduct necessary 24 
business during the limited meeting time in association with the 25 
Gulf States Marine Fisheries Commission meetings. 26 
 27 
The council has previously funded, at least in part, workshops 28 
in the winter and summer for additional LEAP deliberations.  29 
Following additional discussion, the committee recommends, and I 30 
so move, to continue to fund the two LEAP workgroup meetings per 31 
year for the next two years. 32 

 33 
Before someone asks me, let me add that we asked what the 34 
expense was and Cathy wasn’t able to tell us what it costs to 35 
have these meetings and maybe Larry can share with us if they 36 
contributed and maybe Larry has more information. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think Larry may be able to contribute and 39 

Cathy also had her hand up behind you and so we see if she has 40 
any answers and then we’ll go to Larry as well. 41 
 42 
MS. CATHY READINGER:  It’s between $2,000 and $3,000. 43 

 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Larry, do you have any additional 45 

information to help with that? 46 
 47 
MR. SIMPSON:  I think that’s total per year.  The meetings are 48 
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typically held at state facilities and they drive.  I have a 1 
staff person that goes over to help them keep a record of their 2 
information.  It’s well worth your money to have these folks 3 
coordinate and I would strongly support that you continue with 4 
this.  We also passed this at our meeting in October and are 5 
going to continue to fund them and it’s half funded. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you for that, Larry, and certainly we 8 

appreciate that.  Any other discussions regarding the committee 9 
motion?  All those in favor of the committee motion say aye; all 10 
those opposed same sign.  The committee motion passes. 11 
 12 
MS. WALKER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Major Bruce Buckson gave 13 

a wonderful presentation to the committee and that concludes my 14 
report. 15 
 16 
MS. FOOTE:  This is a procedural question.  Reading through the 17 

LEAP minutes, and I appreciated getting them, it talks about 18 
their working conference call monthly and is LEAP -- Do they 19 
have the same rules that the rest of the APs have?  They don’t? 20 
 21 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Rick, do you want to try to answer that, 22 

whether the LEAP Committee has to follow the same set of 23 
guidelines that our other advisory committees have to have? 24 
 25 
DR. LEARD:  Yes, the LEAP Committee meetings are Federal 26 

Register noticed and they have to meet basically all the same 27 
guidelines of all of our other advisory panels. 28 
 29 
MS. FOOTE:  I think their monthly conference calls are very 30 

helpful, but I don’t know if calling them a working conference 31 
call for the AP is what it really is and I just wanted to try to 32 
clarify that. 33 
 34 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  I was just going to ask Dr. Leard 35 

and my understanding is it’s probably a smaller group on the 36 
monthly conference call than the whole membership of the LEAP. 37 
 38 
DR. LEARD:  That’s correct and the monthly conference calls are 39 

paid for by Gulf States and they’re basically an LEC conference 40 
call.  They ask me to participate in those conference calls and 41 
I do call in whenever I’m available to do that.  That’s just for 42 
my information to keep up with what they’re doing, but it’s not 43 
a noticed meeting of ours. 44 
 45 
MS. FOOTE:  It’s just that the minutes of the LEAP say that LEAP 46 

has a working conference call monthly and so think they should 47 
correct their minutes or reflect what it really is. 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  You may be able to help get that wording 2 

correct in their future reports of their workgroup meetings or 3 
whatever they would be called.  Can you do that, Rick? 4 
 5 
DR. LEARD:  That’s correct, we can do that.  There is the next 6 

conference call in December is a Federal Register noticed and 7 
that’s the one that they’re going to approve the operations plan 8 
at. 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you for that clarification, Ms. Foote.  11 

With that, I believe we can move on, if there’s no other 12 
business under that report, and we can move on to the Report of 13 
the Joint Reef Fish/Mackerel/Red Drum Committee and I believe 14 
Mr. Adams is going to give us that report. 15 
 16 
MR. ADAMS:  I think Mr. Fischer was the chairman of that 17 

committee yesterday. 18 
 19 
MR. FISCHER:  He may have been, but he doesn’t have a copy of 20 

the reports. 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It would be Tab J if you’re looking for it. 23 

 24 
MR. FISCHER:  I was given a copy by Ms. Foote.  Are you all 25 

ready?  The committee was convened and this is the Joint Reef 26 
Fish/Mackerel/Red Drum Committee and the committee was convened 27 
with the following members in attendance and they’re listed. 28 
 29 
The committees reviewed Tab J, Number 3, which was a summary of 30 
the management alternatives recommended by the Aquaculture IPT 31 
that was more recent than the alternatives addressed at the 32 
October meeting. 33 
 34 
The committee recommended, and I so move, to let Mr. Swingle and 35 
the council staff go through the document and arrange it in a 36 
more appropriate organized format for the council’s review. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 39 
discussion about the committee motion?  All those in favor of 40 
the committee motion say aye; all opposed same sign.  The motion 41 
passes. 42 
 43 
MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report. 44 

 45 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Fischer, and thank you for 46 

your brevity.  Is there any other business to come under that 47 
committee report?  With that, that will actually move us down to 48 
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Number VIII, the Council Chairs Meeting.  You’ve all gotten it 1 
in your packet and I think it’s been passed out again.  2 
 3 
I’m not going to read the report to you.  Corky and I were there 4 
and Mr. Swingle.  The first day was predominantly taken up with 5 
discussions about Magnuson-Stevens reauthorization and the 6 
administration’s bill. 7 
 8 
Unfortunately, in the last five minutes of the first day, we 9 
were informed that even if we had changes, while they certainly 10 
would like to hear what we had to say about that, they probably 11 
couldn’t get it through the administration at this point in time 12 
to be germane to the conversation.  In some ways, that was a 13 
little disappointing, but we certainly understand some of those 14 
issues. 15 
 16 
The next day there was a report of the budget and that has since 17 
changed and I will defer to Mr. Swingle, because the numbers 18 
that we were talking about, they were in flux and I think some 19 
of that has solidified itself last week or maybe Ginny and I 20 
don’t know who is most appropriate to at least speak to the 21 
bottom line. 22 
 23 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  What happened is the Conference 24 

Committee went ahead and took a position on the budget for NOAA 25 
Fisheries, which included our line item for the eight regional 26 
management councils. 27 
 28 
At that Conference Committee, they came out with a mark of $15 29 
million for the eight councils, which when we had originally 30 
budgeted our little operations budget this previous council 31 
meeting, we had used a Senate mark of $16.5 million for the 32 
eight councils. 33 
 34 
What that does is it creates a deficit of over what we thought 35 
we would get, based on the original Senate mark and the House 36 
mark came in and they for the first time combined the councils’ 37 
budgets with the budgets for the three fishery commissions, 38 
Larry’s commission and the Pacific and the Atlantic commissions. 39 
 40 
There wasn’t any way really to interpret that level, but the 41 
major thing was the Conference Committee mark.  That made our 42 
budget come out about $1.9 million in arrears and so we did, in 43 
discussions up there, get some indication that Dr. Hogarth would 44 
probably be able to, as he did last year, to provide each of the 45 
regional councils some additional funding to help support their 46 
budget needs. 47 
 48 



  149 

These would possibly come out of the streamlining fund that was 1 
granted to NMFS and possibly from the NEPA fund, but that 2 
meeting to decide how much money he can grant to the councils 3 
will basically be held the latter part of January in Washington.  4 
We really won’t know until that time what sort of relief we 5 
might get from NOAA Fisheries in strengthening our budget. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  At the present, it appears as if we’re 8 

$194,000 down, with hopes of not being quite that far down, 9 
though I think the watch word was that this budget was not as 10 
good and we could even expect for the next 2007 budget to 11 
possibly be flat funded or worse. 12 
 13 
I think we obviously will be looking at ways to reduce our costs 14 
over the next couple of years as we plan meetings and other 15 
things and so you’ll probably see more of that discussion as we 16 
go forward.  With that, Corky certainly was at the meeting and 17 
also the meeting the next day on Magnuson-Stevens 18 
reauthorization and he’ll share with us some of his comments 19 
regarding all of that. 20 
 21 
MR. PERRET:  Mr. Daughdrill and I were both there for the 22 

hearing of the House Resources Committee.  All eight councils 23 
were there to testify.  Unfortunately, the Executive Director 24 
and the Chair of the Pacific Council got food poisoning or 25 
something and so they weren’t able to be there. 26 
 27 
There were two panels and I was on the first panel and the full 28 
committee is fifty-plus members.  Unfortunately, the most 29 
members there at any one time was five, but the chair, Chairman 30 
Pombo from California, was unable to be there other than for a 31 
few minutes he was able to come in and so the vice chair, and I 32 
can’t remember his name, chaired the meeting. 33 
 34 
Questions to the first panel following the four councils that 35 
testified -- Our neighbors from the South Atlantic didn’t pay 36 
attention to the green light, yellow light, red light, and took 37 
an unbelievable amount of time and the acting chair asked the 38 
rest of us to please stay within our five minutes. 39 
 40 
Wayne, the only advice I give you for when you prepare these 41 
statements in the future is make it in big, bold print because I 42 
had a heck of a time trying to read and so I just started 43 
talking off the top of my head. 44 
 45 
The questions that followed our testimony had to do with 46 
uncertainty in science and how do you handle the uncertainty in 47 
science and we all kind of mumbled as best we could dealing with 48 
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S&S committees and SEPs and that sort of thing. 1 
 2 
There were at least two and maybe a third congressmen that asked 3 
about -- For some reason, I guess whatever council or councils 4 
meet simultaneously with their S&S committees, there seemed to 5 
be some support for that and they asked the question about do 6 
you meet with the S&S and if not, why don’t you and my response 7 
was that we’ve done it occasionally, but not often, and I think 8 
we’ve done it a couple of times. 9 
 10 
A congressman from California questioned the fairness of the 11 
ITQ/IFQ system relative to an individual and/or corporation 12 
getting excessive shares in the fishery and how did the council 13 
handle it.   My response was we didn’t have a system in place 14 
yet, but that one of the things we had discussed was not 15 
allowing any one individual and/or corporation over a certain 16 
percent. 17 
 18 
One congressman talked about a saltwater recreational fishing 19 
license for the EEZ.  Another didn’t think it was such a great 20 
idea and I certainly sat silent on that.  Bill, can you think of 21 
anything else that came up? 22 
 23 
MR. DAUGHDRILL:  One thing is next time -- It’s good that Corky 24 

couldn’t read his, because he was quite entertaining just being 25 
able to talk and so that was good, but they did go into talking 26 
a little bit about infrastructure and the problems with docks 27 
and places for people to keep their boats and that seemed to be 28 
a real issue that came up. 29 
 30 
MR. PERRET:  Then they had to break.  They had to go to the 31 

House floor and then the second panel testified and when those 32 
three finished their testimony, the chairman asked if Mr. Perret 33 
was still there and if so, would he come up and so I got all the 34 
questions and it was hurricane related, like Bill said, and so 35 
on. 36 
 37 
Then the most interesting part of the whole thing to me was they 38 
asked me if I would stay late and talk with them one on one and 39 
that’s when we really got to the meat of things, all hurricane 40 
related.  They really have some very valid concerns about the 41 
damages that have been done. 42 
 43 
Many of those members have been down to the Gulf coast, 44 
Louisiana and Mississippi, and they have seen firsthand the 45 
destruction and they were just absolutely amazed that the damage 46 
is so extensive.  My conversations with them after that were all 47 
basically hurricane related.  It was disappointing to me and the 48 
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others that so few were there, unfortunately, but they had other 1 
things on the agenda. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I am remiss that Bill and Degraaf were there 4 

earlier in the week in their orientation session as well and if 5 
you all have any comments regarding those things you would like 6 
to just briefly share with us, it would be a good time right now 7 
as well. 8 
 9 
MR. ADAMS:  It’s not a comment on the new member training, but 10 

in the handout, in the middle of page 3 there’s a paragraph that 11 
there was a Ms. Onley that is an aide to the Director of the CEQ 12 
and she made a presentation the first day. 13 
 14 
Basically she was talking about NEPA and the environmental 15 
impact statements that have to go along with all the FMPs and 16 
the fact that the Office of CEQ was there to help all of the 17 
councils with anything we needed to comply with that and please 18 
feel free to call upon the CEQ whenever they could be of 19 
assistance to us. 20 
 21 
Corky and I both sort of had the same light bulb go off at the 22 
same time and I raised my hand and I told Ms. Onley as a matter 23 
of a fact the Gulf Council has a policy against open loop 24 
regasification of LNG plants and that is one of the 25 
responsibilities of the CEQ and how come we haven’t gotten any 26 
help from you on that or any response. 27 
 28 
She just didn’t have anything to say and so the Vice Admiral 29 
Lautenbacher jumped up and said maybe I’ll field that question 30 
and as a matter of a fact, we’re aware of your position, but 31 
we’re also aware of the administration having a preference 32 
towards LNG projects going on in the Gulf and so I don’t think 33 
the Gulf Council can expect any help from anybody. 34 
 35 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Degraaf.  Bill, do you have 36 

anything to add?  Okay.  With that, I think we’re going to go 37 
back and I don’t know if you all have a copy of it, but I 38 
believe -- I think Ms. Williams can go ahead and give it and 39 
she’s kind of indicated what she’s going to do with this report.  40 
I think you’ll have the report in your hand in a second, but I 41 
think she’ll go ahead and give her report. 42 
 43 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The Joint 44 

Budget/Personnel Committee met.  The minutes were not available 45 
at the present time for their approval and so we’ll have to do 46 
that at the next meeting. 47 
 48 
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There are still some unresolved issues on what FMLA allows the 1 
council to do.  NOAA General Counsel will have the answers for 2 
us at our January meeting so that the issues can be resolved.  3 
There was a motion to adopt the changes to the SOPPs.  It’s 4 
going to be on page 3 of the committee report. 5 
 6 
On behalf of the committee, I so move to adopt the change to the 7 
SOPPs language in Section E.9, Leave Without Pay, as indicated 8 
in red in Tab I, Number 4.  It’s printed out for you under Tab 9 

I, Number 4, and so I don’t think that you really need me to 10 
read it for you, where it discusses leave without pay.  We 11 
simply changed the “may” to “shall.”  We welcomed Monica Smit-12 
Brunello to the council and welcome aboard once again and, Mr. 13 
Chairman, that concludes my report. 14 
 15 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion on the board and 16 

anyone who doesn’t have it, take a moment to read it.  It’s I-4. 17 
 18 
MS. WALKER:  Mr. Chairman, can you just read what the change is? 19 

 20 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, I can.  Basically there’s a paragraph 21 

here that’s under the leave policy and it’s Number 9, Leave 22 
without Pay.  It says: As determined by the Executive Director, 23 
leave may be granted to employee for a period not to exceed 24 
sixty consecutive days.  If the employee requests leave under 25 
the FMLA in conjunction with any incidence of an advance of sick 26 
leave as prescribed here in the total amount of leave shall not 27 
exceed twelve weeks.   28 
 29 
The council’s practice of wholly assuming the cost of health, 30 
life, dental, and disability insurance premiums will not 31 
continue during the period of leave without pay in excess of 32 
thirty consecutive days, except in the case of leave approved 33 
under the FMLA.  However, the employee, and this was the change 34 
and it now reads “shall” and it used to read “may” and the 35 
employee shall pay the cost during the time beyond thirty days. 36 
 37 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I’ll confess I’m a little lost here, I 38 

guess.  Does this change -- I hate to ask this question.  Does 39 
this change anything that the council is legally bound by under 40 
the FMLA?  Then you’re going to ask me whether I know, because 41 
I’m the legal counsel, but I don’t know what the FMLA says and 42 
what it doesn’t say, because DOC General Counsel usually takes 43 
care of this. 44 
 45 
I agreed to try to help out with this and not that I have all 46 
the answers, but I do hope I have all the answers for you, 47 
because I understand this has been going around a bit of a loop. 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Cathy, can you share a little light whether 2 

this is still part of the FMLA discussion I think is the 3 
question or whether this is different in the SOPPs and under a 4 
different location and so forth?  It certainly mentions FMLA at 5 
least twice in that particular paragraph. 6 
 7 
MS. READINGER:  This is a totally different section in the 8 

SOPPs.  It’s only the section dealing with leave without pay and 9 
if you see the last sentence, it says “except in the case of 10 
leave approved under the FMLA leave.”  It’s not attached to 11 
anything with FMLA that we’re going to be doing. 12 
 13 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Okay. 14 

 15 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think it would be appropriate if we do 16 

find out that we’ve now touched something that we shouldn’t have 17 
touched and when we bring it back the next meeting, hopefully we 18 
will be able to clarify that section as well if we have done 19 
something we shouldn’t do at that point.  Does everybody 20 
understand where we’re at?  With that, we will vote on the 21 
committee motion.  All those in favor of the committee motion 22 
say aye; all those opposed same sign.  The committee motion 23 
passes. 24 
 25 
MS. WILLIAMS:  That concludes my report, Mr. Chairman. 26 

 27 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Ms. Williams. 28 

 29 
MS. FOOTE:  I thought I had something clear when I spoke to the 30 

committee, but I talked to my office and I found out that I was 31 
wrong and I would like to correct the record.  The Department of 32 
Wildlife and Fisheries pays their share of the premium for 33 
insurance while the person is on FMLA, regardless of whether 34 
it’s paid or unpaid. 35 
 36 
I don’t know if they do that because they’re required to or if 37 
it’s paperwork easier, because people can go on an off of FMLA 38 
and I believe it’s the second, but the situation I was thinking 39 
of was not an FMLA situation and so I was incorrect. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you for the correction, Ms. Foote.  42 

You didn’t really have to admit you made a mistake, but we 43 
appreciate it.  With that, that will conclude our open session 44 
today and it’s five o’clock and so we’re going to go into closed 45 
session for AP Selection after we can clear the room. 46 
 47 
(Whereupon, the council went into closed session.) 48 
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 1 
- - - 2 

 3 
November 17, 2005 4 

 5 
THURSDAY MORNING SESSION 6 

 7 
- - - 8 

 9 
The Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council reconvened in the 10 
Ambassador Room of the Ramada Plaza Beach Resort, Fort Walton 11 
Beach, Florida, Thursday morning, November 17, 2005, and was 12 
called to order at 8:30 o’clock a.m. by Chairman Robin Riechers. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Let’s come to order this morning.  We’re 15 

going to start out and we don’t have the SEDAR report finished 16 
yet, but we will go ahead and have the report from the closed 17 
session of the AP. 18 
 19 
MR. HORN:  The Advisory Panel Committee met and developed an Ad 20 

Hoc Red Grouper IFQ Advisory Panel after much debate and 21 
discussion.  The list is on the screen.  Those selected were:  22 
Pam Baker, Donald Leal, Dr. Ken Roberts, Doug Gregory, Dave 23 
McKinney, William Deadrick, Martin Fisher, Bob Spaeth, Tom 24 
Marvel, Ken Daniels, Jr., Ed Small, Glen Brooks, Ed Maccini, 25 
Eric Schmidt, Bill Tucker, James Clements, Donnie Waters, and 26 
Ms. Susan Steingress.  That was the list that was developed for 27 
the Ad Hoc Grouper IFQ. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Horn.  Next we’re going to 30 

move back in our agenda to Joint Reef Fish/Shrimp Management. 31 
 32 
MR. ADAMS:  I am remembering correctly or some of those people 33 

on the grouper IFQ list are acting as non-voting members and do 34 
we need to approve that in the minutes of the council. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  You’re correct that we didn’t identify them 37 

here as non-voting members, but can you -- 38 
 39 
MR. HORN:  Certainly.  It’s the first five listed.  It’s Ms. Pam 40 

Baker, Donald Leal, Dr. Ken Roberts, Mr. Doug Gregory, and Mr. 41 
Dave McKinney.  All the rest will be voting members. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Degraaf, for that clarification. 44 

 45 
MR. ADAMS:  Do we need a motion to approve that? 46 

 47 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  No, we don’t.  It’s just an announcement 48 
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that we have selected those in closed session.  That moves us 1 
back to Joint Reef Fish/Shrimp Management and we’ll come back to 2 
SEDAR when we can hand that out to everyone. 3 
 4 
MR. MINTON:  The agenda was adopted as written.  The minutes of 5 

the October meeting in St. Petersburg were approved with the 6 
deletion that Karen Foote was not in attendance.   7 
 8 
Dr. Leard explained that there had been numerous discussions 9 
with Dr. Crabtree and the staff since the last council meeting 10 
regarding the council’s intent to proceed with a regulatory 11 
amendment to change the BRD certification criteria, a regulatory 12 
amendment to set TAC for the red snapper fishery and an 13 
amendment to address bycatch in the directed red snapper 14 
fishery, bycatch in the shrimp fishery, and other actions 15 
previously included in Shrimp 14. 16 
 17 
He stated that their recommendation was to proceed with two 18 
amendments, one for the shrimp fishery and one for the red 19 
snapper fishery.  The first, for the shrimp fishery, would move 20 
the alternatives for a change in the bycatch reduction criterion 21 
for juvenile red snapper, Tab C, Number 3, to a scoping 22 
document, Tab C, Number 6, and to remove Action 1 from that 23 
document. 24 
 25 
The second would be to develop the actions under Tab C, Number 5 26 
into an amendment to the red snapper fishery.  The committee 27 
discussed the pros and cons of these changes in light of the 28 
previous action and with some objection accepted the 29 
recommendation.  I guess we would pause here for a moment and 30 
see if there are council changes. 31 
 32 
MS. MORRIS:  I’ve been discussing this with a number of council 33 

members and with Dr. Leard and I would like to propose an 34 
alternative, which would be to keep the joint amendment idea 35 
together and have two phases of amendments, an early amendment 36 
that would contain actions both for shrimp bycatch and red 37 
snapper and that would -- We would try to finish by January of 38 
2007 and then a later amendment that would contain all of the 39 
other red snapper and shrimp measures that might take more 40 
analysis and be more difficult to complete within that time 41 
frame.  I have a motion along those lines if you would accept 42 
that. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, we can entertain that motion. 45 

 46 
MS. MORRIS:  The motion is to develop two joint reef fish/shrimp 47 
amendments to address red snapper rebuilding actions.  The first 48 
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amendment would be expedited for completion by January of 2007 1 
and contain the following actions: shrimp BRD certification, 2 
modifications to bycatch reduction criteria for shrimp, red 3 
snapper TAC adjustments, red snapper size limits, red snapper 4 
recreational season dates, red snapper recreational bag limits, 5 
shrimp limits on trawling gear, and shrimp restrictions on 6 
transfer of vessel permits.   7 
 8 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Do we have a second for the motion?  Mr. 9 

Thomassie seconded the motion.  I have a point of clarification, 10 
Julie.  I heard it read out and I believe that’s all what is 11 
included in the first amendment and could we have some 12 
discussion of what would be left in the second amendment if we 13 
do that, either from you or whomever? 14 
 15 
MS. MORRIS:  The second amendment would include everything else 16 

that’s in our briefing book under Tab C, all of the other red 17 
snapper actions that are listed under Tab C-5 and C-6 both.  18 
Number 5 is the additional red snapper actions that include 19 
numbers of hooks, fathom restrictions, fishing season dates, and 20 
I can read you the list of everything else that would be in 21 
Phase 2. 22 
 23 
In Phase 2, it would be hook restrictions, the restrictions on 24 
using longline and spear commercial gear, limits on numbers of 25 
hooks, fathom restrictions, start and end dates for commercial, 26 
restrictions on the number of recreational days, set aside 27 
allocation for red snapper, additional closed seasons for red 28 
snapper, and additional closed areas for red snapper. 29 
 30 
On the shrimp side, Part 2 would be limiting the length and 31 
number of trips, shrimp closed seasons, shrimp closed areas, 32 
shrimp time of day closures, shrimp bycatch quota, all the 33 
shrimp bycatch quota stuff, latent permits, VMS, fractional 34 
permit limitations, and trip-based permit limitations. 35 
 36 
MR. PERRET:  Can we back up to the first part?  Julie, the 37 

January of 2007 and we want to expedite and that’s fine, but 38 
what happens if January of 2007 doesn’t work?  Are we getting 39 
ourselves in a box on a time specific?  My suggestion would be 40 
the first amendment would be for expedited completion and 41 
contain the following, rather than put a specific date in it. 42 
 43 
Then if those are the things we want expedited, it seems like 44 
the second part of the amendment should be something to the 45 
effect -- In other words, it would be more of a long-term 46 
section of the amendment, but I suggest we not go with a 47 
specific date there. 48 
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 1 
MS. MORRIS:  That’s acceptable to me and the seconder. 2 
 3 
MR. FISCHER:  Could we scroll back down to the bottom half?  My 4 

feeling is a lot of the issues in the second half pertain to 5 
what we’re going to do in the first half and I think they’re 6 
married together and I would like to see us keep it together for 7 
a while and as we possibly whittle out some of these 8 
alternatives, it will shrink it down. 9 
 10 
I understand it’s a big document right now, but when you go back 11 
and look at the top, a lot of the issues in the top half depends 12 
on what happens in the bottom half and vice versa. 13 
 14 
MR. HORN:  In light of how this council operates, that’s an 15 

extremely ambitious slate of items to pursue at any one time.  16 
You’ve got so many things that just don’t have a whole lot to do 17 
with one another and I understand that we would like to believe 18 
that shrimp has everything to do with red snapper, but shrimp 19 
doesn’t have everything to do with red snapper.  It’s a lot to 20 
do with shrimping and red snapper is an issue. 21 
 22 
To put shrimp limits on trawling gear and red snapper 23 
recreational season dates -- Amendment 18 of the reef fish plan 24 
was about six or eight years long because of just this same 25 
thing right here.  It kept adding and adding and then taking 26 
away and then we split it and did this and did that and if I’m 27 
not mistaken, it’s still not complete. 28 
 29 
This would be about ten or fifteen years worth of fighting over 30 
and if you want to do something, I would suggest you pick and 31 
choose a couple of things that you want to do to somebody and do 32 
it, but to try to get all of this, the economic analysis and all 33 
the other information and what size limits are going to do and 34 
bag limits and all of that stuff and there’s an awful lot of 35 
analysis that will have to be done. 36 
 37 
I can tell you this staff can’t get done what we’re asking them 38 
to do now.  To try to come up with this is just way beyond 39 
reality and I speak totally against this motion. 40 
 41 
DR. CRABTREE:  I’ll support the motion.  I think the concept of 42 

keeping them together is good and I think by paring it down like 43 
this we have something workable here, I hope.  My comment was 44 
going to be with the schedule for expediting it for completion 45 
in January, what we really need is implementation by January. 46 
 47 
We need to take final action on this document in the summer some 48 
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time to get it done.  Phil is right.  It’s ambitious and it’s a 1 
lot, but I think we’re going to have to really focus on it and 2 
make some decisions and do everything we can to get it done. 3 
 4 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I too will speak against the motion.  I agree 5 

with all of the comments that have been made by Mr. Fischer.  6 
There’s also some things to come up here at the last minute and 7 
start -- I don’t see anything about commercial season dates in 8 
there and to just sit here and start developing a list after all 9 
of this has been discussed, not only at this meeting, but at the 10 
last meeting, I just don’t support it and I want to keep them 11 
together. 12 
 13 
MS. WALKER:  My question is for Julie.  The TAC, or what the 14 

council decides is the appropriate TAC, is a lot based on what 15 
happens in the bycatch fishery and it’s kind of confusing for me 16 
to look at your motion and then I’m trying to look at C-6 on the 17 
amendment and figure out which options you’re leaving in. 18 
 19 
Action 6 for the latent permits, apparently that’s not left in 20 
and I guess I want you to explain to me how we’re going to be 21 
able to set a TAC when all we’re going to address is trawl gear 22 
and transfer of vessel permits and not latent permits or any of 23 
the other options. 24 
 25 
MS. MORRIS:  Dr. Leard argued that the data that we would need 26 

to accumulate to assess latent permits is in bad shape and could 27 
not be assembled and developed into a document on a short 28 
expedited time frame, which is why I did not include that on the 29 
list. 30 
 31 
He also indicated that he thought that he had good data already 32 
developed that he could borrow from other documents on shrimp 33 
closed seasons and shrimp closed areas, but Mr. Thomassie felt 34 
that those would be very controversial measures that would take 35 
a lot of discussion and public comment and would slow the 36 
document down as well and so that’s why I did not include those 37 
shrimp measures in this amendment. 38 
 39 
MS. WALKER:  Just about everything we do takes a lot of comment 40 

and there’s divisiveness in the decisions that are made, but I 41 
don’t think that’s a reason, Julie, for pulling out something 42 
that is going to be paramount in setting the TAC. 43 
 44 
I don’t mind splitting them up as long as we keep them together, 45 
but I want to make sure that in this amendment that we’re 46 
expediting that we have the tools in it to be able to set the 47 
TAC properly and I don’t think we do. 48 
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 1 
MR. THOMASSIE:  I just wanted to comment on some of those things 2 

also.  I think you do have the tools and I know it’s going to 3 
bog down and it’s going to slow up, because, for instance, when 4 
you start talking about area closures, you’ve got LNGs coming on 5 
line and you’ve got two-hundred-somewhat rigs toppled over out 6 
there and we don’t even know what our next established fishing 7 
grounds are going to be and so we’re going to start throwing 8 
closed areas up and that’s going to cause a lot of contention 9 
and a lot of trouble and how do you find all of this stuff out, 10 
where can you fish now? 11 
 12 
We’ve got a changing environment out there for those shrimpers.  13 
You’ve got a changing economic situation and you’ve got a hugely 14 
different impact that we are now than what were just two years 15 
ago. 16 
 17 
If you want to talk about as far as do we have the tools, we’ve 18 
had the discussion, and I’ve told this to many people, just 19 
looking at the list of permits out there and if you just 20 
restrict -- One of the tools was restricting transferability of 21 
permits and just on that alone you can prevent recapitalization 22 
of the fleet, because you’ve got so many small boats that have 23 
permits that will never see the EEZ. 24 
 25 
You’re going to bring that down to maybe 1,600 legitimate 26 
permits from 2,600.  You’ve got a lot of tools that are 27 
available without being overly punitive and move this document 28 
along, if you so wish. 29 
 30 
We can sit here and haggle and fight and scratch the whole time 31 
and slow everything down and see what happens, but I think all 32 
those issues are not going away.  I know they’re coming back and 33 
I know we’re going to try and put bycatch quotas, which we don’t 34 
have the data to it. 35 
 36 
We would have to get some kind of a proxy for it and then we 37 
would have to decide is this fair and then you’ve got a whole 38 
other argument over that, because you’re using another proxy and 39 
we just went through that with a big argument yesterday. 40 
 41 
I just think that you have some tools available to you and if we 42 
use them right, we can do it in a simple fashion without having 43 
to get overly complicated and again, we keep honing in on what 44 
are we going to do to the shrimp situation and just in the last 45 
two years you’ve reduced the fleet again by forty-somewhat 46 
percent. 47 
 48 
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I just think we’re having a -- We will drag this thing out if we 1 
keep everything in that amendment, because I know I have a 2 
problem with a lot of it and a lot of people will, because 3 
you’re going against a diminishing impact. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Dr. Leard, could you refresh us -- This is 6 

in the scoping document stage and could you help speak to us 7 
about that process so that we kind of get an idea of -- We can 8 
have a lot of discussion today about splitting this and I’m not 9 
certain it’s a decision that needs to be made today to make 10 
progress on either side of this argument, at this point in time, 11 
and could you share that with us a little bit about the timing, 12 
since you and Dr. Crabtree are the ones who kind of requested 13 
these things be split? 14 
 15 
DR. LEARD:  I think that in order to kind of meet the schedule 16 

of trying to get this done by January, we really need to have a 17 
good scoping to you at the January meeting and we need to go 18 
ahead and schedule those scoping meetings that the committee 19 
approved and we’ll only have one document now instead of two to 20 
review at those scoping meetings and we really need to get those 21 
done by the end of January or the first part of February so that 22 
then we can start really fleshing out the options. 23 
 24 
One thing that I mentioned before about not trying to tackle 25 
those issues of reducing effort, we’re going to have a hard 26 
enough time getting enough data to estimate what effort is now, 27 
which is intrinsically tied to what bycatch is, in order to give 28 
you TAC options that are realistic and so forth. 29 
 30 
That’s going to take quite a bit of work and that’s why I was 31 
saying that some of those other things, especially dealing with 32 
latent effort, reductions in effort, fractional permitting or 33 
fractional permits and all those other things, we really need to 34 
see where we’re at right now and what TAC would be in the near 35 
future before we move forward with saying perhaps we need to 36 
adjust that even further and reduce it.  I think time-wise we 37 
really need to get past the scoping period for the EIS by the 38 
end of January or the early part of February. 39 
 40 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  In terms of speed, is there any chance of 41 

moving those scoping meetings into December?  I know that’s a 42 
horrible month to move things to, but have you given any thought 43 
to that? 44 
 45 
DR. LEARD:  As indicated in the red snapper options in 46 

particular for TAC and some of the other things, we haven’t put 47 
much of anything in there in terms of the purpose and need and 48 
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anything for the public to really look at. 1 
 2 
Again, a lot of that is going to fall on some of Dr. Crabtree’s 3 
staff.  I’ll be the primary person, along with Dr. Diagne, to 4 
work on the economic parts of it, but he’ll have some staff 5 
there and so I’ll let him speak to that.  I guess it’s possible 6 
that we could have a document ready, but there’s no document 7 
right now for you to actually approve to go to scoping hearings 8 
and I think that’s the main problem. 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I’m confused and indulge me for a second.  11 

I’m confused then, because you came to us asking for approval of 12 
a document at the last meeting, we revised it at this meeting, 13 
considerably, but the thought as we were revising it was that it 14 
was the scoping document, Rick.  If I’m wrong with that 15 
conclusion, other council members please help out here. 16 
 17 
DR. LEARD:  Yes, but we’ve kind of added things and moved things 18 

around and changed it around and so if you want us to put any 19 
meat onto those alternatives other than just to take a slate of 20 
listed possible actions to the public and say what do you think 21 
about it, we can do that under scoping, but typically we try to 22 
have a little more information for people to comment on. 23 
 24 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Mr. Leard, I beg to differ, but that’s very 25 

different than what you said at the last meeting when you said 26 
basically it’s just a scoping document and why are we worried 27 
about fleshing some more of these things out, but with that, I 28 
apologize. 29 
 30 
MR. ADAMS:  First of all, I don’t want the council to think that 31 

is some sort of a comment purely from a recreational snapper 32 
point of view or an anti-shrimping point of view.  I think 33 
everybody on the council needs to just start talking about the 34 
situation that we are in in a broader scope. 35 
 36 
The situation we’re in is we’ve got litigation out there that is 37 
coming down very fast and this litigation is not about building 38 
red snapper by adjusting TACs or IFQs, et cetera, but it’s 39 
litigation addressing the issue of shrimp bycatch. 40 
 41 
I think so far we’ve told the courts in preliminary testimony 42 
that the council is working on shrimp bycatch issues and we’re 43 
coming forth with it.   44 
 45 
If we go with this motion and this is the fast track actions 46 
with others to follow at a later date, the only thing I’m seeing 47 
here is modifications to bycatch reduction criteria on BRDs and 48 
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we all know that BRDs alone will not solve the problem or get to 1 
the percentage reduction we need and neither will limits on 2 
trawling gear. 3 
 4 
Restrictions on transfer of vessel permits is not known 5 
information to tell us what that’s going to do in the future, 6 
because Dr. Leard is telling us now that we don’t have enough 7 
information to tell us what effort is currently and so I don’t 8 
think this is going to help us with the litigation that’s going 9 
to happen maybe before the next time we meet. 10 
 11 
Second of all, if there is an immediate need to address this 12 
quickly, like Roy Crabtree said earlier, we’ve issued interim 13 
rules to address bycatch of other grouper that may affect red 14 
grouper and we can issue interim rules to do things about shrimp 15 
bycatch and its effect on red snapper if we choose to. 16 
 17 
I don’t think this amendment or this motion is going to help us 18 
and we’re going to end up with the courts telling us how we’re 19 
going to do it and we’re not going to be able to make any 20 
decisions for ourselves. 21 
 22 
MR. PERRET:  First, I would compliment Ms. Morris for trying to 23 

get something I thought was a good idea and something that we 24 
could sort of combine those issues that we felt were most 25 
important and try to move it along, even though Mr. Horn doesn’t 26 
agree and, of course, he’s normally wrong on things. 27 
 28 
I apologize that I was not at the committee meeting, but anybody 29 
who does not think that shrimp effort has not been reduced 30 
simply has no eyes or they have not been along the Gulf coast in 31 
recent times.  Maybe the exception is Texas, because Texas has 32 
not been impacted as greatly as the other areas of the Gulf by 33 
these storms. 34 
 35 
I see Dr. Galloway has been here and I was handed a paper by Dr. 36 
Galloway dealing with bycatch issues and effort issues in the 37 
shrimp fishery and was this presented at the committee?  Okay.  38 
Anyway, Dr. Galloway’s work, and I understand this is NMFS data, 39 
just for information, and shrimp effort since 1998 has been 40 
reduced, and I’m rounding off, by some 60,000 or more days less 41 
of shrimping effort. 42 
 43 
Bycatch, millions of fish has been reduced, from about sixty 44 
million to nine million fish, and his conclusions is that effort 45 
reductions are already approaching the target reduction levels 46 
and no additional bycatch reduction measures are needed. 47 
 48 
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I assume in the whole scoping process this type of information 1 
will come out and we may indeed see that we may be right at 2 
where we need to be.  Since these storms, I guarantee you there 3 
is going to be a lot less fishing effort in the Gulf than there 4 
has been. 5 
 6 
Back to the motion, again, I thought it was a good idea to try 7 
and consolidate some of the more important factors that we could 8 
work on now and move on and that’s complicated enough just with 9 
those up there. 10 
 11 
MS. WILLIAMS:  At the last meeting, it my understanding, if you 12 

go back and read the minutes, that Rick was going into the 13 
document and pull out the stuff with the reef fish to simplify 14 
it so that we’re dealing with red snapper and shrimp, because 15 
they are intertwined.  You really don’t know what you’re going 16 
to do with one until you know what you’re going to do with the 17 
other. 18 
 19 
They affect each other in how the big picture is and the things 20 
that play out and I don’t know how you can do anything without 21 
keeping them together and know the actions that you’re going to 22 
take on both the shrimp industry, the commercial red snapper 23 
industry, and the recreational industry. 24 
 25 
I understand the shrimp industry is faced with all this 26 
hardship, believe me.  The commercial and recreational red 27 
snapper fishery is equally faced with the hardships and they’ve 28 
tightened their belt past that last loop and so the shrimp 29 
fishery is starving to death and believe me, the commercial and 30 
recreational fishery is starving to death too, if you want to 31 
use economics. 32 
 33 
We’ve got to fix the problem, but to fix the problem we’ve got 34 
to have all of the tools and not just part of the tools and rush 35 
through everything.  It’s our job to look at all of it and do 36 
the best job that we can do, but we can’t piecemeal it and 37 
that’s what this is doing and I wouldn’t know what to do with 38 
one without having the information of what we’re going to do 39 
throughout it. 40 
 41 
DR. CRABTREE:  Just a couple of things.  One, we can’t keep all 42 

of this together.  We can’t pull the shrimp IFQs and days at sea 43 
and all of that and put it into this.  That simply is not going 44 
to work and it is not going to fly.   45 
 46 
I do not believe that it will fit in with the time frame that we 47 
are going to be faced with because of litigation and so we’ve 48 
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got to face that there has to be some splitting apart of this 1 
and so I think we just have to recognize that. 2 
 3 
The discussion here really needs to be is this an adequate way 4 
to proceed on an expedited what needs to be done right now and 5 
are there one or two more things that could go in here or not, 6 
but keeping it altogether I simply think is not going to be 7 
workable, because a lot of things we put in the Shrimp EIS will 8 
take years to do. 9 
 10 
I want to come back to Degraaf and Degraaf is right.  We have 11 
litigation driving this and if we don’t get moving on this, we 12 
are going to end up with the courts deeply involved in what 13 
we’re doing. 14 
 15 
Remember, the lawsuits are not just about shrimp trawl bycatch.  16 
They are about TAC, they are about bycatch in the directed 17 
fishery, they are about size limits, they are about recreational 18 
overages and all those things.  We have two lawsuits here. 19 
 20 
We have one filed by CCA, but we have another one filed by the 21 
environmental groups and they’ve raised some same issues and 22 
some different issues, but we’re going to have to come to some 23 
resolution on this and we’re going to have to come up with 24 
something that we can proceed on quickly. 25 
 26 
If to get this going people want to talk about moving a seasonal 27 
closure or something in here, then that ought to be discussion, 28 
but I think the notion that we’re going to be able to keep 29 
shrimp IFQs and all those things in here, I just can’t see how 30 
that’s going to work. 31 
 32 
MS. MORRIS:  Along the same lines of Dr. Crabtree’s remark, my 33 

attempt here was to keep a joint reef fish and shrimp amendment 34 
effort going and not to split them apart and de-link them and so 35 
then I tried to talk to a number of council members who were 36 
here early this morning about which of the whole group of 37 
actions that are under Tab C for this meeting are things that we 38 
have already talked a lot about and we already have a sense of 39 
the direction we need to go and we could scope and develop 40 
documents and get them done in an expeditious fashion. 41 
 42 
In order to choose a red snapper TAC adjustment, we are going to 43 
have to base that on some agreement and assumptions about what 44 
our targets are for shrimp bycatch reduction and so I think 45 
that’s implicit in the list, even though it’s not articulated 46 
there. 47 
 48 
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This is a mix of things that both deal with the directed fishery 1 
and the shrimp fishery that will move us towards our goal and it 2 
seems like it’s essential that we set TAC and we’ve talked about 3 
the stock assessment and TAC now for three meetings in a row and 4 
it’s time for us to really start making the hard decisions about 5 
TAC and in those discussions we’ll have to be agreeing on what 6 
our shrimp bycatch targets are and I encourage the council to 7 
support this motion. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further discussion of the motion? 10 

 11 
MR. ADAMS:  In order to either show the courts or tell ourselves 12 
that we are addressing shrimp bycatch to the level that we 13 
thought we were going to achieve ten years ago with the fisheye 14 
BRD, or at least a 40 percent shrimp reduction, I would like to 15 
make an amendment to the motion to add looking at area closures 16 
for shrimping. 17 

 18 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Do I hear a second for the amendment? 19 

 20 
MS. MORRIS:  Second. 21 

 22 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It was moved by Mr. Adams and seconded by 23 

Ms. Morris for the amendment to add area closures.  Do we have 24 
any discussion regarding adding area closures? 25 
 26 
MR. HORN:  Mr. Chairman, I call the question, please. 27 

 28 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Horn.  Does anybody object to 29 

calling the question?  Hearing no objections, we’ll vote on the 30 
amendment to add area closures.  All those in favor say aye; all 31 
those opposed like sign.  The amendment passes.  We have added 32 

area closures to the list.  We’ve had quite a bit of discussion 33 
on this and I don’t know that we need any more at this -- 34 
 35 
MS. WALKER:  I want to ask a question of Dr. Crabtree, because 36 

I’m trying to go through C-6 and the new motions that will be 37 
coming before us in a few minutes and if we took out the bycatch 38 
quota, which is Actions 3 and 4, and we also did not address IFQ 39 
in the shrimp fishery in this amendment, would that be cutting 40 
it down enough? 41 
 42 
I know we’ve got tons of information on area closures and time 43 
closures and there’s been all kinds of studies that have been 44 
done on that for background material. 45 
 46 
I thought a scoping document was something that you just took to 47 
the public and you said here are some of the things that we’re 48 
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looking at and you don’t have to analyze it and let them tell 1 
you what they think about it and before we rush into trying to 2 
split it into two different amendments, what’s wrong with just 3 
taking these suggestions to the public and in January, when 4 
we’ve had an opportunity to think about it, come back and say we 5 
can remove these items. 6 
 7 
I wouldn’t mind removing bycatch quotas or IFQs out of it today, 8 
but without really giving this some serious thought, I’m not 9 
ready to make that decision and so is there room for a 10 
substitute motion? 11 
 12 
My substitute motion would be to go ahead and take what we have 13 
out for scoping to get public comment on it and come back in 14 
January prepared to make motions to split it at that time. 15 
 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Ms. Walker’s substitute motion -- Basically, 17 

Mr. Perret was asking for clarification and it’s take everything 18 
we have and merge those two documents and then take them out for 19 
scoping.  Is that correct, Ms. Walker?  Do I hear a second to 20 
Ms. Walker’s substitute motion?  It’s been moved by Ms. Walker 21 
and seconded by Mr. Minton. 22 
 23 
DR. CRABTREE:  Bobbi, I think you were sort of asking me 24 

something there, at least when you started.  Can you back up to 25 
the list there?  We’ve got area closures there, which really, if 26 
you think about it, that’s time/area closures.  We’re going to 27 
close some area for some period of time. 28 
 29 
I don’t think there’s a whole lot else.  There’s the bycatch 30 
quotas, there’s the IFQs, there is the trip-based effort 31 
limitation program, which is basically days at sea.  Then there 32 
are some other things in there that are based upon control dates 33 
that are in the future and two years after that, which clearly 34 
are long-term things. 35 
 36 
I think if you look at the list we have there and if you read 37 
area closures as really time/area closures, such as if you 38 
wanted to extend the Texas closure across the entire Gulf of 39 
Mexico or something like that, I think you have most of the 40 
things that really are feasible. 41 
 42 
I think that’s a pretty good list that we came up with, with the 43 
amendment that Degraaf added to it, and I’m afraid if we don’t 44 
go ahead and make a decision on what we’re going to do now, then 45 
we’re just putting something off until the next meeting and to 46 
me, we need to go ahead and start making some of these 47 
decisions. 48 
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 1 
I think really most of the things that realistically are 2 
possible to be done in this that you’re concerned about are in 3 
that list there and you could change the word “area” to say 4 
“time/area” and then I think you’ve got most of those things 5 
there. 6 
 7 
I don’t think we can get to latent permits for a little bit in 8 
the future until we collect some more data.  Remember one thing 9 
and you talk about latent permits and we don’t even have a 10 
moratorium in place yet and that moratorium is going to have to 11 
go in place and then you’re going to have to have a little bit 12 
of time before you can address the latent permits. 13 
 14 
I don’t know that it’s really feasible to do that in the scheme 15 
of next year, because the moratorium permits aren’t going to be 16 
issued for some period and so I almost think even latent permits 17 
are going to have to come back in at a place a little bit down 18 
the road. 19 
 20 
I have just one last thing.  This other EIS that’s the more 21 
longer-term thing, we’re going to have to keep that going too.  22 
It’s not like this is something that we can afford to let get on 23 
the back burner too much and I think we’ve got to all make a 24 
commitment that that is going to happen and we are going to get 25 
to it over the next couple of years. 26 
 27 
MS. WALKER:  Roy, what’s wrong with getting public comment 28 

before we split it up?  The public may have different ideas and 29 
we may find out that some things that we think are going to be 30 
controversial won’t or some things that we don’t think are going 31 
to be controversial are. 32 
 33 
DR. CRABTREE:  I’m not coming at this from the perspective of 34 

controversy.  I think a lot of things on that list to do short 35 
term are going to be extremely controversial.  I’m coming at it 36 
as things that simply cannot be done in the time frame we are 37 
looking at, because the scope of the analysis or the complexity 38 
of it or the data needs simply can’t be met and it can’t be 39 
done. 40 
 41 
Controversy is not entering into it.  Lord, just adjusting TAC 42 
is going to be about as controversial as anything we can do and 43 
so that’s not it.   44 
 45 
I don’t mind taking these -- We have this document and if we put 46 
these things in it and that’s an EIS and something we’re going 47 
to do and take it out to scoping and take these other things out 48 
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and say here’s another thing we’re looking at doing and we’re 1 
going to scope it and we think it’s going to take a longer time 2 
frame.  I don’t really have an objection to that.  I just think 3 
we need to make some decisions and let’s go ahead and make them. 4 
 5 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I kind of feel like Shepherd here quoting 6 

NEPA, but I will anyway.  It says scoping is an early and open 7 
process for determining the scope of issues to be addressed and 8 
for identifying the significant issues related to the proposed 9 
actions and so you’re trying to get ideas by bringing these 10 
issues out. 11 
 12 
I’m a little concerned with something I heard Ms. Walker say in 13 
terms of -- Maybe I’m incorrect, but I thought you thought this 14 
scoping might be done before January, and maybe I misheard you, 15 
but before we go into scoping we have to file a notice of intent 16 
in the Federal Register that you’re thinking of preparing an 17 
environmental or draft environmental impact statement. 18 
 19 
That has to be put in the Federal Register.  I’m assuming you 20 
would want to scope this Gulf-wide, because it pertains to 21 
almost everybody in the Gulf, and so I’m not so sure that you 22 
would be able to whittle it down by your January meeting in 23 
terms of the scoping being done.  You could still whittle it 24 
down by your January meeting, but I’m just saying I don’t think 25 
the scoping process will be done by then. 26 
 27 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  That answered my question to Rick earlier, 28 

that basically because of the notice we probably couldn’t get it 29 
done in December and it would have to defer to January. 30 
 31 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Your notice can set these items out and it 32 

doesn’t have to go into great depth.  I’ve seen many of them 33 
that say here’s what we’re thinking of doing and we’re going to 34 
take this out to the public and it’s merely -- Not merely, but 35 
you have to get it published in the Federal Register, which 36 
isn’t an onerous thing, but it just takes a little time. 37 
 38 
MR. HORN:  I keep hearing about shrimp IFQs and I don’t see that 39 

up on the board and I don’t see where the council has voted to 40 
do anything like that, since that’s the last order of business 41 
in this committee report.  We’ve had a lot of discussion and I 42 
don’t think anybody is going to change their mind and with that, 43 
I call the question on this motion and all previous motions to 44 
this subject. 45 
 46 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Horn, but I did have Mr. 47 

Fischer on my list and I will entertain Mr. Fischer’s comments 48 
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and then we have had a lot of discussion and I think we can vote 1 
this up or down. 2 
 3 
MR. FISCHER:  I’ll just be very brief.  Instead of splitting the 4 

motion, I think the better method would have been to list all 5 
the actions and just remove the ones that we thought would take 6 
too much. 7 
 8 
I don’t think we should be considering IFQs in the shrimp 9 
industry at this time in this and I think instead of splitting 10 
it, I think what we meant to do was just remove the items not 11 
germane to this subject. 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any objection to calling the question on the 14 
substitute motion?  Hearing no objection, let’s vote on the 15 
substitute motion, which reads: To review all issues for scoping 16 
and then at the next meeting determine if the document should be 17 
split.  All those in favor say aye; all those opposed like sign.  18 
The motion fails. 19 
 20 

That takes us back to the original motion and there’s been quite 21 
a bit of discussion on this and we’ll go ahead and vote it up or 22 
down, based on the call of the question as well.  All those in 23 
favor of the amended motion say aye; all those opposed like 24 
sign.  Let’s do a show of hands.  All those in favor of the 25 
amended motion raise their hands; all those opposed like sign.  26 
The motion carries. 27 
 28 
MR. MINTON:  I’m almost sorry I started the report.  The next 29 

section was Review of Red Snapper Stock Assessment Analyses and 30 
Additional Analyses.  Dr. Clay Porch gave us a presentation of 31 
the recent assessment analyses and new analyses since the 32 
assessment and review were completed. 33 
 34 
He stated that survival to age two in the west Gulf for the 35 
period of 2000 to 2003 were 30 percent higher than during the 36 
1984 to 1989 average and that F was approximately 16 percent 37 
lower.  He also showed constant TACs under and F30 percent SPR 38 
policy, noting that a seven-million-pound TAC or lower would 39 
yield an F30 percent SPR by 2012.  Under Tab C, Number 5 -- 40 
 41 
MR. HORN:  Do we have a rebuilding date for red snapper of two-42 

thousand-and-thirty-something? 43 
 44 
MR. MINTON:  2032. 45 

 46 
MR. HORN:  2032.  My question or comment is that we’re talking 47 

about lowering TAC when we have a 30 percent higher survival 48 
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rate of age two and ups and a 16 percent lower mortality and 1 
that we can achieve 30 percent by 2012.  If we have a 2032, then 2 
I fail to see the need of talking about seven-million-pound TACs 3 
if we can still achieve our goal and I just wanted to make those 4 
comments and maybe I missed something somewhere. 5 
 6 
DR. SHIPP:  I want to follow up on Phil’s comments.  We’re going 7 

to be talking about this a lot in the future, but I just want to 8 
point out two things.  When Clay gave his presentation, I asked 9 
him if habitat was considered at all in any of the models and he 10 
said it was not. 11 
 12 
It’s a fundamental principle in biology that populations are 13 
either habitat limited or recruitment limited and in almost all 14 
instances they are habitat limited.  To move forward on the 15 
assumption that this population is recruitment limited is 16 
questionable. 17 
 18 
The other thing I would like to point out is that the snapper 19 
fishery has been prosecuted for 150 years.  The models are 20 
projecting that an MSY possibly of twenty to twenty-five million 21 
pounds and never in the history of this fishery has more than 22 
twelve million pounds ever been harvested.   23 
 24 
My question is how can we be overfished if we’ve never taken 25 
more than 50 percent of what the projected MSY is?  Again, this 26 
is not the time to get into this, but I leave the council with 27 
those two thoughts.   28 
 29 
MR. MINTON:  Under Tab C, Number 5, Dr. Leard reviewed the 30 

alternatives under each of the actions of Tab C, Number 5 that 31 
would develop into a scoping document.  Following discussion, 32 
the committee recommends, and I so move, to add an item for 33 
Action 2: To prohibit red snapper on board vessels with longline 34 
gear west of Cape San Blas. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Minton.  We have a committee 37 

motion.  These motions I am going to assume -- I’m going to 38 
allow them and they will go into one or the other document, 39 
depending on the previous motion.  Is there any discussion on 40 
the motion? 41 
 42 
MR. MINTON:  To that, Mr. Chairman, possibly since we’ve got 43 

this out and based on the previous motion, we’ll let staff 44 
editorialize these and put them where they belong when we get 45 
done. 46 
 47 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  That’s my sense, Mr. Minton, as well, if 48 
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everyone is else is in agreement with that.  That seems to me 1 
the best way to proceed here. 2 
 3 
DR. CRABTREE:  We have an IFQ program and the vessels have IFQ 4 

shares and we have VMS on them and so we’re going to be able to 5 
police fifty-fathom line and any snapper they have on board is 6 
going to be released dead and I don’t mind taking this to 7 
scoping, but it’s not clear to me why we would want them to 8 
throw dead snapper over the side rather than using IFQ coupons 9 
and bringing them in so they’re counted against the quota. 10 
 11 
I guess the issue becomes are they targeting it, but I think if 12 
the fifty-fathom line is policed, I’m not sure anybody is going 13 
to be targeting red snapper.  I think it’s going to be as 14 
incidental bycatch in the yellowedge fishery. 15 
 16 
If you want to scope this, that’s fine, but bear in mind one of 17 
the main things we need to accomplish in these management things 18 
is to reduce bycatch and let’s be careful we don’t do things 19 
that may increase it. 20 
 21 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I will make a clarification, Dr. Crabtree.  22 

I think several of these items were included in because we did 23 
not know the outcome of IFQs at this point and so I think there 24 
was recognition of that in committee, that a lot of these items 25 
may go away when we do pass the IFQ program out of the council. 26 
 27 
MR. HORN:  I think that’s correct, but I also think if we 28 

believe that then let’s do it now and it will save us a lot of 29 
heartburn and headache later on and gnashing of teeth and 30 
worrying about whether it’s going to happen or not.  Are we 31 
going to do motions?  I missed your discussion, Vernon, about -- 32 
Are we still going to take these as motions? 33 
 34 
MR. MINTON:  We’ll take them as motions and let staff 35 

editorially determine whether they should be included or not 36 
later on. 37 
 38 
MR. HORN:  I would make a motion that we delete this from any 39 

document. 40 
 41 
MR. MINTON:  Just vote against it. 42 

 43 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Just vote against the current motion and you 44 

will have done that. 45 
 46 
MR. HORN:  Dr. Crabtree made a lot of good points that I was 47 

going to bring up and those are true.  There is very little 48 
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effort of targeting red snapper in the longline fishery outside 1 
of fifty fathoms, but there is some and there have been some.  2 
It’s very, very limited and very small amounts of overall 3 
landings, but that is happening.  I speak against this and 4 
suggest we get rid of it. 5 
 6 
MR. ADAMS:  As a suggestion to Vernon and to you, Robin, since 7 

we’re getting into these specific motions that don’t have 8 
anything to do with the expedited first document that we have 9 
passed, would it be a suggestion to table these items until we 10 
see the document at the next meeting that fleshes out our last 11 
motion for the expedited items? 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  You can certainly move to table if you would 14 

choose to, sir. 15 
 16 
MR. ADAMS:  I would make a motion to table other items in the 17 
committee report until the January 2006 meeting when we see the 18 
first document that we’ve approved to be fleshed out by staff. 19 
 20 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Second. 21 

 22 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  If you all would allow me, I think we do 23 

need to set the scoping meeting sites.  Are you just tabling the 24 
motions under Tab C-5, Degraaf?  Was that your intention? 25 
 26 
MR. HORN:  I understood he was tabling the issues that -- 27 

 28 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I appreciate it, but I’m trying to get 29 

Degraaf to clarify it, Mr. Horn, if I could. 30 
 31 
MR. ADAMS:  I’m tabling C-5 and C-6, all of it, and then after 32 

that we can discuss the locations for scoping. 33 
 34 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a motion to table Tab C, Number 5 35 

and Tab C, Number 6, remaining items in the committee report 36 
until the January council meeting and just put, if you will 37 
accept this as a friendly amendment, except the setting of 38 
scoping meeting locations and if you and your seconder will 39 
accept that. 40 
 41 
MR. ADAMS:  Yes. 42 

 43 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I accept it. 44 

 45 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s non-debatable.  All those in favor of 46 
tabling the rest of the report, with the exception of scoping 47 
locations say aye; all those opposed same sign.  Let’s have a 48 
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show of hands.  All those in favor of tabling the report; all 1 
those opposed like sign.  The motion to table is approved. 2 
 3 
MS. MORRIS:  Would it be out of order to move the committee 4 

motion to recommend that under Action 1 alternatives should 5 
range from two to seven million pounds? 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think the only thing left from the 8 

committee report that can be discussed would be the scoping 9 
meetings. 10 
 11 
MR. MINTON:  The locations are in the handout: for Texas, we 12 
have moved Port Aransas, Galveston, and Brownsville; for 13 
Louisiana, New Orleans; Mississippi is Pascagoula; Alabama, 14 
Orange Beach; and Florida, we have Tampa, Key West, and Panama 15 
City.  That is the committee motion. 16 
 17 
MR. PERRET:  What’s the time frame we’re trying to do those, 18 

Rick or Wayne? 19 
 20 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  In January. 21 

 22 
MR. PERRET:  In January and Karen and Myron have their hands up 23 

and I’m just wondering about locations. 24 
 25 
MS. FOOTE:  We’re looking at moving to Larose.  Myron says there 26 

are hotel rooms in the Larose area. 27 
 28 
MR. MINTON:  Mr. Chairman, also I think that we had discussed -- 29 

I was going to check with some of the other folks in Alabama and 30 
see if we needed a meeting in Mobile and that might help out for 31 
some of the Pascagoula, Mississippi people too.  With that 32 
editorial license, I’ll get back with staff on that. 33 
 34 
DR. SHIPP:  Mr. Chairman, I was on the prevailing side in the 35 

motion to table, but on reconsideration, I do think we need to 36 
address this Action 1, include alternatives ranging from two to 37 
seven million pounds.  As a member on the prevailing side, I 38 
would like to reconsider. 39 
 40 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  As soon as we dispense of this motion, we 41 

can have that discussion.  Everyone knows the locations now and 42 
we’ve changed Larose and Alabama might still have some meeting 43 
changes and they will get with staff regarding those.  All those 44 
in favor of these meeting locations for scoping say aye; all 45 
those opposed like sign.  The motion passes. 46 
 47 
DR. SHIPP:  I would like to move to reconsider our motion to 48 
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table, especially as it regards the committee action on the top 1 
of page 2 of the committee report. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Do we have a second to move for 4 

reconsideration? 5 
 6 
MS. MORRIS:  Second. 7 

 8 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Second by Ms. Morris.  It’s been moved and 9 

seconded for reconsideration and it’s non-debatable.  10 
 11 
MR. ADAMS:  I’m not debating it, but there’s not a discussion of 12 

it?   13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I asked Wayne and I’m checking on this. 15 

 16 
MR. SIMPSON:  The chairman doesn’t need any help.  You all 17 

talking to him making it’s harder for him. 18 
 19 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  This is a yes or no and it’s really quite 20 

simple.  Either we decide we’re going to talk about that some 21 
more or not and so let’s just vote it up or down.  Myron, while 22 
he’s looking for Robert’s Rules of Order, give me your point 23 
about reconsideration. 24 
 25 
MR. FISCHER:  If don’t reconsider it, don’t we resort back to 26 

what’s in the original document, five to seven million pounds? 27 
 28 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  No, if you don’t reconsider it, the rest of 29 

the document remains tabled. 30 
 31 
MR. FISCHER:  Don’t we go back to the original numbers? 32 

 33 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  No, there are no numbers at that point and 34 

the rest of the document remains tabled. 35 
 36 
MR. ADAMS:  I’ll defer quickly to Philip and I think he has a 37 

point of order. 38 
 39 
MR. HORN:  It’s to the motion and my question is it just says to 40 

reconsider the motion to table, but I thought I heard as it 41 
pertains to the TAC only. 42 
 43 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  The motion to reconsider is 44 

debatable if the question reconsidered was debatable and I think 45 
the motion you’re all considering is one to table, which was not 46 
debatable and so it’s non-debatable.  It just needs to be voted 47 
up or down. 48 
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 1 
MR. HORN:  Is the motion on the board correct? 2 

 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Dr. Shipp, would you -- 4 

 5 
MR. SHIPP:  I think Philip is correct.  My motion to reconsider 6 

only dealt with the item on the top of page 2 and not the entire 7 
motion to table. 8 
 9 
DR. CRABTREE:  A point of order, Mr. Chairman. 10 

 11 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I don’t believe you can parse the motion to 12 

table when you try to reconsider. 13 
 14 
MR. ADAMS:  Is the motion to reconsider the tabling or are you 15 

withdrawing that? 16 
 17 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  The motion is to reconsider the tabling of 18 

the whole motion, the previous motion. 19 
 20 
MR. HORN:  Was Wayne reading that we cannot parcel out?  I 21 

didn’t hear that from him and I don’t know why we could not do 22 
that. 23 
 24 
MR. PERRET:  Robert’s says you can’t. 25 

 26 
MR. HORN:  I didn’t hear Wayne say that.  He just discussed 27 

whether it was debatable. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  You tabled with an entire motion and so any 30 

reconsideration is the entire motion.  Then you can parse it.  31 
If you get it back up on the table, then you can parse it.  32 
Let’s vote this up or down.  All those in favor of reconsidering 33 
the tabling of the motion say aye; all those opposed like sign.  34 
The motion passes. 35 
 36 
MR. HORN:  I move to table the entire discussion that we just 37 
tabled except for the item that deals with TAC on the top of 38 
page 2 of the report. 39 
 40 
DR. SHIPP:  Second. 41 

 42 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s been moved by Mr. Horn and seconded by 43 

Dr. Shipp that we table the motions in the committee report 44 
regarding Tab C, Number 5 and Tab C, Number 6, except for the 45 
motion regarding Action 1 included -- 46 
 47 
MR. HORN:  The Action 1, I don’t know if that’s -- In the 48 
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report, it says Action 7, but I think that’s dealing with the 1 
document that we were using.  If it’s an action item, it would 2 
be Action 7, I think.  The action number should be 7 if we’re 3 
using the report to go by, because the report states Action 7.  4 
I apologize, I was running it together. 5 
 6 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Does that look right, Dr. Shipp and 7 

everyone? 8 
 9 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I have a question.  This also means that you 10 

all, if this passes, would not discuss adding one fish per 11 
person per day to the scoping document as well, is that correct? 12 
 13 
MR. MINTON:  Just for the record, I could have finished this 14 

report about thirty minutes ago if we had went through it. 15 
 16 
DR. CRABTREE:  Why are we doing this, folks?  Let’s stop playing 17 

games and tabling things and let’s get through these issues and 18 
resolve them.  This isn’t helping us and I don’t really even 19 
understand what we’re doing here.  We’ve spent more time tabling 20 
and arguing over tabling then it would have taken to finish all 21 
of this. 22 
 23 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I agree, Dr. Crabtree.  Let me read this 24 
motion.  The motion is table the motions of the committee report 25 
regarding Tab C, Number 5 and Tab C, Number 6, except for the 26 
motion regarding Action 1: Include alternatives ranging from two 27 
to seven million pounds. 28 
 29 
DR. SHIPP:  I would like to amend that motion to include 30 

alternatives ranging from two to nine million pounds. 31 
 32 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s a tabling motion again. 33 

 34 
DR. SHIPP:  It’s a tabling motion? 35 

 36 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, it’s constructed as a tabling motion 37 
again.  All those in favor of tabling as it states up there, say 38 
aye; all those opposed like sign.  The motion fails. 39 
 40 
MR. FISCHER:  I move we let the chair of the committee continue 41 
with his report from where we left off at Tab C, Number 5. 42 
 43 
MR. ADAMS:  I’m sorry, but that’s been tabled. 44 

 45 
MR. MINTON:  We’ve un-tabled it. 46 

 47 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We’ve un-tabled, yes. 48 
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 1 
MR. MINTON:  I am back. 2 

 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, Mr. Minton, you are back and it’s to 4 

you, Mr. Minton. 5 
 6 
MR. MINTON:  Lord, help you all.  I don’t even know where I’m 7 

at.  Tab C, Number 5, Dr. Leard reviewed the alternatives under 8 
each of the actions of Tab C, Number 5 that will be developed 9 
into a scoping document.  Following discussion, the committee 10 
recommends, and I so move, to add an item for Action 2, to 11 
prohibit red snapper on board vessels with longline gear west of 12 
Cape San Blas. 13 
 14 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s a committee motion.  Do I hear any 15 

discussion? 16 
 17 
MR. HORN:  I call the question. 18 

 19 
MR. ADAMS:  Second. 20 

 21 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think it’s my prerogative here if there is 22 

any discussion and I had Mr. Fischer up and I think we should at 23 
least have a moment of discussion. 24 
 25 
MR. FISCHER:  Briefly, this issue came up before the passage of 26 

this council of ITQs and I think in light of the council passing 27 
ITQs that this regulatory action is not germane and so I don’t 28 
support it. 29 
 30 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any other discussion?  We have obviously had 31 

a lot of discussion about this around the table already.  Let’s 32 
vote it up or down.  All those in favor of the committee motion 33 
say aye; all those opposed like sign.  Let’s have a show of 34 
hands.  All those in favor of the committee motion raise your 35 
hand, five; all those opposed same sign.  The committee motion 36 
fails. 37 
 38 
MR. MINTON:  Following additional discussion, the committee 39 
recommends, and I so move, to insert the word “vertical” before 40 
“hook and line” in Action 2, d. 41 
 42 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 43 
discussion?  All those in favor of the committee motion say aye; 44 
all those opposed same sign.  The motion passes. 45 
 46 
MR. MINTON:  With regard to Action 3, the committee recommends, 47 
and I so move, to add an Action 3,d “or some other boundary 48 
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line.” 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion. 3 

 4 
MR. FISCHER:  In light of us passing ITQs, this is no longer 5 

necessary. 6 
 7 
MR. MINTON:  If I could, I would remind you that we are part of 8 

that process.  Although the council has passed IFQs, the 9 
fishermen haven’t voted on it and we have not taken final 10 
action.  I would recommend going ahead and at some other time 11 
take this out.  Remember we’re going to scoping on this. 12 
 13 
MS. WILLIAMS:  I make a motion to remove Action 3, restrict 14 
commercial red snapper fishing to waters in excess of ten 15 
fathoms, fifteen fathoms, twenty fathoms, or some other boundary 16 
line and if I can get a second, I’ll -- 17 

 18 
MR. HORN:  I second. 19 

 20 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s been moved and seconded to remove this 21 

section from the document. 22 
 23 
MS. WILLIAMS:  We have voted to do the ITQs and although it 24 

hasn’t been approved, we all know where we’re going to go with 25 
that.  If you look to see what our law enforcement has said in 26 
Tab G, they said in their report to us using depth contours to 27 
designate fishing areas is not a good management measure from an 28 
enforcement perspective. 29 
 30 
They go on to say if a size limit was necessary to manage a fish 31 
that the same size should be applied to both sectors to ease 32 
enforcement and there’s no way that this council can tell us 33 
really anything about what it’s going to do to the stock or to 34 
the fishermen at these different depths. 35 
 36 
You’ve got to know where these guys fish and what they catch and 37 
everything that’s associated with it.  You’re segregating the 38 
fishermen is what you’re doing and they don’t like it.  I don’t 39 
blame them and I don’t know how we can do that. 40 
 41 
If we’re going to do it because of the size limits, let the 42 
commercial and recreational have the same size limits.  There’s 43 
no reason to do this.  These fishermen are going through so much 44 
right now. 45 
 46 
You sat here and you watched what happened with Katrina and to 47 
put something in a document just for the sake of doing it to 48 
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where they’ve got to come out when they’re trying to build their 1 
homes and some of them is living in tents or cars or wherever 2 
else they can live just to come and tell you we don’t want to be 3 
segregated and we would rather have a two-million-pound TAC than 4 
for you to do that to us and that is wrong to do that.  This 5 
accomplishes nothing. 6 
 7 
DR. CRABTREE:  I guess sort of as a point of order, I thought a 8 

few minutes ago we approved a motion that had a list of the 9 
things that were to go into the expedited EIS and then we had 10 
the remaining list of things that were in the more long term and 11 
this is one of the ones that was not included in the expedited 12 
EIS and is included in the longer term.  Are we now voting 13 
whether it should be in the longer term slower EIS or not? 14 
 15 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, that was the discussion that occurred 16 

before we tabled and un-tabled and all those things.  Yes, Roy, 17 
that’s correct. 18 
 19 
MS. WALKER:  We were told biologically that the size limit 20 

didn’t make any sense on the commercial fishery side and that by 21 
requiring them to have the fifteen-inch size limit it wasn’t 22 
helping the resource. 23 
 24 
However, on the recreational side, the sixteen-inch size limit 25 
was helping the resource and it’s not just fishing rail to rail 26 
and allowing one sector to harvest any size and limiting the 27 
other sector.   28 
 29 
It would be keeping them out of the shallower waters on the 30 
juvenile fish.  MS. Williams, I hate to disagree with you, but 31 
we have taken longline gear to fifty fathoms and plenty of times 32 
we have segregated the fishermen. 33 
 34 
MS. WILLIAMS:  To that point, we’ve also set up special 35 

management zones to make sure that we help protect the juvenile 36 
fish and you can’t own the entire EEZ for one sector. 37 
 38 
MR. HORN:  I call the question, Mr. Chairman. 39 

 40 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a motion to call the question.  Do I 41 

hear any objections to calling the question?  Hearing no 42 
objections, we’ll call the question and we’ll vote on the 43 
motion. 44 
 45 
All those in favor of the substitute motion to remove the Action 46 
3 from Tab C, Number 5 say aye; all those opposed like sign.  47 
Let’s have a show of hands.  All those in favor of the 48 
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substitute motion raise your hands; all those opposed like sign.  1 
The motion fails. 2 
 3 

That takes us back to the original committee motion.  We’ve had 4 
quite a bit of discussion on this.  All those in favor of the 5 
original committee motion raise your hands; all those opposed 6 
like sign.  The motion passes. 7 
 8 
MR. MINTON:  The committee had no specific recommendation with 9 
regard to Actions 4 through 6.  However, with regard to Action 10 
7, the committee recommends, and I so move, to add an Item 7(c), 11 
one fish per person per day. 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 14 
discussion?  All those in favor of the committee motion say aye; 15 
all those opposed like sign.  The motion passes.  You’ve done 16 

the locations and so -- 17 
 18 
MR. MINTON:  We’ve done the locations, but what about the range?  19 

We have not done that, right?  That failed, the two to seven 20 
million pounds. 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  No, we haven’t done that. 23 

 24 
MR. MINTON:  The committee then returned to Action 1 and 25 
following discussion, the committee recommends, and I so move, 26 
that under Action 1 to include alternatives ranging from two to 27 
seven million pounds. 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 30 

discussion? 31 
 32 
DR. SHIPP:  I am told by Dr. Crabtree that status quo is always 33 

included, which would be nine million pounds, but I think we 34 
ought to specifically mention it here, two to nine million 35 
pounds, so that it’s clear that that’s the range, even though 36 
technically status quo is always an option.  I would like to 37 
amend this motion to range from two to nine million pounds. 38 
 39 
MR. ADAMS:  Second. 40 

 41 
DR. CRABTREE:  To that point, it’s 9.12 million pounds and Bob 42 

is right.  The scoping will, of course, include the status quo 43 
and so I don’t think that’s actually a change.  It just states 44 
what we do anyway and so I would support it. 45 
 46 
MR. HORN:  I was going to make that comment about 9.12, but I 47 

call the question. 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We’ve had a motion to call the question.  Is 2 

there any objection to the motion?  Hearing none, we’ll vote on 3 
the amendment, which as we’ve indicated, really is no change in 4 
the amendment, but it’s more explicit by changing seven to 9.12.  5 
All those in favor say aye; all those opposed like sign.  There 6 
is one in opposition.  The motion passes. 7 
 8 

Now that takes us to the committee motion as amended.  I took it 9 
as an amendment and not a substitute, but since it was a 10 
substitute, we will move on. 11 
 12 
MR. MINTON:  That takes us to Tab C, Number 6, and Dr. Leard 13 

noted that based on previous committee actions that alternatives 14 
under Action 1 will be included in the red snapper amendment.  15 
He then reviewed Action 2 and following discussion, the 16 
committee recommends, and I so move, to establish daily time 17 
closures as opposed to daytime closures to shrimping in the EEZ 18 
under the last bullet of Action 2. 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 21 
discussion regarding the motion?  All those in favor of the 22 
committee motion say aye; all those opposed like sign.  The 23 
motion passes. 24 
 25 
MR. MINTON:  Similarly, in reviewing Action 3, the committee 26 
recommends, and I so move, to replace “current average bycatch 27 
estimate” with “target bycatch estimate.” 28 
 29 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 30 
discussion about the committee motion?  All those in favor of 31 
the committee motion say aye; all those opposed like sign.  The 32 
motion passes. 33 
 34 
MR. MINTON:  The committee also directed staff to add a notation 35 
that Actions 5 and 6 are actions to eliminate effort.  With 36 
regard to Action 6, the committee recommends, and I so move, to 37 
remove the control date bullets and revise the title of this 38 
action.  Let me finish the rest of it.  Furthermore, the 39 
committee recommends, and I so move, under the qualifying 40 
criteria to change the control date to “upon implementation of 41 
this amendment.”  We’ll just wrap those two together. 42 
 43 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Minton.  I think that makes 44 

good sense.  There’s a committee motion.  Is there any 45 
discussion of the motion?  Hearing none, all those in favor of 46 
the committee motion say aye; all those opposed like sign.  The 47 
committee motion passes. 48 
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 1 
MR. MINTON:  Finally, following discussion of Action 7, the 2 
committee recommends, and I so move, to add an option for an IFQ 3 
in the shrimp fishery in the Gulf of Mexico. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 6 

discussion regarding the committee motion? 7 
 8 
MR. PERRET:  The last thing we need right now is any discussion 9 

of IFQs in the shrimp fishery and I suggest we take it out at 10 
this time. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  You will vote against the motion then is 13 

basically what you have to do here. 14 
 15 
MS. WALKER:  Before I vote, I would like to ask Walter Thomassie 16 

and I would like to know his opinion. 17 
 18 
MR. THOMASSIE:  I’m not interested in pursuing an IFQ at this 19 

time.  I think -- I don’t know how well it would work in an 20 
annual species of shrimp.  You’re looking at something totally 21 
different in finfish and what it’s been used in previously and 22 
so I just don’t know that it’s timely right now. 23 
 24 
MR. FISCHER:  I agree and I think it’s very premature.  The 25 

moratorium on permits has just gotten voted and we didn’t give 26 
it time to stabilize.  The industry is self-policing in the fact 27 
that it’s just going under and banks are picking up boats while 28 
we’re sitting here.  It’s a dinosaur waiting for the asteroid to 29 
hit and I don’t think we need to worry about IFQs right now. 30 
 31 
MR. ADAMS:  When the committee discussed this, they weren’t 32 

talking about an IFQ on catch limitation.  No one wants to 33 
restrict the amount of shrimp that someone is able to catch.  34 
What they’re trying to do is limit effort and they’re talking 35 
about trying to come up with a system or an IFQ share for effort 36 
or time. 37 
 38 
DR. CRABTREE:  I was going to make Degraaf’s point and I think 39 

you should think about this more broadly and that the quota 40 
could be in terms of effort and transferable days and in that 41 
sense, I think it is something that’s probably worth 42 
considering. 43 
 44 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further discussion on the committee 45 
motion?  Seeing none, all those in favor of the committee motion 46 
say aye; all those opposed like sign.  Let’s have a show of 47 
hands.  All those in favor raise your hands; all those opposed 48 
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same sign.  The motion passes. 1 
 2 
MR. MINTON:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes the report, believe it 3 

or not. 4 
 5 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Is there any other business under this 6 

committee?  Hearing none, let’s take a ten-minute break, please. 7 
 8 
(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 9 
 10 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  If we can, could we come back to order, 11 

please?   12 
 13 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Robin, I would just like to say you’ve done an 14 

excellent job and we appreciate your patience and I especially 15 
do. 16 
 17 
MR. PERRET:  That’s not what you told me during the break. 18 

 19 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Ms. Williams.  I will take the 20 

compliment on the record and whatever you said off the record 21 
doesn’t count for me anyhow.  If we could, we will go to the 22 
SEDAR report from Mr. Perret. 23 
 24 
MR. PERRET:  The SEDAR group met this morning, as per Ms. 25 

Walker’s instructions, and I’ll go through the names.  For the 26 
data workshop, which is scheduled for the 22nd through the 27th of 27 
January: Roy Williams, Steve Atran, Dawn Aring.  For the AP: 28 
Eric Schmidt, James Taylor, Gus Loyal, Wayne Werner.  For the 29 
SAP: Mark Fischer and Jay Rooker.  For the SSC, Luiz Barbieri 30 
and the NGO would be Pam Baker. 31 
 32 
Assessment workshop, scheduled for May 1 to 5: Roy Williams, 33 
Steve Atran, Dawn Aring.  For the AP: Bob Spaeth, Frank 34 
Stephenson, Bob Zales.  The SAP: Nelson Ehrhardt, Behzad 35 
Mahmoudi, and Carl Walters.  Doug Gregory would be for the SSC 36 
and Marianne Cufone as NGO. 37 
 38 
For the review workshop scheduled for June 26 to 30: Roy 39 
Williams, Steve Atran, Dawn Aring.  For the AP: Eric Schmidt, 40 
Bob Zales, Marianne Cufone.  For the SAP, we don’t have SAP 41 
members attend the review workshop and the SSC is Will Patterson 42 
and the NGO would be Chris Dorsett and that is the SEDAR 43 
Committee’s recommendations. 44 
 45 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Actually, that’s full council action in 46 

closed session and that’s the names that are now going to go to 47 
that SEDAR Number 10.  With that, we’ll move on to Ms. Walker’s 48 
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ICCAT Advisory Committee report. 1 
 2 
MS. WALKER:  I did not attend that meeting, Mr. Chairman.  They 3 

were discussing the same topics that we had before and so you 4 
can refer back to my prior written report. 5 
 6 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Ms. Walker.  Mr. Robbins is here 7 

to give the Enforcement Report. 8 
 9 
MR. HAL ROBBINS:  Good morning.  It will be very brief.  First 10 

of all, many of you have asked me about Dave McKinney and I want 11 
you all to know that his surgeon feels like his progress is 12 
going real well.  He had surgery for a torn retina on Friday. 13 
 14 
We filed the report electronically for the quarter July through 15 
September and unless there’s any questions on that, I won’t deal 16 
with that issue. 17 
 18 
I did want to let you know about an issue that came up off of 19 
Galveston.  Our agents out of Galveston, working with Texas 20 
wardens on the Patrol Vessel Murduson on November 1st attempted 21 
to stop a sixty-five-foot vessel in Galveston.  After a 22 
considerable chase, during which time they began dumping lugs of 23 
snapper over the side, the vessel had to be rammed and was 24 
stopped and boarded by our agents and Texas wardens. 25 
 26 
They had a Class 2 red snapper license, 200 pounds.  As I said, 27 
they threw approximately 1,000 pounds they had in lugs on deck 28 
overboard.  We searched the vessel and found another 4,700 29 
pounds in a hidden compartment.  300 pounds were undersized and 30 
the catch was seized by our agents and sold for $11,927. 31 
 32 
Customs indicated that they will seize the vessel because of the 33 
hidden compartment and we notified the U.S. Coast Guard that the 34 
captain of the vessel was a foreign national.  Anyway, that 35 
might be on of the reasons why your catch histories are not 36 
accurate and thank you. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you and are there any other questions 39 

regarding that? 40 
 41 
MS. MORRIS:  Hal, are you aware of any enforcement attention 42 

being paid to red snapper fishing from oil platforms out of 43 
recreational season?  Is that an issue that you’ve ever done any 44 
enforcement actions on? 45 
 46 
MR. ROBBINS:  That’s not something I’m aware of, but I can 47 

certainly check into it and get back to you on it. 48 
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 1 
MR. ADAMS:  Julie, from an offshore oil and gas industry 2 

standpoint, in the 1980s and early 1990s the platform crews used 3 
to supplement their income with fish traps they would drop off 4 
the side and that’s absolutely banned.  They used to catch fish 5 
hook and line, but I think I can safely say that oil companies 6 
now ban that, because of safety practices. 7 
 8 
I would think that maybe some of the cooks and galley hands may 9 
catch some fish to eat on the platform, but I’m not aware of any 10 
offshore crews that are catching fish and bringing them back to 11 
shore for sale. 12 
 13 
MS. WILLIAMS:  In response to what Julie said, I actually called 14 

law enforcement a few years ago because it was happening off the 15 
oil rigs and they were bringing them in filleted in ice chests 16 
and they were actually storing them at a place in I think it was 17 
called Cokatree, but I was told that unless I could tell them 18 
exactly what time they were coming in at the dock that it was 19 
going to be difficult to catch them.  That may not be going on, 20 
but I know in the past it was. 21 
 22 
MR. ADAMS:  Generally, most production companies have specific 23 

policies that ban that and their people will be fired. 24 
 25 
MS. WALKER:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to remind the council 26 

that I made a motion a while back for us not to give IFQs to 27 
Class 2 or Class 1 license holders who had multiple violations 28 
and at the time, Shep had told us there was a problem in doing 29 
that and I would ask Monica if they’ve done any further research 30 
on that. 31 
 32 
These people are out there harvesting thousands of pounds of red 33 
snapper illegally and we’re going to give them IFQ shares and 34 
there just seems to be something fundamentally wrong with that. 35 
 36 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Monica, do you have any response? 37 

 38 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  My response is that I don’t know if any more 39 

legal research has been done.  If it has, I haven’t been 40 
involved with it, but I’ll check with my office when I go back 41 
and I can report back to you at the next meeting or someone will 42 
report back to you at the next meeting. 43 
 44 
MS. BELL:  Bobbi, I was just going to say to that that I don’t 45 

think that they would report their landings.  To qualify for 46 
IFQ, they would have to be logging it and I’m sure if they’re 47 
illegally landing them, I don’t think they would be reporting 48 
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them.  I don’t know, but it would look funny to have a 200-pound 1 
license turning in thousands of pounds of fish. 2 
 3 
MS. WALKER:  If I might, Mr. Chairman, respond to that.  We’ve 4 

had Class 1 license -- We had a presentation and I think it was 5 
off of Galveston and it was a Class 1 license holder that had 6 
illegal harvest and it’s not the point of whether they would 7 
turn in the landings or not. 8 
 9 
From what I understand, the 200-pound Class 2 license will 10 
receive a percentage of the quota and it’s like rewarding people 11 
for breaking the law. 12 
 13 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further discussion regarding that? 14 

 15 
MR. PERRET:  First thing, Mr. Robbins said that customs is going 16 

to seize the vessel and so I assume the vessel will be out of 17 
the fishery, but Ms. Walker is right.  If these individuals have 18 
been repeat offenders, I would hope there would be some way that 19 
we could keep them out of the fishery and, Monica, if you could 20 
follow up and see what we can do on repeat offenders and if 21 
there’s some way we can do that. 22 
 23 
Secondly, relative to platforms and personnel, Mr. Adams is 24 
correct.  Years ago when we first put certain regulations on the 25 
reef fish fishery, i.e., relative to fish traps, we sent letters 26 
to the oil industry or the companies informing them of 27 
regulations and so on and so forth. 28 
 29 
If you ever thought you had seen a fish trap, you ought to see 30 
the fish traps those welders on those platforms used to make.  31 
They were unbelievable and they would have a crane and they 32 
would pick them. 33 
 34 
Anyway, I’m sure there may be a little of it still going on, but 35 
it would be very, very little, because the companies have put 36 
polices out against it and I know -- I used to fish around the 37 
platforms quite a bit and you used to see, oftentimes, workers 38 
fishing. 39 
 40 
Now when you pull up they tell you there’s fish here and not 41 
over there and come right here and so they actually help you and 42 
you see very few of them fishing anymore, or at least I don’t 43 
see many. 44 
 45 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  Just as a reminder, I know when NOAA General 46 

Counsel gets these cases they assess penalties and there have 47 
been many instances where they put permit sanctions on the 48 
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permit holder and in fact, in a few cases I’m aware of in the 1 
reef fish fishery, where they’ve revoked their permits for the 2 
person’s lifetime. 3 
 4 
Those kinds of things occur and I’m sure with quota shares 5 
similar kinds of things will occur for violations, but I know 6 
that doesn’t get to your point about issuing IFQs in the first 7 
place and so I’ll look into it. 8 
 9 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Further discussion?  Colonel Robbins, I want 10 

to share with you that our folks shared that case with us last 11 
week and some of the details of it and some of the footage of 12 
it.  It was an interesting case, but, again, it shows how that 13 
LEAP agreement is working and how that partnership is actually 14 
doing its job and we appreciate all you all’s efforts in that 15 
respect. 16 
 17 
MR. ROBBINS:  Thank you very much and we couldn’t have made the 18 

case without Texas.  They were instrumental in this and helped 19 
us look for the vessel. 20 
 21 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  With that, we’ll move on to the Regional 22 

Administrator’s Report. 23 
 24 
MS. FAY:  I’ll do it.  Shrimp permits, as of November 1st, there 25 

were 2,409 vessels with active federal Gulf shrimp permits.  For 26 
charter/headboat permits, as of the first of the month there 27 
were 1,583 active coastal pelagic moratorium permits and 1,520 28 
active reef fish moratorium permits. 29 
 30 
For Amendment 17/25, the status of that is the South Atlantic 31 
Council will be considering final action on this amendment at 32 
their December meeting, scheduled the morning of December 5th.  33 
Amendment 18A, the NOA and proposed rule are under development 34 
in the regional office. 35 
 36 
Shrimp 13, that proposed rule was submitted to headquarters and 37 
it’s under review in headquarters.  The Gulf EFH Amendment, that 38 
also will be considered by the South Atlantic Council on the 39 
morning of December 5th for final action and the proposed rule 40 
and NOA are under development in the region. 41 
 42 
The grouper trip limit, that proposed rule actually gets filed 43 
today at the Federal Register and we distributed the notices for 44 
the tilefish and Spanish mackerel closures and with that, that 45 
concludes my report. 46 
 47 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Questions regarding the report or of the 48 
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Center at this time?  With that, we’ll go to the Director’s 1 
Reports and Mr. Williams.  Mr. Minton. 2 
 3 
MR. MINTON:  Is anybody going to table this before I get 4 

started?  Our enforcement officers are continuing to assist 5 
Bayou La Batre with clean-up and recovery efforts, as well as 6 
Dauphin Island. 7 
 8 
We are still operating under our joint enforcement agreement, 9 
which I really would like to compliment NOAA Fisheries and NMFS 10 
on.  This is working very well for us.  For the first time in 11 
Alabama, at least, we have opened up experimental dredge areas 12 
for oysters. 13 
 14 
This is something that’s been done in the other five states I 15 
believe quite successfully and for some reason, our fishermen 16 
have fought us on it and a couple of years ago we established 17 
two small reefs independently of state funds and started with 18 
those and now we’ve expanded and it’s doing extremely well right 19 
now. 20 
 21 
Hopefully this will allow some of our people to continue working 22 
and stay out of Corky’s Mississippi areas.  We’re currently 23 
assessing infrastructure needs after Hurricane Katrina, boat 24 
docks and so forth at Gulf Shores and Dauphin Island and just to 25 
update you a little bit, on November 8th and 9th our officers 26 
assisted U.S. Coast Guard with a forty-eight-hour offshore 27 
detail addressing illegal snapper fishing activity. 28 
 29 
I don’t recall the total number of boats they checked, but it 30 
was substantial and I guess the good thing about it -- I know 31 
they checked fifteen commercial boats and I don’t know how many 32 
recreational, but in all of those checks they only issued one 33 
citation to a recreational boat for taking red snapper out of 34 
season and so compliance, at least in that period of time, has 35 
been very good. 36 
 37 
The other thing, and lastly, is we have been conducting an 38 
economic survey on the impacts of Hurricane Katrina on the 39 
Alabama seafood industry with assistance and funding from 40 
National Marine Fisheries Service contracting with Dr. Semoon 41 
Chang, an economist with the University of South Alabama. 42 
 43 
I’ve got the initial draft report now and so hopefully we’ll be 44 
able to get this out and I guess when we talk with the Service 45 
folks, with Dr. Hogarth, this hopefully will be used kind of as 46 
a pattern to go into the other states and so we should have this 47 
done fairly quickly, within a week or so, and be able to move on 48 
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with it and that’s all I have. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Minton.  Are there any 3 

questions of Mr. Minton?  Next is Mr. Perret. 4 
 5 
MR. PERRET:  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.  As expected, 6 

any time you deal with government work insofar as building, we 7 
were told we would be back in our office building in January and 8 
it looks like that’s been delayed, but work is going on to try 9 
to get us back in and several of you have asked about email. 10 
 11 
My email is supposedly up again if any of you have been trying 12 
to get me and I should be able to receive email now.  I have to 13 
thank NOAA Fisheries again for their assistance during all this, 14 
as well as I don’t know what we would have done without Gulf 15 
States, because our finance people have been using part of Mr. 16 
Simpson’s office to get checks out for personnel and things like 17 
that and some of my biological staff have been working out of 18 
there.  He has helped us out. 19 
 20 
The Ocean Springs/Biloxi Bridge and the Bay St. Louis/Pass 21 
Christian Bridge were both knocked out and we’ve contracted and 22 
we will utilize that rubble from those bridges to try and put in 23 
break waters around what’s left of our barrier islands to try 24 
and offer a little protection to them and the plan is to try and 25 
pump sediment onto the islands. 26 
 27 
While in some cases the size of the islands haven’t changed a 28 
great deal, but the height of the dunes that once were several 29 
feet are now down and a good high tide will probably put water 30 
over them and so that’s a little bit more long-term activity. 31 
 32 
We did not open the Mississippi/Alabama oyster season this year 33 
because of the damage to the reefs.  We have had a program going 34 
on and we’ve had 726 days of individual oyster fishermen and 35 
deck hands out doing some reef work for us and the program has 36 
been working very well, to my amazement.   37 
 38 
I thought when you have -- The maximum number of fishermen we’ve 39 
had in any one day was sixty-five, I think.  Anyway, with that 40 
many fishermen, we’ve had very few complaints.  I think they 41 
realize, from what they’re seeing working on the reefs, how bad 42 
condition they are and they feel that they are helping to bring 43 
things back. 44 
 45 
We have two of our shrimp processors that are actually back in 46 
business in Biloxi and one oyster processor in Pass Christian.  47 
Oysters, of course, are not coming from Mississippi and they’re 48 
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coming from elsewhere. 1 
 2 
As Mr. Minton said, we too, thanks to NOAA Fisheries, have an 3 
economic survey being conducted by Dr. Posadis at Mississippi 4 
State.  Ours got started a little bit after Alabama and so Dr. 5 
Posadis is in the information-gathering stage and that should be 6 
completed in the next few weeks.  I think I’ll conclude with 7 
that.  Thank you. 8 
 9 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Corky, I haven’t seen it, but I was told that the 10 

aquaculture part of the shrimp and the striped bass, we lost all 11 
of that, isn’t that correct? 12 
 13 
MR. PERRET:  Yes, that’s correct. 14 

 15 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Perret.  Next is Ms. Foote. 16 

 17 
MS. FOOTE:  I would like to start by thanking everybody for 18 

their thoughts and concerns over the last couple of months for 19 
the State of Louisiana.  Of our eight facilities that Marine 20 
Fisheries used, three were destroyed, one in still closed on 21 
Canal Street in New Orleans, but we’re up and going strong in 22 
the other four. 23 
 24 
We’ve absorbed fifty people extra in our Baton Rouge office and 25 
it’s kind of tight, but we’re getting to know each other well.  26 
We’re short on uniforms though and I noticed that Corky was 27 
wearing an old wildlife uniform the other day and so I would 28 
just like to ask if he would lend it to us for a while. 29 
 30 
We have a little over 110 people working for us.  Fifty of them 31 
were out of their homes for some period of time and ten of our 32 
staff had their homes destroyed.  They’ve all come back from the 33 
shelters and Utah and Tennessee or wherever they were evacuated 34 
to and are making their way into their future life, whatever 35 
that is going to hold for them. 36 
 37 
We are sampling in every major bay system east of the river and 38 
we’re doubling up our boats.  We’re not letting them go out one 39 
at a time because of safety.  There’s nobody else out there 40 
except maybe some oil spill clean-up people and so our expenses 41 
are pretty high to get those samples. 42 
 43 
We have been able to reprogram some Hurricane Ivan money from 44 
NOAA to map reefs.  We were planning on planting cultch, but now 45 
we are not quite sure where the oyster reefs are east of the 46 
river and so we’re starting up a mapping program with some of 47 
the oyster fishermen that have been impacted and we’re hoping to 48 
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continue going strong.  The central coast is pretty much back up 1 
and going where it needs to be.  Thank you. 2 
 3 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Is there any questions of Karen?  Next is 4 

Mr. Simpson. 5 
 6 
MR. SIMPSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  You know how joyous you 7 

are when something leaves your office that you’ve been working 8 
on for a good bit and striped bass is out for public comment.  I 9 
would just like to publicly acknowledge the great work of Doug 10 
Frugé in putting that document out.  I think it’s a good source 11 
document for everybody and hopefully people will comment. 12 
 13 
We are working on some aquaculture siting issues, given in one 14 
of our conference calls Dr. Hogarth asked us to look at that.  15 
In that regard, and after working through it just a little bit, 16 
I would like to formally request that Jeff Rester give a 17 
presentation in a GIS format of some of the multiplicity of uses 18 
of the Gulf of Mexico at the March meeting and I would kind of 19 
like the full council to see that.  A thirty-minute time slot 20 
should be enough. 21 
 22 
We are coordinating hurricane disaster work and state and 23 
federal appropriations and economic needs and in doing so, we 24 
established basically a weekly conference call with Bill and Roy 25 
and the state directors and we’ve had Admiral Lautenbacher sit 26 
on one of those and it helps to coordinate some of the things 27 
that the states are doing in a difficult time. 28 
 29 
We’re maintaining our data and improving means and methods of 30 
data collection and dissemination.  Ginny Vail was elected 31 
Chairman in October for the next year and Vernon Minton Vice 32 
Chairman and I too want to thank you on behalf of the Gulf 33 
States Marine Fisheries Commission for your support, prayers, 34 
and actions on behalf of all those who were affected in the 35 
hurricane zone.  Thank you. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any questions of Mr. Simpson?  Hearing none, 38 

I don’t have a report for Texas at this time and I’ll just 39 
update you at the next meeting.  With that, that will move us to 40 
Other Business, Tab K. 41 
 42 
The first one we’ll look at or just inform you of is the meeting 43 
dates.  I think everyone has had a chance to look at those.  The 44 
one to make note of is the March meeting.  It was moved back a 45 
little bit. 46 
 47 
They were able to do that in the idea of spreading out January 48 
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and March a little bit, given that we’re going to a five meeting 1 
structure.  They weren’t able to move the January meeting, which 2 
we might have done as well, just a little further in time, but 3 
we were able to move the March meeting. 4 
 5 
We’ve established those dates and Dawn is looking into the dates 6 
to make sure that we can get hotels for those dates, but those 7 
are the ones we’re certainly going to be shooting for.  In June, 8 
we’ll be proposing to go to Florida and then Louisiana and then 9 
Mississippi if places are available in those locations at that 10 
time. 11 
 12 
My rationale there is if we’re going to go to a five meeting 13 
format, we should try to make each state within the calendar 14 
year at least one of those meetings and so that’s what we’re 15 
going to be proposing to do and then since I’ll be helping to 16 
choose the January and March meetings of the next year, I’m 17 
going to propose that we just start rotating those in a rotation 18 
fashion so that everybody gets some of the good months of the 19 
year and some of the bad months of the year over a five-year 20 
period or so.  That’s what I would do. 21 
 22 
With that, in January of 2007 we’ll move Alabama up in the list 23 
to January and I would move Florida up to March and then Texas 24 
would go back to the November meeting is the way that I would 25 
propose to do that, but obviously future chairs will make that 26 
decision, but that’s where we’re planning on going right now and 27 
we’ll be letting you know more about locations as soon as we get 28 
those nailed down. 29 
 30 
With that, we had two other things under Other Business, as I’m 31 
remembering.  We had a SOPPs discussion and if Wayne can lead 32 
that for us. 33 
 34 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  That’s under Tab K, Number 2, and 35 

at the top of that discussion paper it points out the council 36 
made a motion that the SOPPs be amended so that there be no 37 
restriction on the number of consecutive terms that the Chair 38 
and Vice Chair serve. 39 
 40 
That was tabled to this November meeting because there were six 41 
members absent at the time.  The next little blip on that thing 42 
indicates to you that five of the councils have no restrictions 43 
on the number of terms that their chairs can serve.  The others, 44 
the Pacific Council has a two-year period and the South Atlantic 45 
has a two-year and that’s by unwritten understanding. 46 
 47 
Our SOPPs below prohibits that, either the Chair or Vice 48 
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Chairman from immediately succeeding themselves.  If you want to 1 
invoke the change in the council’s motion, then you need to have 2 
a motion to amend your SOPPs for that purpose. 3 
 4 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  We have a motion then that was -- 5 

 6 
MS. MORRIS:  So we don’t have to move to bring it off the table 7 

because it was moved to be considered at this meeting, is that 8 
right?  Okay.  I would like to have a substitute motion that the 9 
SOPPs be amended to require annual election of the chair and a 10 
limit on two consecutive terms from any particular chair. 11 
 12 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Do I have a second for that motion? 13 

 14 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Second. 15 

 16 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  It’s been moved by Ms. Morris and seconded 17 

by Ms. Williams.   18 
 19 
DR. SHIPP:  We have room for one more substitute motion, is that 20 

correct? 21 
 22 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Yes, that would be correct. 23 

 24 
DR. SHIPP:  I move status quo, no change in the SOPPs. 25 

 26 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Actually, status quo would be to vote 27 

against both of the motions. 28 
 29 
MR. ADAMS:  Just for discussion, the original motion didn’t 30 

prevent us from having an annual election.  It’s just not a 31 
restriction on how many times you can vote for somebody and so 32 
the substitute motion is just a limitation to two consecutive 33 
terms, is that right? 34 
 35 
MS. MORRIS:  It should probably apply to both the Chairman and 36 

the Vice Chairman. 37 
 38 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Thank you for that clarification. 39 

 40 
DR. SHIPP:  I speak against the motion.  I think it’s always 41 

refreshing to have a new chairman with new ideas and in my 42 
experience with the council, I think every time we’ve had a new 43 
chairman there’s just been a whole fresh set of ideas and even 44 
things such as the meeting that Robin has suggested, this 45 
sequence of the meeting, and I just think it’s healthier to have 46 
a change each year.  The old saying is we’ve been doing this for 47 
twenty-five years and it doesn’t seem to be broken and so why 48 
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try to fix it? 1 
 2 
MR. SIMPSON:  The first three years this council was in 3 

existence there was one chairman. 4 
 5 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Julie, it is my understanding that we would elect 6 

Chair and Vice Chair every year and that person could run again 7 
if nominated and elected and they’re not just automatically two 8 
years and that’s what this does?  Thank you. 9 
 10 
MS. WALKER:  There are less and less of us wanting to serve as 11 

Chair and Vice Chair and I think after you have one round, you 12 
decide you don’t want to do it again, but while I served as 13 
Chair and Julie was my Vice Chair, we found out that at the 14 
meetings where all of the councils get together we didn’t really 15 
have any clout because we had somebody new shooting in there 16 
every year. 17 
 18 
I support this motion.  The person is going to have to run and 19 
if they do a good job and we all know that it’s a difficult job 20 
that Robin is sitting in right now and I just think it will give 21 
us more clout with the other councils and so I support the 22 
motion. 23 
 24 
DR. CRABTREE:  I support the motion too.  I don’t think we need 25 

to tie our hands and we ought to have the ability to have 26 
someone serve another term.  I sit on two other councils where 27 
in the South Atlantic the chairman can serve two years and the 28 
Caribbean I think is unlimited. 29 
 30 
I haven’t seen that it causes any problems and those two years 31 
go by awfully fast and I think that the chairman does learn a 32 
lot as his chairmanship goes on and about the time he really has 33 
it down it’s over or her and I apologize for that.  We always 34 
have the ability to vote the bum out, as they say, and so I 35 
support the motion and no offense, Robin. 36 
 37 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  No offense taken.  I knew it was not 38 

directed at me, or at least I’m going to go with that 39 
assumption.  Any other comments? 40 
 41 
MS. WILLIAMS:  Of course, I’m going to support the motion.  I’ve 42 

had some time to think about it and originally I was against it, 43 
because every time it’s come before this council we’ve always 44 
voted it down and there are some pluses and like you said, if -- 45 
That person may not even want to run again and so this right 46 
here just kind of leaves that door open a little bit and I’m 47 
going to support it. 48 
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 1 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think everyone knows how they’re going to 2 
vote on this and so why don’t we just vote it up or down.  All 3 
those in favor of the substitute motion say aye; all those 4 
opposed like sign.  The motion passes.  With that, that moves us 5 

to I think Dr. Shipp regarding his other Business item that he 6 
had asked to be on the agenda. 7 
 8 
DR. SHIPP:  There are actually two items.  The first one is I 9 

don’t know if this requires any more than just a notification, 10 
but there are several of us who want to file a minority report 11 
on the grouper issue, but in the break we’ve decided that we 12 
will do ourselves and we won’t ask staff time to be involved and 13 
so is it just a notification to council that we’re going to do 14 
this? 15 
 16 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Really, you don’t have to make any 17 

notification.  You, as a member appointed under the Act, have 18 
that right to send your comments to the Secretary on any issue 19 
that the council took action on.  Our SOPPs just provide that if 20 
you were going to use staff time that you needed to notify the 21 
council at the time of the action. 22 
 23 
DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Wayne.  The other item is I would like 24 

the council to consider bringing pompano under management and I 25 
would like to just give you a couple of the reasons why.  26 
Recently, I’ve been to a number of fish houses, Joe Petty’s in 27 
Pensacola for one and a bin filled with pompano and they’re not 28 
to be taken in Florida waters, state waters, with gillnets and 29 
so they must be coming from federal waters. 30 
 31 
I’ve been to a number of other fish houses and pompano are 32 
almost always there.  Seventy-five or a hundred years ago, 33 
pompano were extremely abundant, if you go to the old 34 
literature, and I think Florida has recently done an assessment 35 
and the pompano stocks, while they seem to be recovering, are 36 
far from where they ought to be. 37 
 38 
It may that it’s not that big of a fishery, but I would like to 39 
I guess make a motion to request that staff do a preliminary 40 
evaluation of the pompano fishery to determine whether or not 41 
it’s something that ought to come under council management. 42 

 43 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Do I hear a second for the motion?  It’s 44 

been moved and seconded. 45 
 46 
DR. CRABTREE:  Roy, could you -- I know Florida does pompano 47 

stock assessments and do you know when the last one was and what 48 
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was the determination?  As I recall, they do a separate east 1 
coast/west coast.  Let me too point out that if this is going to 2 
be done that the coastal migratory pelagics is a joint plan and 3 
so this would have to go before the South Atlantic Council as 4 
well. 5 
 6 
MR. WILLIAMS:  We have an assessment.  I don’t think -- Roy, I 7 

don’t know that it could report to us what the rate of fishing 8 
and so on was.  I don’t recall whether it did or not.  I will 9 
tell you this, we already prohibit our fishermen from harvesting 10 
pompano in the federal zone. 11 
 12 
If you’re fishing pursuant to a Florida saltwater products 13 
license, and you have to have one of those if you’re going to 14 
sell fish in the state, you can’t fish in the federal zone 15 
unless you have a special permit to do it from us and we don’t 16 
issue any up here and so I don’t know where those pompano are 17 
coming from. 18 
 19 
Bob, I know you want to do the right thing here, but I think 20 
this is something the states can handle.  Pompano are a shallow-21 
water fish and in Florida there’s only two places in the whole 22 
state where you might expect to find any pompano in the federal 23 
zone and one is in Monroe County, on the Gulf side of Monroe 24 
County, and there is some legal fishing there. 25 
 26 
We have permitted fishermen to do it there and the only other 27 
place that I can think of that might stand a chance would be 28 
there’s some shoals off of Cape Canaveral where they might be 29 
able to get them, but I don’t think we’ve issued any permits 30 
there and I don’t know where these are coming from, but this 31 
sounds like more of an enforcement issue to me. 32 
 33 
I’m going to vote against it, just because pompano are not a 34 
federal species.  If we looked at the statistics, we would see 35 
that ninety-nine-and-forty-four-one-hundredths percent of the 36 
pompano came out of state waters. 37 
 38 
DR. SHIPP:  Roy, I think you’re right.  I think they’re almost 39 

all coming from state waters, but I just don’t know how to 40 
address this problem.  If it’s an enforcement issue, why isn’t 41 
it being better enforced?  There are thousands and thousands and 42 
there are probably million of pounds of pompano that are in the 43 
market. 44 
 45 
The restaurants all have them and you just told me something I 46 
did not know, that your fishermen are not allowed to harvest 47 
pompano in federal waters, and they’re coming from somewhere and 48 
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there are lots and lots of them. 1 
 2 
MR. WILLIAMS:  We can issue a license for them to harvest them 3 

in the federal zone, but we’ve only got a handful of those out 4 
and there aren’t any up in this area of the world, I’m sure of 5 
that. 6 
 7 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Before I return to Corky, we need to clear 8 

something up and Mr. Daughdrill was the seconder of this motion. 9 
 10 
MR. PERRET:  I agree with Roy Williams.  This is a state 11 

fishery, Bob, and it seems to me this is an enforcement issue 12 
and simply having enforcement check out to see where these fish 13 
are coming from. 14 
 15 
Some states have special pompano seasons and perhaps that’s 16 
where the fish are coming from.  I don’t know, but it seems like 17 
the first thing to do is let’s get some enforcement check and 18 
then see what they find and then go from there. 19 
 20 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Any further discussion of the motion?  21 
Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion say aye; all 22 
those opposed like sign.  The motion fails. 23 
 24 
MR. ADAMS:  Robin, can the council -- I don’t know if we make a 25 

motion or write a letter to enforcement to tell us where these 26 
are coming from or is that a state director item that they 27 
should go back to their state enforcement and find out? 28 
 29 
MR. MINTON:  Why don’t we at the next meeting have the directors 30 

each present the state regulations on pompano and any 31 
enforcement issues and just kind of bring it up on the table. 32 
 33 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Can we handle it that way, Mr. Adams?  Would 34 

that work for you, if we just bring back our regulations and 35 
landings and so forth to kind of provide that to all the council 36 
members? 37 
 38 
MR. ADAMS:  Yes and more importantly than regulations, it’s 39 

information of how these markets are being supplied. 40 
 41 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think each director can probably help to 42 

do that. 43 
 44 
MR. WILLIAMS:  I was just going to say we’ll alert enforcement 45 

to this and ask them to check into it.  Bob has already told me 46 
where he has seen them and so we’ll ask law enforcement to go 47 
talk to them. 48 



  198 

 1 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  I think we can do it that way and then we’ll 2 

have a little more information on which to make any motions or 3 
requests at that point.  With that, is there any other business?  4 
 5 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I have just a couple of quick things.  One, 6 

I’ll have a more thorough litigation report for you at the 7 
meeting, because there’s a couple of things you all are involved 8 
in.  I can tell you with the interim rule decision that was 9 
issued in Fort Myers I believe it was yesterday and the 10 
government filed a motion to reconsider before the judge for 11 
that specific point. 12 
 13 
He found that NEPA was fine and it was the best available 14 
science, but you all know he thought it was over broad and so we 15 
did file a motion for reconsideration.  Lastly, Shepherd thanks 16 
you very much for the plaque and I will try to get it back to 17 
him in one piece. 18 
 19 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  Monica, I take it we should close 20 

that session on your report on litigation? 21 
 22 
MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO:  I’ll let you know.  Some of it is for public 23 

record, but perhaps a closed session might be a good thing at 24 
that point. 25 
 26 
MS. BELL:  I was told that Corky’s birthday is next Tuesday and 27 

so I think we need to wish him a happy birthday. 28 
 29 
MR. ADAMS:  At the last council meeting, we did write a letter 30 

in response to Senators Lott and Cochrane and maybe either Larry 31 
or Roy or somebody could tell us if there’s any response to that 32 
or any possibility of seeing any funds. 33 
 34 
DR. CRABTREE:  We did put together, working with Larry and the 35 

states, we put together a document to go to the Secretary of 36 
Commerce that outlined estimates of cost for all of the items 37 
that were identified in the letter to Senators Lott and 38 
Cochrane. 39 
 40 
That included our best estimates of buybacks and replacing nets 41 
and all of those things and that is up there now waiting and 42 
beyond that right now, that’s all that has happened.  I keep 43 
hearing possible times Congress may come back in for a special 44 
session to look at appropriations, but I don’t know where that 45 
is. 46 
 47 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  Larry, do you have some further comments? 48 
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 1 
MR. SIMPSON:  I expect it to be a stand alone and I don’t know 2 

the time frame, but I will next week send the council a copy of 3 
that package, along with some other people that were interested. 4 
 5 
MS. MORRIS:  Did you distribute your cost estimates to the 6 

council that are associated to our letter?  If you haven’t, 7 
could you please? 8 
 9 
DR. CRABTREE:  I believe, Wayne, didn’t you get a copy of that? 10 

 11 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SWINGLE:  No, we didn’t.  We commented on the 12 

work as your staff was drafting that, but we didn’t get a final 13 
copy. 14 
 15 
DR. CRABTREE:  We’ll get something over to Wayne.  I know Larry 16 

I think has it, but we’ll get something over to Wayne when we 17 
get back. 18 
 19 
CHAIRMAN RIECHERS:  With that, I think that concludes Other 20 

Business.  Thank you all very much. 21 
 22 
(Whereupon, the meeting was adjourned at 10:55 o’clock a.m., 23 
November 17, 2005.) 24 
 25 

- - - 26 
27 
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INDEX OF MOTIONS 1 
 2 
PAGE 5:  Motion to adopt the committee make up as presented.  3 
The motion carried on page 5. 4 
 5 
PAGE 78:  Motion that for Section 4.1, IFQ Program, to modify 6 
the Preferred Alternative 2 to read: Implement an individual 7 
fishing quota IFQ program in the Gulf of Mexico red snapper 8 
fishery.  The motion carried on page 78.   9 
 10 
PAGE 79:  Motion that for Section 4.3, Action 3: Ownership Caps 11 
and Restrictions on IFQ Share Certificates, in Alternatives 2 12 
and 3 change “shall possess” to “shall own.”  The motion carried 13 
on page 79. 14 
 15 
PAGE 86:  Motion to add another suboption under 2A to allow the 16 
current holder of a Class 1 historical captain license to select 17 
seven consecutive years.  The motion carried on page 90.  18 
 19 

PAGE 91:  Motion that in Section 4.6 to add at the end of 20 
Preferred Alternative 2: Landings from the 1990 through 1992 21 
period are not subject to appeal.  Landings records appeals for 22 
1993 to 2004 will be based on NMFS logbooks.  If NMFS logbooks 23 
are not available, state landings that were submitted on or 24 
before June 30, 2005 can be used.  The motion carried on page 25 
106. 26 
 27 
PAGE 106:  Motion that in Section 4.6 the following 28 
administrative function be included within the discussion and 29 
rationale: A total of 3 percent of the current commercial quota 30 
will be initially set aside to be used to resolve disputes 31 
regarding eligibility until the appeals process is finalized.  32 
Any amount remaining in the set aside after the appeals process 33 
has been terminated will be proportionately distributed back to 34 
the initial recipients as soon as possible that year.  The 35 
motion passed on page 107. 36 

  37 
PAGE 108:  Motion that for Section 4.9, add a Preferred 38 
Alternative 5, which reads: For 2007, issue 51 percent of 5 39 
million pounds, which is 2.55 million pounds, of the initial 40 
quota or 51 percent of whatever TAC has been selected as the 41 
preferred alternative by the council and submitted to the 42 
Secretary of Commerce.  Any quota share balance resulting from a 43 
decision to specify a larger TAC would be distributed after the 44 
date of publication of the final rule setting a new TAC, but no 45 
later than July 1, 2007.  The motion carried on page 112. 46 
 47 
PAGE 112:  Motion that in Section 4.10 the preferred alternative 48 
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be 2A: Require all fishing vessels engaged in harvesting red 1 
snapper in the IFQ program be equipped with VMS.  The purchase, 2 
installation, and maintenance of the VMS equipment must conform 3 
to the protocol established by the National Marine Fisheries 4 
Service in the Federal Register.  A)The purchase, installation, 5 
and maintenance of the VMS equipment and communication costs 6 
will be paid for or arranged by the owner of the IFQ shares.  7 
The motion carried on page 116. 8 
 9 
PAGE 123:  Motion to submit Reef Fish Amendment 26 to the 10 
Regional Administrator to in turn submit it to the Class 1 11 
license holders for approval as specified in the Magnuson-12 
Stevens Fisheries Management Act.  The motion carried on page 13 
125. 14 
 15 
PAGE 125: Motion that the preferred alternative be the original 16 
Preferred Alternative 5, which sets the red grouper recreational 17 
bag limit within the aggregate as one per person and a closed 18 
season for red, gag, and black grouper during February 15th 19 
through March 15th.  The motion carried on page 132. 20 
 21 
PAGE 133:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Alternative 22 
1, the status quo.  The grouper aggregate daily bag limit will 23 
be five fish.  The motion carried on page 135. 24 
 25 
PAGE 135:  Motion to send the Red Grouper Regulatory Amendment 26 
to the Secretary for implementation.  The motion carried on page 27 
137. 28 
 29 
PAGE 137:  Motion that a new amendment be started to consider 30 
the allocation of grouper and to expedite that amendment.  The 31 
motion carried on page 137. 32 
 33 
PAGE 141:  Motion to invite a member of the LEAP to attend the 34 
council meetings with the council paying the expense of that 35 
person.  The motion failed on page 143. 36 
 37 
PAGE 143:  Motion to continue to fund the two LEAP workgroup 38 
meetings per year for the next two years.  The motion carried on 39 
page 144. 40 
 41 
PAGE 146:  Motion to let Mr. Swingle and the council staff go 42 
through the document and arrange it in a more appropriate 43 
organized format for the council’s review.  The motion carried 44 
on page 146. 45 
 46 
PAGE 150:  Motion to adopt the change to the SOPPs language in 47 
Section E.9, Leave without Pay, as indicated in red in Tab I, 48 
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Number 4.  The motion carried on page 151. 1 
 2 
PAGE 154:  Motion to develop two joint reef fish/shrimp 3 
amendments to address red snapper rebuilding actions.  The first 4 
amendment would be expedited for completion and contain the 5 
following actions: shrimp BRD certification, modifications to 6 
bycatch reduction criteria for shrimp, red snapper TAC 7 
adjustments, red snapper size limits, red snapper recreational 8 
season dates, red snapper recreational bag limits, shrimp limits 9 
on trawling gear, shrimp restrictions on transfer of vessel 10 
permits, and area closures for shrimping.  The motion carried on 11 
page 167. 12 
 13 
PAGE 170:  Motion to table Tab C, Number 5 and Tab C, Number 6, 14 
remaining items in the committee report until the January 15 
council meeting except the setting of scoping meeting locations.  16 
The motion carried on page 171. 17 
 18 
PAGE 171:  Motion to approve the following scoping meeting 19 
locations: for Texas, Port Aransas, Galveston, and Brownsville; 20 
for Louisiana, Larose; for Mississippi is Pascagoula; for 21 
Alabama, Orange Beach; and for Florida, Tampa, Key West, and 22 
Panama City.  The motion carried on page 172. 23 
 24 
PAGE 172:  Motion to reconsider the motion to table.  The motion 25 
carried on page 174. 26 
 27 
PAGE 174:  Motion to table the motions of the committee report 28 
regarding Tab C, Number 5 and Tab C, Number 6, except for the 29 
motion regarding Action 1: Include alternatives ranging from two 30 
to seven million pounds.  The motion failed on page 175. 31 
 32 
PAGE 175:  Motion to add an item for Action 2, to prohibit red 33 
snapper on board vessels with longline gear west of Cape San 34 
Blas.  The motion failed on page 176. 35 
 36 
PAGE 176:  Motion to insert the word “vertical” before “hook and 37 
line” in Action 2, d.  The motion carried on page 176 38 
 39 
PAGE 176:   Motion to add an Action 3,d “or some other boundary 40 
line.”  The motion carried on page 178. 41 
 42 
PAGE 178:  Motion to add an Item 7(c), one fish per person per 43 
day.  The motion carried on page 178. 44 
 45 
PAGE 178:  Motion that under Action 1 to include alternatives 46 
ranging from two to 9.12 million pounds.  The motion carried on 47 
page 179. 48 
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 1 
PAGE 179:  Motion to establish daily time closures as opposed to 2 
daytime closures to shrimping in the EEZ under the last bullet 3 
of Action 2. The motion carried on page 179. 4 
 5 
PAGE 179:  Motion to replace “current average bycatch estimate” 6 
with “target bycatch estimate.”  The motion carried on page 179. 7 
 8 
PAGE 180:  Motion in Action 6 to remove the control date bullets 9 
and revise the title of this action and also under the 10 
qualifying criteria to change the control date to “upon 11 
implementation of this amendment.”  The motion carried on page 12 
180. 13 
 14 
PAGE 180:  Motion to add an option for an IFQ in the shrimp 15 
fishery in the Gulf of Mexico.  The motion carried on page 181. 16 
 17 
PAGE 191:  Motion that the SOPPs be amended to require annual 18 
election of the chair and a limit on two consecutive terms from 19 
any particular chair or vice chair.  The motion carried on page 20 
193. 21 
 22 
PAGE 194:  Motion to request that staff do a preliminary 23 
evaluation of the pompano fishery to determine whether or not 24 
it’s something that ought to come under council management.  The 25 
motion failed on page 195. 26 
 27 
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